
Date: May 26, 2020 (Tuesday) 
Time: 6:30 p.m.  
Place:  TELECONFERNCE MEETING  

Go to the website: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89352546917 
OR 
Go to the website: https://zoom.us/join and use Meeting ID: 893 5254 6917 
Optional call-in phone number (669) 900-9128 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. 
Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, including 
auxiliary aids, translation requests, or other accommodations, or to be able to access this 
agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact City Hall at 559-564-8055 at 
least 3 days prior to the meeting.       
 
The full agenda including staff reports and supporting materials are available at City Hall. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME 
  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on 
items within its jurisdiction but not on this agenda.  NOTE:  Prior to action by the 
Council on any item on this agenda, the public may comment on that item.  Unscheduled 
comments may be limited to 3 minutes. 
 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial by 
City staff and will be approved by one motion if no member of the Council or public 
wishes to comment or ask questions.  Items pulled from the Calendar will be considered 
separately. 
 
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS 
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV A-M) 
 

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on April 13, 
2020 (Pages 1-5) 

B. Action: Approval of Warrants (Pages 6-82) 
C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the March 2020 Monthly 

Report of Investments (Pages 83-85) 
D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the April 2020 Monthly 

Report of Investments (Pages 86-88) 
E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Requesting and Consenting to 

Consolidation of Elections; and Setting Specifications of Election Order 
(Pages 89-91) 

F. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Request for Tulare County Board of 
Supervisors Permit the County Registrar of Voters to Render Specified 
Services to the City (Pages 92-94) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89352546917
https://zoom.us/join


G. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Reappoint Johnny Varela, Chuck Mann and 

Xavier Bocanegra to the Planning Commission Board (Pages 95-96) 

H. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize the City Administrator to File the 

Regional Surface Transportation (RSTP) Exchange Program Fund Claim for 

fiscal Year 2019-2020 on Behalf of the City of Woodlake and Allow the City 

Administrator to Sign Necessary Documentation (Pages 97-102) 

I. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Purchase and Sale Agreement for 

the Property with APN No. 060-170-108 (Pages 103-119) 

J. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Lease Agreement Between VN 

Enterprises, Inc. and the City of Woodlake (Pages 120-122) 

K. Action: Adoption of Proclamation: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake 

Proclaiming the Week of May 17-23, 2020 as National Public Works Week 

(Pages 123-125) 

L. Action: Adoption of Proclamation: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake, 

Proclaiming May 2020 as Mental Health Awareness Month (Pages 126-127) 

M. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize the City Administrator to Sign 

Program Supplement Agreement for Project 5284(015) and Authorize Staff to 

Issue a Request for Proposals (Pages 128-132) 

` 

V.  ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEM 

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Appointment of Emmanuel Llamas to serve on the 

City of Woodlake City Council from May 26, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

(Pages 133-135) 

B. Information: COVID 19 Update (Page 136) 

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Mitigated Negative Declaration for 

the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project – PUBLIC HEARING (Pages 137-341) 

D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) for the Recommended Project of the Concord Center Industrial Project 

(Project), Approve the Project in the Final EIR and Approve and Adopt the 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project (Pages 342-

391) 

E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) for the Recommended Project of the 7 Points Industrial Complex Project 

(Project), Approve the Project in the Final (EIR) and Approve and Adopt the 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project (Pages 392-

436) 

F. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Vehicle Circulation Restrictions 

Within City Limits Related to the City of Woodlake North Valencia Extension 

ADA Project (Pages 437-438) 

G. Information: Presentation and Planning Session for the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal 

Year 2020/2021 Budget (Pages 439-440) 

 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

 A.  Information: Items from Staff 

 B.  Information: Items from Council Member 



 C.  Request from Council Members for Future Agenda Items 

 

VII.  CLOSED SESSION 

 

1. PERSONNEL (Government Code § 54957(b)).  It is the intention of this governing body 

to meet in closed-session to: 

 Consider the discipline, dismissal or release of a public employee.  

 Hear complaints or charges against a public employee. 

 Consider public employee appointment/employment for the position of: 

_________________________________________________________________  

 Consider public employee performance evaluation for the position of: 

City Administrator 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the 

Governing Board may meet in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. These 

sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of the public.  The 

matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or are those matters 

appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and arising after the  

posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session will be made in 

accordance with Government Code sections 54957.1 

 

“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, any public 

records which are subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session item on the regular 

meeting agenda shall be available at the following address at the time they are distributed to a 

majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, Woodlake, California 93286.  Public 

records distributed to the Council at a public meeting will be available to the public at such 

meeting if they were prepared by the City.   

Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 

 

II. ADJOURN 

 

The next scheduled City Council meeting will be held on Monday, June 8, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. at 

City Council Chambers located at 145 N. Magnolia, Woodlake, CA 93286. 

 

City Council: 

 

Rudy Mendoza – Mayor 

Frances Ortiz - Vice Mayor 

Jose L. Martinez – Councilmember 

William Valero - Councilmember 



WOODLAKE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES April 13, 2020 

PRESENT: Lara 

ZOOM: Councilmembers Mendoza, Councilmember Martinez, Waters, Zacarias, 

Marquez & Zamora 

PHONE IN:   Councilmember Ortiz 

ABSENT: Valero 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS

Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV. A-C)

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on March 23,

2020

B. Action: Approval of Warrants

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Enter Into a Joint Lawsuit Against

Southern California Edison and Pacific Gas & Electric. Regarding the

Under-Collection of Utility Users Taxes

ON A MOTION BY ORTIZ, SECOND BY MARTINEZ IT WAS

VOTED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Information: COVID-19 Update and Continuation of Local Emergency for the

City of Woodlake

Community Services Director Waters reported the following:  On January 31, 2020,

the United States Department of Public Health and Human Services declared a

public emergency for COVID-19 beginning on January 27, 2020 and on March 4,

2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency in the State of

California due to the number of confirmed cases of COVID-19 in the State.

Woodlake also declared a local emergency at the March 23rd City Council meeting

and the emergency remains in place until terminated by City Council.

The City has undertaken several measures to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in the

community including closing City Parks and Facilities and enforcing the State’s

recommendations related to non-essential businesses.

B. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Receiving Public Comments and Waiving the 2nd

Reading and Adopting Section 2.36.110 of the City Municipal Code – PUBLIC

HEARING

Community Services Director Waters reported the following: The purpose of this

public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments known

regarding the proposed amendment to section 2.36.110 of to the Woodlake

Municipal Code.

Organizations receiving federal funds are subject to procurement guidelines of the

Uniform Guidance (UG). The procurement standards in the UG created 5 methods

of procurement: Micro purchases, small purchases, sealed bids, competitive

proposals and noncompetitive (sole source) proposals as well as other

requirements.  For the city to be in compliance with UG, it needs to either create

purchasing guidelines for federally funded purchases or update its ordinances.

PUBLIC HEARING OPEN: 6:39 PM

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSE 6:39 PM1



ON A MOTION BY ORTIZ, SECOND BY MARTINEZ IT WAS VOTED 

TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS, 

WAIVE 2ND READING AND ADPT AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 2.36.10 

OF THE WOODLAKE MUNICIPAL CODE.  APPROVED 

UNANIMOUSLY. 

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Receive Public Comments, Waive 2nd Reading 

and Adopt Amendments to Chapter 13.04 of the Woodlake Municipal Code – 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Community Services Director Waters reported the following: The purpose of this 

public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments known 

regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 13.04 of to the Woodlake Municipal 

Code. 

SB 998 prohibits disconnection for nonpayment by any residential customer who 

have been delinquent for less than 60 days. It requires the provider give notice in 

writing or by telephone at least seven business days before disconnection and 

include an offer to discuss alternative payment or deferred payment methods and 

information regarding appeals and extensions. The notice must include the 

following:  Customer's name and address; Amount of delinquency; Date by which 

payment or arrangement for payment is required to avoid discontinuation of 

service;  Description of the process to apply for an extension of time to pay the 

amount owing; Description of the procedure to petition for review and appeal of 

the bill giving rise to the delinquency; and Description of the procedure by which 

the customer can request a deferred, amortized, reduced or alternative payment 

schedule. If the occupant of the property is not the account holder, the provider 

must also notify the occupant of the impending disconnection. 

The legislation prohibits disconnection of customers that meet ALL of the 

following parameters:   

1. Health Conditions: Customer or tenant of the customer submits certification 

from a primary care provider stating discontinuation of water service would (i) be 

life threatening, or (ii) pose a serious threat to the health and safety of a resident. 

2. Financial Inability: Customer demonstrates he or she is financially unable to 

pay for water service within normal billing cycle and  the  customer is deemed 

"financially unable to pay" if any member of the customer's household is a current 

recipient of the following benefits: CalWORKs, CalFresh, general assistance, 

Medi-Cal, SSI/State Supplementary Payment Program or California Special 

Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children; or the 

customer declares the household's annual income is less than 200% of the federal 

poverty level. 

3. Alternative Payment Arrangements: Customer is willing to enter into an 

amortization agreement, alternative payment schedule or a plan for deferred or 

reduced payment, consistent with the City’s policy. The City Clerk may select the 

appropriate alternative payment arrangement after reviewing the information and 

documentation provided by the customer.  

Aspects that will change in order to comply with SB 998: 

1. The City will not shut off water service until the water account is delinquent for 

60 days. Likewise, the City will not shut off water service if a customer has 

entered into an alternative payment arrangement; however, if a customer does not 

enter into an alternative payment arrangement or has entered into an alternative 

payment arrangement but is in default for 60 days, the City will proceed with 

shutoff. 
2



2. A final disconnection notice will be delivered to the premises of delinquent 

alternative payment customers no less than 5 business days prior to shutoff.   

3. Set qualifications and terms for establishing payment arrangements. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 6:42 PM 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSE 6:42 PM 

ON A MOTION BY MARTINEZ, SECOND BY ORTIZ IT WAS VOTED TO 

ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS, 

WAIVE 2ND READING AND ADOPT AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 13.04 

OF THE WOODLAKE MUNICIPAL CODE.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

D. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Declaring a Vacancy on the Woodlake City Council 

and Noticing the Intent to Appoint a Qualified Elector to Fill Said Vacancy 

City Administrator Lara reported the following: Councilman Greg Gonzalez Jr. was 

elected to the Woodlake City Council by virtue of the general election and 

subsequently qualified and entered office. Councilman Greg Gonzalez Jr. has been 

absent from Woodlake City Council meetings on February 10, 2020, February 24, 

2020, March 9, 2020 and March 23, 2020 and these absences violate a council 

member’s responsibilities pursuant to California Government Code section 

36513(a). His said absences have created a vacancy on the City Council.  The City 

Council of the City of Woodlake intends to fill the vacancy pursuant to California 

Government Code section 36512. California Government Code section 36512 

provides that in the case of a vacancy in any position of the Woodlake Council, 

such vacancy may be filled by a majority vote of the Woodlake Council, and such 

appointee shall serve in place of the official who vacated the office until the next 

following general election. 

ON A MOTION BY MARTINEZ, SECOND BY ORTIZ IT WAS VOTED TO 

ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND DECLARE A VACANCY ON THE 

WOODLAKE CITY COUNCIL AND NOTICE THE INTENT TO APPOINT 

A QUALIFIED ELECTO TO FILL THE VACANCY.  APPROVED 

UNANIMOUSLY. 

E. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the City of Woodlake’s Audited Basic 

Financial Statements of the Measure R Revenue Fund, the Local Transportation 

Special Revenue Fund and the Transit Enterprise Fund for the Year Ended June 30, 

2019. 

City Administrator Lara reported the following:  The City of Woodlake undergoes 

an annual independent audit of its basic financial statements of its governmental 

activities, its business-type activities, each of its major funds, and its aggregate 

remaining fund information.  For Fiscal Year 2018/2019, the City of Woodlake in 

conjunction with the Tulare County Association of Government contracted Brown 

Armstrong Certified Public Accountants to perform the audit.  

The audit is conducted with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States.  Those standards require that the audit is performed to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the City financial statements are free of material 

misstatement.  The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The audit also includes 

assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The 

audit will also consider the City’s internal controls over financial reporting and test 

its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 

agreements and other matters. 

Staff has reviewed the independent auditor’s report for the year ended June 30, 

2019 and concurs with the report.  The financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects and there were no findings for the audit ending June 30, 2019. 
3



ON A MOTION BY ORTIZ, SECOND BY MARTINEZ IT WAS VOTED TO 

ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND APPROVAL THE CITY OF 

WOODLAKE’S AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 

MEASURE R REVENUE FUND, THE LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND AND THE TRANSIT ENTERPRISE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Information: Items from Staff 

Chief of Police Marquez – Reported the citizens of Woodlake all did well on Easter 

Sunday regarding the Social Distancing order.  There were no incidents to report. 

B. Information from Council 

Councilmember Ortiz – Happy to see Woodlake is looking very clean at this time.  Asked 

staff to place the numbers to Proteus and CSet on the City’s website.   

Councilmember Martinez – Asked staff to continue to work with the citizens of 

Woodlake on a payment plan for those affected by COVID-19.  Asked staff to check if 

there are small cans available for the elderly. 

BOS Valero – Reported United Way, Proteus and CSet have resources available for those 

struggling to pay rent and utilities due to COVID-19. 

Mayor Mendoza – Reminded everyone of the Food Drive on April 14 held at the 

Woodlake Food Pantry.  If anyone needs additional information please call, 559-564-

5212. 

C. Information from Public 

Pastor Dennis – The pastor from the Woodlake Presbyterian Church thanked City Staff 

for all their hard work during this difficult time. 

 

VII. CLOSED SESSION 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the 

Governing Board may meet in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. 

These sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of the 

public.  The matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or are 

those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention 

and arising after the posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the 

closed session will be made in accordance with Government Code sections 54957.1 

 

“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, 

any public records which are subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session 

item on the regular meeting agenda shall be available at the following address at the time 

they are distributed to a majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, 

Woodlake, California 93286.  Public records distributed to the Council at a public 

meeting will be available to the public at such meeting if they were prepared by the City.   

Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
4



VIII. ADJOURN 

 

The next scheduled City Council meeting will be held on Monday, April 27, 2020 at 6:30 

p.m. at City Council Chambers located at 145 N. Magnolia, Woodlake, CA 93286. 

 

City Council: 

Rudy Mendoza - Mayor 

Frances Ortiz - Vice Mayor 

Jose L. Martinez – Councilmember 

William Valero – Councilmember 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:01 PM 

 

Submitted by, 

Irene Zacarias 

City Clerk 

5



PAYROtt

alIol2o2o lcitvl
4lIOl2o2o (Firel

a/2a/2o2o (citvl
412412020 (Fkel

s/8/2o2o lcirvl
sl8lzozoFnel

City of Woodlake
Summary of Disbursments and Payroll

City Council Meeting May 26,2020

5s4,424.rI
S6,s82.99

ss9,910.19
56,521.27

ss3,s20.77
s6,s82.99

DrsBU RSMENTS / WARRANTS
zl24l2o2o Ss8.oo
4/7s/2O2O s61,684.70
4122/2020 527,47t.4O
4129/2020 5706,497.77
slztl2ozo s128,630.88

WIRES
PAYROLL TAX WIRE CITY

FIRE

USDA - Water Loan

USDA - Sewer Loan

USDA - Airport Loan

USDA - Fire Truck Loan

Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:
Abstain:

Total Disbursments s318,342.69

S 34,s6s.91

s 3,780.61

TotalWire Amount Sent Out S 34,t46.s2

Lara

l, Ramon Lara, certifo under penalty of perjury that the above listed accounts are correct,

due and payable to the best of my knowledge.

City

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the city council of the
City of woodlake on the 26th day of May 2020.

by the following vote:

Mayor, Rudy Mendoza

Gross Payroll

544,23'-.4Amount to be Approved S

City Clerk, lrene Zacarias

6



rROLL ...S C-BIWEEKI,Y
iCK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN- 04/22/zozo 19 .32.L4 PAGE 1
PR3I-1-R-V1-4 . 09 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

pERroD 2 DATTNG 4/05/2020- 4/L8/2020 CHECK DATE 4/24/ZOZO
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

49237
49238
49239
49240
49241,
49242
49243
49244
49245
49245
49247
49248
49249
49250
49251-
49252
49253
49254
49255
49256
49257
49258
49259
49260
4926]-
49262
49263
49264
49265
49266
49267

CHECK
AMOUNT

1,553 .58
4 ,222 .55
2 ,21-8 .46
l_, l_16 . 0t-
2,898.74
L,979 .80
1, 153 .39
I , 482 .54
1, 3l-5 . 96
1-,480 .27
2,LL2 .48
1- ,521_ . 56
1,L77.03
1, 5l-9. 90
3 , L]-6 .1,4
1- ,27 9 .72
6,722.54
2,870,01
1,897 .27
1- ,202 .22
2,056 . A2
1- ,562 .52
I,L94.37
1,254.92
1,310.82
l_,337.68
L,242 .36
2,234.10
t,764.09
1, t-l-9. 55
1, 883 .39

220
208
2L0
206
242
207
]-73
576
580
579
539
575
555
572
549
565
554
577
578
581
2L5
1,34
223
218
2]-6
2L9
t_5 9
209
2tt
21-4
1_88

TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB
TUB

ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONI,Y
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY

1S
1S
t_s
1S
l-s
l_s
1S
l_s
1S
1S
1S
l_s
1S
1S
l_s
1S
1S
1S
1_S
1_S
1S
t-s
l_s
l_s
1S
l_s
1S
l_s
1_S
1S
1S

7



.ROLL S C-BIWEEKLY
ICK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN- 04/22/2020 ]-9.32
PR311-R-Vl_4 - 09

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

COUNTS

14 PAGE 2
Paymate

pERroD 2 DATTNG 4/05/2020- 4/L8/ZOZ0 CHECK DATE 4/24/ZOZO
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

CHECK
AMOTINT

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

EMPLOYEE/BANK/VENDOR
NAME

STUB

*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BAI\trK CHECKS

**TOTAL NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTTABLE CHECKS
59, 91_0 . 19

0.00

*MANUAL CHECKS
*CANCELLED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0 - 00
0.00

0
0

O. OO **TOTAL FOR CHECK FORM

31
0

8



PAY INFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE DISTRIBUTION
CITY-GROSS REPORT-PAYF(OLL #22-4Q FYA9 /2O
04/04/20 TO 04/a8/20 - pAy DAy o4/24/2o

RUN- 4/23 /2020 t-0 : o6 : r-5 PAGE t_

PR4BoR-V]-4 .09 Paymate

EMP #

223

CUR AMT

, 31-3 , 55
,9r"3.95

81,530 .84

CUR HRS

2,702.26

577
2Lt

L34
2L2
578
581
207

31 EMPLOYEES

31 EMPLOYEES

80.00
90.00
84.00

00
00
00
00

5, 859
I,8L2
2,008
4 ,603

, L87
,27 4
,997
,'720
,876

00
00
00
26
00

00
31

80.00
80.00
80.00

1, 600 . 00
2 ,846 .3O

81, 530 . 84

579
220
539
575
t_88
555
209
208
L73
572

,453
,955
,500
,6L3
,908
,966
,996
,051
,525
,547
,7 99

.15

.38

.10

.23

.54

.84

.85

.47

.00

21
21
57
58
1_5

549
s66
554
21_0

206
2L8
2L6
2L9

5
A

6
n
9

l-
2
2
1_

1
t-
l_

t_

2
2

t-

84
70
00
08
00

85
84
85
70

,547.53
,587 .23
, 666 .62
,589.54
,1_49.53
,228,!5
,330.71

80
80
80
80
80
80

80
80
80
80
BO
80
80
BO

280
BO

80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
84.00
80.00
80.00

2,702.25

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

B4

2
I
2
3
z
1-

1
1
l_

2

2

PAG!; ',tulA.Ls ***

FEATURE TOTALS *

9



PAY INFORMATION

o/T T-a/2 03

FEATURE DISTR]BUTION
Ty-o/T REPORT-PAYROLL #22- 4Q Fy1,9 / 20
04/20 TO 04/L8/20 - pAy DAy 04/24/20

CUR AMT CUR HRS

RVN- 4/23/2020 t0: 05 :35

PR4BoR-V14.09

PAGE 1.

PaymateCI
04/

EMP #

2'J.5
2L4
575
578

4 EMPIJOYEES

4 EMPLOYEES

435.42
158 - 99
t_43. L0
r52.13
890.64

00
00
00
00
00

l_0
4
4
4

22PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATURE TOTALS * 490 -64 22 .00

10



IROLIJ ...F F-BIWEEKIJY
ICK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN- o4/22/zozo 19 .32.08 PAGE r-

PR311R-VI-4.09 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

pERroD 2 DATTNG 4/05/2020- 4/L8/2020 cHEcK DATE +/z+/zozo
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

49233
49234
49235
49236

CHECK
AMOUNT

,1,98 .32
,310.95
,7'.74.64
,237.30

4042
401_8
4022
4041,

]. STUB
1 STUB
]- STUB
]. STUB

ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY

t_

2
t_

1

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

STUB

*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BANK CHECKS

**TOTAIJ NEGOTTABLE CHECKS

COUNTS
0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECKS
6 ,521 .21,

0.00

*MANUAL CHECKS
*CANCELLED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0.00
0. 00

0
0

O. OO **TOTAL FOR CHECK FORM

4
0

11



PAY INFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE DISTRlBUTION
FTRS-GROSS REPORT-PAYROLL #22- 4Q F'tLg / 20
04/04/20 to 04/18/20 - pAy DAy 04/24/20

CUR AMT CUR HRS

R[JN- 4/23 /2020 t0: 07 : l_9

PR4B0R-V14.09

PAGE ]-

Paymate

EMP #

4042
4 018
4022
404L

LL2.
80.

L]-2.
1"t2.
4L6.

L,524 .24
2,93]-.27
2 , O49 .60
L ,624 .24
I,229.35

00
00
00
00
00PAGE TOTALS ***

FEATURE TOTALS *
4 EMPIJOYEES

4 EMPLOYEES I,229.35 416.00

12



PAYROLL ...S C-BIWEEKLY
CHECK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN-04/09/2O2O 09.29.17 PAGE 1
PR31-1R-V1,4.09 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

pERroD l- DATTNG 3/22/ZOZO- 4/A4/2020 CHECK DATE 4/L0/2O20
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

]-38674
13 867s
1,386'16
]-38677
138578
1,3867 9
r-38680
r_38581_
138582
r.3I583
1_38684
138685
1_38686
138687
1_38688
1-38589
r_38690
1_38591
]-38692
L3 85 93
]-38594
L3 85 9s
]-38696
138697
13 8698
]-38599
138700
r_38701_
]-387 02
1_3 8703
1_38704

CHECK
A}TOUNT

,553.58
,222.55
,2L8 .46
,1-1-6 . 02
,898 .75
,979.8I
,L63.39
,482 .54
, 3l_5 . 96
,290.94
,1-L2 .48
, 510.55
,1,77 .03
,659 .57
,1-L6.1-4
,279.72
, o21.36
, 870 . 0t_

,729.09
,2O2.22
, 624 .06
,558 .23
,I94.36
,366 .67
,3r0.82
,206.12
,242.36
,234.1-O
,764.09
, 0L9. 53
,983.39

1. STUB
]. STUB
1, STUB
1- STUB
1 STUB
1. STUB
1 STUB
1. STUB
1_ STUB
1 STUB
1. STUB
r_ sTuB
1- STUB
]- STUB
]. STUB
]- STUB
]. STUB
]- STUB
1- STUB
1- STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB
]- STUB
1. STUB
1- STUB
1- STUB
L STUB
L STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB
]- STUB

ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY

1
4
2
1
2
1_

L
1
L
L
2
L
1_

L
3
l_

2
2
t-
L
1
1
L
t-
1
L
1_

2
1_

1_

1

220
208
2]-0
205
21,2
207
]-73
575
s80
579
539
575
555
572
549
s66
554
577
578
s81
2r5
134
223
218
2l.6
2]-9
r_59
209
2t]-'
2]-4
l-88

13



PAYROLL ...S C-BIWEEKLY
CHECK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

CHECK EMPLOYEE/EANX/VUNDOR
AMOUNT NA}IE

RUN- o+/og/zozo 09 .29.1-7 PAGE 2
PR311R-VJ,4 .0 9 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

pERroD l- DATTNG z/zz/zozo- +/o+/zozo cHEcK DATE +/to/zozo
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0. 00

STUB

*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BANK CHECKS

**TOTAL NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

COIINTS
0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECKS
54 ,424 .rr

0.00

*MANUAL CHECKS
*CAI{CELLED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0.00
0.00

0
0

O.OO **TOTAL FOR CHECK FORM

31_

0

14



PAY INFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE DISTRIBUTTON
TY-GROSS REPORT-PAYROLL #21--2Q FvL9 /20
/22/20 TO 04/04/20 - pAy DAy o4/to/20

RUN- 4/09/2020 09 232.:5'l

PR4BoR-V]_4.09

PAGE 1

Paymatec1
03

EMP # CUR AMT

1, 313 .54
2,349 .36
2,294.84

CUR HRS

575
t_88
55s
209
208
L73
572
549
566
554
21,0
577

223
2L5
2L4
576

80.00
80.50
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
86.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
82.00
80.00
80.00

580
159
579
220
s39

2L]-
206
218
2L6

2L2
578
581

t_

l_

1
1
1
2
1

1
2
5
1
2
4
2
2
z
3
2
t_

1
t_

1
2
4
2
'J.

2
'74

70
00
OB
00

23
54
84

23
62
53
53
L7
64

,955
,600
,6]-3
,600
,966
,996

8r2.47
222 .65
503.85
1,87.84
469.23
997.70
720.OO
876.3L

,'737
,666
,439
,299
,228
,1-04
,600
,846
,689

,859.85

,547.54

,908
,525
,547
,7 99

15
38
00

00
3l-
13

2L9
L34

PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATURE TOTALS *

207
31 EMPLOYEES

31. EMPLOYEES 74,689 .43

2,488.50
2,488 .50

15



PAY INFORMATION

o/T T-L/2 03

FEATURE DISTRIBUTION RUN- 4/09/2O2O 09:33 :23

PR4B0R-V14.09

PAGE 1-

Palmate

EMP #

215
572
578

3 EMPLOYEES

3 EMPLOYEES

CITY-O/T REPORT-PAYROLL #21-20 FY
o3/22/2b To 04/04/20 - PAY DAY 04/

CI'R AMT

2t.
2L4.

76-
342.

te /2o
a0 /20

0. s0
6.00
2.00
8. s0

82
65
06
53

CUR HRS

PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATIJRE TOTALS * 3L2.53 8.50

16



PAYROLL ...F F-BIWEEKLY
CHECK FORM..STUB CHECK REGTSTER

RUN-04/09/2020 09.29.24 PAGE 1
PR3l-l-R-V1,4 .09 Palmate

4/04/2020 cHEcK DATE 4/Lo/2020PERTOD 1- DATTNG 3/22/2020-
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

1,3867 4
L38 575
13867 6
1,38677

CHECK
AIqOUNT

1-,]-98 .32
2 ,340 . 45
I , 806 .92
r ,237 .30

CODE

4042
4 0L8
4022
404L

CHECK
SEQ

LS
l_s
1S
1S

TUB ONLY
TUB ONLY
TUB ONLY
TUB ONLY

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

STUB

*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BAI{K CHECKS

**TOTAL NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

COUNTS
0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECKS
6 ,582 .99

0.00

*M;\NUAL CHECKS
*CANCELLED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0.00
0.00

0
0

O. OO **TOTAL FOR CHECK FORM

4
0

17



PAY INFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE
RE-GROSS REPOR
/22/20 rO 04/O

DISTRIBUTION
T-PAYROLL #2r-2Q FvLg /204/20 - PAY DAY o4/L0/20

CITR AMT CUR HRS

RUN- 4/09/2020 09232:45

PR4B0R-V14 .09

PAGE 1

FI
03

Paymate

PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATURE TOTALS *

EMP #

4042
4018
4022
404L

4 EMPLOYEES

4 EMPLOYEES

L,624 .24
2,974.27
2 ,092 .1,O
1, ,624 .24
B, 311_ , 85

8, 311 . 85

112.00
80.00

1"L2 - OO
t_1_2.00
416.00
4i"6.00

18



TROLI, ...S C-BIWEEKLY
iCK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN- 05 / Os / 2020 16 .45 .17 PAGE L
PR3l-l-R-Vl{.09 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

pERroD L DATTNG 4/te/2020- 5/02/ZOZ0 CHECK DATE 5/08/2A20
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

1_3 87 05
r_3 87 06
L38'7 07
L38708
r_38709
l_3 8710
l_3 87 LL
L387L2
t_3 87 t_3
L387L4
l_3 87 L5
r_3 87 L6
L387L7
L3 87 L8
l_3 87l_9
L38720
L38'72L
L38722
L38723
L38724
L38725
L38726
L38727
L38728
L38729
L3 873 0
l-3 873l-
L38732
1-3 8733
L38734

CHECK
AMOUNT

1,553 .68
4,222.55
2 ,218 .46
1, 1_1_6 . 0t_
2 ,898 .74
L,9',79.80
1", l_63 .38
1,765.26
1_,315.95
L,480 .27
2 ,1,1,2 .48
L,676.43
1", L77 .03
l_, 81_5 .73
3,L].6.14
1,,482 .71
2,870.01
t,897 .27
L,L59 .82
L,607 .37
L,658 .24
t_,31_8. 09
L ,254 .92
1, ,31,0 .82
1,206.L4
L ,242 .36
2,234.LL
1,764.07
1_, 01_9 . 53
l_,883.39

]. STUB
]- STUB
1- STUB
l_ sTuB
1- STUB
1 STUB
]. STUB
L STUB
t_ sTuB
]. STUB
1- STUB
1_ STUB
]. STUB
]- STUB
]- STUB
]- STUB
1 STUB
1. STUB
1 STUB
]. STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB
t_ sTuB
1 STUB
1 STUB
]- STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB
1 STUB

ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONI-,Y
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONI-,Y
ONLY
ONI,Y

220
208
2]-0
206
212
207
1"73
576
580
579
539
575
555
572
549
566
577
578
58L
21,5
134
223
2]-8
21,6
2t9
159
209
2Lt
21,4
r_88

19



rROLL ...S C-BIWEEKLY
iCK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

EMPLOYEE/BANK/VENDOR
NAME

STUB

*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BAIitrK CHECKS

**TOTAI, NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

RUN- 05 / 05 / 2O2O 1-5 .4s .t7 PAGE 2
PR3I-I-R-VL4.O9 Paymate

CODE
CHECK

SEQ

COUNTS

pERroD 1 DATTNG 4/L9/2020- 5/02/ZOZ0 CHECK DATE s/08/2020
DIRECT DEPOSIT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
NUMBER

CHECK
AMOUNT

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECKS
53 ,520 .77

0.00

*MANUAL CHECKS
*CA]{trCELLED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0.00
0. 00

0
0

O. OO **TOTAI, FOR CHECK FORM

30
0

20



PAY TNFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE DTSTR]BUTION
C]TY-O/T REPORT-PAYROLL #23-2Q FYT9 /2O

o4/te/20 To 05/02/20 - pAy DAv 05/08/20

RUN- 5/0712020 1,3:18:05 PAGE l_

PR4B0R-VL4.09 Palrmate

EMP # CUR AMT CUR HRS

223
2L5
214
575
580

80.00
80.00
80.00
92.50
80.00

80.00
80.00
80.00

159
579
220
539
575
L8I
55s

L73
572
549
565
2to

1
2
2
2
l-
l_

1
l_
2
2
2
l_

2
5
1_

2
4
z
2
3
2
I
l_

1
1_

2
4
2
1
2

73

,463 .s5
,327.54
,294 .84
,4L4.L4
,500.00
,513.08
,908,00
,956 .L5
,996 .38
, L22 .65
,525.23
,547.54
,799.85

80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
86.00

209
204 80.00

80.00
90.00
80.00
84.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00

,859. Bs
,8L2 .45
,479.20
,603 .85
,462.95
, 99'1 .7 0
,720.00
,876.28
,547.53
,587.23
, 666 .62
,439.55

577
2LL
206
2L8
2L6
219
L34
212
578
5 81_
207

EMPLOYEES

EMPIJOYEES

80.00
80.00
80.00
84.00
80.00
80.00

2 ,436 .50

54
15
71
00
30
B7

,299
,228
,330
,600
,846
,936PAG!:']'O'I.ALS ***

FEATURE TOTALS *

30

30 73,936.87 2,436 .50

21



PAY INFORMATION

o/T T-t/2 03

FEATURE DISTRIBUTION
CITY-O/T REPORT-PAYROLL #23-2Q FY1.9 /20

04/t9/20 TO 05/02/20 - pAy DA]y O5/O8/20

CUR AMT CUR HRS

RIIN- 5/07l2020 a3:23:00
PR4B0R-V14.09

PAGE ]-

Palmate

EMP #

576
575
572
566
578

5 EMPIJOYEES

5 EMPLOYEES

458.44
214.65
37s.66
]-65.67
L52.t3

1, 366 . 55PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATURE TOTALS *

L2 50
00
00
00
00
50

6
1_0

4
4

36

1,365 . 55 36 .50

22



rROLL ...F F-BIWEEKI,Y
lCK FORM..STUB CHECK REGISTER

RUN- 05 / Os / 2O2O 1-6 .45 .22 PAGE L
PR3I-1-R-VLA.09 Paymate

5/02/2020 CHECK DATE s/08/2020

CODE
CHECK

SEQ
CHECK

NUMBER

r_3 87 05
r_3 87 06
L3 87 07
1_3 87 08

TOTALS FOR CHECK FORM:
NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

PERTOD 1 DATTNG 4/t9/2020-
DIRECT DEPOSTT IS TURNED ON

CHECK
AIVIOUNT

t,1-98.32
2,340.45
L, 805. 92
1,237.30

STUB

4042
401_8
4022
404L

]. STUB
1. STUB
]. STUB
]. STUB

ONLY
ONLY
ONLY
ONLY

COUNTS
*EMPLOYEE CHECKS
*VENDOR CHECKS
*BAI\trK CHECKS

**TOTAL NEGOTIABLE CHECKS

0
0
0
0

OTHER CHECKS

NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECKS
6 ,582 .99

0.00

*MANUAL CHECKS
*CAI\trCEI,I,ED CHECKS

*DIRECT DEPOSIT STUBS
*VENDOR DIR DEP STUBS

0.00
0.00

0
0

4
0

O. OO *ITOTAL FOR CHECK FORM

23



PAY INFORMATION

GROSS PAY

FEATURE DISTRIBUTION
FIRE-GROSS REPORT-PAYROLL #23-2Q FYI' /20o4/t9/2o TO os/o2/20 - pAy DAy 65/08/20

CUR AMT CI'R I{RS

RUN- 5/0712020 t3z!7 :25

PR4BoR-V1"4.09

PAGE 1.

Paymate

PAGE TOTALS ***
FEATURE TOTALS *

EMP #

4042
4 018
4022
404L

4 EMPLOYEES

4 EMPLOYEES

I,624.24
2,97r.27
2, O92.10
t ,624 -24
8, 311 .85

8, 311 . 8s

1t_2.00
80.00

1_L2.00
1t_2.00
4r-6.00

41"6.00

24



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
03/24/2020 L2:

BANK VENDOR

BANK BANK OF THE SIERRA

001265 TULARE COIJNTY

BANK OF THE SIERRA

Check Register
CHECK#

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 1

DATE AIVIOUNT

CLERK 68361 03/24/20 58.00

s8.00 ***

25



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
03/24/2020 !2:
BANK VENDOR

REPORT TOTALS:

Check Register
CHECK#

RECORDS PRINTED - OOOOO1

CITY OF WOODI,AKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 2

DATE AMOUNT

58.00

26



ACS FINANC
03 /24 /2o2o

IAL SYSTEM
L2227 225 Schedule of Bi11s

AMOI'NT ACCOI]NT NAME FI]ND & ACCOI'NT

58.00 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. O4O2 .060.O29

CLAIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL540R-V08.14 PAGE 1

Po# F/P ID L]NE

673 00001_

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

TUIJARE COI]NTY CLERK
NOE N.VIJNCA B.LVD 03/20 N.VLNCA EXTNTN

27



ACS FTNANCIAL SYSTEM
03/24/2020 L2:27:25
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTTON

REPORT TOTALS:

Schedule of Bi11s

FUND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VO8 . ].4 PAGE 2

PO# F/P ID LINEAMOUNT

58.00

ACCOUNT NAME

RECORDS PRINTED - OOOOO1

28



ACS FINANC
03 /24 / 2020

IAL SYSTEM
L2:27 :25 Schedule of Bills

THE PRECED]NG LIST OF BILLS PAYABLE WAS REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR PAYMENT.

DATE APPROVED BY

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GLO6OS-VO8 . 14 RECAPPAGE
GL54 OR

29



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
03/27 /2020 L5256 47 Transaction (c/L) Posting

Report Selection:

RT'N GROUP. . . OL4T79 COMMENT.

DATA-JE-ID DATA COMMENT

I4-O32O2O2O-679 AI.TTO CHECK CANCEL MANDIS

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL050S-V08 . L4 COVERPAGE
GL308U

AIIIO CHECK CAI{CEL I4ANDIS

Run Instructions:
ilobq Banner Copies

L 0l_
Form Printer Hold Space

NS
LPI Lines EPI
6 056 10

CP SP RT
N

30



ACS FINATiICIAL SYSTEM
03/27/2020 !5256:47 Transaction (c/L) PosEing

Report Selection:

RT'N GROUP... 032420 COMMENT..

DATA-'JE.ID DATA COMMENT

cc MTG:04/L3/2O2O

D-03242020-573 CC MTG: 04l13 /2020

tructions:

CTTY OF WOODI,AKE
GLO5OS-Vo8. 14 COVERPAGE
GL3O8U

Run Ins
.lobq

L
Banner Hold Space

NS
Lines

066
CP SP RT

N
Copies Form Printer

0l-
LPI

6
CPI

10

31



Cf\eotrReai:d-ei-
I?

ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM I
3/27/2o2o !5:44232 Disbursement Edit Listing

DATA-.]E-ID..., LINE# BANK FUND.&,ACCOIJNT .. DESCRIPTION.
TRAN-DATE. INVOICE FORMULA. .. TRANSACT]ON DESCRIPTION

F/p cLArM.. p.o.#. pRoJEcr ... 1099-rNFo vENDoR NAME.
CNTY ALTER VENDOR ALTER NAME.

CHECK

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL3O2L-V08.14 PAGE 1-

ERRORS AND WARNINGS

PAYM
AMOUNT

D-03272020-68]- 1 BANK 062.0462.060.029
MARCH 202O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPENSE
cR 2 RENEWAT, 03/2020

000369 ST WATER RES. CONTROL BO
000369 VENDOR TOTAL

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
STRMWTR IMPRVMNT 03/20

001_211 4CREEKS
00121.1 VENDOR TOTAL

BANK BANK TOTAL

N
150.00 

-
150.00

4,290 .O0

KJ#-toBS-PL
D- O3272020 - 68'J,

]-5902
2 BANK 050.0460.050.028

N -cK+F WvtoV
4 ,290 .
4 ,440 .

00
00

32



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
3/27 /2o2o L5;44232 Disbursement Edit Listing

O WARNINGS FOUND
O ERRORS FOUND

TOTAL NUMBER OF RECORDS PROCESSED 2

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL3O2L-VO8 .1"4 PAGE 2

33



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM04/rs/2020 20:

BANK VENDOR

BANK BANK OF THE STERRA

Check Register
CHECK#

CTTY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.1-4 PAGE 1

DATE AMOUNT

51-,684.7O ***

001_935
000783
000334
001956
.00406
00r_31s
00r-835
000994
0 0116 0
0007s3
0001_95
000283
001_900
00r_343
000867

6844'7
68448
58449
58450
5845r
68452
58453
68454
68455
68456
68457
68458
68459
68460
68464
64462
68463
68454
58465
68465
68467

624 .00
514.98

I ,48O .02
11.90
45.00

120.00
550.00
332.20
926 .00
228 .00

27 .33
r,82O.70

21-7 .3Q
150.00

4,381 .58
282 .00
1-84.L6

60 .92
4,O70.03

13, 118 . 78
L,424.t9

1_95.75
55.00

453.00
3 ,0L7 .96

21 ,393.90

000076
00J"67 9
001087
000022
000024
001_210
000072
.0040s
00r-856
000028
0 01211

ADVENTIST HEALTH TOXfCOL
AFLAC
BANK OF AMERICA
BANK OF THE SIERRA
BATES/ARIANA
BILL WALL'S DIRECT APPRO
CTSCO TIRES
COMPANTON ANIMAL MEDICAL
COOKS COMMI]NICATION
DEPARTMENT OF ,JUSTICE
FRESNO OXYGEN
FRUIT GROWERS SUPPLY CO.
G&S SERV]CES
HEALTH WISE SERVICES
H]GH STERRA LUMBER & SUP
JORGENSEN & CO.
PAPE MACHINERY
PROTECTION ONE
QUAD - KNOPF
SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO
US BANK
VALERO BROS.
VARGAS/VANESSA
VG ATR
WOODLAKE HARDWARE CO
4EREEKS

BANK OF THE SIERRA

68
69
70
7L
72

84
B4
84
84
84

6
6
6
6
6

04/L7 /.2o
04/L7 /20
04/17 /20
04/L7 /20
04/t7 /.2o
04/L7 /20
04/1-7 /20
04/1-7 /20
04/t7 /20
04/L7 /20
04/.L7 /20
04/L7 /20
o4/.L7 /.2o
04/17 /20
04/.Lt /20
04/L7 /20
04/1-7 /20
04/r7 /20
04/1-7 /20
04/.1-7 /.2o
04 /.L1 / 20
04/L7 /20
04/1-7 /20
04/r7 /20
o4/r7/20
04/1,'t /20

34



ACS F]NANCIAL SYSTEM
04/Ls/2020 20:
BANK VENDOR

REPORT TOTALS:

Check Register
CHECK#

RECORDS PRfNTED 000149

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR_V08.14 PAGE 2

DATE AMOI]NT

61- , 684 .7 0

35



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/1,s/2020 2o:30:05
VENDOR NAME

DESCRTPTION

ADVENTIST HEALTH TOXICOL
DRUG SCREENS 04/2O2O

AFLAC
SUPPLMNTL INSURANCE 4/20

BANK OF ICA
LOWE'S O

LOWES 04
CRAS
LOWES 04
LINDSAY

20

Schedule of Bills

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME FUND & ACCOUNT

624.00 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 001 . 0411 . 060 . 028

5r4.98 ACCTDENT & DrS TNS WrrHH 001.0000.200.038

52
81

9
22

204
'J.4

370
3r-5

30

060 .029
060.029
060.o29
060 -o29
o50 . o29
060.028
060.028

CLATM INVOTCE

TI57

286009

SAYGE LOPEZ

66328

L6227

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 1

PO# F/P ]D LINE

7t-B 00082

718 00013

zooM 04/2020
LINDSAY I{ARDWARE
KLEENBLAST 04/20.2
crRcLE K GAS O4/2
FINANCE FEES O4/2

o20
20
4/2O2O
)i

o4 / 20s2
/ 2020
4 /.2O2O
4 / 2O2O
FEES 04

04 / 2020

o4 / 2020
0
020
020

.0406

.0406

.041-0

. o42a

. o421-

.0402

.0405

.0422

. o402

.0410

.0401

. 0410

.0410

.042L

.0410

.0410

.0403

7 1"8
7L8
7]-8
7 1_8
71_ 8

00133
00134
00135
00135
00137

7L8
7L8
1L8
7 1"8
7]-8

00r44
00145
00145
00a47
00148
00149
00143

00r_
0 01_
00r-
00r_
001
0 01-
00r_
001
001
001
001
001
001
00r"
001
001
0 01_

o7
93
99
18
62
L2
38
99
98
UJ

15
9

82
13
26
39
39

l_50
480

86
54
99

05
69
00
00
02

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CONTRACTURAL SERV]CES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
OFFICE SUPPLIES
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

*VENDOR TOTAL

00138
00139
00140
0 014 r-
00t42

7 1-8
7a8
7 1-8
1L9
718
7L8
7 1-8

o29
o29
029
029
028

050
060
050
060
050

SPOTfFY
ADOBE 04
AMAZON O

A}IAZON O

FTNANCE

060
060
050
050
050

023
029
029
029
028

FINANCE FEES 04
LIFEGUARD TRNG

BANK OF THE SIERRA
EARTHLTNK 04/2020

BATES/ARIANA
BASEBALL REFUND 04/2020

BILL WALL'S D]RECT APPRO
SERVTCES 04/2020

/.2020
/ 2O2O
04 / 2020

50
50
00

/2AI

1

11.90 OFFICE SUPPLIES 001_.041_0

45.00 BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0305

120.00 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 00r-.0411_

060

000

060

060
060

060

060

060

o23

075

o28

029
o29

028

033

028

718 000s7

714 OOO72

718 00055

CISCO TIRES
SWEEPER PARTS 04
BACKHOE REPAIR O

020
2020

4L2
L37
550

326
326

7]-8
7l- 8

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 00]-.0422
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462

*VENDOR TOTAL

00050
00051

COMPANION ANIMAL MEDICAL
EXAM RANGER O4/202O

COOKS COMMTINICATION
MOBTLE RADIO 04/2O2O

DEPARTMENT OF ,JUSTICE
FINGERPRINTS APP 4/2O2O

332 -20 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 0 01_ . 0411_

926.OO RADIO & PAGER MATNTENANC OO4.O4L4

22A.00 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 001.041_l-

343567

143800

443890

7r-8 00081

718 00009

7l_8 00083

36



FRUIT GROWERS SUPPLY CO
BUSHING/COUPLER O4/20
FERT AMMN SULFATE 4/2
SPRKLR HNTR/BUSHNG 4/
cAP PVC SLIP 04/2020
couPLER PVC SLLP 4/2O
SUPPLTES 04/2020
STATTON MATNT. 04/202
HEAD TRIMMER 04/2O2O
cuP MEASURE/MOP 04/20
STATfON MATNT. 04/202
covERALLS 04/2020
STATTON MATNT. 04/2O2O
STAKE TREE ROIJND 4/20
SUPPLTES 04/2020
STAKE TREE ROUND 4/20
CREDTT 04/2020
FILTER AtR 04/2020
CREDIT 04/2O2O
RNDUP PWRMAX O4/2O
GUN SPRY TRIGGER O4/2O
PEST RODEO 04/2020
CEMENT 04/2O2O
STATTON MATNT. 04/2O2O

ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/L5/2020 2o:30:05

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

FRESNO OXYGEN
MEDTCAL OXYGEN 04/2020

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

27.33 MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Schedul-e of Bil-1s

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

*VENDOR TOTAL

FUND & ACCOUNT

004.o444. 050 .040

CLAIM INVOICE

6255r486

921-255
921-260
921-254

483

6s629

3025L27 5

]-1-965239

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 2

PO# F/P ID LINE

718 00019

7r_8 00025

718 00049

718 00079

20
0
20

13
L6

103
3
B

26
31
65
83

26
66
36
L6
36
36
78
42

r-58
25

1-7
43
l-3
66
45
87
95
01
A?
90
83
52
75
70
63
05cR
t_1
11CR
55
25
83
05
38
70

001
001
00r-
0 01_
001
001
004
001
001
004
001
004
001
o62
001
001
001
001
o62
o62
o62
001
006

0421-.
0421.
o42'l-.
042L.
0427.
0421.
0474.
o42r.
o42L.
04L4.
0411_.
o4r4.
042L.
0462.
042t.
o42L.
0422.
o42L.
0462.
0462.
0452.
o421- -
o4t4 -

050
060
060
060
060
060
060
060
050
060
060
060
060
060
060
060
060
060
050
050
060
060
080

o29
o29
o29
o29
o29
029
040
029
029
040
029
040

92L2997 5
921_ 3 015 8
921,3Lr1_1,
92]-3L1-44
92L3]-202
92L3L2L2
92L3L47I
92L3t541"
92L326a9
92L32772
92L32897
921-3291_6
92L337 87

718
'7]-8
7!8
7L8
718
718
7L8
7L8
7LB
71_8
718
7tB
718
7 1_8
7L8
7L8
7]-8
7 1_8
7 1_8
718
1LB
718
7L8

00050
00051_
00063
00052
00064
00055
00021-
00066
00057
o0022
00068
00023
00071
ooo't2
00070
00059
00073
oooT 4
00075
00076
00077
00078
00024

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
MEDICAL SUPPLTES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
MEDICAL SUPPLIES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
MEDICAL SUPPLIES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAI. DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
ORCHARD EXPENSES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC

*VENDOR TOTAL

45
08
1-9
4B

92L26854
92428LL0
921,28509
921"28628
92L29r7 4
921-29292

921_264
20

0

0 42
354
54L

29
29
29
29
to

0
0
0
0
0
029
046
029
029
o29
0s3104

1-,820

G&S SERV]CES
ENGTNE 86 04/2020

HEALTH W]SE SERVICES
KrosK MED WASTE O4/2O

HIGH SIERRA LUMBER & SUP
CASTLE ROCK RR O4/2O

JORGENSEN & CO.
SERVTCES 04/2020
CMNTY CENTR SERVICE 4/20

PAPE MACH]NERY
SUPPLTES 04/2O2O

PROTECTION ONE
wwTP ALARM O4/2O20

217.30 VEHTCLE MATNTENANCE/OPER O04.04L4.060.032

150.00 SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.060.O29

4,38]..58 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O01.0406 .060.029

237.00
45.00

282.OO

oo1-.042I.050 . 028
ooa .o421-. 060 . 028

3]-3282
31_ 3 61s

7L8
7 1_8

00053
00054

1-84.1-6 SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.050.029

60.92 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 063 .0463.050. 028

718 00080

7r_B 00011

37



ACS FINANC
04/L5/2020

IAL SYSTEM
20 :30:06 Schedu]e of Bil-l-s

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

*VENDOR TOTAL

FUND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOICE

103579
103s89

41,1-4982
4LL4982

4139

65651

r-00

A1_01384
ALOI123
AL0L177
ALOI197
4101865
Ar- 0193 5
A10L944
4r0L964
41,0201-2
4]-02045
At02049

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]-4 PAGE 3

PO# F/P ID LINE

718 00048
718 00052

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

QUAD - KNOPF
CR&S]ERRA RNDABT
GREEN BEAN PHARM

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

23
80
03

1a

40
40
40

3,798
27'J.

4,070

04/20
o4'/ 202O

00090
oo021
00091_
00028

0
20
/20
n
20
20

20
0
20
)i

06
25
28
32
58
76
L5
82
74
9L
42

26
46
10

41_2
7

35
57

8
15

023
001

028
028

745
060

0s90
04L6

SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO
cTY ADMN BLDNG O4/2O20
WATER DEPT- 04/2020
MATNT. SHOP 04/2020
PARKS O4/2O2O
SEWER DEbT. O4/2O2O
ATRPORT 04/2020
SBDVSN LIGHTING O4/2O
STREETS 04/2020
oRclrARD o4'/2O2O
ORCHARD 04/2O2O
oRCHARD O4'/2O2O
oRCHARD 04/2020
oRCHARD O4'/2O2O
2L6 E. NARAN,JO 4/2020
120 N. MAGNOLTA 4/2O2O

396
3,39s

258
L7

4, 081
61-
78

4 ,1_O1,
227

41-
4t
41-

167
198
I2

13,1r"8

001
063
00r-
001
o62
o41-
o29
001
o62
o62
o62
o52
o52
004
004

041_ 0
0463
041_ 8
042t
0462
044L
0429
0422
o462
0462
0462
0462
o462
041-4
04L4

02L
021-
021-
02L
02L
02L
02L
02]-
046
046
046
o45
o46
o21-
o21,

7l- 8
7L8
7L8
7 1_8
7L8
7L8
7]-8
7LB
718
7 1-8
7L8
tL8
7L8
1 1_8
tLB

00001
00002
00003
00004
00005
00006
00007
00008
00014
00015

09
L6
1-4
45
t4
75
84
1-2

UTILTTIES
UTILITIES
UTfLfTfES
UTILITIES
UTILITIES
UTILITTES
UTILITIES
UTILITIES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
UTIL]TIES
UTILITIES

*VENDOR TOTAL

SPEC]AL
CAPITAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
CAPITAL
SPECIAL
CAPITAI,
CAPITAL
CAPITAL
CAPITAL

050
060
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
06
05
05
05
05
05

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
o

00015
000r-7
0001811

29
L5
7B

00045
00046

US BANK
CITY PRINTER 04
PD PRINTER O4l2

VALERO BROS.
INSTALL BATTERY

VARGAS/VANESSA
BASEBALL REFI]ND

VG AIR
]-20 N. MAGNOLIA

WOODLAKE HARDWARE

0
2020
20

04 / 2020

o4 / 2O2O

4/20
co

930.L4
494 . 05

L ,424 .t9

L95.75

55.00

453.00

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. O41O .060.029
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO]-.0411 .060.O29

*VENDOR TOTAL

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 001.0411 .060.O29

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001-.0306.000.075

FIRE STATION MAINTENANC 004.041.4.060.034

7n'7
n.'7

e1 000 85
718 00059

718 00055

718 0001"0

718 00020

WASHER HOSE RBBR 4/2
STATTON MATNT. 04/20
coNcRETE/SUPPLIES 04
POSTEYE CONTROL 04l2
FENCE POST MrX 04/20
STATTON MATNT. 04/20
MAS BLADE 04/2O2O
STATION MAINT. 04/20
STATION MAINT 04/202
STATTON MATNT. 04/20
STATTON MATNT. 04/20

DEPARTMENT EXPEN
EXP - ]NFRASTRUC
DEPARTMENT EXPEN
DEPARTMENT EXPEN
DEPARTMENT EXPEN
EXP - INFRASTRUC
DEPARTMENT EXPEN
EXP - INFRASTRUC
EXP - INFRASTRUC
EXP - INFRASTRUC
EXP - INFRASTRUC

001
005
001
063
062
005
053
005
006
006
005

0421-
04L4
0406
o463
0462
o4L4
0463
04L4
04L4
041-4
04L4

050
080
050
060
050
080
060
080
080
080
080

o29
053
o29
o29
029
0s3
o29
053
053
053
0s3

7 1_8
1L8
7 1_8
718
1L8
7L8
7 1_8
1L8
7]-8
7L8
718

00084
00026
00085
00089

00030
00031
00032

38



ACS FINANC]AL SYSTEM
o4/Ls/2o2o 20 :30 :05

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

WOODLAKE HARDWARE CO

Schedule of Bi1ls

FUND & ACCOUNT Ci.AIM INVO]CE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR_V08.14 PAGE 4

PO# F/P TD LINE

2020

2020

2020
2020
4 / 2O2O
o20

INSERT ADAPTER
STATION MAINT.
ADAPTER/CNNCTR
BATTERIES 04/20
STATION MAINT.
SUPPLTES 04/20.2
SPAR GLOSS 0412
STATION MATNT.
STAT]ON MAINT,
CORNER IRON/NUT
ALU DR BOTTOM O

i^ /
6i'/.
04/
ZU
04/
0
020
04/.
04/
SO
4/2
020

2020
2020

AMOTINT ACCOUNT NAME

4 -34 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP _ INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP _ INFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP . INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - ]NFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

56
31
35
20
2t
59
L4
T4
49
3Z
T4

155

0
35
s0
L6
82
L6
L6
l_5
25
I

28
1_5
25

3
32
63
10

7
277
208
L82

51
90
83
74
30
08
83
42
87
27
95
57
53
98
57
'7n-

76
82
08
50
51
3B
01
NQ
57
33
87
88
01
37
08
29
30
30
62
20
z5
33
52
z6
9Z
78
32
t7
30
63
57

o462 . 060
04r_4.080
042]- .060
0462 . 060
0414.080
0422 .060
0405.060
0414.080
041_4.080
041-8.050
0406.060
042L.060
0405.050
0406.060
0418.050
0422.060
o462 -060
0406.060
0405.060
0410.050
0422.060
042L.060
0422 .060
042L . 060
0414.080
0414 .080
o42L.060
041_4.080
0418.060
o452 . 060
0421- .060
0414.080
0418.050
0427 .060
042r-.050
0405.050
0414.080
0414.080
041"4.080
042L .060
0414.080
0418.050
0418.050
042L .060
0422 .060
0462.O60
042L .060
0406.060

A103317
A103359
A103536
A103580
A'103s82
A103606
A103534
875855
875958
B1 5959
B1 607 0
B16152
876205
B762L0
B1 6220
816230
816256
87626]-
B7 6297
8t6322
B7 6349
87 6447
876452
B7 641 A
B765L3
B7 651-9
B7 6559

718
7]-8
718
7]-8
718
7ra
7L8
7 1-8
7 1_8
7 1-8
7L8
7 1_8
1L8
7L8

00034
0003s
00035
00097
00037
001_00
0 0101-
0 0102

o62
006
001
o62
006
001
001
005
006

A102089
4L02tL4
4L023]-2
A1-O23L6
Ar-02350
Ar_02555
A102558
4L02591
4L02679
Ato2748
A1-O27 84

00093
00033
00098
00099
00038
0 01_ 04

001
0 01_
001
001
006
005
001
005
001
062
00r-
005
001
001
001
001
006
005
006
001
005
00r_
0 01_
0 01_
0 01-
062
001
001

029
053
029
o29
0s3
029
029
053
0s3
o29
029
028
028
028
029
029
o29
o29
029
o29
029
028
o29
029
053
053
028
0s3
029
029
o29
053
o29
o29
o29
o29
053
053
053
o29
053
o29
o29
o29
029
029
o29
028

.1IB
7 1_8
1L8
7 1_8
7L8
7L8
7 1_8
718
718
7 1_8
7L8
7L8
1L8
'tL8
7L8
7L8
7L8
7 1_8
1L8
7t-8
7t8
7L8
7L8
7t8
7L8
7L8
7L8
7L8
7L8
7L8
7]-8
7]-8
7]-8

00108
00r_09
o0r27
oo124
00130
0 01_ 11
ooLL2
0 01_ 13
0 0114
0 0117
0 0118
0 0l- 19
001_3r-
ooL22
00125
00041
00042
00132
00044
00085
00087
00088
00029

00105
00039
00040

NUTS/BoLTs
HAND TRUCK
NUTS/BoLTs
SUPPLIES O

SUPPLIES O

CLAMPS o4l
NUTS,/BOLTS
KNIT COVER
WIRE CONNE

04/
04/
o.4 /

4/20
4/20
2020

04 /.
04/

CTOR

2

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
06
00
00
00

l_

1
t_

l_

1
1
1
z
1
l_
1

A1
A1
At-
A1

63
04
1-4
't2

028
030
030
030

03l_6
o329
0329
o329

2020
2020
20
20

24

20
10

]-28
I6
39
I2

6

At_03i-l-5
A103151

202
202

o4
BROAD HINGE o4/2o
PAINT 04/2020
POLE/PLASTIC PAIL
epnaton/easKEr 04
STATION MAINT. 04
STAT]ON MAINT. 04
coNcRETE Mrx o4/2
STATION MAINT. 04
HH TESTER Krr 4/2
TUBING VINYL O4l2
CAULK/ADAPTER o4l
STATION MAINT, 04
scRUB BRUSH 04/20
CUP BRUSH KNOTTED
CUP BRUSH KNOTTED
couPLrNG/cNcrR 04
STATION MAINT. 04
STATfON MAINT. 04
STATTON MAINT. 04

0
0
/2o2o
20

z

2
2

2
0

0

0
020
0
0
20
o20

o4/20
04/20

/202O
/2020
/.2O2O
/ 2O2O

4/.2020
4 / 2O2O
/20
20
2020

A1
A1
A1
A1

z

5
6

3004/20
20

0

0
0

020
o20

a4
1
2

1-43

7L8
00092
00094
0009s
00096

001_03
001_05
00107
00'L29

SUPPLTES 04/2020
STATION MAINT. O

SCRAPER,/BLADES o
GLOVES/BLEACH O4
XTREME rrE 04/20
coNcRETE VtrX 04/
HARDWARE 04/2020
DRILL BIT/PAINT
ITARDWARE 04/2020

o4 / 2o2o

39



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/15/2020 2o :30 :06

VENDOR NAME
DESCR]PTION

Schedufe of Bi1ls

FTIND & ACCOI]NT CLAfM INVOICE

16306

CITY OF WOODI,AKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 5

PO# F/P ID LINE

71-8 00047

AMOUNT ACCOTINT NAME

WOODLAKE HARDWARE
CAULK GUN 04120
SHOP SUPPLIES 4
coMPoIJND 04/2O2
BRUSHES 04/2020
JACK CHArN 0412
SUPPLTES 0.4 / 202
DRY SCREW/ORGAN
RUBBER MALLET O

STATION MAINT.

co
0
2020

46 .1L
31. B5
22 -34

z

0

CONTRACTURAL SERV]CES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP _ INFRASTRUC

*VENDOR TOTAL

27,393.90 CONTRACTURAL SERVTCES 050.0450.050.028

001
00r"
001
0 01_
o62
001
o62
001
005

0405
04t-8
041_ 0
042L
0462
041_ 0
o452
0422
04L4

060
060
050
050
060
050
050
060
080

028
029
029
029
029
029
029
029
053

B7 5660
876808
87693]-
B7 5932
B7 6965

7L8
7L8
7 1_8
7L8
7L8
7]-8
7 1_8

0 0116
00120
0 0121
ooL26
00123
00043

7L8
7L8

00128
0 0110
0 0115

B1 6967
B1'107I
877080
B'77L68

40
07
24
79
o4
78
96

15
37
31
27
38

9
3,Or7

02
0
tz
4/
o4

0

ER 4/20
2020
/20

4CREEKS
STRMVilTR PRO,JECT 04/2O

40



ACS FINANC
04/L5/2020

IAL SYSTEM
20 :30 :05 Schedule of Bil-1s

FUND & ACCOIJNT CLAIM TNVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 6

PO# F,/P ID LINE
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

REPORT TOTALS:

AMOI]NT

6L,684.70
ACCOUNT NAME

RECORDS PRINTED 000149

41



AC
04

S FINANC
/ Ls / 2o2o

IAL SYSTEM
20:30:05

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GLO6OS_VO8 . 14 RECAPPAGE
GL54OR

Schedul-e of 81l-l-s

THE PRECEDING LTST OF BTLLS PAYABLE WAS REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR PAYMENT

DATE APPROVED BY

42



ACS
04/
BANK

F
22

]NANCIAL SYSTEM
/2020 Le:

VENDOR

Check Register
CHECK#

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR_V08.14 PAGE 1

DATE AMOUNT

BANK BANK OF THE SIERRA

00r-525
ooL957

001525
00]-242
oo1-266

001889
0 018 75
ooL426
001_525
004242
004944
001358
001-266
00L902
0 01s2 s
0 0152 5
001-525
0 0152 5
001958
00r"285
0 0l- 114
0 01913
001-888

L42L2
L42L3
1,421-4
I421-5
L42t6
1-4217
L42LB
L42L9
L4220
L4221"
L4222
t4223
14224
14225
L4226
L4227
L4228
L4229
44230
1-4231-
68473
6847 4
6447 5

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL CEN
MINERAL KING RADTOLOGICA
KAWEAH DELTA MEDTCAL FOU
ADVENTIST HEALTH
COMMUNITY FOUNDATION MED
E,D.I.S.
POTTS/KYLE MD INC
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL CEN
CEP AMERICA CALIFORNIA
LIUlYAO
MINERAL KING RADIOLOGICA
PINE STREET PEDIATRICS
KAWEA}I DELTA MEDICAL FOU
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
TRI COI]NTY MEDICAL IMAGI
V]SALIA FAMILY PRACTICE
AT & T MOBILITY
AUTOZONE STORE 4485
AVENU IN (FKA CONDUENT)
BILL WALLIS DIRECT APPRO
BSK ASSOCIATES
COMTEK BUSINESS COMMI]NTC
CRUZ-TA WELDING SHOP
DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE I
EWING IRRIGATfON PRODUCT
FOOTHILLS SUN_GAZETTE/TH
GTANT AUTO GROUP
JORGENSEN & CO.
K R C SAFETY CO., INC.
LEMONCOVE GRANITE I,LC
PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.
USA BLUE BOOK
VALLEY IND & FAM MED GRP
VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN

BANK OF THE S]ERRA

75
70
L9
04

68488
64449
68490
5849L

348 .97
L42 .4L
100.00

B ,851 .62

04/2L/20
04/2r/20
04/21-/20
04/2L/20
04/21/20
o4'/2r'/20
04/2r/20
04/21/20
04/21-/20
04/21/20
04/2r/20
04/2r/20
o4/21-/20
04/2L/20
04/2L/20
04/2L/20
o4/27/.2o
04/2t/20
04/2L/.2o
04/2L/20
04/.22/.20
04 /.22 /.2O
04/22/20
04/22/20
04/22/20
o4'/ 22 / 20
o4 /.22 / 20
04/22/20
04/22/20
04/22/20
04/22/20
04/22/20
o4/22/20
o4'/22'/20
04/22/20
04 /.22 /.2o
04 /.22 / 20
04/22/20
04/22/20

45
5

22
r32

55

2A
00
55
1-7
00
6a
5B
l_3
82
81
05
03

71-
L4

460
53

l-,858
1_6 3

10
55
35
10.0

148.8
128.8

3,620.7
120.0

27
36
00
00
74
00
23

0
0
1
3
0
U

0
8
tJ

43L
34

456
10
55

5't2
270
299
299

39.
238.
320.
L28.

6847 6
68477
68478
5847 9
684BO
6B48T
68482
68483
68484
58485
68486
68487

00r_31_5
0003s1_
00r_811_
000733
000545
000290

0
U

5
t,

000898
000252
000076
000542
000381
0 01_ 164
0008s3
00Lr46
0 0 0141
00L244

3L8.32
1, ,262 .25

282 .63

2I ' 47L.40 ***

43



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/22/2o2O L9.
BANK VENDOR

REPORT TOTALS:

Check Register
CHECK#

RECORDS PRINTED - OOO38]"

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VOB. ]-4 PAGE 2

DATE AMOUNT

2L ,47L - 40

44



ACS FINANC
o4/22/2020
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

AT & T MOBILITY
FD CELL PHONES O4/2O2O

AUTOZONE STORE 4485
WIPES/ARMOR ALL 04/2020
SUPPL1ES 04/2020
SUPPLTES 04/2020

AVENU IN (FKA CONDUENT)
MNTHLY APP HSTING 4/2O2O

BILL WALL'S DIRECT APPRO
REMOTE SETTTNG 04/2020

BSK ASSOCIATES
BACTI 04/2020
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 04/2020
BACTr 04/2O2O
BACT] 04/2020
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 04/2020
BACTr 04/2O2O

IAL SYSTEM
19:01:35 Schedule of Bi1ls

FUND & ACCOI]NT

CTTY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VOB.14 PAGE 1

PO# F/P ID LINECLAIM INVOICE

1625L974

AMOI]NT ACCOUNT NAME

ADVENTIST HEALTH
DR Vrsrr 04/.2020
DR VrSrT 04/.2O2O
DR VISIT 04/.2020
DR VrSrT 04/.2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR Vrsrr 04/.2020
DR VISIT 04/2O2O
DR Vrsrr 04/2O2O
DR Vrsrr 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VISIT 04/2020
DR VrSrT O4'/2O2O
DR Vrsrr O4/202O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR Vrsrr 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/.2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O

0 .61
1. l-l-
1.61
0.64
t-.53

oL.0402.
01.0403.
01.0404.

0
n
U

0
0
0
0
0
n
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0r-.
01.
01.
01.
01.
0l_.
51.
62.
63.
2L.
ao
0l- .
50.
72.
86.

0
3
1
0
3

I9
L4

4
1
0
0
0
0

55

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

s0.008
s0.008

721"
72I
12L

00005
00005

72L
72L
121"
72L

00005
0000s
00005

0
n
0
0
0
0
0

50.
50.
50.
50.
50.

05.
15.
15.
18.

o4
o4
o4
o4

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

72L
00005
0000s
00005
00005
0000s
0000s
00005
00005
00005

00005
00005
0000s
00005

00
00
00
00
00
00

45
8l_
07
93
81
20
32
37
00
18
z2
o2
o2
00

042]-.o50
0422 .050
0451.050
0462 .050
0453.050
0424 .050
0429 .050
0406.050
0450.050
0472 .050
0486.050

008
008
008
008
008

72I
72L
7 21-
724
7 21-
7 21-
12L
72r

72L
72t

148.80 TELEPHONE

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1

*VENDOR TOTAL

004.04L4.060 . 020

4485134895
448sL32029
4485L34L39

rNVB-012979

L6225

ADo6025
ADO6677
ADo6 84 7
ADO6 B4 9
ADO5929
ADo7255

720
720
120

00018
00017
00014

120 000L2

720 00005

720 00005

3 ,620 .73

r-20.00

33 .34
70.54
24.93

L28 -8L

61.00
90.00

512 .00

1.63
3.29
4.78
t_.91_
4 .84

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO]-.0410 .060.O29

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 0 0 1 . 0 4 1 1 . 0 6 0 . 0 2 I

04l- 8
041-8
0418

050
050
060

029
o29
o29

0402
0403
0404
0405
0415

00
00
00
00

90
61
90

180

CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL

*VENDOR TOTAL

SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVTCES
SERVICES

063
062
063
063
052
053

o463
o462
0463
o453
0462
0463

050
060
060
050
060
060

o28
o28
028
028
028
028

720
720
720
120
720
720

o25
026
027
028
029
032

CEP AMERICA
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY

CALIFORNIA
ROOM 0412020
ROOM 04l2020
ROOM O4'/2020
ROOM 04l2020
ROOM 0412020

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

lNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

.050

.050

.050

.0s0

.0s0

001
001
001
001
001

0 I
o
8
U

8

0
0
0

0

00011
00011
00011
0 0 011-
0001-l-

72r
72r
72L
7 21-
72L

45



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/22/2020 19:01:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

CEP AMERTCA CAL]FORNIA
EMERGENCY ROON| 04/2020
EMERGENCY F.OOM 04/2O2O

Schedule of BilIs

FUND & ACCOUNT

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VOB.1-4 PAGE 2

PO# F/P ID L]NECLA]M INVOICE

183s3

8943

AMOI]NT ACCOUNT NAME

EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY
EMERGENCY

CITY
CITY
CITY
CITY
CITY
CITY

ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM
ROOM

EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES

2.78
1-1- -32

163.05

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

0 0 011-
00011
0001_l_
0001_t_

0 011-
0 011
001_1
0 011-
0 011
0 011

721-
7 21-
7 21-

34
30
20

t_

t_ 1_

3

0
0
0
0

1L

001
001
00r_
00r_
0 51_
062
063
o21,
o29

0s0
0s0
050
050
050
050
0s0
050o424

0429
0406
0460
0472
o4B6

0
n
0
0
0
0
0

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

050
050
050
050
0s0

50
50
50
50
50
50
50
50
50

4L6
4r_8
42L
422
461-
452
463

0402.
0403.
0404.
0405.
0415.
0416.
0418.
o42r.

0463
0424
0429
0406
0460

0405
o4L5
o4a6
0 418

008
008

04 /.2020
o4 /.2O2O
o4 / 2O2O
o4 / 2020
04 / 2020
04 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 / 2O2O
04 / 2020
o4 / 2O2O

72L
72-t

56.92
42 .47
42.96

2 .98
0.5s
0 .55
0.06
0.06

24
ZY
03
03
6a

l_3
4L
4L
57
49

72L
72L
7 21-
72L
72r
72r
12L
72r

001_.
050.
072.
085.

0 011
001_1_
0 011

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

COMMUNITY T]ON MED

COMTEK BUSINESS COMMUNIC
PHONE WORK 0412020

CRUZ_TA WELDING SHOP
CASTLE ROCK PARK 04/20

DEARBORN NATTONAL LIFE I
crTY EMPLOYEES 04/2020

FOI]NDA
o4/20
04/20
04 /.20
04/20
o4/20
04/20
04/20
o4'/ 20
04/20
o4/20
o4'/ 20
04/20
04/20
04/20
o4/20
04/20
o4'/.2o
04/20

DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT
DR VISIT

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

0
l_

2
0
2
0
4
l_

1
4

25
18

5

4
6

6
1

15

04/
04/
04 /.
o4 /.
o4 /.
04/

1.31_

73
44

80
L4

84
1-2
59
96
40
a1
97
00
55
69

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0 008

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

727
72!
72L
72L
72L
7 21-
121-
72'J.
12L
121
7 21-
72L
721"
72t
72r
72L
72r
12L

0005
0006
0006
0006
0005
0005
0005
0005
UUUb

0 01_
001
0 01-
001
00r-
00r_
001
001
001
051
o62
063
02L
029
0 01_
060
072
086

00005
00005

10 0005
0006
0006
0006
0005
0005
0005

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

270 .OO SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. 041O .060.O29

299.58 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. 04O6 .060.029

0422.
o46L.
0462.

o472
o486

0402
0403
0404

720 00034

720 00015

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

00r-
001
0 01_
00r_
001
001
001

0s0
050
050
050
0s0
050
050

008
008
008
008
008
008
008

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

00030
00030
00030
00030

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI.TH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE

MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

7
7
7
7
7
7
'7

00030
00030
00030

46



ACS FINANC
04/22/2o2o

IAL SYSTEM
1-9:01:35 Schedufe of Bi1ls

ACCOI]NT NAME FUND & ACCOUNT

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VOB. ].4 PAGE 3

PO# F/P TD L]NECI,AIM INVOICE

11345805

557 4't
557 48
55751
557 54

382347

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

DEARBORN NATIONAL
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPI,OYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CTTY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
PD EMPLOYEES 04

D.r.s.
RX INVOICE
RX TNVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOfCE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOfCE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOTCE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE

LIFE I
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 /.2020
o4 /.2020
04 / 2020
o4 /.2O2O
o4 / 2O2O
/ 2020

92
38
00
73
88
09
09
50

0422.
o461- -

0462.
0463 .
0424.
0429 .
0405.
0460 .
0472.
0486.
0411.

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

4.28
3.73

15.1-7
76.28

2020
2020
2020
2020

0.24
0.29
0 .43
0.L7
0 .43
0.12
1.01

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

L2
82
I6
26
04
05

050
050
0s0
050
0s0
0s0
0s0
050
050
0s0
0s0

001
061
o62
063
o21-
029
0 01_
050

56
t7

4
0
n
0
0

80
299

AMOUNT

L4 -68

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
fNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

o0L-o42L.050.0 720
720
720
720
720

000
000
000
000

720
120
120

000
000
000
000

00004
00002
00003
00001-

000
000

000
000

000
000
000
000
000
000
000

o402
0403
0404
0405

08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
OB
08

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MA
MJ\

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

2020
2020
2020
2020

30
30
30
30
30
30
30
JU
30
30
30
31-

072
086
0 01_

008
008

720
720
120
720

720
720
720
720

029
029
o29
029

060
050
050

0450
0450
0402
0402

E
04/
o4'/
04/
04/
o4'/
04/
04/
o4/.
04/
o4 /.04/
o4'/
o4'/
o4'/.
04/
04/
o4'/
04/

001
001
001
00r"
0 01_
001
001
001
001
051
o62
063
o21-
o29
0 01_
060
o72
085

0415
041-6
0 418
o42L
o422
04 61
o452
0463
0424
0429
0406
0460
0472
0486

050
0s0
0s0
0s0
0s0
050
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
0s0
0s0
050
050
0s0
050
050

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

72L
72L
72L
12L
721
721
72L
7 21-
724

nnnnT
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007

UI
07
07
07
o7
o'7
o7

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

2020

0
0
1
5
3
1
0
0
0

28
z5
01 124

72L
72L
72L
72L
727
721
72L
72L

EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCT
SUPPLTES 04/2020

FOOTHILLS SUN-GAZETTE
PUBLIC NOTICE
PUBLIC NOTICE
PUBLIC NOTICE
PUBLIC NOTICE

GIANT AUTO GROUP
SERVTCES 04/2020

o4 /.20
o4 /.2O
04/20
o4/20

495.00
60s.00

7L .50
90.75

L,262.25

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT

*VENDOR TOTAL

3L8.32 SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 007.0421..060.029 720 00016

/TH
20
20
20
20

EXPEN 060
EXPEN 060
EXPEN O O ]-
EXPEN OO1 050

282.63 VEHTCLE MATNTENANCE/OPER 001.0411-.060.032 720 00033

47



ACS FTNANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/22/2020 19:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

JORGENSEN & CO.
FfRE EXT SERVICE 4/20

AMOUNT

39.75

238.70

Schedule of Bills

ACCOUNT NAME FUND & ACCOT]NT

FrRE GEAR 004.04r-4.060.0s8

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462. O5O. 029

CI,AIM INVOTCE

5873072

45998

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GI,54OR_V08. ].4 PAGE 4

PO# F/P ]D LINE

720 00013

720 000L9
KR

s
C SAFETY CO., ]NC

]GNS 04l2020

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL
DR Vrsrr 04/2020
DR Vrsrr 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/.2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O
DR VISIT 04/2020
DR VISIT O4'/2020
DR VrSrT O4'/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VfSrT 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2O2O
DR VrSrT 04/2020
DR VrSrT 04/2020
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM 04l.
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM 04l.
EMERGENCY ROOM 04l.
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM 04l.
EMERGENCY ROOM 04l.
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l
EMERGENCY ROOM O4l

CEN

CAL FOU
/2020

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
fNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

o29 .0429 .
001.0405.

72L
12L
72L
7 21-
'721

0001
0001
0001
0001_
0001

72L
72L
72L
72L
72L

]-7.64
37.53
54.54
2L.87
55.24
1s.33

L28.83
36 .49
31 .'t4

L29 .07
648 .95
484.25

r-3
10
1-4
05

001.0402
001.0403
001.0404
001-.0405
001_.0415
001.041_6
001.0418
oo1-.o42r
001" .0422
061.0461
062 .0462
053.0463
02L .0424
o29 .0429
00r_.0406
060.0460
072 .0472
086.0485
001.0402
001.0403
001_.0404

050
050
050
050
050
050
050
050
050
0s0
0s0
0s0
0s0
050
0s0

008
008
008
008
008
008
008

'721-
121
72'J.
121
721
72'J.
72r
7 21-
72L
727
72L

00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00010
00010
00010
00010
00010
00010
00010

2Q20
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

0405
0415
o4L6
o41-8
o42r
o422
046L
0462
o453
o424

.L4

.04

.34

.09

.08

.34

.74

.30
?q

.09

.01

.o2

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
0
0
0

72L
124
12L

00002
00002
00002
00002

0001_
0001
0001
0001
0001_

00001
00001
00001
00001
00001

00r-.
00r_.
001.
001.
001_.
001.
051.
062.
063.
02L,

50
50
50
50

0001

060.0450.
o12 .0472 .
085.0485.

008
008
008
008
008

02 - 0s0
03.0s0
04.0s0
05.050
15.050

04
04
04
04
o4

00r"
00r_
00r_
001
001

72L
72L
12L
t2L
72L
72L
7 21_
7 21-
7 21-
724
121-
7 21_
72L
72L
72L
72L
'12'l-

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008
50.008
s0.008
s0.008
s0.008
s0.008
50.008
50.008
50.008
s0.008
s0.008
s0.008
50.008
50.008
50.008
50.008
s0.008
50.008

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1

L47
34

6
7
0
0

863

85
08
27
55
79
79
81

KAWEAH DELTA MEDI
o4DR VIS]T/LAB

DR VISIT/I,AB
DR VISIT/LAB
DR VISIT/LAB
DR VTSIT/I,AB

04 / 2020
o4'/2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2O2O

0.s2
0.91
L.32
0.53
r.34

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE

48



ACS FfNANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/22/2020 19:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

Schedule of Bills

FUND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOICE

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.1-4 PAGE 5

PO# F/P ID LINEAMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL
DR VrSrr/LAB 04/2O2
DR VrSrr/LAB 04/2O2
DR vrsrT/LAB 04/202
DR VrSrr/LAB 04/2O2
DR VISIT/LAB O4/2O2
DR VISIT/LAB 04/202
DR VISIT/LAB 04/202
DR VISTT/LAB O4'/2O2
DR VISIT,/I,AB 04/202
DR VrSrr/i,AB 04/202
DR vrsrr/LAB 04/202
DR VrSrr/LAB 04/2O2
DR VrSrT/LAB. 04/2O2
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04 /.2O2O
SERVTCES 04/2O2O
SERVICES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2O2O
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES O4'/2020
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2020
SERVTCES 04/2O2O
SERVICES 04/2O2O
SERVTCES 04/.2020
SERVTCES 04 /.2O2O
SERVTCES 04 /.2020
SERVTCES 04/2O2O
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04

FOU
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

/2o20'/2o2o
'/.2020
/.2O2O
/.2O20
/ 2020
/2o20
/ 2020'/202o
'/2o2o
'/202o
'/ 202o'/2020
/2020'/2o2o
/ 2020
/2020
/2020
2020

0
3
0
0
3

1_5
t_1

3
0
0
0
0
0
1

ooa.o422.0s0.0
061.0451.050.0
062.0462.050.0
053.0463.0s0.0
02r.0424.050.0
029.0429.050.0
001.0405.050.0
060.0460.0s0.0
072.0472.050.0
086.0485.050.0
001.0402.050.0
001_.0403.050.0

1
3
1
9

2
9

46
34
l_0

55
92
09
1-6
59
25
t7
L4
43
51
42
44
53
05
05
60
08
57
53
59
44
73
05
91
73
7B
02
28
9B
l_8
2L
02
02
r_6

062
053
02t
o29
00r_
060
072
086
00r_
0 01-
001
0 01_
001
001
001
001
001
061
062
063

.0462.050

.0463.050

. 0424 .050

.0429.050

.0406.050

.0450.050

.0472 .050

.0485.050

.0402.0s0

.0403.050

.0404 . 050

.040s.050

.041_5.0s0

.0415.050

.0418.050

.042L .050

.0422 . O50

.0461_.050

.0462.050

.0453.050

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

72L
'7 21,
12L
721
72L
72L
72L
721
724
72r
124
72I
724
72a
124
12r
72r
12r
72\
12r
72!
72r
721
12r
721
721
72r
721
72r
12L
72A
72I
724
721
724
724
12L

00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004
00004

.37

.1-3

. BB

.77

. l_3

.78
1'7

.59

.82

.15

.18

.01

. 01_

.34

.66

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANEE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
fNSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
fNSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

001_.041_6
001.041_B
001_.0421

o2t .0
029 .0
001_.0
050.0

050
0s0
0s0
050
050
050
050

o72
085
001

0472
0486
o402

0s0
050
050

0
0
0

08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
OB
OB
08
08
08
08
08
OB
08
08
08
08
08
08
OB
08
08

72L
721
72L
7 21-

00001
0000r-
00001-
00001
00001
00001
00001
00001
00001
00001
00001
00001
0000r_

00004
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00009
00015

2L
23-
2T
21-
2I
2L
21-
21-
2a

7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7

3.81 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

001 .0404 .050.
001.0405.050.
001.0415.050.
001.041_6.0s0.
001_.0418.050.
001.0421.050.
001_.0422.050.
051.0461.050.

PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYS]CAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYS]CAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYS]CAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICAL THERAPY 04
PHYSICIAN VISIT O4l

2
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
1
0
3
1
0
3

1B
1-4

4
0
0
0
0
0
0

424
429
406
460

49



ACS F]NANCIAL SYSTEM
04/22/2020 r-9:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRTPTION

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
PHYSICIAN VIS
PHYSICIAN VIS
PHYSICfAN VIS

PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYS]CIAN
PHYSICIAN

AMOIJNT

Schedule of Bi11s

ACCOUNT NAME FUND & ACCOI]NT CLAIM INVOICE

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]-4 PAGE 5

PO# F/P ID LINE

IT
IT
IT
IT
TT
fT
IT
IT
TT
IT
IT
IT
IT
TT
fT
IT
IT
TT

04 /.2O2O
04 / 2020
o4 / 2O2O
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2O2O
o4 /2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o 4'/ 2O2O
04 / 2O2O
04 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 /.2020
04 / 2O2O
04 /.2020
04 / 2020
o4 /.2O20
04 /.2020
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2O20
o4 / 2020
o4'/2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 / 2020
o4 / 2O2O
04 / 2020
04 / 2020
04 / 2020
04 / 2020

04 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
04 /.2O2O
04 / 2O2O
o4/2020
o4'/ 2020
04 / 2O2O
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2020
o4'/ 2O2O
04 / 2020
04/2O2O
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 202O

0 .20
o .29
0.11
o.29
0.08
0.69
0.19
0.L7
0 .69
3 .49
2.60
o.79
0. r-8
0.03
0.04

5l-
11
61
64
63
45
81
o7
93

0403
o404
0405
0415
o415
041_ 8
042L

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
]NSURANCE
fNSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

00
00
00
00
00

050
050
050
050
050
050
050

050
050
050
050
050
050

0s0.
0s0.
050.
050.
050.
050.
0s0.
0s0.
050.
050.

001
00r_
001
001
001
001
001

02L
029
001
060
o72
085
001
001
001
00r-

00r_.
001.
001.
001.
00r-.
001_.
051.
062.
063.

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

721
12L
721
72L
72L
72L
12L
7 21_
12L

0 01s
0 015
0 015
0 01s
0 01s

0424
o429
0405
o460
0472
0485
0402
0403
0404
0405

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

0001_s
0001-5
000r_5
00015
00015
0001_6
00015
00015

72L
72L
'72L
72L
12L
72L
72!

0405.
0415.
o41-6 .

0418 .

042L.
0422.
046L.
o452.
o463 -

72r
721
7 21-
72L
72L
72L
72L
724
721

121
72L
12L
72L
721

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 015
001_5
0 015

0 015
0 015
0 015
0 015

00016
00016
00016
00015

PHYS]CIAN
PHYSICfAN
PHYSIC]AN

PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN

VIS
VIS
VfS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS
VIS

oor . 0422
051.0451
062 .0462
053.0463

050
050
050

8
a
o

I
8

PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSTCIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYS]CIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VIS]T
PHYSICTAN VTSIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN V]SIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
I,AB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/D]AGNOSTIC
LAB/DTAGNOSTTC
I,AB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/D]AGNOSTTC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB,/.DTAGNOSTTC
LAB,/DIAGNOSTIC

0
l_

l-
0
1
0
3
L
0
3

L9
1-4

a 1.'7

1.00
0.18
0.22
0.02
0.02
0.20
0.24
0 .31
o.a2
0 .31
0.08
o.'t4
o.2a
0.18
o.74
3.74
2.79
0.85
0.19
0.03

00r_.0415
001_.0415
00r-.0418
00L.o42]-
00L.o422
061.0451
062 . O462
053.0453
02L .0424
029 .0429
001.0405
050.0460
o72 .0472
086.0486
001.0402
00r_.0403
001.0404

050.
050.
0s0.
0s0.
0s0.
0s0.
050.
0s0.
050.
050.
0s0.
050.
050.
050.
0s0.
050.
0s0.
050.
050.
050.
0s0.

0001_5
0001_6
00015
000r_6
00016
00016
00015
00016
00016
0001_6
00015
00017
00017
00017
00017
00017
00017
0001_7
00017
00017
00017
0001_7
00017
00017
00017
00017

Br-
20
32

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

721
7 21-
72L
12L
721-
72r
721-
72L
7 21,
724

121
72r
72L
721-
72L
72L
12L
72L
7 21-
72L

02L.0424.O50
o29.0429.O50
001.0405.050

50



ACS FINANCTAL SYSTEM
o4/22/2020 19:01:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTfON

Schedule of Bi1ls

FLIND & ACCOUNT

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR_V08.14 PAGE 7

PO# F/P ID LTNECLAIM INVOICE

27 954
27 959

2020

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

0.04
KAWEAH DELTA MEDI

LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
LAB/DIAGNOSTIC
I.AB/DIAGNOSTIC
PHYSTCIAN VISIT
PHYSICfAN
PHYSICfAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICfAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSTC]AN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN

CAL
04/
04/
04/

04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT O4
VISIT O4
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VfSIT O4
VISTT O4
VTSIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04
VISIT 04

FOU

2020
2020
/2020

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

060
072
085
0 01_
00r-
00r-
001
001
001
001
001
001
06L
062
063
o2L
029
001
060
o72
086

0460
o472
0486
0402
0403
0404
0405
0415
04L5
0418
042]-
0422
0461-
o462
o463
o424
o429
o405
0460
0412
0486

050
050
050

008
008
008
008
008

72L
72L
72L
72L
12L
12L
7 21-

00017
00017
00017
00018
00018
0001-8
0001_8

n
1
1
0
t_

0
3
1
0
3

t9
t4

4
1
0
0
0
0

/.202o
/ 2O2O
/ 2O2O
/.2020
/ 2020
/2020
/2020
/2020
/202O
/ 2020'/ 2o2o
/ 2020'/2o2o
'/202o
'/2020
/2020
/202O

61
11
61

32
37
00
18

050
0s0

64
63
45
81
07
93
81
20

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

050
0s0
050
050
050
050

00018
00018
0001-8
0001_8
00018
00018
00018
0001_8
00018
00018
00018

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000

72L
72L
72L
72L
721-
121-
72r

00
00
00
00

008
008
008
008

008
008
008
008
008
008

0s0
050
050
050
050
0s0
050
050
050
050

I
B
I
o

7 21_
7 21,
72r
7 21-

22
02
02

721 00018
721 00018
721 OOO1S

720 00023
720 00022

361- .94

LEMONCOVE
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

TE LLC
020
o20

GRANI
o4 /.2
o4/2

81
3B
19

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

2020
2020
2020
2020

18
l_8
03

1_58.
L6L.
320 -

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462. O5O.029
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0452. O5O. 029

*VENDOR TOTAL

LIU/YAO
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVTCES
SERVICES
SERV]CES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERV]CES
SERVTCES
SERVTCES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES

04/
o4'/
04/
04/
o4 /.
o4 /.
04/
o4 /.
o4 /.
04 /.
04/
04/
o4 /.
04 /.
04/
o4'/
04/
04/

4
I

L2
5

t2
3

8
1

29
150
1-'t 2

34
7
l_

1
0
0

l_3
'to
64
o't
81
55
87
46
36
93
4B
29

001
050
072
085

0404
0405
0 415
o4a6
0418
o427
0422
046L
0462
0463
0424
0429
0406
0460
0472
0485

050
050
0s0
050
050
0s0

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

721-
72t
121
72L
72L
7 21,
121
121
121
721
72L
721
72r
12L
12L
72r
7 21-
12L

1-2
L2
1-2
t2
L2
t2
t2
t2
L2
L2
).2
12

0 01_
001
00r-
0 01_
0 01_
001
001
001
00r_
061
o62
063
021"
029

0402.05
0403.05

00012
00012
00012
00012

0
0
U

U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2020
2020
2020

2020
2020
2020
2020

28
90
45
75

00012
00012

43L

51



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/22/2020 19:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCR]PT]ON

MINERAL
XRAY

Schedule of BilIs

CLAIM INVO]CE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 8

PO# F/P ID LINEFUND & ACCOUNT

001 . 0405 . 050 . 008

062 .0462
063 .0463
02L .0424

072 . O472
085.0485

001.0402

AMOI]NT ACCOUNT NAME

XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
XRAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X_RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X_RAY
X-RAY
X_RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY
X-RAY

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
fNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

00003
0001_3
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013

KING RADIOLOGICA
4 / 2020
4 /.2020
4 / 2020
4 / 2020
4 / 2020
4'/2020
4/2020
4 / 2020
4 / 2020
4 /.2020
4 / 2020
4'/ 2O2O
4 / 2020
4'/2020
4'/2020
4'/2020
4/2020
4 / 2020
o4 /.2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2O2O
o4 / 2020
04 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 / 2020
o4 /.2020
o4 / 2020
04 /.2020
o4 / 2020
o4'/ 2O2O

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
l_

0
0
l_

7
5
1
0
0
0

29
45
66
26
67
18
55
44

001.0402.050.
001.0403.050.
00r-.0404.050.
001-.0405.050.
001.0415.050.
00r_.0416.0s0.
001.0418.050.
001.042r-.050.
001.0422.050.
051.0451.050.
052 . 0462 .050 .

053.0463.050.
02t.0424.O50 .
o29.0429.050.

72L
724
124
72r

72'J.
72L
72L
12L

72'J.
121
72L
72L
72t
721-
72L
7 21-
'72L
721

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008

.0s0.008

.050.008

.050.008

.0s0.008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008

060.0460
o't2.0472
085.0486
001.0402
001.0403
00r-.0404
00r-.0405
001_.0415
001_.0415
001.0418
00L.o42r
oo1.0422
051.0461_

008
008
008
008
008

00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003

.38

.56

.87

.87

.79

.44

.07

.09

40
2I
39
36
56
76
53
95
79
58
32

0
0
1
0
1
0
z
0
0
2

1t-
U

2
U

0
0
0
n

55

4
9

t-3
5

l_3
3

31
8
7

31
159

724
72L
12!

'72L
7 21-

00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003

00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013
00013

0001-4
0001_4
00014
00014
000r-4
00014
00014
00014
00014
00014
00014

39
69
00
40
01
28
37
67
58
37
94
91
72
62
11
13
01
01
'1 6

050
050
0s0
050
050
050
050
050
050

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

72L
7 21_
724
7 21-
72L
72L
721
72t
72t
72t
72L
72r
7 21-

PINE STREET PEDIATRICS
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2020
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2020
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2020
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2O2O
MEDICAL SERVTCES 04/2O2O
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2020
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2O2O
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2O2O
MEDTCAL SERVTCES 04/2O2O
MEDfCAL SERVTCES 04/.2O2O
MEDICAL SERVICES 04/2O2O

001.
001.
001.
001.
00r-.
00r_.
001_.
00r-.
061_.
062.

0403
0404
0405
041_ 5
04L6
0418

050
050
050
050
050
050
0s0
050
050
050
050

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

0429
0405
0460

2L
22
6a
62

029
00r_
060

o4
04
04
o4

l-
l_

1
1_

i-
1
1
1
1
L
1

7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
'l
7
7

52



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/22/2020 19:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

PINE STREET PEDIATRICS

Schedul-e of Bi11s

FUND & ACCOI]NT CLAIM INVOICE

s91-7 31-6

1980-2

200724

399750

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]-4 PAGE 9

PO# F/P ID LINE

721- 00008

720 00011

720 00024

72r OOO19

'720 0002t

720 00020

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

MEDICAL
MED]CAL
MEDfCAL
MEDICAL
MEDICAL
MEDICAL
MEDICAL

PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYS]CIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSTCIAN
PHYSICIAN

SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04
SERVICES 04

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
I]EALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

2020
2020
2020

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

1-l-8.88
36 .30

B .36
1- .54
t_.85
0. r"9
0.1_9

456.36

63
24
29
06
50
72
85

008
008
008
008
008
008
008

721
7 21_
'721
12L
7 21-
721
7 21-

00014
00014
00014
0001-4
00014
00014
0001_4

o4
o4
o4
o4
o4
o4
o4

053
021-
029
0 01_
050
o72
086

001_.
00i-.
001_.
001.
001.
001.
001.
051.
062,
063.

0.16
0.20
o .29
0.11
0 -29
0.08
0.59

0s0
050
050

2020
2020
2020
2020

0s0
050
050
050

POTTS/KYLE MD INC
IN OFFTCE SURGERY 4/20

PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER
MEDfCAL GLOVES 04/2020

SHERWIN-WfLLIAMS CO,
COMMI]NITY CENTER 04/2020

TRI COI]NTY MEDICAL IMAGI
x-RAY 04/2020

USA BLUE BOOK
STENNER QUICK PRO 4/2020

VALLEY IND & FAM MED GRP
DOT PHYSTCAL 04/2020

460.1-3

L28.04

348 -97

35.23

142 .4L

l_00.00

10.00

HEALTH INSURANCE OO1

MEDICAL SUPPLIES OO4

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1

HEALTH INSURANCE OO]-

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 063

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 021.

04r_r-.050.008

041-4.050.040

0421".060.O29

04r_1-.0s0.008

0463 . 050 . 02 9

0424 .060 . O29

VISALIA FAMILY PRACTI
PHYSTCTAN Vrsr"r 04/
PHYSICIAN VISTT O4l
PHYSTCfAN VrSrT 04l
PHYSTCfAN VrSrT 04/
PHYSICIAN VISIT O4l.
PHYS]CIAN VfSIT 04l
PHYSICIAN VISIT 04/.
PHYSICIAN VISIT O4l.
PHYSICIAN VIS]T O4l
PHYSICIAN VISIT 04/

CE
2020

2020
2020

HEALTII
HEALTH
HEAI.TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

0s0.008
050.008
050.008
0s0.008
050.008

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANEE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

001 . 0402 . 0s0 . 008
0 0 1 . 0 4 0 3 . 0 5 0 . 0 0 8

't
7
7
't
't
7
7
7
7

00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020
00020

2L
21-
2L
2L
2L
2L
21,
21-
21,

VTST
VISI
VISfvfsl
VISI
VISI
VISI
VTST

T 04/2020
T O4'/2020
T O4'/2020
T O4'/2020
T 04'/.2020
T 04/2020
T 04'/2020
T O4'/2O20

0.19
0.17
0.69
3 .4v
2 .60
o.79
0. r"B
0.03
0.04

0404.
0405.
0415.
0446.
0418.
o42r.
0422.
o45L.
0462.
o463 .

o21-.0424.

U

0
0
0

0002

5n
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008

'721,
12L
'721
7 21-
72'J.
72L
72L
72L
72L

000
000
000

0002
0002
0002

20
20
2029.

06.
50.
72.
86.

04
04
04
04
o4

o29
001
060
012
085

53



ACS FTNANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/22/2o2o 1-9:01:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

Schedule of Bil1s

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

8, 851-.52

VEHICLE GASOLINE
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE /OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
vEHrcLE MATNTENANCE/.OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINT/OPERATIONS
VEHICLE GASOLINE

*VENDOR TOTAL

FUND & ACCOI]NT CI,AIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VO8 .14 PAGE 10

PO# F/P ID LINE

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN
PD FUEL O4/2O2O
C]TY FUEL O4/2O2O
CITY FUEL O4/2O20
CITY FUEL O4/202O
crrY FUEL O4'/2O2O
crTY FUEL O4/2O2O
TRANSTT FVF,L 04/2020
FIRE DEPT FVEL 04/2020

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

720
720
720
720
720
720
720
720

00007
00008
00008
00008
00008
00008
00009
00010

3,'709.
8r_0.
81.

t, L34 .
r, L34 .

8l- .

001
001
001
o62
063
001
02L
004

08
24
o2
30
30
02
23.
45

04r_1
o422
0415

0
0
0

35
32
32
32
32

050
060
050

APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL

0462.060 .0
0453.050.0

t, 062
839

0421.060
0424.O60
0414.060

o32
o32
035

54



ACS FINANCfAL SYSTEM
04/22/2020 19:01:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

REPORT TOTAT,S

Schedule of Bills

FUND & ACCOUNT CI,AIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 11

PO# F/P ID LINEAMOT]NT

21-,471-.40

ACCOUNT NAME

RECORDS PRINTED - OOO381

55



ACS FINANC
o4/22/2020

IAL SYSTEM
19:01:35

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GLOSOS_Vo8. 14 RECAPPAGE
GI,54 OR

Schedule of Bills

THE PRECEDING LIST OF BILLS PAYABLE WAS REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR PAYMENT

DATE APPROVED BY

56



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/29/2020 18:

BANK VENDOR

BANK BANK OF THE SIERRA

Check Register
CHECK#

CfTY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR_V08.14 PAGE 1

DATE AMOIJNT

04/28/20
04/28/20
04/28/20
o4'/28'/20
04/2e /20
04/29/20
04/29/20
o4 /2e / 20
04/2e/20
04/29 /20
04/29/20
o4'/29'/20
04/29/20
o4/29/20
04/2e /20
04/2e /20
o4/29 /.2o
04/29 /20
04 /29 /20
o4'/ 2e'/ 20
04/2e /20
o4/29/20
o4'/29 /20
04/2e /20
04/29 /20
04/2e /20
04/29/20
04/2e/20
04/29/20
o4'/29720
04/29 /20
04/2e /20
04/29/20
o4'/ 29 / 20

249
1-, 1_50

l_ 85
430
700
8 01-

1" ,200
257
41-6

811
16, 598

88
1,7 9

9,726
819

6 ,475

58498
68499
68500
58s01
68502
68503
58s04
68505
68506
58507
58508
68509
58510

0009s6
0 0174I
001441
000025
o00492
001339
000857
000076
000381-
.00407
000530

o04242
001875
001959
00L265
oo1-272
0 018 01
000351
0 00 91s

L4232
1_4233
]-4234
]-4235
68492
68493
68494
6849s
68496
68497

0 01815
00]-692
o0L372
0 0195I
001154
000022
000853
o00723
000024
001954
0 01_52 0
0 0 0141-
000292
000832
ooL244

58511
5851"2
685r-3
685L4
68s1s
58516
685L7
68s1_8
58s19
68s20
6852L

KAWEA}I DELTA MEDICAL CEN
E.D.r.S.
PARAMOI]NT ANESTHESIA ASS
MINERAL KING RADIOLOGICA
AT&T
AT&T (NEW)
BSK ASSOCIATES
CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UN
CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UN
CALIFORNIA STATE
DORADO/DENISE K.
GAS COMPANY/THE
GLASS SHOP/THE
TAMNER,JEWELL ASSOCIATES
HIGH SIERRA LT]MBER & SUP
JORGENSEN & CO.
LEMONCOVE GRANITE LLC
MARTINEZ/JENNIFER
MONARCH FORD
NIJ"TRIEN AG SOLUTTONS
PRECISION BRAKE & WHEEI,
PRESSLEY & ASSOCIATES, I
PRINCIPAL LIFE INSURANCE
PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER
QUAD - IG{OPF
SHERW]N-WILLIAMS CO.
SMITH AUTO - VISALIA
SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO
TUI,ARE COI]NTY SHERIFFIS
ULINE
VALLEY TND & FAM MED GRP
VANTAGEPOINT TRAN AGENT_
VERIZON WIRELESS
VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN

BANK OF THE SIERRA

r,532 .28
11.68

393.75
75 .75

00
63

52
1,9
00
I4
60
aa

67
00
18
76
4I

34
00
0l-
00
06
86
95

3,557.5
456 .4

9.3
't 46.1,
45.0

0
1
1-

7

0
90 .42

L,642.73
l_1

L9 ,435
3 ,002

2:-5
35, 113

497.04
472.95

a06,497 .7L ***

57



ACS FfNANCTAL SYSTEM
04/2e/2020 r-8:

BANK VENDOR

REPORT TOTALS:

Check RegisLer

CHECK#

RECORDS PRINTED - OOO182

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 2

AMOUNT

1,06 ,497 .71

DATE

58



ACS FINANC
o4/2e/2020

IAI, SYSTEM
l-8:1-3 :53 Schedule of Bil1s

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 1

PO# F/P ID LINEFUND & ACCOUNT

0410.060
0411.060
o4L4.060

001.0402.060.02
001.0403.060.02
001.0404.060.02

.0405. 060.02
02
o20
020

062.0462.060

CLAIM INVOICE

1,4643452

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

AT&T
oFFrcE PHoNES 0sl2
SI{OP DEPT PHONES O

WTR DEPT PHONES 05
SEWER DE
AIRPORT
CAINET 3

AT&T (NEW)
CTY HALL PHONES
PD PHONES 05/20
FD TNTERNET USE
GENERAL ADMIN O

crrY CLERK 0sl2
FTNANCE 05/2020
PLANNING 05/202

020
5 / 2020
/20
os/20
0

AMOUNT ACCOI]NT NAME

TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
UTILITIES
TELEPHONE

*VENDOR TOTAL

57.62
87.47
]-9.20
L9.20
L9.20
46.93

249 .62

041_0.050
0418.050
0453.060
o462.O50
0441.050
0414.060

001
063
o62
o4L
004

o20
020
020
020
o2L
o20

732
732
732
732
732
732

00031
00032
00033
00034
00035
00078

001

PT PHONES
ATttr 05 /202

05 / 2O2O

os/
05/
05/
05/
05/
05/

5
5
9
6
4
8

30
11
85

237

s/2
20

Q5/
5 /20
o20

0

0 87
87
75

L8L.32
15.33

225.30
75.07

063 .0463
02]-.0424
001.0411
001.04r-8

5641,7 44504
564]-7 44504
9963424505
9963424505

ADO7 496

MAY 2O2O

MAY 2O2O

MAY 2O2O

MAY 2O2O

02
0l-
07
?n

TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE

*VENDOR TOTAL

001
001
004

o20
020
o20

00023
00024
00008
00009
0001"0

732
732
732
7322020

20 0
0
0
0
0

o20
o20
o20
020
020
o20
o20

.008

.008

.008

.008

. zz

.55

. 01-

.27

.69

.27

.'10

.13
oa

.0415.050

.0415.060

.042L.060

.0422.060

.0451.060

9963424505
9953424505
9963424505
9963424505
9953424505
9963424505
9963424s05
9963424505
9963424505

732
732
732
732
732
732
'732
732
732
132
'732
732
732

00011
0001_2
00013
0001_4
0001s
00015
00017
00018
0001_9
00020
00021
ooo22

9963424505
9963424505
9963424505
9963424505BUILDING INSPCTN 05

PBL WRKS/ENGNRNG 5/
PARKS 05/2020
STREETS 05/2020
REFUSE 05/2020
sEwER Os/2020
WATER 05/2020
TRANSTT 05/2020
PD fNTERNET USE O5l
RD YRD INTERNET USE

2
2020
0

060
060
060
050

0 01-
001
0 01-
0 01_
00r_
051

0 01_
001
001
001
001
001

.34

.09

.80

zvz
s/

n
20

BSK ASSOCIATES
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 05/2O2O

CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UN
EMPLYEE W/HLDNGS 5/2020

CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UN
EMPLYEE W/HLDNGS 05/2020

CALIFORN]A STATE
EMPLYEE W/HLDNGS 05/2O2O

DORADO/DENISE K.
EMPLYEE W/HLDNGS 05/2O2O

1,,'1,50.49

185.00

430.14

700.60

801,.22

1,200 . 00

CoNTRACTURAL SERVTCES 062.0462.060.028

GARNISHMENT OF WAGES WIT OO1.OOOO.2OO.O33

GARNfSHMENT OF WAGES WIT OO1.OOOO.2OO.O33

GARNISHMENT OF WAGES WIT OO1.OOOO.2OO.O33

GARNISHMENT OF WAGES W]T OO1.OOOO.2OO.O33

732 00048

732 00039

732 00044

732 00042

732 00040

s
INVOICE
INVOTCE
INVO]CE
INVOICE
TNVOTCE
INVOICE

D.
RX
RX
RX
RX
RX
RX

E
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

0
0
0
o
0

23
34
13

0403
o404
0405
04 15
04L6
041_ I

050
050
050
050
050
050

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

735 0
735 0
735 0
735 0
735 0
735 0

0002
0002
0002
0002
0002

008
008

0002

59



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/29 /2020 18 : 13 :53

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

HIGH SIERRA LUMBER & SUP
SUPPLTES 05/2020

JORGENSEN & CO.
SALES TAX 05/2020

MEDICAL CEN
s /2020
5'/2020
5 / 2020
5 /2020
s 12020
5 / 2020
5 /.2o2O
5 /2020
5 /.2020
5 /.2020
5 /2020
5'/202O
5 / 2O2o
5 / 2020

Schedule of Bi1ls

FIJND & ACCOI]NT CLAIM INVOICE

r049647

2 0 0151
200L54

30262297

5873]-57

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-VO8 . ]-4 PAGE 2

PO# F/P ID LINE

735
735

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

E.D.r.S.
RX INVOICE
RX INVO]CE
RX TNVOTCE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOTCE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE
RX INVOICE

GAS COMPANY/THE
CITY BUILDINGS O5
crTY YARD 05/2020
325 E. ANTELOPE 5
FIRE STATION O5l2

GLASS SHOP/THE
SERVTCES 05/2020

HAMNER iTEWELL ASSOCIATES
N.VLNCIA pROJ 05,/2020
N. VALENCTA PARK 05/2020

05 /2020
os'/2020
05 /2020
05 /2020
05 / 2020
os'/ 2020
os'/2020
os'/2020
05 /.2020
05 / 2020
os / 2020
05 / 2020

0
0
0
4
3
0
0
0
0

03
54
63
20
08
l_6
39
95

18
45
L2

105
30
26

106
534

1-9
81

03
o4

o7
04
92
21-

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

001_.0421.
oo1,.0422.
061.0461.
062.0462.
063.0463.
024 .0424 .
o29.0429.
001.0406.
060.0460.
072.0472.
086.0486.
001_.0402.

0s0
050

50
50
50

00r_
001
004
oo4

0410
0418
a4L4
o41-4

060
050
050
060

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008
s0.008
s0.008
s0.008
50.008
s0.008
50.008
50.008

o21,
o2t
02]-
o2L

08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08
08

050.
050.
0s0.
050.
050.
050.
050.
050.
050.
050.
050.

00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002
00002

00
00
on
00
oo
00
00
00
00
00
00

735
735
'135
735
735
735
735
735
735
735

735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735

11 58

/2020

/20
020

150.03
1,5 .37
30.76
5L .47

257 -63

UTILITIES
UTfLITIES
UTILITIES
UTILITIES

*VENDOR TOTAL

00001
00002
00073
00074

00051
00007

732
732

732
732
732
732

735
735
735

415.00 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1-.0421.060.O29 732 00055

732 00049

732 00029

2,742
815

3 ,557

023
001

26
25
51

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
SPECIA], DEPARTMENT EXPEN

*VENDOR TOTAL

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES OO1

0590 .744.028
o42L . 060 .029

456 -4L

9 .37

0423.060.O29

0421, .050 .028

KAWEAH DELTA
SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVTCES O

SERV]CES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

SERVICES O

30 .94
44-96

399.18
121 -AA
28.09

5 .L7

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSTIRANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

001_.0403.050.0
001.0404.050.0
001.0405.050.0
001.0415.
001.0415.
001_.0418.
oo'J..042]- .
00L.0422.
06L.O454.
062 .0452 .
063.0463.
021".0424.
o29 .0429 .

001.0405.

0 01-
001
001
001
0 01_
001
001
001
001
001
001

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
008
008
008
008

00001-
00001
00001

60



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/29/2020 18: l-3:53

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

LEMONCOVE GRANITE LLC
SUPPLTES Os/2O2O

MONARCH FORD
BEARTNG A/SEAr, 05/2020

NUTRIEN AG SOLUTIONS

Schedule of Bi1Is

FUND & ACCOI]NT

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 3

PO# F/P TD LINECLAIM INVOICE

27 969

66344

32446

AMOi]NT ACCOI]NT NAME

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL CEN
SERVTCES 05/2020
SERVfCES 05/2020
SERVTCES 05/2O2O
SERVTCES O5'/2020

060
o72
086
001

0460
o472
0486
0402

050.0
050.0
050.0
050.0

o .42
0 .65
0.55

14 -56

o.62
5 -25
1, .48
1" -29

0.25
0.30
0.03
0.03
0.79

75.75

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

]NSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

735
735
735
735

735
735
735
735
735

08
08
08
OB

008
008
008
008
008

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

0s0
050
050
0s0
050
0s0

735 00001
735 00001
73s 00001
735 00001

L,532.28

1"46.L7

45.00

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O52.0462.060.029

BASEBATL/SOFTBALL FEES 001-.0305.000.075

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAITH
HEALTI{
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
TOTAL

050.008
050.008

008
008
008

732 00053

732 00072

00004

732 00047

732 00025
732 00026

L.52
2.22
0.89
2.2s

MARTINEZ /JENNIFER
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

MINERAL KING RADIOLOGICA
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS 05 /.2020
X-RAYS 0s/2020
x-RAYS Os/2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS O5'/2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
x-RAYS 0s/2020
X-RAYS 05 /.2020
X-RAYS 05 /.2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS 05/2020
X-RAYS 0s /.2020
X-RAYS 0s/2O2O
X-RAYS Os/2020
X-RAYS 05/2O2O

95
55
53
70
24
29
73
72

5
z6
t9

6
1

7
l_ 1_

4
11

3
27

d

zo
44
73
o2
38

0403.
0404.
0405.
0415.
0416.
041-8.
o421- -

0422.
o461-.
0462.
0463.
0424.
0429.
0406.
0460 .
0472.
0486 .
0402.

050
050
050
050
050
050
0s0
0s0
050
050

735
735't35
735
735
735
735
735
735

004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004
004

001
001
001
001
0 01-
001
0 01-
0 01_
0 61_

00
00
00
00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00

029
001

052
053
02L

060
072
086
001

90.42 VEHTCLE MA]NTENANCE/OPER 001-. 04L1. 050. 032

ROUNDUP POWERMAX 05/2O
LIFELINE/RNDUP O5l2020

7 42 .98
899.75

1 ,642 .73

ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES

*VENDOR TOTAL

062 .0452
062 . O462

41_
41-

046
046

060
050

6725]-L
7 47283

PARAMOUNT ANESTHESIA
ANESTHESTA 05/2020
ANESTHESIA 05/2020
ANESTHESIA 05/2O2O
ANESTHESIA O5'/2020
ANESTHESTA 05/2020
ANESTHESTA 05/2020
ANESTHESTA 05 /.2O2O
ANESTHESTA 05/2020

ASS
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE

0 01_
0 01_
00r_
0 01_
001
00i_
001
001

04 03
o404
0405
0415
o4L6
0418
042L
0422

050.008
050.008
050.008
0s0.008
0s0.008
050.008
0s0.008
050.008

735
'735
735
'735
'735
735
735
735

00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003

61



ACS
04/

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

F
29

TNANC]AL
/2020 18

SYSTEM
:13:53

CENTER

AMOT]NT

3,O02

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
I{EALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
I]EALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSI]RANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

051-.0451_
062.O462
063.0453

0s0.008
050.008

050.008
050.008

00003
00003
00003
00003

Schedu]e of Bills

ACCOUNT NAME FUND & ACCOUNT

CITY OF V{OODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. 1.4 PAGE 4

PO# F/P ID LINECLATM TNVOICE

sa-2867 66

7555042

PARAMOUNT ANESTHESIA
ANESTHESIA 05/2020
ANESTHESTA 05/.2020
ANESTHESTA 05 /.2020
ANESTHESTA 05/2O2O
ANESTHESIA 05/2020
ANESTHESTA 05/2020
ANESTHESTA 0s/.2020
ANESTHESTA 05/.2020
ANESTHESTA 05/.2O2O
ANESTHESTA 05/2020

ASS

05
05
05
05
05
05

o21,
o29
001
060
o72

27
1-37
to2

31
7

s, 076.00
1, ,692 .00
L ,592 .00
4,230 .00
4,230 .00
2, sl_5 .00

1-9,435 . 00

,.I
s /.20
5 /.2O
5/20
0s/20
os/20

L
1
0
0
3

393

.34

.46

.57

.32

.21-
a,t
tro

.15

.16

.81

.'75

0424
0429
0406
o460
0472
0485
o402

0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008
0.008

086
001

00003
00003
00003
00003

57
58
59
50
5L
77

00003
00003
00003
00003
00003
00003

00003
00003
00003
00003
00003

00003
00003
00004
00005

735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735
735

PRECTSION BRAKE & WHEEL
SUPPLTES 05/2020

PRESSLEY & ASSOCIATES
ACCOI]NTING SERVICE
ACCOi]NTING SERVICE
ACCOT]NTING SERVICE
ACCOUNTTNG SERVICE
ACCOUNTING SERV]CE
AUDrr 2019 05/2020

ACCOUNTING/AUD]T]NG
ACCOUNTTNG/AUD]TING
ACCOi]NTING/AUDITING
ACCOI]NTING/AUDITING
ACCOI]NTING/AUDIT]NG
ACCOUNTING/AUDITING

*VENDOR TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSIIRANCE
INSTIRANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

1-1-.67 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OOl-.0418 .060.029 732 00046

00003
00003

00003
00003
00003

00003
00003

SERV
SERV
SERV
SERV
SERV
SERV

001.0404.060
o2r .0424 . 060
061_.0451.060
062 .0462 .060
063.0463.060
004.0414.050

024
o24
024
024
024
o24

3296s
32965
32955
32965
32965
32966

732
732
732
732
732
732

000
000
000
000
000
000

PRINCIPAL LTFE INSURANCE
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS O5/2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS O5/2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/.2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/.2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/2O
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05 /.20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05/20
EMPLYR CNTRBTNS 05 /.20
EMPI,YR CNTRBTNS O5/2O
PD EMPLOYEES 05/2020
FD EMPLOYEES 05/2O2O

34 .69
50.42
20.2t
5r-.06
1"4.L7

119.08
33 .73
29.34

l_19.30
599.84

04 03
o404
0405
041_ 5
o416
04r_8
o42L
0422
o46L
0462
0463
o424

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

732
'732
732
732
732
732
'732
732
'732
732
732
732
732
732
732
732
732

001
001
001
0 01-
0 01-
001
001
001
0 51_
o62
063
o21_

008
008
008
008
008
008
008

29
06
6n
12
86
o2
1l-

60
66
50
79
97
'73

447
136

31
5
6
0
0

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

0s0
0s0
050
050
050
050
0s0
050
050
050
050
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
050
0s0

MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY
MAY

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

1_6
759
544

73
31
44
6L
18

o29
001
050
o72
086
001
0 01_
004

04
o4
04
04
04
04
o4

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

050
050

732
732
732

PUBLIC
PPE

SAFETY
05 / 2o2o 21,5.76 MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Q4'l_4

004 -o444.060.040 732 00076

62



ACS FINANC
o4/2e/2020

TAL SYSTEM
18:13:53

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

Schedule of Bi11s

SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVTCES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 5

PO# F/P ID LINEFUND & ACCOUNT

2L.O424.050.033
2I.O424.060. 033

CLAIM INVOICE

7 303 -2

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

QUAD - KNOPF
SPR&CTY STDS UPDTE
GENERAL SERVICES O

CR&SIERRA RNDABT O

CAJON SBDVSN DVLP
WOODLAKE GAS STN O

N.VLNCA EXTNTN 5,/2

SHERWIN-V{ILLIAMS CO.
cc PArNT 05/2020

SMITH AUTO - VISALIA
cREDrr 05/2020
SUPPLIES 05/2020

TULARE COUNTY SHERTFF
DISPATCH SERVICES 5

11.
675.
83.
4t.

811 .

3

l_

18
35

s/20
s / 2020
s/20
5/20
5 /20
0

/zozo
05 /20
05/20
05/20
05/20
05 /20
os/20
os/20
05/20
0s/20

9 ,254 .A
465.3

,373,5
,003.7
,852 .2

00r-
001
023
001
001
o23

o4L6
04L6
0590
o4L6
04L6
0590

060
050
745
050
050
'144

t_03805
1-03809
10 3 815
t_ 03 815
10 3 817
L03B22

'732
732
732
732
t 3z
732

CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL

*VENDOR TOTAL
,!67.55

11? A1

L96
669
472

0
0
0
6

20
20
20
20

68
45
30
91"
15
30
75
45

028
028
028
o2a
o28
o28

o46
o29
02r
02L

.050

.060

.050

.050

200
200

0000
0000

062.
001-.
001.
004.

001
001

00066
00069
00070

8
7
1

0006
0006
0007

I97 .04 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 001.0421 .060.O29

0r_cRo65404
0LrN443905

JAN_MARCH 2O2O

1L9044364

APR]L 2O2O
MARCH 2O2O

9852595988
9852595988
9852595988

98s259
98s259
98s259
98s259

732 00050

00044
00045

-s0-s032
28
96

CR STATE OF GOOD REPAIR
STATE OF GOOD REPAIR

*VENDOR TOTAL

732
732

SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO
oRCHARD O'/ZO2O
CoMMUNTTY CENTER 05/2O2O
PLAZA 05/2020
320 E. ANTELOPE s/20

rs
/2020 16,598.00

88.01

L7
92
L6
09
34

45.00
t_34.00
179.00

ORC}IARD EXPENSES
SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN
UTILITIES
UTfLITIES

*VENDOR TOTAL

TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TEI,EPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE

0462
0424
0422
04L4

732
732
732
'732

00005
00030
00038
00075

o0027
00028
00028

00028
00028
00028
00028
00028

732
732
732
732598

598
598
598
598
598
598

ULINE
HAND SANATTZER 05/2O

VALLEY TND & FAM MED GRP
K.WHEAT 05/2020
HEP B BAEZIPENA O5/2O2O

VANTAGEPOINT TRAN AGENT-
rcMA 05/2020
rcMA 0sl2020

VERIZON WTRELESS
PD CELL PHONES 05
CITY CELL PHONES
CTTY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES

SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. 0411 .060.029

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OOl-, 0410,050.029

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1.0411. O6O.029
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.060.029

*VENDOR TOTAI,

DEFERRED COMPENSATION
DEFERRED COMPENSATION

*VENDOR TOTAL

400464
4007 82

732 00043

732 00052

732 00054
732 00055

732 00037
732 00036

4,78t.78
4 ,944 .28
9,726.06

9L

0
0

4
4

0
0

404
L2

8
24

4
I

20
L2
24
65

001
001
001
001
0 01-
0 01-
001
001
0 61-
o2L

041_ 1
0404
0405
o4a5
0446
041-8
042L
0422
o461-

060
050
060
060
050
060
050
060
050
060

8
o
I
8
U

a
I

732
732
732
732
732
732

020
020
o20
o20 985259

9852s9
98s259

00028
00028n

0
0
0

o424
020
020

63



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
04/29/2020 18:r-3:53
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTTON

VERTZON WIRELESS
C]TY CELL PHONES
CITY CELL PHONES
CTTY CELL PHONES

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN

020
/2020

Schedule of Bil-ls

AMOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE

*VENDOR TOTAL

VEHICLE GASOLINE
VEHTCLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/-OPER
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER
VEHICLE MAINT/OPERATIONS
VEHICLE GASOLINE

*VENDOR TOTAL

FUND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOfCE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL540R-V08.14 PAGE 6

PO# F/P ID L]NE

0462
o463
0403

4
4
4
4
4

6
6

2
l-

os /20
05/20
os'/20

1
5
z
?
1

4
4

PD FUEL O5/2O2O
CITY FUEL 05/2020
CITY FUEL O5/2O2O
CITY FUEL O5/2O20
crTY FITEL 05/2020
crrY FUEL 05/2020
TRANSIT FUEL 05,/2
FIRE DEPT FUEL 05

11_0.02
110.02
12.s0

819.86

o62
053
001

060.020
050.020
050.020

9852595988
9852595988
98s2595988

732
732
732

00028
00028
00028

3,153 .80
53.15

744.L5
7 44 .15
53.15

s31.55
523 .58
672.42

6 ,475 .95

001
001
o62
053
0 01_
001
o21,
004

060.032
060.032
050.032
060.032
060.032
060 . o32
060.035

732
732
732
732
732
732
732
732

00062
00053
00063
00063
00063
00063
00054
00065

5050 03

64



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/29/2020 1B:13:53

VENDOR NAME
DESCRlPTION

REPORT TOTALS

Schedule of Bi1ls

FTIND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 7

PO# F/P ID LINEAMOUNT

106 ,497 .7L

ACCOUNT NAME

RECORDS PRINTED - OOO182

65



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
o4/29 /2020 18 : 13 :53 Schedule of Bi1ls

THE PRECEDING LIST OF BILLS PAYABLE WAS REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR PAYMENT

DATE APPROVED BY

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GLO6OS-VO8 . 14 RECAPPAGE
GL54 OR

66



ACS FINANC]AL SYSTEM
0s/21/2020 !7 z

BANK VENDOR

BANK BANK OF THE STERRA

Check Register
CHECK#

CTTY OF WOODI,AKE
GL54OR-V08. ].4 PAGE 1

DATE AMOI]NT

10.0
L ,584 .4

001525
00'J.972
0 013 r_6
00128s
001_525
00L26't
ooL926
000593
00r_086
0 0193 6
000783
.00523
.00528
000944
.00520
001_114
0 01913
00r-888
001_966
.00524
00L294
001315
000351
001_089
0 01817
.00531
001_836
.00s32
.o0522
000645
.00527
000753
.00534
0 018 75
000290
000887
000898
0 0 0195
000283
.00521
ooo2s2
.00529
.00s30
001-88r_
001052
0 0 t_343
.00538
00025s

1,4236
]-4237
t4238
]-4239
L4240
L4241
'l-4242
68572
68s73
5857 4
68575
6857 6
68577
68578
58579
68580
68581
58582
58s83
68s84
68s85

4L5.22
330.00
498.00
514.98
45.00
45.00

314.-1,6
90.00

148.80
l-0s.16

3 ,620 .'73
4 , O24 .L3

55.00
889.57
60.00

769.00
231..84

3, 750 .00
90.00

265.00
45.00
45.00

294.98
45.00
32.00

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
GENOMIC HEALTH INC
SEQUOTA ONCOLOGY
VISALIA FAMILY PRACTICE
KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU
ORTHOPAEDIC ASSOC. MEDIC
THE NEPHROLOGY GROUP
ABH FOX SOLUTIONS
ADSI
ADVENTIST HEALTH TOXICOL
AFLAC
ALMARAZ/MARGARITA
ALVAREZ/EDITH
AMER]PRIDE I]NIFORM SERVI
ANT"I]NEZ/ANITA
AT & T MOBILITY
AIITOZONE STORE 4485
AVENU IN (FKA CONDUENT)
BANK OF THE SIERRA
BARCENAS/YESENIA
BEATWEAR, INC.
BILL WALL'S D]RECT APPRO
BSK ASSOCIATES
CA TURF EOUIPMENT & SUPP
CALIFORNIA CONSULTING IN
CHAVEZ,/MARIA
C]SCO TIRES
CRUZ,/.lESSrCA
CUEVAS/VTCTOR
DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE I
DELGADILLO/ALEXANDRA
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
DODGE/MICHAELLE
E.D.r.S.
EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCT
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, IN
FOOTHILLS St]N-GAZETTE/TH
FRESNO OXYGEN
FRUTT GROWERS SUPPLY CO
GALVEZ/YAZMINE
GIANT AUTO GROUP
GONZAIEZ/ANGELA
GONZALEZ,/MARIA
GONZALEZTMART]N
GIIY/.JAMES
HEALTH WISE SERVICES
IBARRA/GEORGIA
KELLER AND WEGLEY

05/25/20
os/25/20
0s/25/20
05/2s/20
os/2s/20
05/2s/20
05/2s/20
05/2L/20
05/2L/20
os / 2L/ 20
os / 2t/ 20
05/21-/20
os/21-/20
os/21,/20
os'/2L'/2o
05 / 2t/ 20
05 /2L/20
o5'/2L'/20
05/2L/20
o5'/ 2L'/ 20
05/21-/20
os /2L/20
0s /2L / 20
0s/2r/20
os /2r/20
05 / 2L/20
05/2t/20
os'/2L'/20
05 /2L/20
05 / 2L/ 20
05 /2L/20
os / 2t /20
05/2L/20
os /2L/20os/2r/20
os'/21-'/2o
os / 2L/ 20
os /2L/20
os /2L/20
o5'/2L'/20
05 /2L/20
0s /2L / 20
os /2L/ 20
os /21/20
os /2L / 20
os/21-/20
os/21-/20
os'/2t'/20

55.0
32 .4

2L'7 .B
18 .3
6.2

0
5
0
0
B
7
6

00
00
47
98
00
35
31-
00
10
00
00

68586
68587
68588
68589
68590
68591_
68s92
68593
68594
68595
6A596
68s97
68s98
68599
58600
68501
58602
68603
68604
5860s
68506
68607
58508
58609

45
865
]-57
558
495

55
37L
l_3 5

79
90
45
55

300
t_50
140
L9L

58610
6I611_
58612

00
00
00
00
50

67



ACS F]NANC
05/21,/2020

BANK

IAI, SYSTEM
1,7 t

VENDOR

Check Register
CHECK#

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]-4 PAGE 2

DATE AMOI]NT

BANK BAI{K OF THE SIERRA

.00517
ooL223
.00s18
.00526
ooL362
0018r_5
00L932
.00533
oor97 4

1r_0.00
3.44.39
45.00

r"l-0.00
51-, 983 . 53

6 , 548 .54
45.00
45.00

l_,750.00
377.99

96.s9
61-.20

0 010 71_
.00539
.00535
.00535
000023
0008s3
000723
000024
000359
001-l_45
ooLL24
.00s2s
ooL473
0 01_04 7
000200
ooo726
001_21_0
o00072
.00519
000028
002000
0 012l_ l_

68613
686r4
5851_5
686]-6
686L7
58618
686t9
68620
6862t
68622
68623
68624
68625
68626
68627
68628
68629
68630
68631
68632
68633
68634
68635
68636
68537
68638
68639
68640
6864L
68642
68643
68644
68645
68646
64647
68648
68649
686s0

92
82
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
04
87
77
00
50
27

50.
393.

l-6s.
2 ,869 .

45.
90.

0 019 70
0 019 73
00r692
001087
001154
.00537
.00516

00
00
22
17
89
B7
00

1"99
209

!3 ,4]-5
70

2,368
290
165

2 ,3OO
L64
398
296

l_, 180
29
45

LANG/EMILIE
LEO I S NURSERY
MARTINEZ/MARTIN
MEJIA/ROSA
MfDVALLEY DISPOSAL
NUTRIEN AG SOLUTIONS
PENA/ADRIAN
PERE2lREGINO
PLUMBING DOC INC/THE
PORTERVILLE ASPHALT
PORTERVILLE ROCK & RECYC
PRECISION BRAKE & WHEEL
PROTECTION ONE
PIJBLIC SAFETY CENTER
RAMIREZ,/VANESSA
RUBALCAVA/MARLENE
SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR D
SANCHEZ/MYRA
SANTIBANEZ /ELIZABETH
SANTIBANEZ/.]I]NIOR
SELF HELP ENTERPRISES TN
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.
SMITH AUTO - VISALIA
SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO
ST WATER RES. CONTROL BO
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVI
TF TIRE & SERVICE
THOMAS/LACEY
TOP DOG TRAINING CENTER
TULARE COI]NTY ]NFORMATIO
I]NDERGROI]ND SERVTCE ALER
TJNITED RENTALS NORTHWES
US BANK
VALERO BROS.
VERDUGO/NATIIAN
WOODLAKE HARDWARE CO
ZACARIAS, IRENE
4CREEKS

BANK OF THE SIERRA

os/2L/20
o5'/2L'/20
os /2L/20
o5'/2L'/20
05 / 2L/20
05 /2L/20
05 /2L/20
o5'/2r'/20
os /2L/20
os/2L/20
os/2t/20
05 /2L / 20
os /2r/20
os'/21'/20
os/21-/20
o5'/.21"'/.20
05/2L/20
os'/ 2L'/ 20
os/27/20
o5'/21,'/20
os / 2L /20
os/21-/20
05 / 2L/20
05 / 2L/20
os / 2L/20
os/2L/20
os /2L/20
os'/2L'/2o
05 / 2L/20
05 / 2r/ 20
05/27/20
05/21,/20
os / 2L /20
05/21-/20
os/27/20
os'/2L'/2O
05 / 2L /20
os/21-/20

l-3 5
250

.00
2 ,424 .05

45.00
t-7, L96 . 50

1_28,530. 88 ***

68



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/2L/2020 l.7:
BANK VENDOR

REPORT TOTALS:

Check Register
CHECK#

RECORDS PRINTED 000346

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]"4 PAGE 3

DATE AMOI]NT

128,630 . 88

69



ACS FINANCIAL
0s / 2r / 2020 1.7

SYSTEM
:05:35 Schedule of Bil1s

ACCOI]NT NAME FI]ND & ACCOUNT

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO].. 041O .060.029

CoNTRACTURAL SERVICES 001_.0411.060.028

CoNTRACTURAL SERVTCES 001_.0411.060.028

ACCIDENT & DIS INS WITHH OO1.OOOO.2OO.O38

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001-.0306.000.075

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0306.000.0?5

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GL540R-V08. l_4 PAGE 1

INVOICE PO# F/P ID LINE

5105 769 001-a4

8328 769 00028

1"174 769 00030

'700778 769 00'J,L2

NATHALIE 769 OOOO9

AARON 769 000L4

APRIL
APRIL
APRIL
APRIL

769 00006

15385550 769 00072

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

ABH FOX SOLUTIONS
SERVTCES 0s/2020

ADSI
suPPoRT/MArNT. 0sl2020

ADVENTIST HEALTH TOXICOL
TOXTCOLOGY 05/2020

AFLAC
SUPPLMNTL rNS. 05/2020

ALMARAZ/MARGARITA
SoFTBALL REFUND 0s/2020

ALVAREZ/EDITH
BASEBALL REFIJND 05/2020

AMERIPRIDE I]NIFORM SERVI
I]NIFORM SERVICES
UNIFORM SERVICES
I]NIFORM SERVICES
I]NIFORM SERVICE

AMOI]NT

4]-5.22

330.00

498.00

5t4.98

45.00

45.00

90.00

148.80

1-57 -36
25 . i_0cR
26 .1_oCR

L05.16

CI,AIM

2020
2020
2020
2020

os/
05/
05/

05 /2

20
2020
2020
020

)1 qa
228.89

58 .34
2.99

344.16

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
T]NIFORM ALLOWANCE
T]NIFORM ALLOWANCE
I]NIFORM ALLOWANCE

*VENDOR TOTAL

001.041_8.050
062 . 0462 .050
063.0453.050
o21.0424.O50

0t_t_
0l_ 1
011
011

00108
00109
001_1_0
001_11_

00206
00207
00208
00209
0 0210

769
769
769
769

ANT"T]NEZ/ANITA
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

AT & T MOBILTTY
FD CELL PHONES 05/2O2O

AUTOZONE STORE 4485
2OO3 FRD CRN VCTR]A 5/20
DSC BRK CALIPER Os/20
DSC BRK CALTPER 05/20

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0306.000.075

TELEPHONE oo4 -o41-4.050.020

SEBST]AN,/KATEL

VEHICLE MATNTENANCE/OPER 001. 041_1_. 050. 032
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER 001_. 041_l- .060. 032
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER 001. 0411. 060. 032

*VENDOR TOTAL

4485135060
44851_35051
4485L35062

769
769
769

00083
00084
00085

AVENU ]N (FKA CONDUENT)
MNTHLY APP & HSTING 5/20

BANK OF THE SIERRA
TARGET 0s/2020
GO]N POSTAL 05/2020
LOWES Os/2020
LOWES Os'/2O2O
LOWES 05/2020
NELSON'S ACE 05/2020
VilNDR GRND FABRICS 5/20
LOWES 05/2020
BORGA STL BLDNGS 05/2020
AMAZON MRKT PLACE O5/2O

ALLOWANCE
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT

108
62

225
52

108
45

209
545
574

65

.46

.43

.29

.54

.48

.50

.49

.87

.68
)A

o62.0462
o62.O462
o0I.0423
00L . 0423
00L .0423
001_. 04r-r"
001.041_1
001.0405
001.0405
001.0410

.050

.060

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.050

.011

.029

.o29

. o29

.029

. o29

. o29

. o29

. o29

. o29

3,620.73 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 00L.0410 .060.O29 INVB-013578 769 002L9

UNIFORM
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAI,
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL
SPECIAL

EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN

0020L
o0202
00203
o0204
0020s

769
769
769
759
769
769
769
769
769
769

70



ACS FINANC]AL SYSTEM
05 /21"/2020 17 : o6 :35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

BANK OF THE SIERRA
DRI CRASH PLAN 05
EARTHLTNK 05/2020
AMAZON MRKT PLCE
AMAZON MRK PLACE
AMAZON MRKT PLACE
SUA SPNTE DESIGN
usPs Po 05/2020
CARROT TOP IND. 05 /2020

BARCENAS/YESENTA
BASEBALL REFIIND 05/2020

BEATWEAR, INC.
IINIFORM B.GNZALES 5/20

Schedule of Bil1s

AMOIJNT ACCOT]NT NAME

OFFICE SUPPLIES
OFFICE SUPPLIES
OFFICE SUPPLIES
OFFTEE SUPPLIES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
COMMI'NITY PROMOTION FUND

'kVENDOR TOTAL

CLAIM INVOICE

KEVTN

64LL

L6235

ADo8035
ADoIL51
ADoI6l_3
ADo9060
ADo 93 13
ADo9344
ADo9388

454022
454023

4229

ARMNDO/MIKAELA

340

KALYSSA

DOMINICK

CTTY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 2

PO# F/P ID LINE

759 0001_0

769 00027

769 0002s

0 0211
oo212
0 0213

/20 001
001
062
053
001
00L
001
00r_

9
l_1
55
65

108
t_,000

26
738

4,024

05 / 2020
05 /2O2O

05 /20
05/20

.041_0.

.041_0.

.0462.

.0463 .

99
90
39
38
72

35
72
t-3

060.023
060.023
060.023
060.023
060 .029
060.028
060 .029
050.055

769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769

0021"4
0 021_ 5
o02L6
002]-7
00218

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

CONTRACTURAL SERVTCES

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

FUND & ACCOI]NT

001 . 0305 . 000 . 075

001- . 04r-i- . 060 . 028

001 . 0411_ . 050 . 028

o4LO
041_ 0
0402
o409

BILL WALL'S D
SERV]CES O5

IRE
/20

CT APPRO
20

55.00

889.57

60.00
BSK ASSOCIATES

BACTr 05/2020
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 05/2020
BACTr 0s/2020
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 05/2020
BACTr 05/2020
BACTr Os/2O2O
WEEKLY EFFLUENT 05/2020

90.00
73.00

l_80.00
61.00
90.00
90.00

185.00
769.00

CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL
CONTRACTURAL

*VENDOR TOTAL

SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERVICES
SERV]CES
SERVTCES

063 . 0463 . 060 . 028
062.0462.060 .028
063 . O463. 060 . 028
062 .0462. 060 . 028
063 . 0463 . 060 . 028
o53 .0463.060 .028
o62.O462.050 .028

769
769
'7 69
769
769
769
769

00085
00087
00088
00092
00077
00078
00079

CA TURF EQUIPMENT &
SUPPLTES 05/2020
LOOP HNDLE TRIMMER

SUPP

05/20
1_58.00

73 .84
23L .84

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OOL.O42L.060.O29
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OOL.O42L.060.O29

*VENDOR TOTAL

00094
00095

769
769

CALTFORNIA CONSULTING ]N
GRNT WRTNG SERV. 0sl2020

CIIAVEZ/MARIA
BSBLI,/SFTBLL REFI]ND 5/20

CISCO TIRES
.toirN DEERE BCKHOE 05/20

cRuzlJEssrcA
SoFTBALL REFUND 05/2O2O

CUEVAS/VICTOR
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2O2O

3, 750 . 00

90.00

265,OO

45.00

45.00

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

CONTRACTURAIJ SERVI CES

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

BASEBALL/SOFTBAI,L FEES

005.0414.060

001_.0306.000

o52.0462.060

001.0306.000

001_.0305.000

o28

075

o28

075

07s

769

769

759

759

769

0 0116

0001-7

00098

0001_8

00008

71



ACS
05/

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

E.D.I.S.
EMPLYEES,/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPI,YEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
EMPI.YEES/RTREES
EMPLYEES/RTREES
PD EXPENSE O5l2

FINANCIAL SYSTEM2t/2o2o 17:05:35 Schedul-e of Bi11s

FUND & ACCOUNT CLAIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 3

PO# F/P ID LTNEAMOI'NT ACCOI]NT NAME

DEARBORN NATTONAL
CTTY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
C]TY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPI,OYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
CITY EMPI,OYEES
CITY EMPLOYEES
PD EMPLOYEES 05

LIFE I
05 / 2O2O
os / 2020
05 /2020
os / 2020
05 / 2O2O
05 /2020
05 / 2020
05 / 2O2O
05 /2020
05 / 2o2o
os /2020
o5'/ 2020
os'/2020
0s / 2020
o5 / 2o2O
05 /2020
os /2020
os'/2020
/2o20

05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05
05

020

2.08
4.33
6.29
2.52
6.37

76
86
21-
66

L4.89
74.88
55. B7
47.06

HEALTH
HEALTH
I{EALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
I{EALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INST'RANCE
INSI'RANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSI'RANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

INSURANCE
INSI'RANCE
INSIJRANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

001.0402.050
001.0403.050
001.0404.050
001.0405.050

061
062
063
o2t

0461 .050
0462 .050
0463.050
o424.O50

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

.]I]NE

.]I]NE
JUNE
JI]NE
.JUNE
JI'NE
,JUNE
.ftINE
'JUNEJUNE
.]UNE
JI]NE
JI]NE
,JI'NE
.TUNE
JUNE
'JUNE.TUNE
JT]NE

.JI]NE
JI]NE
'JIJNEJI]NE
JT]NE
.TUNE

'JUNEJUNE
J1JNE
iTUNE
,JI]NE
JUNE
!TI]NE
JI]NE
JI]NE
JUNE

0070
0070
0070

0070
0070

769
'169
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769

769
769
769
769
'7 59
769
769
769
769
769
'169
769
769
769
769
769
769

0070
0070

0
n
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0005
0006
0005
0005
0006
00054
00054
00064
00064
00054
00064
00064
00064
00064
00065

2020
2020
2020
2020

.050

.050

.050

.050

0s0.008
050.008
0s0.008
050.008
050.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

001.041_s.050
001-.041_6.050
00L.0418.050
00r_.0421_.0s0
001.0422.050

o29.
001.
050.
o72.

404
405
4I5
4]-6

1
L4

4
3

3.93
o .72
0.87
0.09
0.09

80. s0
294.98

1.72
2 .07
o.2L
o.2a

210.00

o20
020
020
020

0070
0070
0070
0070

086.0486.050
001.0411.050

o429
0406
o460
0472

769
769
769
769
769
769
769

00070
00070
00070
00070
00070
00070
00070
00071_

DELGADILLO/ALEXANDRA
BASEBALL REFIIND 05/2020

DEPARTMENT OF ,TUSTICE
FINGERPRINT APPS 05/2O2O

DODGE/MIC}IAEI,LE
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

45.00

32.00

45.00

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

CONTRACTI]RAL SERVICES

BASEBALL/SOFTBA],L FEES

001.0306 .000 .07s

001 . 041_1 . 060 . 028

0 0 1 . 0 3 0 6 . 0 0 0 . 0 7 s

0402.0s0.008
0403.050.008

JOSIAH RUIZ

448845

NOAH

JUNE 2O2O

'JUNE 2O2O
JI]NE 2O2O

769 00183

769 00024

759 00020

/z
IZ

li
lz'/z

li
/2
/2
/2

020
020
020
020
o20
020
o20
o20
020
o20

4.9L
10.29
1,4 .96
5.00

l_5. L5
4.20

35.34
10 . 01_
8.70

35.41-
178.05
1_32 .86

40.56
9.35

001.
001.
001.
00r-.
00r-.
001.
001_.
001.
00r_.
061.
062.
063.
o2L.
029.
001_.
050.
o72.
086.
001_.

0418.
0421.
0422.
0461.
0462.
0463.
0424.
0429.
0406.
0450.
0472.
0486.
0411.

050
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
0s0

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

020
o20
o20
o20

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

050.008
050.008
050.008

769
769

00064
00054
00054
00064

0
0
0
0 4

4
t

72



ACS FINANC
05 / 2t/ 2020

IAL SYSTEM
1-7:06 :35 Schedule of Bills

FUND & ACCOIJNT

004 .04L4

CLAIM ]NVOTCE

CITY OF WOODI,AKE
GL54OR-VO8 ,1"4 PAGE 4

PO# F/P ID LINE

769 00090

769 001_18
769 00034

769 00113

769 00057
769 000s8

VENDOR NAME
DESCRTPTION

EWING IRRIGAT
SUPPLIES 05

AMOI]NT ACCOI]NT NAME

E.D. L S.
FIRE DEPT.
ADMIN osl2
ADM]N 05/2
ADM]N O5l2
ADM]N O5l2
ADM]N O5l2
ADMIN O5l2
ADM]N O5l2
ADMIN O5l2
ADMIN 05/2
ADM]N 05l2
ADMIN 0572
ADMIN O5l2
ADMrN 05/2
ADMrN 05/2
ADMrN 05/2
ADMIN O5l2
ADMTN O5l2
ADMIN O5l2

05 /2020
020
020
o20
020
o20
020
020
020
020
020
020
o20
020
020
020
020
020
o20

120.00
0.31_
0.50
0.73
0.29
o.74
0 .20
1- -73

98
45
08
10
01"
0l_
00

L.0402
1_.0403
L.O404
1-.0405
1 . 041_5
r.04L6
1.0418
L.042L
1- - O422
1- . O451
2.0462
3 . 0463
L.0424
9 -0429
1_.0406

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
'7 59
769
769
769
769
759
769
769
769

67
67
57
67
67
67
67
67
67
67
67
67
57
67

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

.050.008

.0s0.008

050
0s0

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
06
06
06
o2
o2
00

050.008
0s0.008
050.008
050.008
0s0.008

.]UNE
JUNE
JUNE
.IUNE
JUNE
JUNE
JT]NE
JUNE
Ji]NE
JI]NE
JUNE
JT]NE
JI]NE
JI]NE
.]I]NE
JUNE

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

00065
00067
00067
00067
00067

0
0
1
I
6
1

0
0
0
0

855

46
37
7L

6
3l-
11_

tL2
25
28

37L

49
42
73
72
5l_

050
050
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
050
050
0s0

060 . o29
060 .029
o50.o29
o50.o29
060 .029
060 .029
060 .029
o60 .029
060.o29

o42r
o42L
o462
o462
0462
041_ 8
042L
o421_
o42L

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

050
072
085

o460
0472
o486

JI'NE 2O2O
,JttNE 2020
JUNE 2O2O

LLs88762

t542665
L544336

557 e9

I ON PRODUCT
2020

IN

1,57 .47 SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 001.0421 ,060.029
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES,

SUPPL]ES 05/2O2O
Pvc 05/2020

L96 .42
362 -56
5s8.98

20.0L
35.3s
55.35

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN

*VENDOR TOTAL

MEDICAL SUPPLIES OO4,O4t4,060.O4O
CAPITAI, EXP - INFRASTRUC 006. O4].4.080.053

*VENDOR TOTAL

063
053

0463
0453

060 .029
050 .029

FOOTHILLS STIN-GAZETTE
PUBLTC NOTTCE 0s/20

/rH
20

230
20
/2o20

495.00 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO]..0402 .060.O29

FRESNO OXYGEN
MEDICAL OXYGEN
SEA TRAfN PRO,J

FRUIT GROWERS
NOZZLE TORO
CAUTION TAPE

05 / 2020
o5 / 2O2O

o20
2020

52566327
62566328

SUPPLY
05 /2O2

05 /20
0
0
os/2
os/

20
0s/2

co

05
56
57
30
26
56
9t
6Z
30
31_

921,33928
92L34333
92r394L7
92139447
92L39577
92L4L549
92r4L627
92L4L781"
92r418]-1

769
769
759
769
769
769
769
769
769

001_88
00189
00190
001_91-
ooL92
0 0193
ooL94
0 0195
0 0l- 96

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT

*VENDOR TOTAL

EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN
EXPEN 05
EXPEN OO
EXPEN OO
EXPEN OO
EXPEN OO

00
00
06
06

1
1
2
z
2
t_

1
l_

1

BARB HOSE BRASS
SUPPLIES 05/2O2
SUPPLIES O5./2O2
ELBOW/FUEL i"iIx
COUPLER/ADAPTER
BOX VALVE O5/2O
SOI,ENOID PV DC o20

73



ACS FTNANCIAI, SYSTEM
0s/2L/2020 r-7:06:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

GALVEZ/YAZMINE
SoFTBALL REFUND 05/2020

GENOMIC HEALTH INC
LAB/DTAGNOSTTC Os / 2020

GROUP
0s /2020

GONZALEZ/ANGEI,A
SoFTBALL REFUND 05/2020

GONZALEZ,/MARIA
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

GONZALEZ/MARTIN
SoFTBALL REFUND Os/2020

GUY/.JAMES
GilN PURCHASE RFND 05/20

HEALTH WISE SERVICES
KrosK MED WASTE 0s/2020

IBARRA/GEORGIA
CLNING DEP REFI]ND
RNTL FEE DEPOSIT 5

KAWEAH DELTA MEDICAL FOU

Schedule of BiIls

ACCOUNT NAME FUND & ACCOI]NT

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0305.000.075

HEALTH TNSURANCE 001.041_1_.050.008

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/OPER 001. 041-1. 060. 032

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0305.000.075

BASEBAT,L,/SOFTBALL FEES 001".0306.000.075

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES 001.0306.000.075

MTSCELLANEOUS SALES, ETC 001_.0304.000.03s

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.060,O29

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08. ]-4 PAGE 5

PO#

GIANT AI]:TO
SERVICES

AMOUNT

135.00

L ,584 .45

79.L0

90.00

45.00

55.00

300.00

150.00

F/P ID

'169

772

769

769

769

769

759

769

LINE

00007

00002

ooo26

0001_5

00184

0001_6

00220

00099

CLAIM INVO]CE

MENDOZA-GALVEZ

382978

AL]ZEIAALIYAH

ISAIAH GONZALZ

NINA GONZALEZ

67476

os /20
/zo

1_00.00
40.00

t_40 .00

0.15
0 .20
o -29

DEPOSITS FORM OTHERS
COMMUNITY CENTER

*VENDOR TOTAL

001.0000
001.0305

200
000

035
068

20-020
20-o20

769
759

00198
00199

PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSTCIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSIC]AN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSTCTAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSTCIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISTT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICIAN VISTT
PHYSICIAN VISIT
PHYSICAL THERAPY
PHYSICAI, THERAPY
PHYSICAL THERAPY

INST]RANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
]NSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
/20
/zo
/20

05/
05/
o5'/
05/
os/
o5'/.
oa/
o5'/
o5'/
os/
os/
os/
05/
05/
o5'/
os/
os/
os/

05
0s
05

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

.19

.17

.69

.49

.50

.79

.1-B

.03

.04

041_ 8
0424
0422
046a
o462
0463

001.0402
001_.0403
001.0404
001 .0405
001.0415
001.0415

008
008
008
008
008

00001
00001
0000r"
00001
00001_
00001
00001
00001
00001_

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAT,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
I{EALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

0s0
050
050
050
050
050
050
0s0
050
0s0
050
0s0
0s0
050
050
050

008 772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
'772
772
772
772
772
"172
772
772
772
772
712
'172

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3
2
0
0
0
0

l- 1_

29
08
69 001

0 01_
0 01_
0 61_
o52
063
02L
029
0 01_
050

0424 000
000
000
000
000

000
000
000

000
000
000
000

01
0l-
01-
0l_
01-
01
0l-
01-
01_
05
05
05

2.L3
4 .40
5 .39

072
086
001
001
001

0429.
0406.
0460.
0472.
0486.
o402.
0403.
0404.

050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008

74



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/21,/2020 r-7:06:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

Schedule of Bi11s

CLAIM TNVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR.VO8.14 PAGE 6

PO# F/P ID LINEFI]ND & ACCOI]NT

.0s0.008

AMOI]NT ACCOUNT NAME

KAWEAH DEI,TA MEDICAL FOU
PHYSICAI THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/2O
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYS]CAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYS]CAL TI{ERAPY 05/20
PHYSICAL THERAPY O5/2O
PHYSICAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSTCAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYSTCAL THERAPY 05/20
PHYS]CAL THERAPY 05/20

KELLER AND WEGLEY
PRFSNL SRVCE 05/2020

LANG/EMILIE
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

LEOIS NURSERY
SUPPLTES 05/2020

MARTINEZ/MARTIN
BASEBALL REFUND 05/2020

MEJrA/ROSA
BASEBAT,L REFIIND 05 /2020

MIDVALLEY DISPOSAL
REFUSE SERVTCES 05/2O2O

NUTRIEN AG SOLUTIONS
ROIINDUP PWRMAX 05 /2O2O
SUPPLTES 05/2020
SUPPLTES 05/2020

ORTHOPAEDIC
PHYSICIAN
PHYSIC]AN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN

ASSOC.
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
vrsrT
VTSIT
VIS]T

024
o29
0 01_
050
072
086

.0

.0

.0

.0

.0

008
008
008
008
008

.050.008

.0s0.008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008

. 050.008

.050.008

.050.008

.050.008
50
50
50
50
50

001
001
001
001
001
00r_
0 51_
062
053

4 .27
3.72

1,s .L2
76.06
56.76
L7 .33
3.99
0 .73
0.88
0.09
0.09

227 .88

2.56
6 .47
L.t9

15.10

8
5
5
I

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

.0405

.041_5

.04L6

.041_8

.o42t

.0422

.0461

.o462

. o463

.0424

.0429

.0406

.0460
-o472
. o485

772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
7't2
772
772

00005
00005
00005
0000s
0000s
00005
00005
00005
0000s
00005
00005
0000s
0000s
00005
00005

772
772

191.50

110.00

L44.39

45.00

l_1_0.00

51, 983 .63

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 063

BASEBALL/SOFTBALI, FEES OO1

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O01

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES OO1

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES OO1

CONTRACTi'RAL SERVICES 051

ORCIARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORC}ARD EXPENSES

*VENDOR TOTAL

0463

0306

0421

0305

0306

o46L.

060.029

000.075

060.029

000.07s

000.07s

060.028

RYLAND/ELIAS

18965

DOMINTE

DIEGO/,JONATIAN

APR-20

4r959L22
4]-959L24
41-959L26

769

769

769

769

759

769

0 01" 1s

00003

00089

00004

0001-2

00062

80
81_
82

00005
00006
00006

045
046
046

.08

.o7

.39

.54

44
3,72
2,47
6 ,64

062.0462.060.
062.0462.060.
062.0462.060.

759 000
759 000
769 000

MEDIC
05/20
05/20
05/20
05 /20
os /20
os /.2o
05/20
05 /20

o.25
o .37
0.53
o.2a
0.54
0. Ls
L.27
0 .36

008
008
008
008
008
008
008
008

772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772

00006
00006
00006
00006
00006

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEAI,TH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

TNSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE

001.0402.050
001.0403.050
001_.0404.050
001.0405.050
001.041_5.0s0
001.04r_5.050
001_.0418.050
001_.0421_.0s0

75



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/21,/2020 L7 :06:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRIPTION

ASSOC. MEDIC
VISIT
VTSIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VISIT
VIS]T
VISIT

Schedule of Bi1ls

FIJND & ACCOT]NT CI,AIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL540R-V08 .l_4 PAGE 7

PO# F/P ID LINE

00005
00005

AMOUNT ACCOI]NT NAME

ORTHOPAEDIC
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICTAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICIAN
PHYSICTAN
PHYSICIAN

PENA/ADRIAN
BASEBALL REFIIND 05/2020

PEREZ/REGINO
SoFTBALL REFUND 05/2020

PLT]MBING DOC INC/THE
565 S. VALENCIA 5/2O2O

0.31
1" .27
6 ,4L
4.78
L .46
0.33
0.05
0.07

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0

l3
t"
/2
/2
/2

LZ
lz

05
05
05
05
05
05
05
ntr
05
05

18 .37

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

TNSURANCE
INST'RANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
TNSIJRANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

00L .0422
061.0451_
062.O462
053.0453
o21- . O424
o29 .0429
001.0405
060.0460
072.0472
086.0485

0s0.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008
050.008

772
772
772
772
'172
772

00006
00006
00005

00006
00006
00005
00006
00006

772
772
772
772

45.00 BASEBALL/SoFTBALL FEES

FEES

00r_ . 0306 . 000 . 07s

001 . 0305 . 000 . 07s

l_,750.00 CoNTRACTURAL SERVICES 062.0462.050.028

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN

*VENDOR TOTAL

96.59 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.060.O29

6T.20 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO]..041.8 .060,029

60.92 CONTRACTURAL SERVTCES 053.0463.060.028

45.00 BASEBAT,L/SoFTBALL

ISMAEL PENA

KAREEM PEREZ

25851

769 00013

759 0001_9

759 00001

00068
00059

769 00182

759 00093

769 00ta7

7 69 001,97

769 00002

769 001,25

PORTERVILLE
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES

PORTERVILLE ROCK & RECYC
MATERTAL os/2020

PRECISION BRAKE & WHEEL
coMPREssoR 05/2020

PROTECTION ONE
l{wrP ALARM o5/2o2o

PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER
TAX oN MEDTCAL o5/2ozo
PPE 05/2020

ASPHALT
o5 / 2o2o
os / 2o2o

189.00
r-88.99
377.99

1
37
39

060 .029
060.029

o62.O462
063.0463

819 0
819 0

769
769

6 .72
7.10
3 -42

MEDICAL SUPPLIES
FIRE GEAR

*VENDOR TOTAL

o04 .04L4. 060 . 040
004 .04]-4. 060 . 058

00060
00059

769
769

5923892
5926200

21090

s1--291121

RUBALCAVA (3)

s15t_043

RAMIRE
PRK

RUBALCAVA/
BASEBALL

SAN JOAQUI
ANNL ATR

MARIJENE
REFUND os/2020

N VALLEY AIR D
Txc ASSMNT s/20

z/VANEssA
RNTL RETMBRSMNT 5/20 25.00 CABLE TV S]TE LEASE 001 . 0304 . 000 . 030

165.00 BASEBALL,/SoFTBALL FEES 001.0306.000.075

]-, 857, OO SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O4A.O44I. 060. 029

76



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/2t/2020 L7 zo6:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTION

Schedule of BilIs

AMOUNT ACCOI]NT NAME

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN

*VENDOR TOTAL

FUND & ACCOUNT

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE 8

PO# F/P ID LINECI,AIM INVOICE

sl- 514 7 0
sL5r471"

MARIO

ISAIAH/.]EREMIA

SANTIBANEZ (3)

WLKHMPI APR-20

2529-4

01TN445200

MAY 2O2O

L650944

SAN JOAQUIN VALI,EY AIR D
ANNL AIR TXC ASSMNT 5/20
ANNL AIR TXC ASSMNT 5/20

501
501

2 ,869

.00

.00

.00

SANCHEZ/MYRA
BASEBAI,L REFUND 05/20

SANTIBANEZ/ELIZABETH
BASEBALI, REFUND 05 /2O2O

SANTlBANEZ /JIINIOR
BSBLL/SFIBLL RFND 05/20

SELF HELP ENTERPRISES IN
GENERAL ADMIN. 05/2020

SEQUOIA ONCOLOGY
PHYSTCTAN VrSrT 05/20

SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.
CMMNTY CNTR PAINT 05/20

SMITH AUTO - VISALIA
TRANSTT 05/2O2O

SOUTHERN CALIF EDTSON CO
2L6 E. NARAN.IO 05/2020
120 N. MAGNOLTA 05/2020
oRCHARD Os /.2020
oRCHARD 05/2020
CTY ADMIN BT,DNG 05/2020
wTR DEPT 05/2020
MATNT. SHOP 05/2020
PARKS 05/2020
sEwER DEPT 05/2020
ATRPORT DEPT 05/2020
SBDVSN LIGHTTNG 05/20
STREETS 05/2020

060 . o29
060.029

o62
o62

0452
o462

00L26
00L24

769
769

45.00

90.00

1_3s .00

250.00

55.00

L99.04

209.87

BASEBAI,I,/ SOFTBAI,I, FEE S

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

BASEBALL/SOFTBAII, FEES

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

HEAI,TH INSURANCE

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN

STATE OF GOOD REPAIR _ S

0 0 1 . 0 3 0 6 . 0 0 0 . 0 7 s

0 0 1 . 0 3 0 5 . 0 0 0 . 0 7 5

0 0 1 . 0 3 0 6 . 0 0 0 . 0 7 5

o72.O472.060 .028

001_ . 0411 . 050 . 008

00L .042L .060 .029

o2r.o424. 060 . 033

769 00200

769 00021-

769 00022

759 00032

772 00003

769 00073

769 00L87

060
060
060
060

04L4
0462
o462
041_ 0

269
20

260
193

82
42
20
BB
45
35
79
72
72
42
03
1_0
48
1_3
13
l_3
77

UTILITIES
UTILITIES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
UTILITIES
UTILITIES
UTILTTIES
UTII,ITIES
UTILITIES
UTILTTIES
UTILTTIES
UTII,f TIES
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
ORC}IARD EXPENSES
ORCHARD EXPENSES
ORCI{ARD EXPENSES

*VENDOR TOTAL

. o2L

.021

.446

.046

.02L

.02]-

.o2I

.02L

.021

.02]-

.o2t

.o2L

.o29

. o45

.046

. o45

004
004
o62
o62
001
063
0 01-
001
062
04]'
o29
001
053
o52
062
062

. o463

.0418

.042L

.0462

.044L

. o429

. 0422

. o463

.o452

.0462

.0462

050
060
060
060
060
060
050
050
050
050
060

0l_ 04
010 5
0l-06
010 7
0t_20
OI2T
0L22
oL23

o4L4.060 0003s
00036
00096
00097

769
769

531-.
2,234.

356.

759
769
769
'169
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769

010 0
0r_01
0L02
01_03

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
o
0
0

MNZNILLO
ORC}TARD
ORCIIARD
ORC1IARD

srN o5l20
o20
020
020

LFT
os/2
os/2
os'/2

L7
4,979

67
87

4,146
L2
46
45
46

L3 ,4I5
ST WATER RES. CONTROL BO

GRADE D1 A ORNELAS 5/20
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVT

ON CALL REPRTNG 05/20

70. OO SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 063.0453 .060.O29

2,368.50 CONTRACTURAL SERVICES 062.0462.060.028

769 00061

769 00031

77



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/2L/2020 L7:06:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRTPTION

TF TIRE & SERVICE
vAc TRAILER 05/2O2O

THE NEPHROLOGY GROUP

TULARE COI]NTY TNFORMA
RADrO COMMNCTNS 0s/

AMOI]NT

290.27

43

6 -26

165.00

2,300 .00

HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH
HEALTH

*VENDOR

INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSI]RANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TNSURANCE
INSURANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL

Schedule of Bills

ACCOUNT NAIUE FUND & ACCOI]NT

vEHrcLE MATNTENANCE/OPER 062.0462. 060. 032

CLAIM INVOICE

EX-2LIO43

MIRANDA (3)

4242

20 - 099

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL540R-V08 . t_4 PAGE 9

PO# F/P ID LINE

769 0009L

LAB/D]AGNOSTICS
LAB/DIAGNOSTICS
LAB/DIAGNOSTTCS
LAB/DIAGNOSTICS
LAB/D]AGNOSTICS
I,AB/DIAGNOSTICS
I,AB /D]AGNOSTIES
LABTDIAGNOSTICS
LABTDIAGNOSTICS
I,AB/DIAGNOSTlCS
LAB/DIAGNOSTICS
LAB/DIAGNOSTTCS
LABTDIAGNOSTICS
LAB/DIAGNOSTTCS
LABTDIAGNOSTTCS
LAB/DIAGNOSTICS
LAB/D]AGNOSTICS
LAB/DIAGNOSTTCS

THOMAS/LACEY
BASEBALL REFND 05/2020

TOP DOG TRAINING CENTER
NDC COURSE RANGER O5/2O

0.13
0.L2
0.18
0.07
0. r-8
0.05

001 . 0402 . 050 . 008
001 . 0403 . 050 . 008
001 . 0404 . 0s0 . 008
00r- . 040s . 0s0 . 008
001 . 04]-s . 0s0 . 008
001 . 0415 . 050 . 008

n

0
0

1
0
0
0
0

0s/20
o5'/.2O
0s/20
05 /20
05/20
os/20
05/20
05 /20
05/20
0s/20
05 /20
os/20
05/20
os /20
os /20os/20
o5'/20
05/20

43
L8
63
49
1_1
02
02

001.04
001_.04
00L . 04
06]- . 04
062.04
063.04

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

.008

772
772
772
772
772
7'12
772
't72
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772
772

00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007

00007
00007
00007
00007
00007
00007

.12

. l-0

r-8.0s0
21.050
22.0s0
61.0s0
62.0s0
63.0s0

02t.0424.050
029.0429.O50
00L.0406.0s0
060.0460.0s0
07 2 .0472 .050
085.0485.050

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

CONTRACTURAL SERV]CES

0 0 1 . 0 3 0 5 . 0 0 0 . 0 7 5

001 . 041_r" . 060 . 028

769 00011

769 00074

769 00029

769 00075
769 00076

769 001r-9

769 00033

TIO
2020

T]NDERGROI]ND SERVICE
CA STATE REG CST
CA STATE REG CST

UNTTED RENTALS NORTHWES
BLADE DRY CUT MSNRY 5/20

US BANK
CITY PRINTER
PD PRIMTER 05

VALERO BROS.
PROPANE 0s/2A20

L64.22 RADIO & PAGER MAINTENANC 00L.041"1_.060 .033

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 062.0462.060.029
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN 063.0463 .060.029

*VENDOR TOTAL

296.89 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O52,0462.060.029

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1.041O .060.O29
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO]-.04].1 .060.029

*VENDOR TOTAL

29.O0 SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN OO1. O4]-8 .060.029

ALER
05/20
05/20

05 /2O2O
/ 2020

199.08
r_99. 09
398 .L7

23
64
87

77L
409

1,180

13 2 811_20l_9DIG
L3281L2OL9DTG

1_81340736-001_

443943252
413943252

47 68

759
769

001-85
00186

78



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/21/2020 17:06:35

VENDOR NAME
DESCRIPTTON

VERDUGO/NATHAN
BASEBALL REFIIND 05/2020

V]SALIA FAMILY PRACTICE
SERVTCES 05/2O2O

AMOUNT

45.00

32 .40

Schedule of Bills

ACCOI]NT NAME

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

HEALTH INSURANCE

FUND & ACCOUNT

001_ . 0305 . 000 . 075

001 . 0411 . 0s0 . 008

06 . 041,4 . 0 8 0 . 0 5 3
06 . 041,4 . 0I0 . 0 5 3
06.04r4.080.053
0L.042L.060.029
01.0411_ .060.o29

CI,ATM INVOICE

FORREST

4103663
A10 3 71-3
4L03729
A103808
A103877
At04L92
A1-O4279
A10 4 31- 7
A104338
A1,04346
4104353
A1,04382
A104407
A104s09
A1
Al-
A1
A1
A1_05357
A1_05489
A1_05588
ALo5672
.A10 5 710
ALO5776
At_05835
A1_05844
A105856
AL06047
4LA6177
4L06257
877L92
87 727 I
B7 727 9
877298
8"t7354
877355
877435
B7 7 451-
877479
877485
877 499
871525

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GL54OR-V08.14 PAGE ].0

PO# F/P ID LINE

769 00005

772 00004

63
55
74
22
77
85
50

6 .51
32.35
56.82
25.53
3.80

58.09
50.00
16.27

1,L9.L2
26.09
47.82
55.34
6.51

64
B6
99
83
38
48
55
T2
24
05
67
72

1-5
i-9
2L
34

9
35
31

83
43

36
17
86
13

2
L

L9

WOODLAKE HARDWARE CO
STATION MAINT. O5/2O2O
STATION MAINT. O5'/2020
STATTON MATNT. 0.5/2020
CAUTION TAPE 05/2020
sHoP DEPT Os/202O
crTY IIALL PROJ 0sl2020
STATTON MATNT. 05/2O2O
CITY HALL 05/2020
SEWER PROJ 0512020
SEWER 0s/2020
WASH BAY O5/2O20
COUPLTNG,/SEWER o5l2020
STATION MAIN. 05/2020
couPr,rNG/sEwER o5l2 02 o
CLAY PIPE COUPLNG 5/2020
STATTON MAINT. O5/2O2O
STATION MA]NT. O5/2O2O
coRNER rRON/NUTS 05/2020
WATER DEPT 05/2020
TAPE TO cO O5/2O20
ANTMAL CNTRL TRCK O5l20
LOCKTNG C-CIAMP 05/2020
NUTS/BOLTS/TAPE os'/ 20
263 HOLLY 05/2020
CREDTT 0s/2020
crrY HALL 0s/2020
crTY HALL 05/2020
HOSE COUPLING 05,/2020
WHTE SPRAY PA]NT O5/2O20
sHoP 05/2020
NUTS/BOLTS 05/2020
CSTLE ROCK PARK O5/2O20
300 N. VALENCIA O5/2O2O
PROOF ClrArN 05/2O2O
3OO N. VALENCIA O5/2O2O
STATION MAINT. 05/2020
POLY DECK SCRUB O5/2O
SPCKLE KNIFE 05/2O2O
CITY HALL 05/2O2O
crTY HALL O5/2O2O
FOIL TAPE 0s/2O2O
BRSH SET/TRY L]NER 5/20

CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC O

CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC O

CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

FIRE STATION MA]NTENANC O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
FIRE STAT]ON MAINTENANC O
FIRE STATION MATNTENANC O

SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECTAI DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC O
SPECTAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIA], DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

SPEC]AI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN O
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN O

029
034
o29
029
034
034
029
029
o29
029
029
o29
o29
o29

001_45
00048
00050
00447
001_49
00150
001s2
00180

769
769

00037
00038
00039
00r-28

03
69
1_5

85.98
93.92
2r.73
27 .1_5
10.86

769
769
769
769
769

L69
131
o42
L40
135
L42
L43
L44
044
L45

54
70
71-
62
6L
81
58

01
06
01
62
62
0l_
62
o4
52
52
o4
a4
01
63
0r-
0l-
01_
0l_
0t_
01
01
01
63
01
01
53
01
01
01
01
06
01-
0l_
01
01
01
0l_

.0423.050.

.041-4.080.

.o423 -O60 -

.0462.060.

.0452.060.

.0418.050.

.0462.060 -
04L4.060.
0452.060.
0462.060 .
04L4.060.
o4L4 - 060 -

0453.060
0421 .060
041_1.060
041_8.060
04L8.050
041-t-.050

.0411_.060.

.0423 .060 .

.0423.060.

.0463.050.

.041_t_.060.

.0418.050.

. 0463 . 060 .

.o421.060.
60
50
60
80
60
50
60
60
60
50

29
53
29
29
29
29

0
0
0
0
o
0

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00

001
0 01_
00r-
001
0 01_
001
00r_

769
759
769
769
759

769
759

21 .r7
46.82

769
769
769
769
759
769
759
769
"t 69
769
759
769
't 69
769
769
759
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
"t 69
769
769
769

o45L4
o4429
05025
05093041_8.050

CR

14
L6
38

4
25

.0423.0

. o421- .0

.0423.0

. o4L4 .0

.042L .0

.o42L.O

.o423.0

.o423.0

00159
o0t27
00158
0 0173
001-29
00]'72
00040
001_30
00L7 4
00137
00138
001"32
00r_33

029
029
029
o29
o29
029
029
o29
029
o29
053
o29
o29
029
029

o423.O
o42L.O

o29
o29

79



ACS FINANC
os / 2t/2020

IAL SYSTEM
l-7:06 :35

CI
GL540R-V08.

OF WOODLAKE
PAGE 11

TY
14

VENDOR NAME
DESCRTPTION

WOODI,AKE HARDWARE CO
RAZOR SCRAPER 05/2O2O
STATION MAINT. 05/2020
CITY HALI, 05/2O2O
BRUSH/PNT TRAY 05,/20
MASKING TAPE' 05/2O2O
sHoP 05/2020
STATTON MAINT. 05/2020
cuRB STENCIL SET O5/2O2O
WHT SPRAY ENML PNT 05/20
STATION MATNT. 05/2O2O
STATTON MAINT. 05/2O2O
crTY HALL 05/2020
STATTON MATNT. 05/2020
crTY HALL 0s/2020'
crrY HALL 0s/2020
crTY HALL 05/2020
FOAM COVER 05/2020
PAINT TAPE 05,/2020
STATION MAINT. 05/2020
STATTON MATNT. 0s/2020
STATTON MATNT. 0s/2020
crTY HALL 0s/2020
BSHING GALV HEX O5/2O
wHrTE PArNT 05/2O2O
ANIMAL CNTRL TRCK 5/20
WASP SPRAY,/GLOVES 05/20
STATION MAINT. O5/2O2O
STATION MAINT . 05./2020
STAT]ON MAINT. 05/2O2O
STATTON MAINT. O5/202O
WATER DEPT O5/202O
CITY HALL 05/2020
CI,EANING SUPPLIES 5/20

20
9I
67

L3.26
34.25

252.25
r_9.09

2,424.05

.08

.08

.06

.05

.06

.06

SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAI, DEPARTMENT EXPEN
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPEC]AL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
F]RE STATION MAINTENANC
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
CAPITAL EXP - INFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - TNFRASTRUC
CAPITAL EXP - TNFRASTRUC
FIRE STATION MAINTENANC
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN
SPECIAL DEPARTMENT EXPEN

*VENDOR TOTAL

8.24
L0.76

7 .46
29.32
t-5.20
s.53

18.81-
8.
F

2L.
?

22.
22.

239.

.050.

.060.

.060.

.050.

.06

.06

.06

.06

.06

.06

.06

0 01_
004
001
001
0 01-
0 01_
006

004
063
0 01_
0 01-

001
00r_
004
004
0 01-
004
0 01_
001
0 01-
0 01_
001
004
004
005
0 01-
063
001
001
o62
005

24
75
05
23
38
27
72
38
09
59
20
3l_
08
81
04
58
53
69

22
l_0

8
1_5
1_0
7L

7
7
I

50
22
33
23
28
2L

AMOI]NT ACCOUNT NAME

Schedule of Bills

BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FEES

CONTRACTURAL SERVICES

FI]ND & ACCOI]NT CLAIM INVOICE

.]AYDEN OLAGUE

L6495

PO# F/P ID LINE

.042L

.04I4

.0423

.o42L

.o42L

.0418

. o4t4

.0422

.0422

.04L4

. o41.4

.0423

.o4L4

.0423

.o423

.0423

.0421"

.0421,

.04L4

.o4L4

.04t4

.0423

.0463

.0422

.0411

. o462

. o41-4

.04L4

.041_4

.o4L4

.0453

.o423

.0418

877528
877532
877544
B7 7 550
97 7 555
877573
877579
877672
877695
B7 7 698
87771-5
B7 77 57
B't7807
877819
B7 7 889
877945
877924
877927
877959
878054
B78104
878227
878240
878352
878444
878513
818662
878694
878696
878732
B7 87 47
878756
B7 87 96

769
769
769
759
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
769
759
769
769
769
769

00043
00]-7 6
oo1-77
00045
00045
00]-67
ooo47
00166
00155
00r-64
00178
001-79
00049
00051
000s2
00153
00148
0 0151_
00r-53
001-55
00053
00054
00055
00056

06
06
08
06
05
05
06
06
06

o29
o34
029
o29
o29
029
053
029
o29
034
034
029
034
o29
029
029
o29
029
034
034
053
029
o29

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

769
769
769

769
769

00134
00041
00139
001_3s
00175
001-41

00155
00160
001-s7

769
769
769
769

769
769
769
769

08
06
06

05
08

060 .029
060 . o29

50
005
005

o .02
0.0s
0.05
0.05
0.03
0 .02
0.02
o.02

9
3
3
3
4
9
9
9

769
769

ZACARIAS, IRENE
BASEBALL REFUND O5/202O

4CREEKS
STRMWTR PROJ PH 3 05/20

45.00

77,1"96.50

001_ . 0306 . 000 . 075

060 . 0460 . 050 . 028

769 00023

769 00063

80



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/21/2020 l-7:06:35
VENDOR NAME

DESCRTPTION

REPORT TOTALS:

Schedule of Bi11s

FT]ND & ACCOI]NT CLAIM INVOICE

CITY OF WOODLAKE
GI,54OR-V08.14 PAGE 1-2

PO# F/P ID LINEAMOI]NT

128,630 . 8B

ACCOT]NT NAME

RECORDS PRINTED 000345

81



ACS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
05/21-/2020 17:06 :35 Schedule of Bills

THE PRECEDING LIST OF BILLS PAYABLE WAS REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR PAYMENT

DATE APPROVED BY

C]TY OF WOODLAKE
GLO5OS-VO8 . 14 RECAPPAGE
GL54 OR

82



 

    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-C  
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the March 2020 Monthly Report of Investments 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code the Finance Department prepares 

a report listing all investments of the City of Woodlake.  The City’s temporary idle cash, those 

funds not immediately needed to pay current bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s 

Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution No. 09-05 which was adopted on February 9, 

2009. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The first objective of the investment policy is to secure the safety of the invested funds. The 

second objective is to match the availability (liquidity) of the funds to the cash flow needs of the 

organization.  The third objective, that is only considered after the first two objectives have been 

met, is yield, or the earnings rate. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the March 2020 Monthly Report of Investments as 

submitted.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the March 2020 Monthly Report of Investments 

2. March Monthly Report of Investments 

 

 

 

 

 
 

83



City of Woodlake - lnvestment Report
CDs

36.65%

VBB
Checking
45.840/6

Forfeiture
O.32o/o

March 31.2020

lnvestment Tvpe
Checking - Bank of the Sierra
Checking - Asset Forfeiture
Measure S - cash
LAIF
MBS - miscellaneous Portfolio Holdings
FinanceS00 - Miscellaneous cash
State Bank lndia - 09/1 1/19
American Express Centurion - 10121120

Goldman Sachs - 01127121

Sussexbank Franklin - 01128121
Discover BK Greenwood - 0612112'l

Sallie Mae Bk Salt Lake City - OGl21l21

Synchrony BK Retail - 06122121

Citibank Natl Assn Sioux Falls -'10126121

First UTD BK & Trcompany Durant OK - 0412612'

State BK lndia New York NY - 06/19/24
Discover BK Greenwood - 11123121

American Express Centurion - O4119122

Capital One - 06/1422
Capital One - 061'14122
Federal Natl Mtg - 10/09/19
BMW BK North Amer - '12110119

CIT BK Salt Lake City - 12124119

Synchrony BK Retail - 03/06/20
Comenity Cap - 06101121

Silvergate Bank - 10124124

Morgan Stanley BK- 02107124

Princioal
$3,446,312

$24,'146
$1,981

$1,290,810
$0

$2'821
$99,944

$100,023
$49,698
$47,857

$152,315
$152,315
$152,318
$101,075

$0
$1 00,1 57

$98,474
$149,994
$150,386
$1s0,386
$25s,203
$99,374

$250,093
$250,1 70

$92,918
$100,000
$199,996

Percent of
Portfolio

45.8o/o

O.3a/o

0.Oo/o

17.2o/"

0.Oo/o

0.Oo/o

1.3o/o

1.3o/o

.0.7o/o
0.6%
2-0o/o

2.04/o

2.Oo/o

1.3o/o

0.0%
1.3o/o

1.30h
2.0o/o

2.0o/o

2.0o/o

3.4e/o

1.3o/o

3.3o/o

3.3o/o

1.2o/o

1.3o/o

2.7o/o

Yield to
MaturiW

None
0.05o/o

None
1.90o/o

N/A
N/A

3.15o/o

2.00o/o

2.0oo/o

2.160/o

2.23o/o

2.1504
'l.840/o

2.99o/o

2.99o/o

2.994/o

2.060/o

2.48o/o

2.41o/o

2.41o/o

0.00o/o

3.10o/o

0.00%
2.15o/o

2.25o/o

2.09o/o

1.90o/o

Settlement
Date
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

ogt11114
10121115

01t27t16
01128116
06120118
12t20t18
06t22t18
't0126118

04126t19
06/19/19
1'U23116
o4119117
o6t14t17
06114117
10/09/84
12t10t14
't2124114

03/06/15
05t31t17
10121119

o2t07t19

09t11t19
10t21120
01127121
01t28t21
06t21t2'l
06121121
06122121
10t26t21
04126124
06119124
11t23t21
041't9122
06114122
06t14t22
10/09/19
12t',tot19
12t24119
03106120

06101121

10t21124
02107124

Maturitv
N/A

Monthly
N/A

Daily

Total Portfolio $7 7il l00o/o

this report complies with the City's adopted investment policy and

that it also plies state investment guidelines pursuant to Government Code Section 1648'1.2

04t't3t20
Lara, City Date

84



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH     )   Resolution No: 

2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF             )                           

INVESTMENTS                             ) 

 

Councilmember ________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

City of Woodlake’s March 2020 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code, monthly, the Finance 

Department shall prepare a report listing of all investments of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s temporary idle cash, those funds not immediately needed to pay current 

bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution 

No. 09-05. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake’s March 2020 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______ and seconded by 

Councilmember ________ and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT: 

 

  

      _______________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

85



 

    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-D  
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of the April 2020 Monthly Report of Investments 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code the Finance Department prepares 

a report listing all investments of the City of Woodlake.  The City’s temporary idle cash, those 

funds not immediately needed to pay current bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s 

Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution No. 09-05 which was adopted on February 9, 

2009. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The first objective of the investment policy is to secure the safety of the invested funds. The 

second objective is to match the availability (liquidity) of the funds to the cash flow needs of the 

organization.  The third objective, that is only considered after the first two objectives have been 

met, is yield, or the earnings rate. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that Council approve the April 2020 Monthly Report of Investments as 

submitted.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of the April 2020 Monthly Report of Investments 

2. April Monthly Report of Investments 

 

 

 

 

 
 

86



City of Woodlake - lnvestment Report
CDs

33.380/6

VBB
Checking
50.041o

LAIF

Measure
O.02o/o

Forfeilure
0.33%

ApJil-qp.2029

lnvestment Tvoe
Checking - Bank of the Siera
Checking - Asset Forfeiture
Measure S - cash
LAIF
MBS - miscellaneous Portfolio Holdings
Finance500 - Miscellaneous cash
State Bank lndia - 09/1 1/19
American Express Centurion - 10121120

Goldman Sachs - O'll27l2'l
Sussexbank Franklin - 01128121
Discover BK Greenwood - 06121121
Sallie Mae Bk Salt Lake Cily - 06121121
Synchrony BK Retail - 06122121
Citibank Natl Assn Sioux Falls -'1012612'l

First UTD BK & Trcompany Durant OK- 0412612,
State BK lndia New York NY - 06/19/24
Discover BK Greenwood - 1112312'l
American Express Centurion - O4119122
Capital One - 061'14122
Capital One - 061'14122
Federal Natl Mtg - 10/09/19
BMW BK North Amer - 12110119

CIT BK Salt Lake City -'12124119

Synchrony BK Retail - 03106120

Comenity Cap - 06101121

Silvergate Bank - 1O124124

Morgan Stanley BK- 02107124

Total Portfolio

report of

$7,955,052 1000/o

complies with the City's adopted investment policy and
investment guidelines pursuant to Government Code Section 16481.2

05r06/20

PrEsipe!
$3,980,721

$25,970
$1,981

$1,290,810
$0

$2,821
$0

$100,023
$49,698
$47,857

$152,315
$152,315
$152,318
$101,075

$0
$100,157
$98,474

$149,994
$150,386
$150,386
$255,203
$99,374

$250,093
$250,170
$92,918

$100,000
$199,996

Percent of
Portfollo

50.0%
0.3o/o

0.0o/o

16.2o/o

O.0o/o

O.Oo/o

0.0%
1.3o/o

0.6%
0.6%
1.9o/o

1.9o/o

'l.go/o

1.3Yo

0.Oo/o

1.3o/o

1.2o/o

1.9o/o

1.9o/o

1.9o/o

3.2o/o

1.2o/o

3.1o/o

3.'lo/o

1.2o/o

1.3o/o

2.5o/o

Yield to
Maturilv

None
0.05%
None
1.90o/o

N/A
N/A

3.15o/o

2.00o/o

2.00o/o

2.160/o

2.23o/o

2.'lSa/o

1.84o/o

2.99o/o

2.994/o

2.99o/o

2.060/o

2.48o/o

2.41o/o

2.41o/o

0.00%
3.10o/o

0.00%
2.15%
2.25o/o

2.09o/o

1.90o/o

Settlement
Date
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

09t11114
101211',t5

01t27t16
01t28t't6
061201't8
12t20t18
06t22t18
'tol26118
04126119
06/19/19
't1123116

04119117
06t14t17
06114117
10t09t84
't2t10t14
12124114

03/06/15
05t31t17
10121119

02t07t19

Maturitv

Monthly

Daily

N/A

N/A

o9111119
10t21t20
o1t27t2'l
0'U28121
0612112',1

06t21t21
06t2212'l
10126121

04t26t24
06119124
1',U23121

04t19t22
06114122
06114122
10/09/19
't2110119

12t24t19
03t06120
06101121

10t21t24
o2to7t24

that it also

Date

87



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL     )   Resolution No: 

2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF             )                           

INVESTMENTS                             ) 

 

Councilmember ________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

City of Woodlake’s April 2020 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.24.050 of the Woodlake Municipal Code, monthly, the Finance 

Department shall prepare a report listing of all investments of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s temporary idle cash, those funds not immediately needed to pay current 

bills, is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy that was approved by Resolution 

No. 09-05. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the City of 

Woodlake’s April 2020 Monthly Report of Investments. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______ and seconded by 

Councilmember ________ and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT: 

 

  

      _______________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

88



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-E 

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution. Requesting and Consenting to Consolidation of Elections; and 

Setting Specifications of the Election Order 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

A Municipal Election will be held in the City of Woodlake on Tuesday, November 3, 2020 to fill 

four municipal offices.  Other elections may be held in whole or in part of the territory of the city 

and it is to the advantage of the city to consolidate pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The purpose of the election is to choose successors for the two offices whose term will expire 

2024 and two offices whose term will expire 2022.  The City shall request and consent to the 

consolidation of this election with other elections.  The City will designate the hours of the polls 

are to be kept open from 7:00 am to 8:00 pm.  The City will reimburse the county for the actual 

cost incurred in conduction the election upon receipt of an invoice from the elections official.  

The City Council has determined that the Candidate will pay for the Candidate’s Statement.  The 

City requests that the Registrar of Voters publish the Notice of Election in a newspaper of 

general circulation. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City adopt the resolution and allow the consolidation of elections and 

setting and specifications of the election order. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Requesting and Consenting to Consolidation of Election; and Setting and 

Specifications of the Election Order 

89



(Adopt  and file with  the County Registrar  of Voters 

NO LATER THAN July 1, 2020) 
 

 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
 

 

  City Of Woodlake   

(Name of City) 
 

 
 

Resolution Requesting and Consenting to 
 

Consolidation of Elections; and Setting 
 

Specifications of the Election Order 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

NO. 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered a Municipal Election to be held on Tuesday, November 3, 2020, 

to fill certain municipal offices; and 

 
WHEREAS, other e lec t ions  m a y  be held in whole or  in part of  the territory of the city and it is to the 

advantage of the city to consolidate pursuant to Elections Code Section 1 0400; and 

 
WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 1 0242 p r o v i d e s  t h a t  the governing board sha l l  determine the hours 

of opening and closing the polls; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, E l e c t i o n s  C o d e  Sec t ion  1 0 0 0 2    requires   the c i t y  t o  r e i m b u r s e  the c o u n t y    in f u l l  

f o r  the services performed upon presentation of a bill to the city by the county elections o f f ic ia l ; and 

 
WHEREAS, Elections C o d e  S e c t i o n    13307   requires   that   before   the n o m i n a t i n g  period   

opens, t h e  governing body   must   determine whether   a charge s h a l l    be l e v i e d  a g a i n s t    each 

c a n d i d a t e    submitting a candidate’s statement to  be sent to the voters; and 

 
WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 12101   requires t h e  publication of a notice o f  the election once  in a 

newspaper o f  general circulation in the city; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT I S  ORDERED that   an   election   be   held   in   accordance   with   the   following 

specifications: 

 
 
 
 
 

- 1 - 
90



SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER 
 

1.  The Election shall be held on Tuesday, the 3rd  day of November 2020.   The purpose o f  the election is to 

choose successors for the following offices (list offices, terms and candidate's name): 

 

Council Member Rodolfo Mendoza_   
 

Council Member Jose L. Martinez 

 

Council Member Gregorio Gonzalez (short-term) 

 

Council Member William Joseph Valero (short-term) 

 

2.  This city council hereby requests and consents to the consolidation of this election with other elections 

which may be held in whole or in part of the territory of the city, as provided in Elections Code 10400. 

3. The city hereby designates the hours the polls are to be kept open shall be from 7:00A.M. to 8:00P.M. 
 
4.  The city will reimburse the county for  the actual cost incurred in conducting the election upon receipt of 

a bill stating the amount du e  as determined by the elections official. 

5.  The city council has determined that the Candidate will pay for the Candidate's Statement.   The 
 Candidate’s Statement will be limited to 200 words. 

 

6.  The city requests that the Registrar of Voters publish the Notice of Election in the following newspaper, 

which is a newspaper of general circulation that is regularly circulated in the city: The Sun Gazette 

7.  The city directs that a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the Registrar of Voters, 

and the Board of Supervisors of Tulare County. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED upon motion of Council member ________ ,  seconded by 

Council  member ___________ at a regular meeting on this 26th day of May, 2020, by the following vote:

 

 

AYES:   ABSTAIN: 
 

ABSENT:     NAYS 
 

 

 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk (Date) 

G: \ Eiections \ 2014 November  Generai \ City Packets \ City Resolution Calling 

Electionjune  20 14.doc 

91



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-F 

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Request the Tulare County Board of Supervisors Permit the 

County Registrar of Voters to Render Specified Services to the City 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake has ordered an election be held within the boundaries of the City on 

November 3, 2020.  Elections Code Section 10002 states the governing body of any city may, by 

resolution, request the Board of Supervisors of the County to permit the county elections official 

to render specified services to the city relating to the conduct of an election. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The Tulare County Registrar of Voters will render the following services: 

• Distribute and file nomination papers and candidate statements 

• Make all required publications 

• Prepare, print and mail sample ballots and voter pamphlets 

• Provide Vote by Mail ballots 

• Order consolidation of precincts, appoint precinct boards, designate polling places and 

train election officers 

• Conduct and canvass the returns 

• Receive and process Vote by Mail ballots 

• Prepare, print and deliver election supplies 

• Recount votes if required 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City adopt the resolution and permit the County Registrar of Voters to 

render specified services to the City. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Requesting the Tulare County of Board of Supervisors Permit the County 

Registrar of Voters to Render Specified Services to the City 

92



(Adopt  and file with  the Board of Supervisors 

and the County Registrar of Voters 

NO LATER THAN July 1, 2020) 
 

 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
 

 

City of Woodlake 

(Name of City) 

 
Resolution Requesting the Tulare County 

Board of Supervisors Permit the County 

Registrar of Voters to Render Specified 

Services to the City 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

NO.  

 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Elections Code, the governing body of any city may, by Resolution, request the 

Board of Supervisors of the County to permit the county elections off icial  to render specified serv ices  to the 

city relating to the conduct of an election; and 
 

 
WHEREAS, the city has ordered an election be held within the boundaries of the city on November 3, 2020, 

NOW, THEREFORE, B E  IT RESOLVED by the city council: 

The Board of Supervisors of Tulare County is hereby requested to permit the County Registrar of Voters to 

render s e r v i c e s  to the city relating t o  the conduct of the November 3, 2020 Mun ic ipa l  Election as 

follows: 

a.         Distribute and file nomination papers and candidate statements for candidates for city offices. 

b.         Make all required publications. 

c.  Prepare, print and  mail to the qualified electors of the city sample ballots and voter pamphlets. d. 

 Provide Vote by Mail ballots for  said Municipal Election for use by the qualified electors who 

may be entitled to Vote by Mail ballots in the manner provided by law. 

e. Order consolidation of precincts, appoint precinct boards, designate pol l ing places and instruct 

election officers c o n c e r n i n g  their duties. 

f.  Conduct and canvass the returns o f  the election and certify the votes cast to the city. 

g.   Receive and process Vote by Mail ballot voter applications. 

h.  Prepare, print and deliver to the polling places supplies, including the official ballots and a 

receipt for said supplies. 

i.           Recount votes, if requested, in accordance with state law. 

j.            Conduct the above election dut ies  in accordance with the Voting Rights Act of 1975. 

k.  Perform all other pertinent services required to be performed for said election other  than the 

requirements of the Fair Political Practices Commission; said Fair Political Practices Commission 

requirements to be performed by the city clerk. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 o f  2 
93



The city clerk is hereby authorized and directed to transmit certified copies of this Resolution to the 

Board of Supervisors and to the County Registrar of Voters. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 

 
 
 
 
 

AYES:  

NAYS      

ABSTAIN 

ABSENT:  

 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF TULARE            ) ss 

CITY OF                                 ) 
 
 

 

I,  Irene Zacarias   , City Clerk of the City of   Woodlake   , certify  the 
 

foregoing is the full and true Resolution passed and adopted  by the council 
 

of the City of  Woodlake, at a regular  meeting  held on the 26 t h day of _ 
 

 May, 2020. 
 
 
 
 

Signed:     __ 
 
 

Date:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

 
G:\Eiections\2014 November  General \ City Packets \ City Resolution  Requesting  County Run june  2014.doc 

94



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-G 

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Reappoint Johnny Varela, Chuck Mann and Xavier Bocanegra 

to the Planning Commission Board 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake Planning Commissioners is composed of five members who reside within 

the city limits of the City of Woodlake.  The term of office of members of Planning 

Commissioners shall commence on March 1st and terminate on the last date of February.  The 

terms of the members of the Planning Commission shall be four years, except that each Planning 

Commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed from office by 

majority vote of the City Council at any time. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake Planning Commission has three members whose terms expired on March 

1, 2020. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City reappoint Johnny Varela, Chuck Mann and Xavier Bocanegra to 

the Woodlake Planning Commission.  Terms will expire 2024. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Adoption of Resolution: Reappoint Johnny Varela, Chuck Mann and Xavier Bocanegra 

to the Woodlake Planning Commission Board 

95



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

REAPPOINT JOHNNY VARELA, CHUCK MANN )   Resolution No. 

AND XAVIER BOCANEGRA TO THE              )                          

WOODLAKE PLANNING COMMISSON BOARD  ) 

 

Councilmember ________________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. 

Reappoint Johnny Varela, Chuck Mann and Xavier Bocanegra to the Woodlake Planning 

Commission Board. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake Planning Commission Board is composed of five members who 

reside within the city limits of the City of Woodlake; and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of the office of members of Planning Commissioners shall commence on 

March 1st and terminate on the last date of February.  The terms of the members shall be four years; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, each Planning Commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may 

be removed from office by majority vote of the City Council at any time. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to reappoint Johnny 

Varela, Chuck Mann and Xavier Bocanegra to the Woodlake Planning Commission Board.    

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ________, and seconded 

by Councilmember ____________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting 

held on May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:  

 NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT: 

  

      ____________________________ 

      Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

96



 

    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-H  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize the City Administrator to File the Regional Surface 

Transportation Program (RSTP) Exchange Program Fund Claim for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 on 

Behalf of the City of Woodlake and Allow the City Administrator to Sign Necessary 

Documentation 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Annually, Caltrans and the Tulare County Association of Governments enter into a Standard 

Agreement contract that includes an RSTP Exchange Program.  The contract allows for the 

exchange of unobligated balances of federal Regional Surface Transportation Program funds 

with non-federal State Highway Account funds.  TCAG then applies a RSTP population-based 

distribution formula using current Department of Finance (DOF) population estimates (January 

2020) to the RSTP apportionment to determine the amount of RSTP Exchange funds to be 

distribution to TCAG member jurisdictions.      

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 the City of Woodlake has an estimated RSTP Exchange Program 

fund apportionment amount available to claim in the amount of ninety thousand three hundred 

and seven dollars ($90,307).  The funds are to be accounted for in the STP Fund and the City 

uses them for rehab and maintenance projects.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Authorize the City Administrator to sign and file the above described FY 2019-2020 RSTP 

Exchange Program fund claim on behalf of the City of Woodlake in the amount of ninety 

thousand three hundred and seven dollars ($90,307). The funds are to be accounted for in the 

STP Fund to be used by the City for rehab and maintenance projects. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Woodlake General Fund.  The funds, when received, will 

be accounted for in the STP Fund and the City will use them for rehab and maintenance projects 

as budgeted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

97



 

    

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Authorize the City Administrator to File the Regional Surface Transportation 

Program (RSTP) Exchange Program Fund Claim for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 on Behalf of 

the City of Woodlake and Allow the City Administrator to Sign Necessary 

Documentation 

 

2. Attachment No. 1 - Claim to the Tulare County Association of Governments for Regional 

Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Funds in Exchange for State Highway Account 

Funds FY 2019-2020 

98



 
S:\Agenda\FY 19-20\City Council\May 26 2020\Item IV.H Attach 1 9. Woodlake 19-20 RSTP Claim 

form emailed 4-24-2020 Ramon Lara.doc 

 

Claim to the Tulare County Association of Governments  

for Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Funds in Exchange for  

State Highway Account Funds FY2019-2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Cost of 

Project 

Air 

Quality 

Exempt 

 

1. 

 

 

$   

 

2. 

 

 

$   

 

3. 

 

 

$   

 

4. 

 

 

$   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY19/20 Claim Amount:   $90,307 

Claimant:   City of Woodlake 

Claim Guidelines: 

Projects outlined in the table below to be funded with this claim are only those projects that are defined 

under Sections 133(b) and 133(c) of Title 23, United States Code and Article XIX of the California 

State Constitution, implemented in accordance with the requirements of Section 182.6(d)(1) of the 

Streets and Highways Code.   

 

Claim Instructions: 

1. List (print or type) each INDIVIDUAL project to be funded with this claim.  

2. List the amount of funds to be used for each project.   

3. If the project is not a capacity expanding project and is exempt from the air quality conformance 

analysis check the “Exempt” box. () 

4. If the project is a capacity expanding project and the “build” alternative of the air quality 

conformance analysis has been completed for the project as required check the “Air Quality” box. 

() 

99



S:\Agenda\FY 19-20\City Council\May 26 2020\Item IV.H Attach 1 9. Woodlake 19-20 RSTP Claim form 

emailed 4-24-2020 Ramon Lara.doc 

 

 

Claim to the Tulare County Association of Governments  

for Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) Funds in Exchange for  

State Highway Account Funds FY 2019-2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is understood by City of Woodlake, (claimant) that payment of this claim is subject to approval by the TCAG 

Governing Board and must be in accordance with the TCAG and Caltrans Agreement.  Said monies (and the 

interest earned on such monies subsequent to allocation) will be used only for those purposes for which the 

claim is approved. 

 

The undersigned claimant, by accepting these funds agrees to establish a special account for the purpose of 

depositing funds received from TCAG pursuant to this agreement: 

a. For cities, within their Special Gas Tax Street Improvement Fund; or 

b. For the county, within their County Road Fund 

 

The undersigned claimant, by accepting these funds, agrees to grant the State of California auditors access to 

their books and records for the purpose of verifying that funds paid hereunder are properly accounted for and 

proceeds are expended in accordance with the terms of this agreement.  All documents will be available for 

inspection by authorized Caltrans agents at any time during the project development and for a four-year period 

from the date of completion of the project, or one year after the audit is completed or waived by Caltrans, 

whichever is later. 

 

If the undersigned claimant fails to use funds received hereunder in accordance with the terms of the agreement, 

the claimant agrees to return the exchange funds to TCAG for credit to the special account described above. 

 

Further, the Public Works Director of the claimant certifies that the financial information contained herein, is 

reasonable and accurate to the best of his/her knowledge. 

 

Authorized Representative:  

         

     Signature 

 

             

     Print Name 

 

             

     Title 

 

             

     Date 

 

             

      Executive Director, TCAG 

 

             

     Print Name 

FY 2019-2020  Claim Amount:       $90,307 

                   

Claimant:  City of Woodlake                            

100



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO     )     Resolution No. 

FILE THE REGIONAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION  ) 

PROGRAM (RSTP) EXCHANGE PROGRAM FUND        ) 

CLAIM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 ON BEHALF  ) 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE AND ALLOW THE          ) 

CITY ADMINSTRATOR TO SIGN NECESSSARY             ) 

DOCUMENTATION                                                               ) 

  

Councilmember ________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Authorize the 

City Administrator to File the Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange Program Fund 

Claim for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 on behalf of the City of Woodlake. 

 

WHEREAS, the Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG) and the California 

Department of Transportation (Caltrans) have entered into a Standard Agreement contract to 

exchange unobligated balances of federal Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) funds 

with non-federal State Highway Account funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Caltrans Division of Programming releases a 5-year ESTIMATE of RSTP Exchange 

Program apportionments for inclusion in the Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) 

Programming document every 2-years to California Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs); 

 

WHEREAS, TCAG is the designated MPO for Tulare County; 

 

WHEREAS, the Annual RSTP Exchange Program fund apportionment is an ESTIMATE and 

subject to change during the fiscal year (2019-2020) due to many Federal Surface Transportation 

Bill variables including the annual appropriations act as well as other Congressional action (i.e. 

rescissions); 

 

WHEREAS, a FINAL RSTP Exchange apportionment amount is published at the end of the FY 19-

20 and can be different than the ESTIMATE RSTP Exchange apportionment figure; 

  

WHEREAS, Annually, Caltrans sends TCAG a Standard Agreement contract that includes an RSTP 

Exchange Program apportionment figure; 

 

WHEREAS, TCAG applies a RSTP population based distribution formula using current 

Department of Finance (DOF) population estimates (January 2020) to the RSTP apportionment to 

determine the amount of RSTP Exchange funds to be distribution to TCAG member jurisdictions; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake has an ESTIMATE RSTP Exchange Program fund 

apportionment amount available to claim in FY 19-20 is ninety thousand three hundred and seven 

dollars ($90,307).   

  

WHEREAS, payment of the ESTIMATE RSTP Exchange fund claim will be subject to all 

conditions specified in the fully executed standard contract agreement between TCAG and Caltrans, 

as well as the TCAG RSTP Exchange Claim form requirements: Projects to be funded with this 

101



claim are only those projects that are defined under Sections 133(b) and 133(c) of Title 23, United 

States Code and Article XIX of the California State Constitution, implemented in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 182.6(d)(1) of the Streets and Highways Code.   

 

WHEREAS, if the FINAL RSTP Exchange apportionment figure is higher for FY 19-20 than the 

ESTIMATE RSTP Exchange apportionment figure, Caltrans would have to revise the RSTP 

Exchange Standard Agreement contract with the higher RSTP figure before TCAG could instruct 

the Tulare County Auditor Controller’s Officer to distribute a greater amount of RSTP Exchange 

Program funds to member agencies, than identified in this resolution; 

 

WHEREAS, if the FINAL RSTP Exchange apportionment figure is lower for FY 19-20 than the 

ESTIMATE RSTP Exchange apportionment amount, Caltrans does not have to revise the RSTP 

Exchange contract with the lower amount before TCAG could recalculate the available RSTP 

Exchange Program funds using the same population-based formula and then instruct the Tulare 

County Auditor Controller’s Officer to distribute the lower FY 19-20 FINAL RSTP Exchange 

Program fund amount to member agencies; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake has established special gas tax street improvement fund as a 

requirement to receive the RSTP Exchange Program funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is deemed in the best interest of the City of Woodlake the City Administrator is 

authorized to sign the FY 19-20 RSTP Exchange Program fund claim form and to submit said claim 

form to TCAG for processing. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Administrator of the City of Woodlake is 

authorized and directed to sign and file the above described FY 19-20 RSTP Exchange Program 

fund claim on behalf of the City of Woodlake in the amount of ninety thousand three hundred and 

seven dollars ($90,307).   

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ______, and seconded by 

________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

 

       _____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

102



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-I  
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Extension to the Purchase and Sale Agreement for 

the Property with APN No. 060-170-108  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Woodlake City Council instructed staff to look at the acquisition of bare land that may be 

used in the future to promote improvements, development, infrastructure improvements and 

commercial opportunities.  City staff engaged the Turner Family to look at the possibility of 

acquiring the properties with APN# 060-170-080 and APN# 060-170-096.  Council approved the 

purchase of the properties on September 12, 2016, in the amount of three hundred thousand 

dollars ($300,000.00).   

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Council approved the sale of the property to Jaspal Singh Turna for the development of a gas 

station and carwash.  The Purchase and Sale Agreement between Mr. Turna and the City would 

sell the property for three hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($325,000.00).  Mr. Turna had 

one hundred eighty (180) days from the end of the Site Investigation Period to accomplish such 

Development Approvals or his twenty-five thousand-dollar ($25,000.00) deposit would be lost to 

the City.  Before the expiration of the current agreement Mr. Turna requested a six-month 

extension that would grant him until November 15, 2020 to accomplish Development Approvals.   

 

Mr. Turna has completed Site Plan Review for the project, and it has been approved by the City 

of Woodlake Planning Commission and plans are currently in review by Caltrans.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

City staff recommends that Council approve the extension to the Purchase and Sale Agreement 

for the properties with APN No. 060-170-080 and APN No. 060-170-096 now known as APN 

No. 060-170-108.  Mr. Turna has been diligently working on obtaining the necessary 

Development Approvals that are required by the City to close escrow.   The sale of the property 

would result in development in the commercial district. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The property is a Water and Sewer Fund asset. If sold proceeds would be split between the Water 

and Sewer Funds. 

 

 

 

103



    

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. Resolution:  Approve the Extension to the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Property 

with APN No. 060-170-108 

 

2. Attachment No. 1 – Extension Request 

 

3. Attachment No. 2 – Purchase and Sale Agreement  

 

 

 

104



April 15, 2020 

 
 
City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Ave. 
Woodlake, CA 93286 

 

Re: Jaspaul Singh Turna 
Gas Station / Retail Shop Development 

 APN No. 060-17-108 

 

Dear Ramon,  

On behalf of Jaspaul Turna, AW Engineering is requesting a 6-month extension to allow for the 
additional permitting approval process.  

 

Thank you,  

Dana Bryan 

AW Engineering 
724 N. Ben Maddox Way, Suite A 
Visalia, CA  93292 
559-713-6139 

 

105



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This Purchase and Sale Agreement ("Agreemenf') is entered into as of the 12th day of
November 2019 ("Effective Date") between CITY OF WOODLAKE ("Seller") and Jaspal Singh

Turna, an individual, or his assignee ("Buyer"). ln consideration of the several promises and

representations of the parties set forth below, and for other good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as

follows:

WHEREAS, Buyer is the purchaser of certain real property, described hereafter, within
Tulare County, Califomia ("Property'') and more particularly described in and evidenced

by a certain grant deed, to Buyer as grantees and from Seller as grantor, to be recorded

under this Agreement, in the Offrcial Records of Tulare County, California; and

WHEREAS, Seller desires to retain or acquire from Buyer the exclusive right to
repurchase, without the obligation to repurchase, the Property at the price and upon terms

and conditions provided for in this Agreement.

1. Property. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller, the
ooProperty'' containing approximately 81,022 square feet (1.86 acres) of gross land area

located at the southwest corner of Naranjo Boulevard and the future Mulberry Street

alignment in the City of Woodlake, County of Tulare, State of California, also known as

Assessor's Parcel Map Number 060-170-108, and more particularly described in
"EXHIBIT A" attached hereto, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

2. Financial Terms.

A. Purchase Price. The total "Purchase Price" shall be Three Hundred Twenty-Five

Thousand Dollars and No/l00 ($325,000.00).

B. Deposit. Within five (5) business days after the full execution and delivery of this

Agreement, Buyer shall open an escrow account ("Opening of Escrow") with
Chicago Title ("Escrow Holder"). Within five (5) business days of Opening of
Escrow, Buyer shall deliver funds (the "Deposit") in the amount of Twenty-Five

Thousand Dollars and No/100 ($25,000.00) to Escrow Holder.

C. Balance. The balance of the Purchase Price (after credit for the Deposit and

interest accrued thereon) shall be paid by Buyer to Seller at the Close of Escrow,

by cash [title company or bank check, or wire transfer] to an account designated

by Seller. All funds must be received and cleared by Close of Escrow.

D. Infill Dirt. The City agrees to provide the necessary infill dirt for the project.

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page 1 ofll

106



3. Close of Escrow

A. Date. The conveyance of the Property and the payment of the balance of the

Purchase Price ("Close of Escrow") shall take place at the office of Escrow

Holder, during normal business hours, within thirty (30) days following
satisfaction of all the conditions set forth in paragraph 4 below.

B. Conveyance. At Close of Escrow, upon the receipt of the Purchase Price, Seller

shall deliver to Buyer a Grant Deed ("Deed") in recordable form, conveying such

fee simple title to the Property as was acquired by Seller by Grant Deed, subject

only to current real property taxes and those title exceptions approved by Buyer,

and free of all contracts, leases and like documents, exeept as approved by Buyer

in writing, together with a Buyer paid ALTA policy, if available, insuring such

title in Buyer. Seller shall also execute and deliver to Buyer a certification,

acceptable to Buyer, setting forth Seller's address, federal tax identification

number and other documents necessary for the purpose of the provisions of
Sections 1445 and 7701 of the Internal Revenue and Code of 1986, as amended.

In addition, Seller shall execute and deliver to Buyer evidence satisfactory to

Buyer that Seller is exempt from the withholding provisions of the Califomia
Revenue and Taxation Code, as amended (or comparable regulations of other
jurisdictions) and that neither Buyer nor Escrow Holder is required to withhold
any amounts from the Purchase Price pursuant to such provisions.

C. Costs and Prorations. Real estate taxes, outstanding assessments that are not liens

on the Property, fire and extended coverage insurance premiums, rent, utilities
and operating expenses (as applicable) shall be prorated as of the date of Close of
Escrow. Buyer shall pay all escrow fees, any transfer taxes and recording fees.

Each party shall pay its own attorneys'fees and costs.

D. Simultaneous Delivery: Conditions Concurrent. All documents and other items to

be delivered at the Closing shall be deemed to have been delivered

simultaneously, and no delivery shall be effective until all such items have been

delivered.

4. Approval Periods.

A. Title Matters. Within twenty (20) days after the Opening of Escrow, Seller shall

fumish to Buyer, at Seller's expense, a preliminary title report and binder on the

Property, copies of all exceptions, conditions, covenants and restrictions affecting

the Property, and a copy of all rental agreements and other evidence of the

potential rights of anyone other than Seller to the Property ("Title Commitment").

The Title Commitment shall be issued by Chicago Title ("Title Company") and

shall show good and marketable title in Seller. Buyer shall have twenty (20) days

Page 2 of I I 
Pwchase and *tT#';t"X107



after receipt of the Title Commitment to object to Seller in writing. If Buyer

timely and reasonably objects to the condition of title Buyer shall be deemed to

have elected to terminate this Agreement, in which case Buyer shall be entitled to

the immediate return of the Deposit and cancellation of the escrow. Buyer's

failure to object or otherwise disapprove of the condition of title in writing on or

before the aforementioned deadline shall constitute Buyer's approval thereof and

election to waive said condition.

B. Site lnvestisation Period. Buyer shall have thirty (30) days following Opening of
Escrow ("Site Investigation Period") to enter upon the Property and investigate

whether, in Buyer's sole discretion, the Property is suitable for Buyer's intended

purpose. The investigation may include, without limitation, soil and sub-soil

conditions, wetland demarcations, environmental, engineering, surveys, land use

and planning, utility and other studies, provided that Buyer provides to Seller

copies of any and all reports prepared. Any such entry shall be at Buyer's expense

and risk (holding Seller harmless from any claims for injury to person or property

arising from Buyer's activities on the Property), but shall not constitute a taking

of possession, and Buyer shall return each test location to substantially its original

condition. This investigation may also include (I) obtaining final approval by a
major tenant for the development of a store on the Property and (ii) dealing with
governmental bodies with authority over the Property. Should Buyer determine

that the Property is not suitable, Buyer shall provide written notice of same to

Escrow Holder within five (5) days after the end of the Site Investigation Period

and the Deposit shall then be promptly returned to Buyer and this Agreement

shall be terminated with no further obligations to either pmty, other than the hold

harmless provisions within this Agreement which shall survive as to any actions

arising prior to termination of this Agreement.

C. Development Approvals. If the Property needs to be rezoned, replatted, its
permitted use changed or similarly re-designated or have building permits issued

("Development Approvals"), Buyer shall have one hundred eighty (180) days

from the end of the Site Investigation Period to accomplish such Development

Approvals ("Development Approval Period"). Buyer shall pay all costs of
Development Approvals, and Seller will cooperate (at no cost) in that effort. If
Buyer fails to timely complete Development Approvals, the Buyer shall be

deemed to have elected to terminate this Agreement and the deposit shall be paid

to the Seller.

D. Extensions of Escrow. Requests for extensions to delay Close of Escrow by
Buyer are not guaranteed by Seller. Should any requests be denied by Seller, and

the purchase is not complete, any deposit amounts shall be due to the Seller.

Seller may elect not to extend the Close of Escrow for any, or no reason.

Page 3 of I I 
Purchase and sat$:'"il#108



5. Seller's Warranties. Seller represents and warrants, to induce Buyer to enter into the

Agreement, in addition to any other representations herein, as of the date hereof and the

date of Close of Escrow (and all representations and warranties shall survive the Close of
Escrow) that:

A. Seller believes that it owns good and marketable fee simple title to the Property

and is not aware of any information to suggest otherwise;

B. Seller has the authority to execute this Agreement and transfer title as stated'

C. At Close of Escrow, to the best of Seller's actual knowledge, Seller has no reason

to not believe that title to the Property will be free and clear of all leases, liens,

easements, covenants, restrictions, parties in possession and/or special

encumbrances, except title exceptions permitted by Buyer;

D. To the best of Seller's actual knowledge, the Property, including soil, subsoil,

surface and ground water, improvements and anything else on or under the

Property now is and at Close of Escrow will be free of all contamination including

but not limited to asbestos,hazardous waste orhazardous substances, as defined

by applicable federal and state laws, and by the Resource Conservation and

Recovery Act of 1976, as amended and regulations thereunder, the

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the

Clean Water Act, the California Hazardous Waste Control Act, the Califomia
Health and Safety Code, or similar and applicable laws and regulations. Seller

further has neither been advised of nor received any notice regarding any

contamination affecting the Property;

E. To the best of Seller's knowledge, there are no violations of any laws or

regulations of applicable governmental authorities affecting the Property, nor are

there any govemmental or other actions or legal proceedings pending or

threatened against Seller or the Property;

F. To the best of Seller's knowledge, there are no special assessments or eminent

domain proceedings pending or threatened against Seller or the Property;

G. The Property has full, free and adjacent access to and from public highways and

roads and there are no facts or conditions which would result in such access being

altered; and

H. From and after the date hereof and until Close of Escrow, Seller will maintain the

Property in good order and condition and not permit or commit waste thereon.

For purposes of this Agreement, whenever the phrase "to Seller's knowledge" or
words of similar import are used, they shall be deemed to refer to the actual

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page4ofll

109



knowledge of (i) RamonLara with the City of Woodlake, (ii) all employees or agents

of Seller with supervisory responsibilities concerning the Property, and (iii) such

other persons at a management or supervisory level who would, in the ordinary
course of their responsibilities as employees or agents of Seller, receive notice from
other agents or employees of Seller or from other persons or entities of any of the

matters described in the representations and warranties in this Agreement which are

limited by the knowledge of Seller.

6. Condemnation. If prior to Close of Escrow, any part of the Property is taken pursuant to
eminent domain proceedings (or private purchase in lieu thereof), or any such

proceedings commence, then Buyer may elect by written notice to Seller either to
terminate this Agreement, in which case Buyer shall be entitled to return of its Deposit.

Upon any such termination pursuant to this paragraph, this Agreement shall be

terminated without any rights or obligations from or to either party and the Deposit shall

be promptly returned to Buyer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, there is no litigation
pending or, after due and diligent inquiry, to Seller's knowledge, threatened, against

Seller that arises out of the ownership of the Property or that might detrimentally affect
the value, ownership, use or operation of the Property or the ability of Seller to perform

its obligations under this Agreement. Seller shall notifu Buyer promptly of any such

litigation of which Seller becomes aware.

7. Default. If either party fails either to waive a condition or to terminate this Agreement,

and because of such failure the other party wants to claim a default, the other party shall

give written notice specifuing the nature of the failure to the alleged defaulting pffity,
who shall have thirty (30) days (or such time as is reasonable if the failure cannot be

reasonably cured in thirty (30) days) to cure the failure. If the failure is on the part of the

Seller, Buyer may terminate this Agreement, elect to cure the failure on behalf of Seller,

or seek specific performance and/or damages. If the failure is on the part of Buyer,

Seller's exclusive remedy shall be to receive the Deposit as full liquidated damages.

IN THE EVENT THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THIS
AGREEMENT IS NOT CONSUMMATED SOLELY BECAUSE OF A DEFAULT
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ON THE PART OF BUYER, THE DEPOSIT (TO THE
EXTENT DEPOSITED INTO ESCROW BY BUYER) SHALL BE PAID TO AND/OR
RETAINED BY SELLER AS LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. THE PARTIES HAVE
AGREED THAT SELLER'S ACTUAL DAMAGES, IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT
BY BUYER, WOULD BE EXTREMELY DIFFICULT OR IMPRACTICABLE TO
DETERMINE. THEREFORE, BY PLACING THEIR INITIALS BELOW, THE
PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE DEPOSIT HAS BEEN AGREED UPON,
AFTER NEGOTIATION, AS THE PARTIES' REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF

SELLER'S DAMAGES AND AS SELLER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSryE REMEDY
AGAINST BUYER, AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT

Page5ofll

Purchase and t "*t#,Lit#110



UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ON THE PART OF THE BUYER. SELLER HEREBY
WAIVES ANY AND ALL BENEFITS IT MAY HAVE UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL
CODE SECTION 3389.

Seller's Initials PL Buyer's Initials ?
/f, /4, /q

8. Successors and Assiqrs. Buyer may not assign this Purchase and Sale Agreement.

9. 1031 Exchanee. At the sole option of Seller, Seller may elect to consummate the

transaction as a simultaneous or non-simultaneous like-kind exchange pursuant to Section

1031 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and requiring Buyer to
cooperate with Seller (by executing such documents and taking such actions as may be

reasonably necessary) to effectuate the transaction as a like-kind exchange. Buyer is to be

at no cost or expense in the exchange and shall not be required to take title to any other

property, nor is the Close of Escrow to be delayed, due to Seller's exercise of this
provision.

10. Brokers. The parties represent and warrant that Buyer and Seller are not represented by a
broker and neither party has incurred any obligations for real estate commissions, finder's

fees or any similar fees in connection with the transaction contemplated herein. If any

other person asserts a claim for commission or finder's fees in connection with this
transaction based upon contact or dealings with Buyer or Seller, the party through whom
that person makes its claim will indemnifu, hold harmless, and defend the other party

from such claim and all expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the

other party in defending the claim. The execution and delivery of this Agreement shall

not be deemed to confer any rights upon, nor obligate either of the parties hereto to, any

person or entity not a party to this Agteement.

11. Costs of Litigation. In the event that either party hereto brings any action or files any

proceeding in connection with the enforcement of its respective rights under this
Agreernent or as a consequence of any breach by the other party hereto of its obligations
hereunder, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to have all of
its attorneys' fees and out-of-pocket expenditures paid by the losing party. Such fees and

costs shall include post-judgment fees, costs and expenses incurred on appeal or in
collection of any judgment. This provision is separate and several and shall survive the

merger of this Agreement into any judgment on this Agreement.

12. Time is of the Essence. Seller and Buyer hereby acknowledge and agree that time is
strictly of the essence with respect to each and every term and provision of this
Agreement.

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page6ofll

111



13. Entire Agreement. This document is the full agreement between the parties regarding the

subject matter hereof and may only be altered in a writing signed by both the parties. This
Agreement shall not be strictly construed for or against any party. Each party

acknowledges that its independent counsel has reviewed this Agreernent and agrees that

the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved

against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement.

14. Acceptance. To evidence their agreement with the foregoing and their intent to be legally
bound, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

15. Pre-Closing Inspections by Buyer:

A. Buyer's right to enter upon the Property prior to close of escrow is subject to the

following:

i. Buyer will indemnify, defend and save harmless Seller and/or Seller's

affiliates (Seller's affiliates means any corporation which directly or
indirectly controls or is controlled by or is under coilrmon control with
Seller), their officers, agents, contractors and employees, against and from
any and all liability, loss, costs and expense of whatsoever nature growing

out of personal injury to or death of persons whomsoever, or loss or
destruction of or damage to property whatsoever, where such personal

injury, death, loss, destruction or damage arises in connection with the

entry upon the Property by Buyer, its agents or contractors prior to
Closing.

ii. Buyer will promptly deliver to Seller the results and copies of any and all
reports, evaluations, tests and studies generated prior to Closing in
connection with any environmental assessments.

iii. Buyer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller against and

from any and all liens, claims, demands, costs and expenses of whatsoever

nature in any way connected with or growing out of any work done, labor
performed or materials furnished at the Property on behalf of Buyer prior
to Closing.

B. Absence of markers is not a warranty by Seller of no subsurface installations.

Fiber optic systems, pipelines and other structures may be buried on the Property.

Prior to close of escrow, before any diggingldnfiinglexcavation, the following
procedures will be followed by Buyer and Buyer's Contractors:

i. Protection of any fiber optic cable systems is of extreme importance since

any break could disrupt service to users resulting in business intemrption

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page 7 of 1l

112



and loss of revenue and profits. Buyer will telephone Underground

Service Alert at 811 and 1-800-336-9193 (a prior owner's 24-hour, 7-day

number for normal and emergency calls) to determine if any fiber optic

cable is buried on the Property. If it is determined that fiber optic cable is

buried on the Property, Buyer shall promptly inform Seller, at the address

at the bottom of the first page of this Agreement, of the results of its
investigation.

ii. Before drilling or excavating with mechanized equipment, Buyer will
explore with hand tools to a depth of at least eight (8) feet below the

surface or will use suitable detection equipment.

C. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, if this

Agreement is terminated for any reason whatsoever, Buyer will remain obligated

to comply with the provisions of A and B of this section and Seller will retain all
of its remedies for Buyer's default under A and B.

16. As Is Sale - Release - Indemnity:

A. Prior to the Closing Deadline, Buyer will have the opportunity to make such

inspections of the Property and matters related thereto as Buyer desires, including,

without limitation, governmental laws and regulations to which the Property is

subject, the title to the Property, and the suitability or fitness of the Property for
Buyer's proposed use. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Property is to be

sold and accepted by Buyer in an ooAS IS" condition, with all faults, and Buyer
acknowledges that the Property may have been used for railroad and/or industrial
purposes, among other uses. Buyer agrees that any information Buyer may

receive from Seller or its agents concerning the Property (including, but not
limited to, any lease or other document, engineering study or environmental

assessment) is furnished on the condition that Buyer will make an independent

verification of the accuracy of the information. Seller does not make any

representations or warranties of any kind whatsoever, either express or implied,
with respect to the Property other than those expressly contained in this

Agreement; in particular, without limitation, Seller makes no representations or

warranties with respect to the use, condition, title, occupation or management of
the Property, or compliance with applicable statutes, laws, codes, ordinances,

regulations, requirements (collectively "Condition of the Property''). Buyer

acknowledges that it is entering into this Agreement on the basis of Buyer's own
independent investigation of the physical and environmental conditions of the

Property. Buyer assumes the risk that adverse physical and environmental

conditions may not have been revealed by its investigation. Seller has no

obligation to cure any title defects or to assist Buyer in obtaining title insurance.

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page8 ofll

113



B. FROM AND AFTER CLOSTNG, BUYER WrLL RELEASE SELLER, AND,
TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, INDEMNIFY;
DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS SELLE& ITS AFFILIATES, THEIR
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OFFICERS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS,
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, CAUSES OF
ACTION, LEGAL OR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS, CLAIMS,
DEMANDS, FINESO PUNITIVE DAMAGES' LOSSES, COSTS,
LIABILITIES AI\D EXPENSES, INCLUDING ATTORNEYSI FEES, IN
ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED WITH THE KNOWI\
oR UNKNOWN CONDTTTON OF THE PROPERTY (INCLUDTNG,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY CONTAMINATION IN, ON, UNDER OR
ADJACENT TO THE PROPERTY BY AI\Y HAZARDOUS OR TOXIC
SUBSTAI\CE OR MATERIAL), OR ANY FEDERALO STATE OR LOCAL
LAW, ORDINANCE, RULE OR REGULATION APPLICABLE
THERETO, INCLUDTNG, WITHOUT LIMTTATION, THE TOXIC
SUBSTAI\ICES CONTROL ACT, THE COMPREHENSM
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE, COMPENSATION AND LIABILITY
ACT, AND THE RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT.
THE FOREGOING WILL APPLY REGARDLESS OF ANY
NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY OF SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES,
OR THEIR EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR OFFICERS. WITH RESPECT
TO THE FOREGOING, BUYER EXPRESSLY WAIVES THE BENEFITS
AND PROTECTIONS OF SECTION 1542 OF THE CIVI CODE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS:

1542. Certain Claims Not Affected by General Release. A general

release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or
suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,

which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her
settlement with the debtor.

BUYER IIEREBY EVIDENCE ITS SPECIFIC AGREEMENT TO THE
TERMS OF THIS RBLEASE Al\D INDEMNITY BY PLACING ITS
SIGNATURE OR INITIALS IN THE PLACE PROVIDED
HEREINAFTER.

Buyer's Initials 2.:>-
C. This Agreement shall not be binding upon Seller to any degree unless Buyer has

initialed the preceding subparagaph.

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page9of1l

114



17. Form of Deed: Reservations:

A. At Closing, Seller will transfer Seller's interest in the Property to Buyer by Grant

Deed, subject to all outstanding rights, whether or not of record.

18. Closing:

A. Closing will occur on or before May 15, 2020 ("Closing Deadline"). The Closing

will be deemed to occur upon (1) Buyer's attainment of all development

approvals, (2) payment of the Sale Price by a cashier's or certified check, AND
(3) delivery and recordation of the Deed. All Closing costs, including transfer

taxes and excise taxes, will be paid by Buyer.

B. If Closing fails to occur due to default by Seller, the Buyer may terminate this

Agreement as Buyer's sole remedy against Seller. In the event of such

termination, neither Seller nor Buyer will have any further liability hereunder.

C. If Closing fails to occur due to default by Buyer, Seller may terminate this

Agreement and neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any further obligations or

liability hereunder except for any of Buyer's surviving obligations specified in
this Agreement. In no event shall Seller have any obligation whatsoever to extend

the Closing Deadline for any reason if Buyer fails to perform.

D. If Buyer fails to perform its conditions by the closing date, Seller is permitted to
grant one (1) three (3) month extension for closing at Seller's discretion.

19. No Third-Party Beneficiaries Intended:

Unless specifically set forth, the parties to this Agreement do not intend to provide any

other person or entity other than a signatory hereto with any benefit or enforceable or
equitable right or remedy.

20. Bindine Effect:

The Option will bind and inure to the respective heirs, personal representatives,

successors and assigns of the parties to this Agreement. Seller shall have the sole and

absolute right to assign the Option at any time.

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page 10 of I I

115



21. Recordation:

The Parties agree to execute and record in the Tulare County Recorder's Office an

Abstract of Option Agreement in the form attached hereto as "EXHIBIT B" and

incorporated herein. Upon the expiration or termination of the Option, Seller agrees to

execute and deliver to Buyer a quitclaim deed for the Option, in recordable form, to clear

the Property's record of the Option.

NOTICES AND SIGNATURES

S

City Administrator
CITY OF WOODLAKE
350 North Valencia Boulevard

Woodlake, CA 93286-1297

Ramon Lara, City Administrator

ll, l9.zot1
Date

City

Jaspal Singh Turna
489 Yokut Ave.
Woodlake, CA 93286-1297

Buyer:

Date

a-8f^/ t- Tttu
Jaspal Singh Tuma

tl- l3 2011

April 5,2018
Purchase and Sale Agreement

Page ll ofll

116



EXHIBIT A

That portion of Parcel 3 of that Grant Deed recorded as Document No. 2005-0128850 of Tulare County

records and Lots 168 and 169 of the Woodlake Tract recorded in Volume 10 of Maps, at Pages 27 &28, ol
Tulare County Records, located in the Northeast quarter of Section 36, Township 17 South, Range 26 East,

Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, in the City of Woodlake, County of Tulare, State of California, described

as follows;

Commencing at the North quarter comer of said Section 36;

Thence, South 00006'45" East along the West line of said Northeast quarter, 25.00 feet to the South right of

way line of State Route 216, the Northwest comer of said Parcel 3, and the TRUE POINT 0F BEGINNING;

Thence, North 89054'13" East along said South right of way line, 451,52 feet, to the northerly projection of a

line parallel with and 122.00 feet East of the East line of said Lot 168;

Thence, South 00t7'12 East along said parallel line, 152.50 feet, to a line parallel with and 152,50 feet

Souttr of said South right of way line of State Route 216;

Thence, South 89054'13" West along said parallel line, 108.38 feet;

Thence, South 00008'31" East,42.50 feet;

Thence, South 89053'15" West, 343.18 feet, to said West line of the Northeast quarter of Section 36;

Thence, North 00006'45" West along said West line, 195.10 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

(Consisting of 1.92 acres more or less)

*

4

:/:::.,

D

tLh
Exp. *

Op c

P.[.8. tlS3

117



DIU-CLA,il,ER
THBWWNffiPMOMLM
NYHEPffi&ilMHffi
Mf rcf CMLV WMfiATEM
L@4wWWWMEA,rc
LA%DENffiffiNEUff
6 THE NWTW HEffi.

REVISED: 5/llt20l7
REASON: 2016-00&725
cAD recH: NFL @

Nt/z SEC. 36, T l7S., R.26 8., M.D.8.t M.

Nt/4 ; coR 6vE.3,u)

IAX CODE ARFA

007-001 007-006
007-007 161-001
007-019 161-011

COUNIY OF TULARE,
NOTf -ASSfSSORS ltOC( NU,/t'llERs SHOWN lN f,u,ts€S

AS5E550R5 PATCEI NU .tSEnS sflOWN 
'N 

CIRCIES

o60-t7

zCso
3613t

NARANJO gLVD. STATE HIGHWAY 216

VICINITY OF WOODLAKE
ASSFSSOR'S MAPS BK. 060, PG,17

I

{
loo'

I
@

/
-.-.-"-\

ROPES AVE.

I

I

I

SFr(r
sl{,
a:rl
\r

I
I

t

\

@

OETAIL ,/

6396',

POR.WOODLAKE, R.M. tO-27&28
POR. BLAIR TRACT. R.M. 12.IO

POR. RECORD OFSURVEY, L.S.3I4I
PARCEL MAP NO.5076, P,M.5I-82

CALIF,

29.92 AC,
_@.
to ac,

n.nE-to

I
_@

-t-

\r /6e i!
Hi -@- 

di

I t2.364C. I
frr. arg, v4.6 P6,

aar^va af.,--T'-

t70

-{-

t68

7

N'!

,r.r9",

I

-

6

2p,w
I

-4
I

I

I

is

h
$

e E.@'

,9"
t2-ro

POR.5

o

118



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVE THE EXTENSION TO THE )    Resolution No.  

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT )  

FOR THE PROPERTY WITH  ) 

APN NO. 060-170-108   ) 

                          

 

Councilmember _________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

extension to the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the properties with APN No. 060-170-108.   

 

WHEREAS, the property was purchased by the City of Woodlake in the amount of three hundred 

thousand dollars ($300,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the property is a Water and Sewer Fund asset; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property will be sold to Jaspal Singh Turna in the amount of three hundred twenty-

five thousand dollars ($325,000.00).  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the extension to 

the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the property with APN No. 060-170-108 and authorizes the 

City Administrator to execute all necessary documentation.    

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _________, and seconded 

by Councilmember _________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held 

on May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:       

 

  _____________________ 

        Mayor, Rudy Mendoza 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

119



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-J  
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approve the Lease Agreement Between VN Enterprises, Inc. 

and the City of Woodlake  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake is often looking for economic development or investment opportunities 

that may help the development of the City both short term and long term.  The City was 

approached by VN Enterprises, Inc. looking to setup a yard for the mulching of deceased trees 

from surrounding Federal park areas.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City identified multiple areas that may be leased to VN Enterprises, Inc. for their yard and 

came to a consensus that the best location would be a portion of the City’s yard as shown in the 

attached Lease Agreement under Exhibit 1.  The piece of land is approximately six acres.  The 

City will lease the site to VN Enterprises annually and both entities have agreed to enter in to a 

2-year lease with an annual rent of seven thousand two hundred dollars.  If VN Enterprises, Inc. 

is successful with their project they would then look to acquire a permanent location in the City 

of Woodlake. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

City staff recommends that Council approve the attached Lease Agreement with VN Enterprises, 

Inc.  The lease would provide revenue while attracting a business to the City.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The Lease Agreement would provide a revenue stream to the City for a two-year period.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. Resolution:  Approve the Lease Agreement Between VN Enterprises, Inc. and the City of 

Woodlake 

 

2. Attachment No. 1 – Lease Agreement 

 

 

 

 

120



WATCHUMNA DITCH

St
at

e 
H

w
y 

24
5

Hermosa

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

Exhibit 1
Property / Premise

´

Deltha

St
at

e 
H

w
y 

24
5

Pa
lm

Ac
ac

ia

Riverside

Hermosa

Laguna

Legend
Woodlake City Limits COW VN

4.3 Acres

1.7 Acres

121



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVE THE LEASE AGREEMENT    )   Resolution No.  

BETWEEN VN ENTERPRISES, INC.         ) 

AND THE CITY OF WOODLAKE             ) 

                          

 

Councilmember ________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve the 

lease agreement between VN Enterprises, Inc. and the City of Woodlake for a portion of the City 

Yard.   

 

WHEREAS, VN Enterprises, Inc. wishes to rent approximately six acres of land at the City Yard; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City agrees to lease the land for seven thousand two hundred dollars annually for a 

two-year period; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property will be leased for the purposes of a running a mulching yard.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE to approve the lease 

agreement between VN Enterprises, Inc. and the City of Woodlake for a portion of the City Yard 

and authorizes the City Administrator to execute all necessary documents.   

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _______, and seconded by 

Councilmember _______, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:       

 

  _____________________ 

        Mayor, Rudy Mendoza 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

122



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-K 

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake Proclaiming the Week of May 17-23, 2020 as 

National Public Works Week 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Public Works Department provides services for our community and is a vital and integral 

part of our citizens’ every life.  The support of the community is vital to the efficient operation of 

public works systems and programs such as water, sewer, streets, fleet maintenance, building 

maintenance, wastewater treatment, solid waste collection and airport operation. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The Public Works Department understands that the health, safety and comfort of this community 

greatly depend on these facilities and services.  Also, the quality and effectiveness of these 

facilities, as well as their planning, design and construction, is vitally dependent upon the efforts 

and skill of public works officials. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City accept the Proclamation and recognize the week of May 19-25, 

2019 as National Public Works Week. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Proclamation:  Proclamation from the City of Woodlake Proclaiming the week of May 

19-25, 2019 as National Public Works Week 

123



 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
RECOGNIZING THE WEEK OF MAY 17-23, 2020 AS 

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department provides services for our 

community and is a vital and integral part of our citizens’ everyday lives; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the support of the community is vital to the efficient 

operation of public works systems and programs such as water, sewers, 

streets, fleet maintenance, building maintenance, wastewater treatment, 

solid waste collection, and airport operations; and 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community 

greatly depends on these facilities and services; and 

 WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well 

as their planning, design and construction, is vitally dependent upon the 

efforts and skill of public works officials; and 

 WHEREAS, the efficiency and effectiveness of the qualified and 

skilled staff contribute to the quality of life that residents and visitors alike 

enjoy and rely upon from the City of Woodlake,/County of Tulare. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City 

Council that we recognize and extend appreciation to our dedicated and 

skilled staff and hereby proclaim the week of May 17-23, 2020 as  

 

 

 

124



 

 

“National Public Works Week” 

 AND, BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that the City Council 

requests that all citizens and civic organizations acquaint themselves with 

the issues involved in providing public works services to our community 

and to recognize the contributions which our public works employees 

make every day to our health, safety, comfort and quality of life. 

 

 THE FOREGOING was passed and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Woodlake. 

 

Dated: May 17-23, 2020 

 
 

_____________________________     ________________________________ 

Rudy Mendoza, Mayor     Frances Ortiz, Vice-Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________________     ______________________________________ 

Jose L. Martinez, Councilmember    William Valero, Councilmember 
 
 
       __________________________________ 

       

125



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV-L 

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Proclamation from the City of Woodlake, Proclaiming May 2020 as Mental Health 

Awareness Month. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Mental Health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being and can affect all areas of 

a person’s life including school, home and work.  An estimated 26.2 percent of Americans ages 

18 and older suffer from a misdiagnosable mental health disorder in a given year.  An estimated 

two-thirds of adults and young people with mental health problems go without the help they need 

and 10 percent of children and adolescents in the U.S. suffer from serious emotional and mental 

disorder.  There are 50 percent of students ages 14 and older with a mental disorder who dropout 

of high school, the highest dropout rate of any disability group.  Children of mothers who go 

untreated for Perinatal Depression are at a greater risk for abuse and neglect, and are more likely 

to have an adversarial relationship with their parent.   

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake, along with each business, school, healthcare provider, organization and 

citizen bare the burden of mental health problems and has a responsibility to promote mental 

wellness.  When treated properly, individuals with mental health conditions can walk upon a path 

of wellness and recovery and lead full, productive lives.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends that the City accept the Proclamation and recognize May 2020 as Mental 

Health Awareness Month. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Proclamation:  Proclamation from the City of Woodlake Proclaiming May 2020 as 

Mental Health Awareness Month. 

126



 
PROCLAIMING MAY 2020 MENTAL HEALTH AWARENESS MONTH 

 IN THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 
 
WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being and can affect all areas 
of a persons life, including school, home and work in Woodlake; and 
 
WHEREAS, an estimated 26.2 percent of Americans ages 18 and older — about one in four adults 
— suffer from a diagnosable mental health disorder in a given year; and 
 
WHEREAS, an estimated two-thirds of adults and young people with mental health problems go without 
the help they need; and 
 
WHEREAS, 10 percent of children and adolescents in the U.S. suffer from serious emotional and mental 
disorders; and 
 
WHEREAS, about 50 percent of students ages 14 and older with a mental disorder drop out of high 
school, the highest dropout rate of any disability group; and 
 
WHEREAS, children of mothers who go untreated for Perinatal Depression are at greater risk for abuse 
and neglect, and are more likely to have an adversarial relationship with their parent; and  
 
WHEREAS, symptoms are often overlooked and heavily stigmatized because new and expectant mothers 
suffering from Perinatal Depression often feel confused, ashamed and isolated; and 
 
WHEREAS, each business, school, government agency, healthcare provider, organization and citizen at 
Woodlake bare the burden of mental health problems and has a responsibility to promote mental 
wellness; and 
 
WHEREAS, with treatment, individuals with mental health conditions can walk upon a path of wellness, 
and recovery and lead full, productive lives; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodlake City Council hereby proclaims the 
month of May 2020 as Mental Health Awareness Month in Woodlake and call upon the citizens, public 
and private institutions, businesses and schools at Woodlake to recommit our community to increasing 
awareness and understanding of mental health and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all 
people with mental health illnesses. 
 
 
Dated:  May 26, 2020 
 
 _____________________      ________________________ 
 Rudy Mendoza, Mayor         Frances Ortiz, Vice-Mayor 
 
 ___________________________     __________________________________ 
 Jose Martinez, Councilmember        William Valero, Councilmember 
 
        
           

127



City of Woodlake 

AGENDA ITEM IV-M 
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Jason Waters, City Staff 

SUBJECT: 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Authorize the City Administrator to Sign Program 

Supplement Agreement for Project 5284(015) and Authorize Staff to Issue a Request for 

Proposals 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Grants and financing are available from the Department of Transportation for local roadway 

safety plans. The City wishes to prepare the plan and must sign the agreement to receive 

State funding. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The attached resolution would authorize the City Administrator to enter into an agreement to 

receive funding to prepare a local roadway safety plan for the City of Woodlake. The State 

is providing $58,500 in grant funding and the City is providing a $6,500 match. The grant 

will allow the City to become eligible for future grant funding. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Authorize the City Administrator to Sign Program Supplement Agreement for Project 

5284(015) and Authorize Staff to Issue a Request for Proposals 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Woodlake General Fund.   

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Authorizing Resolution 

 

2. Program Supplement 

 

 

128



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN )  Resolution No. 

PROGRAM SUPPLMENT AGREEMENT FOR  ) 

PROJECT 5284(015) AND AUTHORIZE    ) 

STAFF TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS ) 

 

Councilmember _________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.  Authorize 

the City Administrator to Sign Program Supplement Agreement for Project 5284(015) and 

Authorize Staff to Issue a Request for Proposals. 

 

WHEREAS, the City is eligible for grant funding to prepare a local roadway safety plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Program Supplement Agreement for the project must be signed by an authorized 

representative; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City would like to begin the request for proposal process; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE authorize the City 

Administrator to Sign Program Supplement Agreement for Project 5284(015) and Authorize Staff 

to Issue a Request for Proposals. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember ___, and seconded by 

Councilmember ____, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on May 

26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

        _____________________ 

        Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

129



130



00-473S-U71- SERIALProgram Supplement

06-TUL-0-WLK
LRSPL-5284(015)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

Page 2 of 3

1.

2.

3.

4.

All obligations of STATE under the terms of this Agreement are subject to the
appropriation of resources by the Legislature and the encumbrance of funds under this
Agreement. Funding and reimbursement are available only upon the passage of the State
Budget Act containing these STATE funds.

Any State and Federal funds that may have been encumbered for this project are
available for disbursement for limited periods of time.  For each fund encumbrance the
limited period is from the start of the fiscal year that the specific fund was appropriated
within the State Budget Act to the applicable fund Reversion Date shown on the State
approved project finance letter.  Per Government Code Section 16304, all project funds
not liquidated within these periods will revert unless an executed Cooperative Work
Agreement extending these dates is requested by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY and
approved by the California Department of Finance.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY should ensure that invoices are submitted to the District
Local Assistance Engineer at least 75 days prior to the applicable fund Reversion Date to
avoid the lapse of applicable funds. Pursuant to a directive from the State Controller's
Office and the Department of Finance; in order for payment to be made, the last date the
District Local Assistance Engineer can forward an invoice for payment to the
Department's Local Programs Accounting Office for reimbursable work for funds that are
going to revert at the end of a particular fiscal year is May 15th of the particular fiscal
year.  Notwithstanding the unliquidated sums of project specific State and Federal funding
remaining and available to fund project work, any invoice for reimbursement involving
applicable funds that is not received by the Department's Local Programs Accounting
Office at least 45 days prior to the applicable fixed fund Reversion Date will not be paid.
These unexpended funds will be irrevocably reverted by the Department's Division of
Accounting on the applicable fund Reversion Date.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements in 2 CFR Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (applicable to Federal and State Funded Projects).

This PROJECT is funded with State-Only funding from the Local Roadway Safety Plan
(LRSP) Program. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to develop an LRSP under this
PROJECT.

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to follow all relevant State laws and
requirements including the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

This PSA allows reimbursement of eligible PROJECT expenditures to the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY for which the LRSP State funds are allocated.  The effective
State allocation date establishes the eligibility date for the ADMINISTERING AGENCY to
start reimbursable work.  Any work performed prior the effective allocation date is not
eligible for reimbursement from the LRSP funds.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that LRSP funds available for reimbursement will be

131



00-473S-U71- SERIALProgram Supplement

06-TUL-0-WLK
LRSPL-5284(015)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

Page 3 of 3

limited to the amount allocated and encumbered by the STATE consistent with the scope
of work in the STATE approved application.  Funds encumbered may not be used for a
modified scope of work after a project is awarded unless approved by the Statewide
LRSP Coordinator prior to performing work.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to the program delivery and reporting requirements.
The study and the LRSP must be completed within thirty-six (36) months of the funding
allocation. The Final Report of Expenditure, the final invoice and the LRSP report must be
submitted to the DLAE within six (6) months of the report completion.

132



    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-A  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Irene Zacarias, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Appointment of Emmanuel Llamas to serve on the City of 

Woodlake City Council from May 26, 2020 through December 31, 2020.   

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Councilman Gregorio Gonzalez Jr. was elected to the Woodlake City Council by virtue of the 

general election and subsequently qualified and entered office. Councilman Greg Gonzalez Jr. 

has been absent from Woodlake City Council meetings on February 10, 2020, February 24, 

2020, March 9, 2020 and March 23, 2020 and these absences violate a council member’s 

responsibilities pursuant to California Government Code section 36513(a). His said absences 

have created a vacancy on the City Council. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

At the April 13, 2020, meeting the Woodlake City Council instructed staff to immediately begin 

the recruitment for the vacant Council position.  The vacancy was published on social media, the 

local newspaper and the City’s website.  All potential applicants were given until May 15, 2020 

to submit their application and resume if interested in the vacancy. 

 

At the same meeting, Council appointed an Ad Hoc Advisory Committee, comprised of Mayor 

Mendoza and Councilmember Martinez, to recommend a candidate to replace Gregorio 

Gonzalez Jr.   All applications were submitted to the Ad Hoc Advisory Committee for their 

review. 

 

The Ad Hoc Advisory Committee interviewed the following four applicants: 

 

1. Lucy Cardenas 

2. Jonathan Dennis 

3. Emmanuel Llamas 

4. Benjamin Reynoso 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

After review of applications, resumes and interviews the Ad Hoc Advisory Committee 

recommended Emmanuel Llamas to be appointed to the Woodlake City Council to serve out the 

remainder of the term related to the current vacancy.  The Committee believes that Mr. Llamas 

experience, knowledge and commitment to making Woodlake a better community makes him a 

great candidate for the available position.  Council thanks all those that applied as they are all 

viable candidates that have a passion for the community.  

 

133



    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution:  Appointment of Emmanuel Llamas to Serve on the City of Woodlake City 

Council from May 26, 2020 through December 31, 2020. 

134



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPOINTMENT OF EMMANUEL LLAMAS    )      Resolution No.  

TO SERVE ON THE CITY OF WOODLAKE     )                          

CITY COUNCIL FROM MAY 26, 2020         ) 

TO DECEMBER 31, 2020                                     ) 

 

Councilmember ______________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption.  

Appoint Emmanuel Llamas to serve on the City of Woodlake City Council from May 26, 2020 

through December 31, 2020. 

 

WHEREAS, Councilman Greg Gonzalez Jr. has been absent from Woodlake City Council meetings 

on February 10, 2020, February 24, 2020, March 9, 2020 and March 23, 2020 and these absences 

violate a council member’s responsibilities pursuant to California Government Code section 

36513(a) and create a vacancy on the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, at the April 13, 2020, an Ad Hoc Advisory Committee was appointed, comprised of 

Mayor Mendoza and Councilmember Martinez to review the applications and recommend a 

candidate for appointment to City Council to replace Greg Gonzalez Jr.; and   

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Woodlake appoints Emmanuel Llamas to serve on the 

City of Woodlake City Council from May 26, 2020 through December 31, 2020. 

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember __________, and seconded 

by Councilmember ____________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting 

held on May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

       _____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

135



City of Woodlake 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-B 
May 26, 2020 
Prepared by City Staff 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
Information: Update on COVID-19 in Woodlake  

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
On January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Public Health and Human 
Services declared a public emergency for COVID-19 beginning on January 27, 2020 
and on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency in the 
State of California due to the number of confirmed cases of COVID-19 in the State. 
 
On March 19, 2020, an Executive Order and Public Health Order directed all 
Californians to stay home except to go to an essential job or to shop for essential needs. 
 
On May 4, 2020, an Executive Order informed local health jurisdictions and industry 
sectors that they may gradually reopen under new modifications and guidance provided 
by the state per the May 7, 2020 Public Health Order. 
  

DISCUSSION: 
 

As part of the Governor’s and California Department of Public Health’s reopening 
strategy a “Resilience Roadmap” was created, which sets forth the criteria by which a 
county may begin to reopen. The Roadmap has four “Stages” and as certain criteria are 
met, Counties can progress through each stage, which would allow for fewer 
restrictions on businesses.  
 
Based on the criteria in the Roadmap, Tulare County is currently in Stage 1, which was 
the most restrictive. However, on May 19th, the Tulare County Board of Supervisors 
voted to advance through Stage 3 of the Roadmap, which allows most businesses to 
reopen with some restrictions. The City is currently operating under State orders. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. None 

136



    

City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-C  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Jason, Waters, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake 

Stormwater Basin Project– Public Hearing 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Woodlake intends to construct and operate a 17-acre (800 by 1000-foot) stormwater 

retention basin on a 38-acre site in south Woodlake. The Project is a portion of what the City of 

Woodlake Stormwater Master Plan (March 2010) has recommended for the phased 

improvements to the City’s existing storm drain system. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The Project at full build-out will consist of a stormwater retention basin, which is approximately 800 

feet wide and 1,000 feet long, with the highest elevation being 436 feet above mean sea level in the 

northeast corner. The dirt excavated from the basin area will be spread over the adjacent areas to the 

west and northwest of the basin site. 

 

The stormwater retention basin will receive stormwater runoff from three sources; from the Bravo 

Lake/ Wutchumna Ditch, from South Valencia Boulevard and from the existing Industrial Ditch. 

 

The size of the stormwater retention basin has been determined and sized based on approximated 

runoff for a 10-day storm event with a 25-year storm frequency. In the event that a storm is 

encountered that exceeds the predicted allowable runoff accumulation, the excess stormwater will 

overflow into the existing ditch that feeds Little Bravo Lake, south of the new basin site. The 

maximum water height level is set at 421 feet, just below the elevation of the pipelines feeding into 

the basin. 

 

The substrate at the bottom of the retention pond will be designed to allow water percolation into the 

ground. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

That the Woodlake City Council approve the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake 

Stormwater Basin Project 

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

 

 

 

137



    

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution: Approve Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Stormwater Basin 

Project 

2. Attachment No. 1 Project Site Plan 

3. Project Mitigated Negative Declaration (Under Separate Cover) 

 

 

138



Figure 3 – Conceptual Basin Site Plan 
 

139



 

Initial Study 

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project 
 
 

 

Prepared for: 

 

 

 

City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Ave 
Woodlake, CA 93286 

(559) 564-8055 
Contact: Jason Waters 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 

113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 
Visalia, CA 93291 

(559) 840-4414 
Contact: Emily Bowen, LEED AP 

 

 

April 2020 

140



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PROJECT INFORMATION ................................................................................................. 4 

Project title ......................................................................................................................... 4 

Lead agency name and address ..................................................................................... 4 

Contact person and phone number ............................................................................... 4 

Project location ................................................................................................................. 4 

Project sponsor’s name/address ..................................................................................... 7 

General plan designation ................................................................................................ 7 

Zoning  ............................................................................................................................... 7 

Project Description ........................................................................................................... 7 

Surrounding Land Uses/Existing Conditions .............................................................. 8 

Other Public Agencies Involved .................................................................................. 10 

Tribal Consultation ........................................................................................................ 10 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED ................................... 11 

DETERMINATION ............................................................................................................. 11 

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST ................................................................................... 13 

I. AESTHETICS ............................................................................................................... 13 

II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES ...................................................... 16 

III.   AIR QUALITY ........................................................................................................ 18 

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ................................................................................... 23 

V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES ...................................................................................... 31 

VI.  ENERGY ................................................................................................................... 34 

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS......................................................................................... 38 

141



VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ...................................................................... 42 

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS .................................................. 44 

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES ........................................................................................ 55 

XIII. NOISE ..................................................................................................................... 56 

XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING ........................................................................ 59 

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES ................................................................................................. 61 

XVI. RECREATION ....................................................................................................... 63 

XVII. TRANSPORTATION/ ......................................................................................... 64 

TRAFFIC .......................................................................................................................... 64 

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES ................................................................. 66 

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS ................................................................ 69 

XX. WILDFIRE ................................................................................................................ 71 

XXI.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE ............................................ 73 

LIST OF PREPARERS ......................................................................................................... 75 

Persons and Agencies Consulted ................................................................................. 75 

 

142



PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
This document is the Initial Study for the potential environmental effects of the City of 
Woodlake’s (City) Stormwater Basin Project (Project). The City of Woodlake will act as the Lead 
Agency for this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
CEQA Guidelines. Copies of all materials referenced in this report are available for review in the 
project file during regular business hours at 350 N. Valencia Avenue, Woodlake, CA 93286. 

 
Project title  
Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project 

 

Lead agency name and address 
City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 
Woodlake, CA 93286 
 

Contact person and phone number 
Jason Waters, Community Services Director 
City of Woodlake 
(559) 564-8055 
 

Project location  
The City of Woodlake is located in Tulare County in the southern part of the San Joaquin Valley.  The 
proposed Project is located north of Little Bravo Lake, south of W. Ropes Avenue and northwest of 
Mulberry Street on Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 060-170-016 and -015. The Project site lies within City 
Limits. Woodlake is bisected by SR 216 and SR 245 and the City is situated five miles north of SR 198.  

143



Figure 1 – Location 

 

 

 

144



Figure 2 – Site Aerial 

 

145



Project sponsor’s name/address  
City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 
Woodlake, CA 93286 

 

General plan designation 
Industrial 
 

Zoning 
Light Industrial (ML) 
 

Project Description 
The City of Woodlake intends to construct and operate a 17-acre (800 by 1000-foot) stormwater 
retention basin on a 38-acre site in south Woodlake. The Project is a portion of what the City of 
Woodlake Stormwater Master Plan (March 2010) has recommended for the phased 
improvements to the City’s existing storm drain system.  

Project Components 

• Constructing and operating a 17-acre stormwater retention basin, which will receive 
runoff from the Bravo Lake/ Wutchumna Ditch via the Manzanillo Stormwater Pump 
Station, South Valencia Boulevard and the existing Industrial Ditch.  

• Excavated soil from basin construction will be spread on the remaining 21 acres on-
site. 

• Installing 4,611 linear feet of 48-inch pipeline from the new basin north to the Bravo 
Avenue alignment, east along Bravo Avenue to Magnolia Street, north on Magnolia 
Street to just south of Avenue 344, then east along the north edge of Bravo Lake to the 
Manzanillo Pump Station 

• Installing approximately 930 linear feet of pipeline from the new basin along Deltha 
Avenue alignment to Palm Street. 

• The City will design the project in a way that will capture water that currently travels 
via the Industrial Ditch when the Ditch is removed  

The proposed Project consists of phases two and three of the larger Stormwater Improvement 
Project, which will be funded by the Community Development Block Grant program through the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The second phase consists of constructing 
a new stormwater line that will transport water from the new pump near Bravo Lake to the 
proposed stormwater retention basin. This phase is fully funded and the design and engineering 

146



RFP will go out to bid shortly. The third and final phase consists of constructing the new 
stormwater retention basin at the proposed Project site.  

Project Operations 

The Project at full build-out will consist of a stormwater retention basin, which is approximately 
800 ft wide and 1,000 ft long, with the highest elevation being 436 ft above mean sea level in the 
northeast corner. The dirt excavated from the basin area will be spread over the adjacent areas to 
the west and northwest of the basin site.  

As mentioned previously, the stormwater retention basin will receive stormwater runoff from 
three sources; from the Bravo Lake/ Wutchumna Ditch, from South Valencia Boulevard and from 
the existing Industrial Ditch.  

The size of the stormwater retention basin has been determined and sized based on approximated 
runoff for a 10-day storm event with a 25-year storm frequency. In the event that a storm is 
encountered that exceeds the predicted allowable runoff accumulation, the excess stormwater 
will overflow into the existing ditch that feeds Little Bravo Lake, south of the new basin site. The 
maximum water height level is set at 421 ft, just below the elevation of the pipelines feeding into 
the basin. 

The substrate at the bottom of the retention pond will be designed similarly to the percolation 
ponds at the City of Woodlake Wastewater Treatment Plant, which will allow water percolation 
into the ground.  

Surrounding Land Uses/Existing Conditions 
The proposed Project site is currently being utilized for agricultural purposes, specifically orchard 
cultivation. 

Lands surrounding the proposed Project are described as follows: 

• North: Residential and Agricultural.  
• South:  Little Bravo Lake. 
• East: Vacant and Commercial. 
• West:  Agricultural.  

 

 

147



Figure 3 – Conceptual Basin Site Plan 
 

148



 

Other Public Agencies Involved 
• State of California Native American Heritage Commission 
• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 
• Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
• U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Urban Development  

 

Tribal Consultation 
The City of Woodlake received correspondence from the Santa Rosa Rancheria Tachi-Yokut 
Tribe, requesting to give a cultural presentation to all construction staff. No other Project-
specific correspondence was received.  

 

149



ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 
 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least 
one impact that is a “Potentially Significant Impact” as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 

 Aesthetics   Agriculture Resources 
and Forest Resources  

 Air Quality 

 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources   Energy 

 Geology / Soils  Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

 Hazards & 
Hazardous 
Materials 

 Hydrology / Water 
Quality 

 Land Use / Planning  Mineral Resources 

 Noise  Population / Housing  Public Services 

 Recreation  Transportation  Tribal Cultural 
Resources 

 Utilities / Service 
Systems 

 Wildfire  Mandatory 
Findings of 
Significance 

 

DETERMINATION 
 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

 

 

 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, 
and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

  

150



 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been 
made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
will be prepared. 

 

 

 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially 
significant unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) 
has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on 
attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze 
only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR 
or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been 
avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including 
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing 
further is required. 

 

   

Jason Waters 

Community Services Director 

City of Woodlake 

 Date 

 

  

151



ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

I. AESTHETICS 
Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a 
scenic vista?   

    

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within 
a state scenic highway?    

    

c. In non-urbanized areas, substantially 
degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of public views of the site and its 
surroundings? (Public views are those that 
are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict 
with applicable zoning and regulations 
governing scenic quality?  

    

d. Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area?  

    

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Woodlake is located on the San Joaquin Valley floor at the western foothills of the Sierra 
Nevada mountain range. On clear days, the peaks are visible from the majority of the City. The proposed 
basin is located in an agricultural area while the pipeline will pass through established residential 
neighborhoods and commercial areas of the City.  The proposed basin site is bounded to the south and 
east by Mulberry Street. The areas immediately north and west of the Project site will be utilized by 
future industrial purposes, which will be analyzed in a separate environmental document. There are no 
adopted scenic resources or scenic vistas in the area. State Routes (SR) in the proposed Project vicinity 
include 216, 245 and 198. 

152



 
RESPONSES 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and 
historic buildings within a state scenic highway?   

c. In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views 
of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning 
and regulations governing scenic quality?  

Less than Significant Impact.  The City of Woodlake General Plan does not identify any scenic vistas 
within the proposed Project area; however, the peaks of the Sierra Nevada mountain range are clearly 
visible on many days of the year. A scenic vista is generally considered a view of an area that has 
remarkable scenery or a resource that is indigenous to the area.   

The proposed Project is consistent with the existing character and uses of the surrounding area, as 
industrial and commercial land are in the neighboring vicinities. As such, Project operations will not 
degrade the existing visual character of the site. Construction activities may be visible from the adjacent 
roadside; however, the construction activities will be temporary in nature and will not affect a scenic 
vista.   

There are no state designated scenic highways within the immediate proximity to the Project site. 
California Department of Transportation Scenic Highway Mapping System identifies SR 198 east of SR 
99 as an Eligible State Scenic Highway.1 This is the closest highway, located approximately 5.2 miles 
south of the Project site; however, the Project site is both physically and visually separated from SR 198 
by intervening land uses. In addition, no scenic highways or roadways are listed within the Project area 
in the City of Woodlake’s General Plan or Tulare County’s General Plan.  Based on the National Register 
of Historic Places (NRHP) and the City’s General Plan, no historic buildings exist on the Project site. The 
proposed Project would not cause damage to rock outcroppings or historic buildings within a State scenic 
highway corridor. Any impacts would be considered less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

1 California Department of Transportation. California Scenic Highway Mapping System, Tulare County. 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/16_livability/scenic_highways/index.htm. Accessed February 2020. 

153

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/16_livability/scenic_highways/index.htm


 

d. Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views 
in the area? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  Nighttime lighting is necessary to provide and maintain safe, secure, and 
attractive environments; however, these lights have the potential to produce spillover light and glare and 
waste energy, and if designed incorrectly, could be considered unattractive.  Light that falls beyond the 
intended area is referred to as “light trespass.”  Types of light trespass include spillover light and glare.  
Minimizing all these forms of obtrusive light is an important environmental consideration.  A less 
obtrusive and well-designed energy efficient fixture would face downward, emit the correct intensity of 
light for the use, and incorporate energy timers. 

Glare results when a light source directly in the field of vision is brighter than the eye can comfortably 
accept.  Squinting or turning away from a light source is an indication of glare.  The presence of a bright 
light in an otherwise dark setting may be distracting or annoying, referred to as discomfort glare, or it 
may diminish the ability to see other objects in the darkened environment, referred to as disability glare.  
Glare can be reduced by design features that block direct line of sight to the light source and that direct 
light downward, with little or no light emitted at high (near horizontal) angles, since this light would 
travel long distances.  Cutoff-type light fixtures minimize glare because they emit relatively low-intensity 
light at these angles. 

Current sources of light in the Project area are from the surrounding commercial and agricultural uses 
and the vehicles traveling along West Ropes Avenue.  The Project will not include any new sources of 
lighting. Accordingly, the Project would not create substantial new sources of light or glare. Potential 
impacts are less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required.  

154



II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST 
RESOURCES 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 
Importance (Farmland), as shown on the 
maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland 
Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-
agricultural use? 

     

b. Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 
contract? 

     

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 4526), or 
timberland zoned Timberland Production 
(as defined by Government Code section 
51104(g))? 

     

d. Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest 
use? 

     

e. Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location 
or nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest 
use? 

     

  

155



ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

While the proposed Project site is currently being utilized for agricultural purposes and Agriculture is 
its given land use, it is officially zoned by the City of Woodlake2 as ML (Light Industrial). The Project site 
is considered Farmland of Statewide Importance3; however, the land is not under the Williamson Act. 

 

RESPONSES 

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code 
section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? 

d. Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

e. Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result 
in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

No Impact.  The Project site is Farmland of Statewide Importance according to the California Important 
Farmland Finder, the site is zoned Light Industrial by the City of Woodlake. As such, potential 
conversion of farmlands on this portion of the site have been found to be significant and unavoidable in 
the Woodlake General Plan, 2008-2028 EIR (Sch#2008101159) and a Statement of Overriding 
Consideration has been adopted by the City.  The Project site is not under the Williamson Act contract. 
Therefore, no land conversion from Farmland would occur for the Project. The Project is not zoned for 
forestland and does not propose any zone changes related to forest or timberland. There is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

2 City of Woodlake General Plan, Zoning Map. http://www.cityofwoodlake.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/City-of-Woodlake-Zoning-
Map.pdf. Accessed February 2020.  
3 Department of Conservation, California Important Farmland Finder. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/. Accessed February 2020. 

156

http://www.cityofwoodlake.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/City-of-Woodlake-Zoning-Map.pdf
http://www.cityofwoodlake.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/City-of-Woodlake-Zoning-Map.pdf
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/


III.   AIR QUALITY 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation 
of the applicable air quality plan? 

     

b. Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for 
which the project region is non-
attainment under an applicable federal 
or state ambient air quality standard? 

     

c. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

     

d. Result in other emissions (such as those 
leading to odors or adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people)? 

     

      

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The climate of the City of Woodlake and the San Joaquin Valley is characterized by long, hot summers 
and stagnant, foggy winters. Precipitation is low and temperature inversions are common. These 
characteristics are conducive to the formation and retention of air pollutants and are in part influenced 
by the surrounding mountains which intercept precipitation and act as a barrier to the passage of cold 
air and air pollutants. 

The proposed Project lies within the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin, which is managed by the San Joaquin 
Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD or Air District). National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
(NAAQS) and California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) have been established for the 
following criteria pollutants: carbon monoxide (CO), ozone (O3), sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen dioxide 
(NO2), particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), and lead (Pb). The CAAQS also set standards for sulfates, 
hydrogen sulfide, and visibility. 

Air quality plans or attainment plans are used to bring the applicable air basin into attainment with all 
state and federal ambient air quality standards designed to protect the health and safety of residents 

157



within that air basin. Areas are classified under the Federal Clean Air Act as either “attainment”, “non-
attainment”, or “extreme non-attainment” areas for each criteria pollutant based on whether the NAAQS 
have been achieved or not. Attainment relative to the State standards is determined by the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB). The San Joaquin Valley is designated as a State and Federal extreme non-
attainment area for O3, a State and Federal non-attainment area for PM2.5, a State non-attainment area 
for PM10, and Federal and State attainment area for CO, SO2, NO2, and Pb. 

Standards and attainment status for listed pollutants in the Air District can be found in Table 1. Note that 
both state and federal standards are presented. 

Table 1 - Standards and Attainment Status for Listed Pollutants in the Air District 
 Federal Standard California Standard 

Ozone 0.075 ppm (8-hr avg) 0.07 ppm (8-hr avg) 0.09 ppm (1-hr 
avg) 

Carbon Monoxide 9.0 ppm (8-hr avg) 35.0 ppm (1-hr 
avg) 

9.0 ppm (8-hr avg) 20.0 ppm (1-hr 
avg) 

Nitrogen Dioxide 0.053 ppm (annual avg) 0.30 ppm (annual avg) 0.18 ppm 
(1-hr avg) 

Sulfur Dioxide 0.03 ppm (annual avg) 0.14 ppm 
(24-hr avg) 0.5 ppm (3-hr avg) 

0.04 ppm (24-hr avg) 0.25 ppm 
(1hr avg) 

Lead 1.5 µg/m3 (calendar quarter) 0.15 
µg/m3 (rolling 3-month avg) 

1.5 µg/m3 (30-day avg) 

Particulate Matter (PM10) 150 µg/m3 (24-hr avg) 20 µg/m3 (annual avg) 50 µg/m3 
(24-hr avg) 

Particulate Matter (PM2.5) 15 µg/m3 (annual avg) 35 µg/m3 (24-hr avg) 12 µg/m3 
(annual avg) 

 
μg/m3 = micrograms per cubic meter 

Additional State regulations include: 

CARB Portable Equipment Registration Program – This program was designed to allow owners and 
operators of portable engines and other common construction or farming equipment to register their 
equipment under a statewide program so they may operate it statewide without the need to obtain a 
permit from the local air district. 

U.S. EPA/CARB Off-Road Mobile Sources Emission Reduction Program – The California Clean Air Act 
(CCAA) requires CARB to achieve a maximum degree of emissions reductions from off-road mobile 
sources to attain State Ambient Air Quality Standards (SAAQS); off- road mobile sources include most 
construction equipment. Tier 1 standards for large compression-ignition engines used in off-road mobile 
sources went into effect in California in 1996. These standards, along with ongoing rulemaking, address 
emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOX) and toxic particulate matter from diesel engines. CARB is currently 

158



developing a control measure to reduce diesel PM and NOX emissions from existing off-road diesel 
equipment throughout the state. 

California Global Warming Solutions Act – Established in 2006, Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32) requires that 
California’s GHG emissions be reduced to 1990 levels by the year 2020. This will be implemented through 
a statewide cap on GHG emissions, which was phased in beginning in 2012. AB 32 requires CARB to 
develop regulations and a mandatory reporting system to monitor global warming emissions levels. 

RESPONSES 

a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

b. Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project 
region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard? 

c. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed Project lies within the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin 
(SJVAB). At the Federal level, the SJVAB is designated as extreme nonattainment for the 8-hour ozone 
standard, attainment for PM10 and CO, and nonattainment fort PM2.5. At the State level, the SJVAB is 
designated as nonattainment for the 8-hour ozone, PM10, and PM2.5 standards. Although the Federal 1-
hour ozone standard was revoked in 2005, areas must still attain this standard, and the SJVAPCD 
recently requested an EPA finding that the SJVAB has attained the standard based on 2011-2013 data4. 
To meet Federal Clean Air Act (CAA) requirements, the SJVAPCD has multiple air quality attainment 
plan (AQAP) documents, including: 

• Extreme Ozone Attainment Demonstration Plan (EOADP) for attainment of the 1-hour ozone 
standard (2004); 

• 2007 Ozone Plan for attainment of the 8-hour ozone standard; 
• 2007 PM10 Maintenance Plan and Request for Redesignation; and 
• 2008 PM2.5 Plan. 

Because of the region’s non-attainment status for ozone, PM2.5, and PM10, if the project-generated 
emissions of either of the ozone precursor pollutants (ROG or NOx), PM10, or PM2.5 were to exceed the 
SJVAPCD’s significance thresholds, then the project uses would be considered to conflict with the 
attainment plans. In addition, if the project uses were to result in a change in land use and corresponding 

4 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. Guide to Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts. March 19, 2015. Page 28. 
http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/GAMAQI_3-19-15.pdf. Accessed February 2020. 

159

http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/GAMAQI_3-19-15.pdf


increases in vehicle miles traveled, they may result in an increase in vehicle miles traveled that is 
unaccounted for in regional emissions inventories contained in regional air quality control plans. 

The annual significance thresholds to be used for the Project for construction and operational emissions 
are as follows5: 

• 10 tons per year ROG; 
• 10 tons per year NOx; 
• 15 tons per year PM10; and 
• 15 tons per year PM2.5. 

 
The project will result in both construction emissions and operational emissions as described below. 

Short-Term (Construction) Emissions 

Site preparation and project construction would involve excavating, grading, hauling, and various 
activities needed to construct the Project. During construction, the Project could generate pollutants such 
as hydrocarbons, oxides of nitrogen, carbon monoxide, and suspended PM. A major source of PM would 
be windblown dust generated during construction activities. Sources of fugitive dust would include 
disturbed soils at the construction site and trucks carrying uncovered loads of soils. Vehicles leaving the 
site could deposit dirt and mud on local streets, which could be an additional source of airborne dust 
after it dries. PM10 emissions would vary from day to day, depending on the nature and magnitude of 
construction activity and local weather conditions. PM10 emissions would depend on soil moisture, the 
silt content of soil, wind speed, and the amount of operating equipment. Larger dust particles would 
settle near the source, while fine particles would be dispersed over greater distances from the 
construction site. These emissions would be temporary and limited to the immediate area surrounding 
the construction site.  

Operational Emissions 

The pipeline and stormwater basin are passive in nature and will not generate any on-site emissions.  

Total Project Emissions 

The estimated annual construction emissions are provided below. The California Emissions Estimator 
(CalEEMod), Version 2016.3.2, was used to estimate construction emissions resulting from basin 
construction while the pipeline construction emissions were estimated with the Roadway Construction 
Emissions Model (version 9.0).  It is important to note that all excavated soils will remain on-site. It was 

5 San Joaquin Valley Air Control District – Air Quality Threshold of Significance – Criteria Pollutants. 
http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/0714-GAMAQI-Criteria-Pollutant-Thresholds-of-Significance.pdf. Accessed February 2020.  

160

http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/0714-GAMAQI-Criteria-Pollutant-Thresholds-of-Significance.pdf


also assumed that basin construction would take approximately six months, while it will likely only take 
three months, resulting in conservative estimated basin construction emissions. Modeling results are 
provided in Table 2 and the CalEEMod output files and the Roadway Construction Emissions Model 
output files are provided in Appendix A. 

Table 2 - Proposed Project Construction and Operation Emissions 
 VOC (ROG)  

(tons/year) 
NOx 

(tons/year) 
PM10 

(tons/year) 
PM2.5 

(tons/year
 2020 Basin Construction Emissions  0.3886 4.2602 0.8221 0.4973 

2020 Pipeline Construction Emissions 0.29 3.06 0.42 0.19 
Total Project Emissions 0.6786 7.3202 1.2421 0.6873 

Annual Threshold of Significance 10 10 15 15 
Significant? No No No No 

Source: CalEEMod results (Appendix A). Crawford & Bowen Planning (2020) 

As demonstrated in Table 2, estimated construction emissions would not exceed the SJVAPCD’s 
significance thresholds for ROG, NOx, PM10, and PM2.5.  As a result, the Project uses would not conflict 
with emissions inventories contained in regional air quality attainment plans and would not result in a 
significant contribution to the region’s air quality non-attainment status6.  

Any impacts to air resources would be considered less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

d. Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors adversely affecting a substantial number of 
people? 

Less than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project is located in an industrial portion of the City of 
Woodlake. During construction, the various diesel-powered vehicles and equipment in use on-site 
would create localized odors. These odors would be temporary and are not likely to be noticeable for 
extended periods of time beyond the Project site. The potential for diesel odor impacts is therefore 
considered less than significant.  

As such, the proposed Project is not expected to produce any offensive odors that would result in 
frequent odor complaints. Any impacts would be less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

6 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. Guide to Assessing and Mitigating Air Quality Impacts. March 19, 2015. Page 65. 
http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/GAMAQI_3-19-15.pdf. Accessed February 2020. 

161

http://www.valleyair.org/transportation/GAMAQI_3-19-15.pdf


IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, 
on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local 
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, 
or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

     

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game 
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

     

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on 
federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, 
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, 
or other means? 

     

d. Interfere substantially with the movement 
of any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, 
or impede the use of native wildlife 
nursery sites? 

     

162



e. Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological 
resources, such as a tree preservation 
policy or ordinance? 

     

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The proposed Project site is located in a portion of the central San Joaquin Valley that has, for decades, 
experienced intensive agricultural and urban disturbances. Current agricultural endeavors in the region 
include dairies, groves, and row crops. 

Like most of California, the Central San Joaquin Valley experiences a Mediterranean climate.  Warm dry 
summers are followed by cool moist winters.  Summer temperatures usually exceed 90 degrees 
Fahrenheit, and the relative humidity is generally very low.  Winter temperatures rarely raise much 
above 70 degrees Fahrenheit, with daytime highs often below 60 degrees Fahrenheit. Annual 
precipitation within the proposed Project site is about 10 inches, almost 85% of which falls between the 
months of October and March. Nearly all precipitation falls in the form of rain and storm-water readily 
infiltrates the soils of the surrounding the sites. 

Native plant and animal species once abundant in the region have become locally extirpated or have 
experienced large reductions in their populations due to conversion of upland, riparian, and aquatic 
habitats to agricultural and urban uses. Remaining native habitats are particularly valuable to native 
wildlife species including special status species that still persist in the region. According to the Woodlake 
General Plan, most of the open space in the Woodlake area is dominated by agriculture. Citrus, olives, 
and grazing land are the dominant uses, which may attract the San Joaquin kit fox and burrowing owls. 

A Biological Resource Assessment was prepared for the proposed Project by Colibri Ecological 
Consulting, LLC in March of 2020. The following descriptions and subsequent impact analysis is based 
on observations and expertise of Colibri Ecological Consulting. The Assessment is provided in Appendix 
B. 

The proposed Project site consists of a citrus orchard that is routinely sprayed with herbicides, dirt and 
paved surface streets, and a paved walking trail surrounded by agricultural, industrial, and residential 

163



development. The new stormwater basin will be constructed in the citrus orchard, which is bordered to 
the north by citrus orchards and residential development, to the east by industrial development and a 
recently disked fallow field that supported ruderal vegetation, to the south by a previously disturbed 
field that supported nonnative annual grassland, and to the west by citrus orchards and industrial 
development. The northern section of new pipeline will run under paved surface streets, under a 
previously disturbed dirt road at the western terminus of Bravo Avenue, and eventually under a paved 
walking path leading east to the Manzanillo Pump Station. Bravo Lake, a permanent, leveed waterbody 
is immediately south of the Manzanillo Pump Station and about 0.3 miles east of the new stormwater 
basin site. The southern section of new pipeline will be installed under dirt and paved roads. It is 
bordered to the north by a recently disked fallow field that supports ruderal vegetation and residential 
development, to the east by residential development and Bravo Lake, to the south by a large detention 
basin, and to the west by a previously disturbed field that supported nonnative annual grassland. 
Industrial Ditch, a highly disturbed, dirt-lined intermittent drainage largely devoid of vegetation, carries 
water from north to south through the middle-western portion of the Project site, where the new 
stormwater basin will be installed, and forms a small semi-permanent wetland at the southern boundary 
of the Project site.  

Special Status Species 

Two special-status species could occur on or near the Project site based on the presence of habitat and/or 
occurrence in the California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) records from within five miles.  These 
two species are described below. 

Sanford’s arrowhead (Sagittaria sanfordii). Sanford’s arrowhead is an aquatic, rhizomatous perennial 
herb in the family Alismataceae with a California Rare Plant Ranking of 1B.2. It is endemic to the Central 
Valley of California where it occupies ponds and ditches below 984 feet elevation; it flowers May–
October. 

One CNDDB record, from 2018, is known from within five miles of the Project site. Although this species 
was not detected during the reconnaissance survey, which was conducted outside of the blooming 
period, aquatic habitat on the property could support this species. Due low habitat quality, however, its 
probability of occurrence is low. 

Northwestern pond turtle (Actinemys marmorata). Northwestern pond turtle (family Emydidae) is 
California’s only native freshwater turtle. It is recognized as a Species of Special Concern by the CDFW. 
This species is long-lived, diurnal, and aquatic. It occurs in ponds, lakes, rivers, creeks, marshes, and 
irrigation ditches and requires exposed banks, logs, rocks, or cattail mats for basking. Commercial 
harvesting beginning in the 19th century, wetland destruction and degradation in the early 20th century, 

164



and introduction of nonnative species including other turtle species and bullfrogs are the primary 
contributors to population declines. Mating occurs in April and May, after which females travel onto 
land to dig a nest, usually along stream or pond banks. 

Although there are no CNDDB records known from within five miles of the Project site, Bravo Lake and 
the small semi-permanent wetland along Industrial Ditch on the Project site provide potential aquatic 
habitat, and the nonnative grassland south of the Project site could represent potential nesting habitat. 
Due low habitat quality, however, its probability of occurrence is low. 

Nesting Birds and the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 

Migratory birds could nest on or near the Project site. Species that may nest on or near the Project site 
include but are not limited to California scrub-jay (Aphelocoma californica), house finch (Haemorhous 
mexicanus), and northern mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos). 

Regulated Habitats 

Two potentially regulated habitats (Industrial Ditch and an unnamed irrigation canal) were found on or 
within 50 feet of the Project site. Industrial Ditch is a constructed intermittent drainage that flows north 
to south through the middle-western portion of the Project site where the new stormwater basin will be 
constructed. It forms a small semi-permanent wetland at the southern Project site boundary, then drains 
to Little Bravo Lake, Wutchumna Ditch, and eventually the St. Johns River. Industrial Ditch is likely 
under the jurisdiction of the US Army Corps of Engineers, State Water Resources Control Board, and 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife. An unnamed, excavated irrigation canal associated with a 
large detention basin was 10 feet south of the southern segment of new pipeline alignment that will 
connect the new stormwater basin to existing infrastructure along the Deltha Avenue alignment. 
However, construction of the new pipeline will be confined to existing dirt and paved roads. 

According to the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, no waterways on or near the proposed Project site retain a 
wild and scenic classification. No marine or estuarine fishery resources or migratory routes to and from 
anadromous fish spawning grounds were present in the survey area. In addition, no EFH, defined by the 
Magnuson-Stevens Act as those resources necessary for fish spawning, breeding, feeding, or growth to 
maturity, were present in the survey area. 

The Project site is within a FEMA-designated flood zone classified as Zone X, otherwise described as 
“Other Flood Areas”. Parcels within Zone X have either (1) a 0.2% annual chance of flood during a 100-
year flood event, (2) a 1% annual chance of flood (during a 100-year flood event). The semi-permanent 
wetland along Industrial Ditch is classified as Zone A. Parcels within Zone A are without base flood 
elevation and subject to inundation by the 1-percent-annualchance flood. 

165



RESPONSES 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporation. The proposed Project could substantially 
impact two special-status species: Sanford’s arrowhead (CNPS CRPR 1B.2) and northwestern pond turtle, a 
California Species of Special Concern. Construction disturbance could result in the incidental loss of Sanford’s 
arrowhead or northwestern pond turtle. Such loss could constitute a significant impact. As such, 
implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 and BIO-2 will ensure that any impacts remain less than 
significant.   

Mitigation Measures:  

BIO-1 

A pre-construction clearance survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist to ensure that 
northwestern pond turtle will not be impacted during Project construction. The pre-construction 
clearance survey shall be conducted no more than 14 days prior to the start of construction 
activities. During this survey, the qualified biologist shall search all aquatic habitat and all 
potential nesting habitat on the Project site for active turtle nests. If a turtle is found, it will be 
allowed to the leave the area on its own. If an active turtle nest is found, the qualified biologist 
shall determine the extent of a construction-free buffer to be established and maintained around 
the nest for the duration of the nesting cycle. The biologist shall then work with construction 
personnel to install wildlife exclusion fencing along the buffer. This fencing should be a minimum 
of 36 inches tall and towed-in 6 inches below ground prior to construction activities. If fencing 
cannot be toed-in, the bottom of the fence will be weighted down with a continuous line of long, 
narrow sand bags or similar, to ensure there are no gaps under the fencing where wildlife could 
enter. One-way exit funnels directed away from construction activities will be installed to allow 
turtles and other small wildlife to exit the fenced enclosure. 

BIO-2 

A rare plant survey for Stanford’s arrowhead shall be conducted by a qualified biologist during 
the appropriate season (May to October). If this species is detected, a minimum 50-foot avoidance 
buffer shall be implemented to avoid impacts to the extent practicable. If impacts are 
unavoidable, salvage and relocate the plants in consultation with CDFW. 

 

166



b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.  The proposed Project will permanently impact 
Industrial Ditch and its associated semi-permanent wetland at the southern Project site boundary. As 
Industrial Ditch is hydrologically connected to the St. Johns River, a navigable water, Industrial Ditch 
and its associated semi-permanent wetland are under the jurisdiction of the USACE and therefore subject 
to provisions of the Clean Water Act (CWA). Construction of the new stormwater basin will permanently 
impact roughly 1000 linear feet of Industrial Ditch, including roughly 120 linear feet of semi-permanent 
state and federally protected wetland. Such loss could constitute a significant impact. Implementation of 
Mitigation Measure BIO-3 and BIO-4 will ensure potential impacts to federally protected wetlands 
remain at the less than significant level.  

Mitigation Measures:  

BIO-3 

Obtain a CWA Section 404 Nationwide Permit in consultation with the USACE for work 
impacting Industrial Ditch and its associated semi-permanent wetland.  

BIO-4 

Obtain a CWA Section 401 water quality certification from the SWRCB for work impacting 
Industrial Ditch and its associated semi-permanent wetland. 

 

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species 
or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation.  The proposed Project has the potential to impede the 
use of nursery sites for native birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) and 
California Fish and Game Code (CFGC). Migratory birds are expected to nest on and near the Project 
site. Construction disturbance during the breeding season could result in the incidental loss of fertile 

167



eggs or nestlings or otherwise lead to nest abandonment. Disturbance that causes nest abandonment or 
loss of reproductive effort can be considered take under the MBTA and CFGC. Loss of fertile eggs or 
nesting birds, or any activities resulting in nest abandonment, could constitute a significant impact if the 
species is particularly rare in the region. Construction activities such as excavating, trenching, and 
grading that disturb a nesting bird on the Project site or immediately adjacent to the construction zone 
could also constitute a significant impact. As such, implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-5 will 
reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels.  

Mitigation Measures:  

BIO-5 

To the extent practicable, construction shall be scheduled to avoid the nesting season, which 
extends from February through August. If it is not possible to schedule construction between 
September and January, a pre-construction clearance survey for nesting birds shall be conducted 
by a qualified biologist to ensure that no active nests will be disturbed during the implementation 
of the Project. A pre-construction clearance survey shall be conducted no more than 14 days prior 
to the start of construction activities. During this survey, the qualified biologist shall inspect all 
potential nest substrates in and immediately adjacent to the impact areas, including within 250 
feet in the case of raptor nests. If an active nest is found close enough to the construction area to 
be disturbed by these activities, the qualified biologist shall determine the extent of a 
construction-free buffer to be established around the nest. If work cannot proceed without 
disturbing the nesting birds, work may need to be halted or redirected to other areas until nesting 
and fledging are completed or the nest has failed for non-construction related reasons. 

 

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

No Impact.  The City of Woodlake’s General Plan includes policies for the protection of biological 
resources.  The proposed Project would not conflict with any of the adopted policies. There is no impact.   

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

168



No Impact.  The proposed Project site is not within an area set aside for the conservation of habitat or 
sensitive plant or animal species pursuant to a Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan.  As such, there 
is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

169



V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as 
defined in §15064.5? 

     

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

     

c. Disturb any human remains, including 
those interred outside of formal 
cemeteries? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

An intensive Class III cultural resources inventory/Phase I survey was conducted for the proposed 
Project, by ASM Affiliates, Inc., with David S. Whitley, Ph.D., RPA, serving as principal investigator. The 
study was undertaken to assist with compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended, and the California Environmental Quality Act and is provided as Appendix C 
of this document. 

The area of potential e for the Project consists of the area of potential ground surface disturbance resulting 
from the excavation of the stormwater basin and trenching for 4,611-feet (ft) of 48” pipeline, including 
lay-down and staging areas. The horizontal APE for the stormwater basin is 17-acres (ac) in size; the APE 
for the pipeline trench, using a 15-meter (m) buffer on both sides of the route, is 13-ac, yielding a total 
horizontal APE of 30-ac. The vertical APE is the maximum limit of ground surface excavation, estimated 
at 10-feet.  

A record search of site files and maps was conducted at the Southern San Joaquin Valley Archaeological 
Information Center (IC), California State University, Bakersfield. A Sacred Lands File Request was also 
submitted to the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). These investigations determined that 
small portions of the Project APE had been previously surveyed, and that segments of two historic 
structures, both rail grades, are known to exist within it. 

The Class III inventory/Phase I survey fieldwork was conducted on 16 March 2020 with parallel transects 
spaced at 15-meter intervals walked across the approximately 30-acre APE. Because the APE involves a 

170



pipeline along existing paved roads, both sides of the roads were surveyed. Orchard rows were walked 
within the proposed stormwater basin portion of the APE. The two previously identified cultural 
resources, segments of the Visalia Electric and Atchison Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad grades, were 
relocated. Both linear resources segments had been destroyed within the Project APE. They thus lack 
integrity of design, setting, materials, workmanship and feeling and are recommended as not National 
Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) eligible or 
significant. 

No additional cultural resources were identified within the Project APE.  

RESPONSES 

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to 
§15064.5? 

No Impact.  As discussed above, no historic resources were identified within or adjacent to the project 
site. There is no impact.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to 
§15064.5? 

c. Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Less Than Significant Impact With Mitigation.  The project area is highly disturbed, consisting of 
citrus orchards. There are no known or visible cultural or archaeological resources, paleontological 
resources, or human remains that exist on the surface of the project area. Therefore, it is determined 
that the project has low potential to impact any sensitive resources and no further cultural resources 
work is required unless project plans change to include work not currently identified in the project 
description.  

Although no cultural or archaeological resources, paleontological resources or human remains have 
been identified in the project area, the possibility exists that such resources or remains may be 
discovered during Project site preparation, excavation and/or grading activities. Mitigation Measures 
CUL – 1 and CUL – 2 will be implemented to ensure that Project will result in less than significant 
impacts with mitigation. 

Mitigation Measures:  

171



CUL – 1 Should evidence of prehistoric archeological resources be discovered during 
construction, the contractor shall halt all work within 25 feet of the find and the resource 
shall be evaluated by a qualified archaeologist. If evidence of any archaeological, cultural, 
and/or historical deposits is found, hand excavation and/or mechanical excavation shall 
proceed to evaluate the deposits for determination of significance as defined by the CEQA 
guidelines. The archaeologist shall submit reports, to the satisfaction of the City of 
Woodlake, describing the testing program and subsequent results. These reports shall 
identify any program mitigation that the project proponent shall complete in order to 
mitigate archaeological impacts (including resource recovery and/or avoidance testing 
and analysis, removal, reburial, and curation of archaeological resources). 

CUL – 2 In order to ensure that the proposed project does not impact buried human remains 
during project construction, the City shall be responsible for on-going monitoring of 
project construction. If buried human remains are encountered during construction, 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to 
overlie adjacent remains shall be halted until the Tulare County coroner is contacted and 
the coroner has made the determinations and notifications required pursuant to Health 
and Safety Code Section 7050.5. If the coroner determines that Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5(c) require that he give notice to the Native American Heritage 
Commission, then such notice shall be given within 24 hours, as required by Health and 
Safety Code Section 7050.5(c). In that event, the NAHC will conduct the notifications 
required by Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. Until the consultations described 
below have been completed, the landowner shall further ensure that the immediate 
vicinity, according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards or practices 
where Native American human remains are located, is not disturbed by further 
development activity until the landowner has discussed and conferred with the Most 
Likely Descendants on all reasonable options regarding the descendants' preferences and 
treatments, as prescribed by Public Resources Code Section 5097.98(b). The NAHC will 
mediate any disputes regarding treatment of remains in accordance with Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.94(k). The landowner shall be entitled to exercise rights 
established by Public Resources Code Section 5097.98(e) if any of the circumstances 
established by that provision become applicable.  

172



VI.  ENERGY 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Result in potentially significant 
environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of 
energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

     

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local 
plan for renewable energy or energy 
efficiency? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

California’s total energy consumption is second-highest in the nation, but, in 2016, the state’s per capita 
energy consumption ranked 48th, due in part to its mild climate and its energy efficiency programs. In 
2017, California ranked second in the nation in conventional hydroelectric generation and first as a 
producer of electricity from solar, geothermal, and biomass resources while also in 2017, solar PV and 
solar thermal installations provided about 16% of California’s net electricity generation.7  

Energy usage is typically quantified using the British thermal unit (BTU). As a point of reference, the 
approximately amounts of energy contained in common energy sources are as follows: 

Energy Source BTUs8 

Gasoline 120,429 per gallon 

Natural Gas 1,037 per cubic foot 

Electricity 3,412 per kilowatt-hour 

7 U.S. Energy Information Administration. Independent Statistics and Analysis. California Profile Overview. 
https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1. Accessed February 2020.  
8 U.S. Energy Information Administration. Energy Units and Calculators Explained. 
https://www.eia.gov/energyexplained/index.php?page=about_energy_units. Accessed February 2020. 

173

https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1
https://www.eia.gov/energyexplained/index.php?page=about_energy_units


California electrical consumption in 2016 was 7,830.8 trillion BTU9, as provided in Table 3, while total 
electrical consumption by Tulare County in 2017 was 14.530 trillion BTU.10 

Table 3 – 2016 California Energy Consumption11 
End User BTU of energy 

consumed   (in trillions) 
Percentage of total 

consumption 
Residential 1,384.4 17.7 

Commercial 1,477.2 18.9 
Industrial 1,854.3 23.7 

Transportation 3,114.9 39.8 
Total 7,830.8 -- 

 

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) reports that approximately 25.1 million 
automobiles, 5.7 million trucks, and 889,024 motorcycles were registered in the state in 2017, resulting in 
a total estimated 339.8 billion vehicles miles traveled (VMT).12  Within Tulare County, an estimated 3.7 
million vehicle miles were traveled in 2017 for an average of 10,099 miles per day.13  

Applicable Regulations 

California Energy Code (Title 24, Part 6, Building Energy Efficiency Standards) 

California Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 6 comprises the California Energy Code, which was adopted 
to ensure that building construction, system design and installation achieve energy efficiency. The 
California Energy Code was first established in 1978 by the CEC in response to a legislative mandate to 
reduce California’s energy consumption, and apply to energy consumed for heating, cooling, ventilation, 
water heating, and lighting in new residential and non-residential buildings. The standards are updated 
periodically to increase the baseline energy efficiency requirements. The 2013 Building Energy Efficiency 
Standards focus on several key areas to improve the energy efficiency of newly constructed buildings 
and additions and alterations to existing buildings and include requirements to enable both demand 
reductions during critical peak periods and future solar electric and thermal system installations. 
Although it was not originally intended to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, electricity production 

9 U.S. Energy Information Administration. Independent Statistics and Analysis. California Profile Overview. 
https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1. Accessed February 2020. 
10 California Energy Commission. Electricity Consumption by County. http://ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbycounty.aspx. Accessed February 
2020. 
11 U.S. Energy Information Administration. Independent Statistics and Analysis. California Profile Overview. 
https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1. Accessed February 2020. 
12 Caltrans. 2017. California Transportation Quick Facts. http://www.dot.ca.gov/drisi/library/qf/qf2017.pdf. Accessed February 2020. 
13 Caltrans. 2017. Tulare County Transportation Quick Facts. http://www.dot.ca.gov/drisi/library/qfco/tul/tul2017.pdf.  Accessed February 
2020.  

174

https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1
http://ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbycounty.aspx
https://www.eia.gov/state/?sid=CA#tabs-1
http://www.dot.ca.gov/drisi/library/qf/qf2017.pdf
http://www.dot.ca.gov/drisi/library/qfco/tul/tul2017.pdf


by fossil fuels results in GHG emissions and energy efficient buildings require less electricity. Therefore, 
increased energy efficiency results in decreased GHG emissions.  

California Green Building Standards Code (Title 24, Part II, CALGreen) 

The California Building Standards Commission adopted the California Green Buildings Standards Code 
(CALGreen in Part 11 of the Title 24 Building Standards Code) for all new construction statewide on July 
17, 2008. Originally a volunteer measure, the code became mandatory in 2010 and the most recent update 
(2019) will go into effect on January 1, 2020. CALGreen sets targets for energy efficiency, water 
consumption, dual plumbing systems for potable and recyclable water, diversion of construction waste 
from landfills, and use of environmentally sensitive materials in construction and design, including eco-
friendly flooring, carpeting, paint, coatings, thermal insulation, and acoustical wall and ceiling panels. 
The 2019 CALGreen Code includes mandatory measures for non-residential development related to site 
development; water use; weather resistance and moisture management; construction waste reduction, 
disposal, and recycling; building maintenance and operation; pollutant control; indoor air quality; 
environmental comfort; and outdoor air quality. Mandatory measures for residential development 
pertain to green building; planning and design; energy efficiency; water efficiency and conservation; 
material conservation and resource efficiency; environmental quality; and installer and special inspector 
qualifications.  

Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act (SB 350) 

The Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act (SB 350) was passed by California Governor Brown on 
October 7, 2015, and establishes new clean energy, clean air, and greenhouse gas reduction goals for the 
year 2030 and beyond. SB 350 establishes a greenhouse gas reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 
levels for the State of California, further enhancing the ability for the state to meet the goal of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions by 80 percent below 1990 levels by the year 2050.  

Renewable Portfolio Standard (SB 1078 and SB 107) 

Established in 2002 under SB 1078, the state’s Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) was amended under 
SB 107 to require accelerated energy reduction goals by requiring that by the year 2010, 20 percent of 
electricity sales in the state be served by renewable energy resources. In years following its adoption, 
Executive Order S-14-08 was signed, requiring electricity retail sellers to provide 33 percent of their 
service loads with renewable energy by the year 2020. In 2011, SB X1-2 was signed, aligning the RPS 
target with the 33 percent requirement by the year 2020. This new RPS applied to all state electricity 
retailers, including publicly owned utilities, investor-owned utilities, electrical service providers, and 
community choice aggregators. All entities included under the RPS were required to adopt the RPS 20 
percent by year 2020 reduction goal by the end of 2013, adopt a reduction goal of 25 percent by the end 

175



of 2016, and meet the 33 percent reduction goal by the end of 2020. In addition, the Air Resources Board, 
under Executive Order S-21-09, was required to adopt regulations consistent with these 33 percent 
renewable energy targets. 

RESPONSES 

a. Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary 
consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation? 

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project includes construction and operation of a 
stormwater retention basin, 800 ft wide and 1,000 ft long, and approximately 5,541 linear feet of 
associated pipeline. The Project at build-out may consume high amounts of energy in the short-term 
during Project construction; however, the basin and associated pipeline are passive and will not require 
substantial amounts of energy during Project operation.  

During construction, the Project would consume energy in two general forms: (1) the fuel energy 
consumed by construction vehicles and equipment; and (2) bound energy in construction materials, such 
as asphalt, steel, concrete, pipes, and manufactured or processed materials such as lumber and glass. 
Title 24 Building Energy Efficiency Standards provide guidance on construction techniques to maximize 
energy conservation and it is expected that contractors and owners have a strong financial incentive to 
use recycled materials and products originating from nearby sources in order to reduce materials costs. 
As such, it is anticipated that materials used in construction and construction vehicle fuel energy would 
not involve the wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy.   

Therefore, any impacts are less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

176



 
 
VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving:  

 i. Rupture of a known earthquake 
fault, as delineated on the most 
recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 
Fault Zoning Map issued by the 
State Geologist for the area or based 
on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault?  Refer to Division of 
Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42. 

     

 ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?      

 iii. Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction? 

     

 iv. Landslides?      

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the 
loss of topsoil? 

     

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that 
is unstable, or that would become 
unstable as a result of the project, and 
potentially result in on- or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse? 

     

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined 
in Table 18-1-B of the most recently 
adopted Uniform Building Code 

     

177



creating substantial direct or indirect 
risks to life or property? 

e. Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water?   

     

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or 
unique geologic feature? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Woodlake is situated along the western slope of a northwest-trending belt of rocks 
comprising the Sierra Nevada and within the southern portion of the Cascade Range. The Sierra Nevada 
geomorphic province is primarily composed of cretaceous granitic plutons and remnants of Paleozoic 
and Mesozoic metavolcanic and metasedimentary rocks, and Cenozoic volcan and sedimentary rocks.  

There are no known active earthquake faults in the City of Woodlake. According to the Woodlake 
General Plan, the nearest active faults are the San Andreas, 65 miles west; the Owens Valley, 75 miles 
east; and the White Wolf; 75 miles south.  

According to the City’s General Plan, much of the Project area has soils with high clay content that can 
expand and contract as water conditions change.  

 

RESPONSES 

a-i.  Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, 
or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other 
substantial evidence of a known fault?  Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 
42. 

a-ii. Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury, or death involving strong seismic ground shaking? 

178



a-iii. Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury, or death involving seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

a-iv. Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury, or death involving landslides? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed project site is not located in an earthquake fault zone as 
delineated by the 1972 Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map Act. The nearest known potentially 
active fault is the Clovis Fault, located over thirty miles northwest of the site. No active faults have been 
mapped within the project boundaries, so there is no potential for fault rupture. It is anticipated that the 
proposed Project site would be subject to some ground acceleration and ground shaking associated with 
seismic activity during its design life. The Project site would be engineered and constructed in strict 
accordance with the earthquake resistant design requirements contained in the latest edition of the 
California Building Code (CBC) for seismic zone III, as well as Title 24 of the California Administrative 
Code, and therefore would avoid potential seismically induced hazards on planned structures. The 
impact of seismic hazards on the project would be less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

Less than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project will construct and operate a stormwater retention 
basin. The Project site has a generally flat topography and is in an established urban area. Project features 
would result in loss of topsoil, as the depth of the basin must be excavated and soil removed. Any soil 
removed from the basin site will be spread over the adjacent area to the west and northwest of the basin. 
The basin will be designed and sloped to minimize any resulting soil erosion.  Therefore, the impact is 
less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a  result of the 
project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction 
or collapse? 

Less than Significant Impact.  As described in Responses (a.iii) and (a.iv) above, the proposed Project 
would require a substantial grade change; however, specific design parameters will prevent any 
landslides, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquification or collapse of the retention basin or the 
surrounding areas. Any impacts would be less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

179



 

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the most recently adopted Uniform 
Building Code creating substantial risks to life or property? 

Less than Significant Impact.  See Responses (c) and (a-ii).   The impact is less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water 
disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?  

Less than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project does not include the installation of a septic system. 
Therefore, there would be no impact.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  As identified in the previous cultural studies perform for the project site, 
there are no known paleontological resources on or near the site.  (See Section V. for more details). 
Mitigation measures have been added that will protect unknown (buried) resources during construction, 
including paleontological resources. There are no unique geological features on site or in the area. 
Therefore, there is a less than significant impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

  

180



VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment?  

    

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases?  

    

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

Various gases in the earth’s atmosphere play an important role in moderating the earth’s surface 
temperature. Solar radiation enters earth’s atmosphere from space and a portion of the radiation is 
absorbed by the earth’s surface. The earth emits this radiation back toward space, but the properties of 
the radiation change from high-frequency solar radiation to lower-frequency infrared radiation. GHGs 
are transparent to solar radiation but are effective in absorbing infrared radiation. Consequently, 
radiation that would otherwise escape back into space is retained, resulting in a warming of the earth’s 
atmosphere. This phenomenon is known as the greenhouse effect. Scientific research to date indicates 
that some of the observed climate change is a result of increased GHG emissions associated with human 
activity. Among the GHGs contributing to the greenhouse effect are water vapor, carbon dioxide (CO2), 
methane (CH4), ozone, Nitrous Oxide (NOx), and chlorofluorocarbons. Human-caused emissions of these 
GHGs in excess of natural ambient concentrations are considered responsible for enhancing the 
greenhouse effect. GHG emissions contributing to global climate change are attributable, in large part, 
to human activities associated with the industrial/manufacturing, utility, transportation, residential, and 
agricultural sectors. In California, the transportation sector is the largest emitter of GHGs, followed by 
electricity generation. Global climate change is, indeed, a global issue. GHGs are global pollutants, unlike 
criteria pollutants and TACs (which are pollutants of regional and/or local concern). Global climate 
change, if it occurs, could potentially affect water resources in California. Rising temperatures could be 
anticipated to result in sea-level rise (as polar ice caps melt) and possibly change the timing and amount 
of precipitation, which could alter water quality. According to some, climate change could result in more 
extreme weather patterns; both heavier precipitation that could lead to flooding, as well as more 
extended drought periods. There is uncertainty regarding the timing, magnitude, and nature of the 
potential changes to water resources as a result of climate change; however, several trends are evident. 

181



Snowpack and snowmelt may also be affected by climate change. Much of California’s precipitation falls 
as snow in the Sierra Nevada and southern Cascades, and snowpack represents approximately 35 percent 
of the state’s useable annual water supply. The snowmelt typically occurs from April through July; it 
provides natural water flow to streams and reservoirs after the annual rainy season has ended. As air 
temperatures increase due to climate change, the water stored in California’s snowpack could be affected 
by increasing temperatures resulting in: (1) decreased snowfall, and (2) earlier snowmelt. 

RESPONSES 

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency published a rule for the 
mandatory reporting of greenhouse gases from sources that in general emit 25,000 metric tons or 
more of carbon dioxide (CO2) per year. As shown in the modeling results (Appendix A), the Project 
will produce the following CO2: 

 2020 Basin Construction   452.10 MT/yr 

 2020 Pipeline Construction   477.80 MT/yr 

 Total Project Construction Emissions  929.90 MT/yr 

This represents less than four percent of the reporting threshold. As such, any impacts resulting 
from conflicting a GHG plan, policy, or regulation, or significantly impacting the environment as a 
result of project development is considered less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

182



IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

     

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous 
materials into the environment? 

     

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter 
mile of an existing or proposed school? 

     

d. Be located on a site which is included on a 
list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 
significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

     

e. For a project located within an airport 
land use plan or, where such a plan has 
not been adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use airport, would 
the project result in a safety hazard or 
excessive noise for people residing or 
working in the project area? 

     

f. Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency 

     

183



IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

g. Expose people or structures either directly 
or indirectly to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving wildland fires? 

     

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The area immediately surrounding the proposed Project consists of industrial, commercial, agricultural 
and some single-family residential uses. The site is currently utilized for orchard cultivation. 

 

RESPONSES 

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and 
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment? 

Less than Significant Impact.  This impact is associated with hazards caused by the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials or through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment. Proposed Project construction 
activities may involve the use and transport of hazardous materials.  These materials may include fuels, 
oils, mechanical fluids, and other chemicals used during construction.  Transportation, storage, use, and 
disposal of hazardous materials during construction activities would be required to comply with 
applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations.  Compliance would ensure that human health 
and the environment are not exposed to hazardous materials.  In addition, the Project would be required 
to comply with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program through 
the submission and implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan during construction 
activities to prevent contaminated runoff from leaving the project site. Therefore, no significant impacts 
would occur during construction activities. 

184



The operational phase of the proposed Project would occur after construction is completed. The proposed 
Project includes land uses that are considered compatible with the surrounding uses.  None of these land 
uses routinely transport, use, or dispose of hazardous materials, or present a reasonably foreseeable 
release of hazardous materials, with the potential exception of common commercial grade hazardous 
materials such as household and commercial cleaners, paint, etc. The proposed Project would not create 
a significant hazard through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials, nor would a 
significant hazard to the public or to the environment through the reasonably foreseeable upset and 
accidental conditions involving the likely release of hazardous materials into the environment occur. 
Therefore, the proposed Project will not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment and 
any impacts would be less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste 
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

No Impact.  No schools are located within 0.25 mile of the Project site. This condition precludes the 
possibility of activities associated with the proposed Project exposing schools within a 0.25-mile radius 
of the project site to hazardous materials. No impact would occur. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required.  

       

d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public 
or the environment?  

No Impact.  The proposed Project site is not located on a list of hazardous materials sites complied pursuant 
to Government Code Section 65962.5 (Geotracker and DTSC Envirostor databases – accessed in February 
2020).14  There are no hazardous materials sites that impact the Project. As such, no impacts would occur that 
would create a significant hazard to the public or the environment. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

14 California Department of Toxic Substances Control. Envirostor Database. 
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=woodlake+ca. Accessed February 2020. 

185

http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=woodlake+ca


 

e.  For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard 
or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area? 

Less than Significant Impact.  There are no private airstrips in the Project vicinity. The Woodlake 
Municipal Airport is located 0.6 miles south of the site. The proposed site is located inside the Airport 
Land Use Plan’s Safety Zone 6 (Traffic Pattern Zone).15 However, the proposed Project does not include 
residential development, which would require adherence to restrictive development policies provided 
by the ALUC. The Tulare County Airport Land Use Compatibility Matrix identifies “Public Utility 
Facilities”, under the Institutional, Public and Quasi-Public land use category, as compatible land uses 
within Safety Zone 6. Furthermore, the proposed land use would not substantially contribute to the 
severity of an aircraft accident nor result in a substantial safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the Project area.  Thus, any impacts are less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

f. Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

No Impact.  The Project will not interfere with any adopted emergency response or evacuation plan. 
There is no impact.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

g. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with 
wildlands? 

No Impact.  There are no wildlands on or near the Project site.  There is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

15 Tulare County Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan. December 2012. https://tularecounty.ca.gov/rma/index.cfm/rma-
documents/planning-documents/tulare-county-comprehensive-airport-land-use-plan/. Accessed February 2020. 

186

https://tularecounty.ca.gov/rma/index.cfm/rma-documents/planning-documents/tulare-county-comprehensive-airport-land-use-plan/
https://tularecounty.ca.gov/rma/index.cfm/rma-documents/planning-documents/tulare-county-comprehensive-airport-land-use-plan/


X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER 
QUALITY 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

a. Violate any water quality standards or 
waste discharge requirements or 
otherwise substantially degrade surface or 
ground water quality?   

 

 
    

b. Substantially decrease groundwater 
supplies or interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that the 
project may impede sustainable 
groundwater management of the basin?  

     

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including 
through the alteration of the course of a 
stream or river or through the addition of 
impervious surfaces, in a manner which 
would:  

     

i. Result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off- site; 

     

 ii.   substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding on- or 
offsite;    

     

 iii.   create or contribute runoff water 
which would exceed the capacity of 
existing or planned stormwater drainage 
systems or provide substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff; or 

     

 iv.   impede or redirect flood flows?      

187



X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER 
QUALITY 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

d. In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, 
risk release of pollutants due to project 
inundation? 

     

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation 
of a water quality control plan or 
sustainable groundwater management 
plan? 

     

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Woodlake obtains its water supply from a vast aquifer underlying the San Joaquin Valley. 
The City provides water service to all developed areas within the City and the unincorporated county 
service area called Wells Tract, which contains approximately 50 residential dwellings.  

Water is supplied to the City by five wells that are located in the southern portion of the City; adjacent 
to the St. Johns River. The yield of city wells ranges from 350 to 1,500 gallons per minute.  

RESPONSES 

a. Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially 
degrade surface or ground water quality?   

Less Than Significant Impact. The Project has the potential to impact water quality standards and/or 
waste discharge requirements during construction (temporary impacts) and operation. Impacts are 
discussed below. 

Construction 

Although the proposed Project site is relatively small in scale, grading, excavation and loading activities 
associated with construction activities could temporarily increase runoff, erosion, and sedimentation. 
Construction activities also could result in soil compaction and wind erosion effects that could adversely 
affect soils and reduce the revegetation potential at construction sites and staging areas.  

188



Three general sources of potential short-term construction-related stormwater pollution associated with 
the proposed project are: 1) the handling, storage, and disposal of construction materials containing 
pollutants; 2) the maintenance and operation of construction equipment; and 3) earth moving activities 
which, when not controlled, may generate soil erosion and transportation, via storm runoff or mechanical 
equipment. Generally, routine safety precautions for handling and storing construction materials may 
effectively mitigate the potential pollution of stormwater by these materials. These same types of 
common sense, “good housekeeping” procedures can be extended to non-hazardous stormwater 
pollutants such as sawdust and other solid wastes. 

Poorly maintained vehicles and heavy equipment leaking fuel, oil, antifreeze, or other fluids on the 
construction site are also common sources of stormwater pollution and soil contamination. In addition, 
grading activities can greatly increase erosion processes. Two general strategies are recommended to 
prevent construction silt from entering local storm drains. First, erosion control procedures should be 
implemented for those areas that must be exposed. Secondly, the area should be secured to control offsite 
migration of pollutants. These Best Management Practices (BMPs) would be required in the Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to be prepared prior to commencement of Project construction. When 
properly designed and implemented, these “good-housekeeping” practices are expected to reduce short-
term construction-related impacts to less than significant. 

In accordance with the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Stormwater Program, 
the Project will be required to comply with existing regulatory requirements to prepare a SWPPP 
designed to control erosion and the loss of topsoil to the extent practicable using BMPs that the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) has deemed effective in controlling erosion, sedimentation, 
runoff during construction activities. The specific controls are subject to the review and approval by the 
RWQCB and are an existing regulatory requirement.  

Operation 

During operation, the stormwater detention basin will constitute a significant contribution to the overall 
improvement of the City of Woodlake’s storm drain system.  

Therefore, any impacts are less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

b. Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?  

189



Less than Significant Impact.  Project demands for groundwater resources would not substantially 
deplete groundwater supplies and/or otherwise interfere with groundwater recharge efforts being 
implemented by the City of Woodlake; rather it would increase the ability of the City to increase 
groundwater recharge activity. Any impacts would be less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration 
of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which 
would: 

 i. result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or offsite; 

 ii. substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in 
flooding on- or offsite; 

 iii. create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

 iv. impede or redirect flood flows? 

The proposed Project includes permanent changes to the existing stormwater drainage pattern of the 
area; it is part of a phased improvement plan to the City of Woodlake’s existing storm drain system. 
Permanent pipes will be laid, the stormwater basin excavated and constructed, and storm water 
redirected to the completed basin site. Existing trees and wind machines will be removed; however; the 
two existing wells will remain onsite. The proposed Project will be required to comply with existing 
regulatory requirements to prepare a SWPPP during construction, which will limit on or offsite erosion 
or siltation. The Project would not otherwise degrade water quality. The project will have a less than 
significant impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None required.  

 

d. In flood hazard, tsunami or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation? 

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater 
management plan? 

190



Less than Significant Impact.  The proposed stormwater basin is located mostly outside the Flood 
Inundation Area, defined by the City of Woodlake Special Flood Hazard Area Map. There is a small 
portion of the south-central part of the basin site which may be considered to lie in Zone A, or the Special 
Flood Hazard Area16; however, the Project site is designed to handle stormwater flows.  

The City of Woodlake is located inside the Terminus Dam inundation area. If the Terminus Dam failed 
while at full capacity, its floodwaters would arrive in Woodlake within approximately six hours. The 
Project is located inside the Dam Inundation Area, defined by the City of Woodlake Dam Inundation 
Area Map. Dam failure has been adequately planned for through the Tulare County MJLHMP, which 
the proposed Project is required to be in compliance with. Project implementation will not conflict with 
any water quality control plans or sustainable groundwater management plan. Therefore, any impacts 
are less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

 

16 Tulare County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. March, 2018. 
http://www.dinuba.org/images/2018/Tulare_County_MJLHMP-COMP-2018.pdf. Page B-21.Accessed February 2020. 

191

http://www.dinuba.org/images/2018/Tulare_County_MJLHMP-COMP-2018.pdf


XI.  LAND USE AND PLANNING  
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Physically divide an established 
community? 

     

b. Cause a significant environmental impact 
due to a conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The proposed Project site is in the southwestern portion of the City of Woodlake. The proposed basin is 
located in an agricultural area while the pipeline will pass through established residential neighborhoods 
and commercial areas of the City. The basin site is currently being utilized for orchards, see Figure 3 – 
Aerial Map. The site is zoned Light Industrial and the General Plan Land Use Designation is Agriculture.    

 

RESPONSES 

a. Physically divide an established community? 

No Impact. The construction and operation of the Project would not cause any land use changes in the 
surrounding vicinity nor would it divide an established community, as public utility use within an 
industrial area is considered acceptable.  No impacts would occur as a result of this Project. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

b. Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over 
the project (including, but not limited to the General Plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or 
zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 

No Impact.  The proposed Project includes construction and operation of a stormwater retention basin. 
The immediate vicinity of the proposed Project site is comprised of industrial, commercial, agricultural 

192



and residential land uses. The area is highly disturbed with agricultural and urban uses. The proposed 
Project has no characteristics that would physically divide the City of Woodlake. Access to the existing 
surrounding establishments will remain.  

The proposed stormwater retention basin would not conflict with current zoning in and around the 
Project site. Therefore, there is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

  

193



XII. MINERAL RESOURCES 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Result in the loss of availability of a 
known mineral resource that would be of 
value to the region and the residents of 
the state? 

     

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally 
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

There are no known mineral resources within the planning area and no known mining of mineral 
resources occurs in the City of Woodlake. The closest significant mineral resources consist of sand and 
gravel deposits along the St. Johns River southeast of Woodlake, near the Sierra Nevada foothills.17  

 

RESPONSES 

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region 
and the residents of the state? 

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a 
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

No Impact.  There are no known mineral resources in the proposed Project area and the site is not 
included in a State classified mineral resource zones. Therefore, there is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

  

17 City of Woodlake General Plan. Open Space, Parks, Recreation and Conservation Element. Page 7. 

194



XIII. NOISE 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise 
levels in the vicinity of the project in 
excess of standards established in the local 
general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies? 

     

b. Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

     

c. For a project located within the vicinity of 
a private airstrip or an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the 
project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise 
levels? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The Project site is located partially within the City of Woodlake in a commercial, agricultural and 
residential area, see Figure 2 – Site Aerial.  

 

RESPONSES 

a.  Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity 
of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies? 

b.  Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

Less than Significant Impact. 

195



Short-term (Construction) Noise Impacts 

Proposed Project construction related activities will involve temporary noise sources. Typical 
construction related equipment include graders, trenchers, small tractors and excavators.  During the 
proposed Project construction, noise from construction related activities will contribute to the noise 
environment in the immediate vicinity.  Activities involved in construction will generate maximum noise 
levels, as indicated in Table 5, ranging from 79 to 91 dBA at a distance of 50 feet, without feasible noise 
control (e.g., mufflers) and ranging from 75 to 80 dBA at a distance of 50 feet, with feasible noise controls.  

Table 5 
Typical Construction Noise Levels 

Type of Equipment dBA at 50 ft 
 Without Feasible Noise Control With Feasible Noise Control 

Dozer or Tractor 80 75 
Excavator 88 80 

Scraper 88 80 

Front End Loader 79 75 
Backhoe 85 75 
Grader 85 75 
Truck 91 75 

 

The distinction between short-term construction noise impacts and long-term operational noise impacts 
is a typical one in both CEQA documents and local noise ordinances, which generally recognize the 
reality that short-term noise from construction is inevitable and cannot be mitigated beyond a certain 
level. Thus, local agencies frequently tolerate short-term noise at levels that they would not accept for 
permanent noise sources. A more severe approach would be impractical and might preclude the kind of 
construction activities that are to be expected from time to time in urban environments. Most residents 
of urban areas recognize this reality and expect to hear construction activities on occasion. 

In addition, construction activities would not occur between the hours of 10:00 PM and 7:00 AM, in 
accordance with Woodlake Municipal Code Section 8.24.020, which limits work “between the hours of 
ten p.m. of one day and seven a.m. of the following day…”  

Long-term (Operational) Noise Impacts 

The primary source of on-going noise from the proposed Project will be minimal as both the pipeline and 
stormwater basin are passive in nature and will not create any on-site noise. As such, any impacts would 
be less than significant. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

196



 

c. For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan, or, where such 
a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

No Impact.  The Project is located within the Woodlake Airport airport land use plan but is located 
outside the CNEL contours. Therefore, there is no impact.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

197



XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Induce substantial population growth in 
an area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension 
of roads or other infrastructure)? 

     

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing 
housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

     

      

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Woodlake’s 2000 population was 6,651, up from the 1990 census figure of 5,678. The State 
Department of Finance, which provides population projections for cities and counties in California, 
estimated Woodlake’s population to be 7,524 on January 1, 2008.18 

The proposed basin is located in an agricultural area while the pipeline will pass through established 
residential neighborhoods and commercial areas of the City.   

RESPONSESs 

a. Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new 
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

 

18 City of Woodlake General Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report. Page 21. 

198



No Impact.  There are no new homes associated with the proposed Project and there are no residential 
structures currently on-site. The proposed Project would be a public utilities operation that would 
temporarily provide construction jobs in the Woodlake area, which could be readily filled by the existing 
employment base, given the City’s existing unemployment rates. The proposed Project will not affect 
any regional population, housing, or employment projections anticipated by City policy documents. 
There is no impact. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

 

  

199



XV. PUBLIC SERVICES 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Would the project result in substantial 
adverse physical impacts associated with 
the provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, 
the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in 
order to maintain acceptable service 
ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the 
public services: 

     

 Fire protection?      

 Police protection?      

 Schools?      

 Parks?      

 Other public facilities?      

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The proposed Project site is located in an area that is already served by public service systems. The City of 
Woodlake Fire Department provides the city and the surrounding area with fire protection services.  The Fire 
Department is less than one mile northeast of the proposed Project basin site. The Woodlake Police 
Department is also located approximately one mile northeast of the proposed Project basin site. The Woodlake 
Union School District and Tulare County Office of Education serves the Project area and the City provides 
several types of parks and other public facilities. 

RESPONSES 

a. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the 

200



construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service 
ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

Fire protection? 

Less than Significant Impact. The proposed Project site will continue to be served by the City of 
Woodlake Fire Department, which is less than one mile northeast of the proposed Project basin site. No 
additional fire personnel or equipment is anticipated, as the site is already served by the Fire Station. The 
impact is less than significant. 

Police Protection? 

Less than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project will continue to be served by the City of Woodlake 
Police Department. No additional police personnel or equipment is anticipated. The impact is less than 
significant. 

Schools? 

No Impact.  The direct increase in demand for schools is normally associated with new residential 
projects that bring new families with school-aged children to a region.  The proposed Project does not 
contain any residential uses. The proposed Project, therefore, would not result in an influx of new 
students in the Project area and is not expected to result in an increased demand upon District resources 
and would not require the construction of new facilities. There is no impact. 

Parks? 

No Impact.  The Project would not result in an increase in demand for parks and recreation facilities 
because it would not result in an increase in population.  Accordingly, the proposed Project would have 
no impacts on parks. 

Other public facilities? 

No Impact.  The proposed Project is within the land use and growth projections identified in the City’s 
General Plan and other infrastructure studies.  The Project, therefore, would not result in increased 
demand for, or impacts on, other public facilities such as library services.  Accordingly, no impact would 
occur. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required.  

201



XVI. RECREATION 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Would the project increase the use of 
existing neighborhood and regional parks 
or other recreational facilities such that 
substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated? 

     

b. Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which 
might have an adverse physical effect on 
the environment? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Woodlake currently has two developed park sites and one privately owned park site, located 
in Olivewood Estates.  Willow Court Park, containing 3.91 acres, contains a baseball field, playground 
equipment and a low elevation area designated for storm water detention.  Miller-Brown Park, 
containing 6.74 acres, houses playground equipment, picnic arbors, a skate park feature, and a basketball 
court.  A small watercourse traverses the area.  In addition to the city's parks, the athletic fields on the 
campuses of Woodlake’s two school districts provide recreational opportunities after school hours. 

RESPONSES 

a. Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

No Impact.  The proposed Project does not include the construction of residential uses and would not 
directly or indirectly induce population growth.  Therefore, the proposed Project would not cause 
physical deterioration of existing recreational facilities from increased usage or result in the need for new 
or expanded recreational facilities.  The Project would have no impact to existing parks. 

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

202



XVII. TRANSPORTATION/ 
TRAFFIC 
Would the project: 

 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a. Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or 
policy addressing the circulation system, 
including transit, roadway, bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities?  

     

b. Would the project conflict or be inconsistent 
with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, 
subdivision (b)? 

     

c. Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves 
or dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

     

d. Result in inadequate emergency access?      

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The proposed Project is located north of Little Bravo Lake, south of W. Ropes Avenue and northwest of 
Mulberry Street on APNs 060-170-016 and -015. Woodlake is bisected by SR 216 and SR 245 and the City is 
situated five miles north of SR 198. The proposed Project is approximately 38 acres while the stormwater basin 
will be approximately 17 acres in size.  

 

RESPONSES 

a. Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including 
transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

b. Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision 
(b)? 

c. Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

203



d. Result in inadequate emergency access? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The City of Woodlake intends to design and construct a stormwater 
retention basin and the associated improvements. There would be no permanent staff to remain posted 
onsite. Any personnel assigned to maintenance of the basin would be expected to generate minimal 
vehicle trips to and from the site. This operational aspect would not deteriorate the performance of the 
existing circulation system. The Project will not conflict with any circulation program, plan, ordinance 
or policy. Emergency access will not be impacted, nor will the site plan increase hazards to the local 
roadways. Therefore, this impact is less than significant.  

 

 

 

 

  

204



XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Would the project: 

 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a tribal cultural resource, 
defined in Public Resources Code section 
21074 as either a site, feature, place, 
cultural landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope of 
the landscape, sacred place, or object with 
cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is:  

i. Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 
5020.1(k), or 

 

    

ii. A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and 
supported by substantial evidence, to 
be significant pursuant to criteria set 
forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code section 5024.1. In 
applying the criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of the Public 
Resources Code section 5024.1, the 
lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe.  

 

    

 

 

205



RESPONSES 

a). Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, 
defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 
that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or 
object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 

 i)  Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

 ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource 
to a California Native American tribe. 

Less than Significant Impact. A Tribal Cultural Resource (TCR) is defined under Public Resources Code 
section 21074 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size 
and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are 
either included and that is listed or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources 
or in a local register of historical resources, or if the City of Woodlake, acting as the Lead Agency, 
supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR. As discussed 
above, under Section V, Cultural Resources, criteria (b) and (d), no known archeological resources, 
ethnographic sites or Native American remains are located on the proposed Project site. As discussed 
under criterion (b) implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1 would reduce impacts to unknown 
archaeological deposits, including TCRs, to a less than significant level. As discussed under criterion (d), 
compliance with California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 would reduce the likelihood of 
disturbing or discovering human remains, including those of Native Americans.  

The Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) has performed a Sacred Lands File search for sites 
located on or near the Project site, with negative results. The NAHC also provided a consultation list of 
tribal governments with traditional lands or cultural places located within the project area. An 
opportunity has been provided to Native American tribes listed by the Native American Heritage 
Commission during the CEQA process as required by AB 52. A response was received from the Santa 
Rosa Rancheria requesting that they be retained to provide a Worker Environmental Training Program 
to the construction crew prior to groundbreaking, which will be made a condition of approval. No other 
responses were received by the City in response to the consultation request within the mandatory 
response timeframes; therefore, this Initial Study has been completed consistent and compliant with AB 
52. Any impacts to TCR would be considered less than significant. 

206



Mitigation Measures: No additional measures are required. 

 

207



XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or storm water 
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

     

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably 
foreseeable future development during 
normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

     

c. Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the project that it has 
adequate capacity to serve the project’s 
projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments? 

     

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the 
capacity of local infrastructure, or 
otherwise impair the attainment of solid 
waste reduction goals? 

     

e. Comply with federal, state, and local 
management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The Visalia Landfill plant is approximately 15.5 miles southwest of the proposed Project site, while the 
Woodlake Wastewater Treatment Plant is located less than one half-mile southeast of the site.  

208



RESPONSES 

a. Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment 
or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects? 

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments? 

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? 

e. Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to 
solid waste? 

Less than Significant Impact. The proposed Project includes the construction and operation of a 
stormwater retention basin and the associated improvements. The proposed Project would not require 
service for sewage disposal, water, or solid waste disposal. The City of Woodlake’s utilities and service 
systems would not be affected by the construction and operation of the stormwater retention basin. 
Rather, the City’s stormwater retention capabilities will be greatly improved upon completion of the 
Project. Any impacts would be less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required.  

 

209



XX. WILDFIRE 
If located in or near state responsibility 
areas or lands classified as very high fire 
hazard severity zones, would the project: 

 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan?  

     

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other 
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and 
thereby expose project occupants to, 
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

     

c. Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water sources, power 
lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate 
fire risk or that may result in temporary or 
ongoing impacts to the environment? 

     

d. Expose people or structures to significant 
risks, including downslope or downstream 
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, 
post-fire slope instability, or drainage 
changes? 

     

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

Human activities such as smoking, debris burning, and equipment operation are the major causes of 
wildland fires. Within Tulare County, over 1,029,130 acres (33% of the total area) are classified as “Very 
High” fire threat and approximately 454,680 acres (15% of the total area) are classified as “High” fire 
threat. The portion of the county that transitions from the valley floor into the foothills and mountains is 
characterized by high to very high threat of wildland fires.19 While the City of Woodlake is nestled at the 
base of the foothills, the majority of the City is developed into urban uses or in active agriculture, severely 

19 Tulare County General Plan Background Report. February 2010. Page 8-21.  

210



reducing the risk of wildland fire. According to the Tulare County Background Report Figure 8-2, the 
majority of the City has no threat of wildfire. The proposed Project basin site is relatively flat in an area 
actively utilized with primarily commercial, agricultural and residential uses.  

RESPONSES  

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose 
project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a 
wildfire? 

c. Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, 
emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may 
result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? 

d. Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed Project is located in an area developed with commercial, 
agricultural and residential uses, which precludes the risk of wildfire. The area is flat in nature which 
would limit the risk of downslope flooding and landslides, and limit any wildfire spread.  

To receive building permits, the proposed Project would be required to be in compliance with the 
adopted emergency response plan. As such, any wildfire risk to the project structures or people would 
be less than significant.  

Mitigation Measures: None are required. 

211



 
XXI.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
SIGNIFICANCE 
Would the project: 

 Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

a. Does the project have the potential to 
degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or 
wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-sustaining 
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or 
animal community, reduce the number or 
restrict the range of a rare or endangered 
plant or animal or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of 
California history or prehistory? 

     

b. Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable?  (“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that the incremental 
effects of a project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of 
past projects, the effects of other current 
projects, and the effects of probable future 
projects)? 

     

c. Does the project have environmental 
effects which will cause substantial 
adverse effects on human beings, either 
directly or indirectly? 

     

RESPONSES 

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce 
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict 

212



the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory? 

Less than Significant Impact With Mitigation.  The analyses of environmental issues contained in this 
Initial Study indicate that the proposed Project is not expected to have substantial impact on the 
environment or on any resources identified in the Initial Study.  Mitigation measures have been 
incorporated in the Project to reduce all potentially significant impacts to less than significant. 

 

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?  
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the 
effects of probable future projects)? 

Less than Significant Impact.  CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(i) states that a Lead Agency shall 
consider whether the cumulative impact of a project is significant and whether the effects of the project 
are cumulatively considerable.  The assessment of the significance of the cumulative effects of a project 
must, therefore, be conducted in connection with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and 
probable future projects.  Due to the nature of the Project and consistency with environmental policies, 
incremental contributions to impacts are considered less than cumulatively considerable.  The proposed 
Project would not contribute substantially to adverse cumulative conditions, or create any substantial 
indirect impacts (i.e., increase in population could lead to an increase need for housing, increase in traffic, 
air pollutants, etc.).  The impact is less than significant. 

 

c. Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human 
beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Less than Significant Impact With Mitigation.  The analyses of environmental issues contained in this 
Initial Study indicate that the project is not expected to have substantial impact on human beings, either 
directly or indirectly.  Mitigation measures have been incorporated in the Project to reduce all potentially 
significant impacts to less than significant.

213



LIST OF PREPARERS 
 

Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 
• Emily Bowen, LEED AP, Principal Environmental Planner 
• Travis Crawford, AICP, Principal Environmental Planner 

 
Colibri Ecological Consulting, LLC 

• Jeff N. Davis, Principal Scientist  
 
ASM Affiliates, Inc. 

• David S. Whitley, Ph.D., RPA 
• Robert Azpitarte, B.A. 

 

Persons and Agencies Consulted 
 
City of Woodlake 

• Jason Waters, Community Services Director 
• Rebecca Griswold, Planner I 

 
 
 

214



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 
CalEEMod Output Files  

215



Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - Project includes the construction of a 17-acre stormwater basin.

Construction Phase - The project does not include the construction of any structures as it is the excavation of soil for a stormwater basin.

Grading - Excavation material will be spread on the remaining 21 acres of the 38-acre site.

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces 17.00 Acre 17.00 740,520.00 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization

Climate Zone

Rural

3

Wind Speed (m/s) Precipitation Freq (Days)2.7 45

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

1.0 Project Characteristics

Utility Company

2021Operational Year

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0 0CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 30.00 161.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 6/16/2020 12/16/2020

tblGrading AcresOfGrading 402.50 75.00

tblProjectCharacteristics UrbanizationLevel Urban Rural

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project
San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 1 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

216



2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2020 0.3886 4.2602 2.7521 5.3900e-
003

0.6360 0.1861 0.8221 0.3260 0.1712 0.4973 0.0000 474.1043 474.1043 0.1478 0.0000 477.7987

Maximum 0.3886 4.2602 2.7521 5.3900e-
003

0.6360 0.1861 0.8221 0.3260 0.1712 0.4973 0.0000 474.1043 474.1043 0.1478 0.0000 477.7987

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2020 0.3886 4.2602 2.7521 5.3900e-
003

0.6360 0.1861 0.8221 0.3260 0.1712 0.4973 0.0000 474.1037 474.1037 0.1478 0.0000 477.7981

Maximum 0.3886 4.2602 2.7521 5.3900e-
003

0.6360 0.1861 0.8221 0.3260 0.1712 0.4973 0.0000 474.1037 474.1037 0.1478 0.0000 477.7981

Mitigated Construction

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 2 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

217



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Quarter Start Date End Date Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter) Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)

1 3-25-2020 6-24-2020 1.2130 1.2130

2 6-25-2020 9-24-2020 1.8024 1.8024

3 9-25-2020 9-30-2020 0.1175 0.1175

Highest 1.8024 1.8024

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 3 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

218



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Mitigated Operational

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Site Preparation Site Preparation 4/22/2020 5/5/2020 5 10

2 Grading Grading 5/6/2020 12/16/2020 5 161

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 4 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

219



3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Grading Excavators 2 8.00 158 0.38

Grading Rubber Tired Dozers 1 8.00 247 0.40

Grading Graders 1 8.00 187 0.41

Grading Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 2 8.00 97 0.37

Site Preparation Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Site Preparation Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 247 0.40

Grading Scrapers 2 8.00 367 0.48

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Site Preparation 7 18.00 0.00 0.00 16.80 6.60 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Grading 8 20.00 0.00 0.00 16.80 6.60 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural 
Coating – sqft)

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 75

Acres of Paving: 17

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 5 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

220



3.2 Site Preparation - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0903 0.0000 0.0903 0.0497 0.0000 0.0497 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0204 0.2121 0.1076 1.9000e-
004

0.0110 0.0110 0.0101 0.0101 0.0000 16.7153 16.7153 5.4100e-
003

0.0000 16.8505

Total 0.0204 0.2121 0.1076 1.9000e-
004

0.0903 0.0110 0.1013 0.0497 0.0101 0.0598 0.0000 16.7153 16.7153 5.4100e-
003

0.0000 16.8505

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 5.3000e-
004

3.8000e-
004

3.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.9948 0.9948 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9955

Total 5.3000e-
004

3.8000e-
004

3.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.9948 0.9948 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9955

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 6 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

221



3.2 Site Preparation - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0903 0.0000 0.0903 0.0497 0.0000 0.0497 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0204 0.2121 0.1076 1.9000e-
004

0.0110 0.0110 0.0101 0.0101 0.0000 16.7153 16.7153 5.4100e-
003

0.0000 16.8505

Total 0.0204 0.2121 0.1076 1.9000e-
004

0.0903 0.0110 0.1013 0.0497 0.0101 0.0598 0.0000 16.7153 16.7153 5.4100e-
003

0.0000 16.8505

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 5.3000e-
004

3.8000e-
004

3.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.9948 0.9948 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9955

Total 5.3000e-
004

3.8000e-
004

3.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.9948 0.9948 3.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9955

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 7 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

222



3.3 Grading - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.5246 0.0000 0.5246 0.2708 0.0000 0.2708 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.3582 4.0409 2.5726 4.9900e-
003

0.1750 0.1750 0.1610 0.1610 0.0000 438.5986 438.5986 0.1419 0.0000 442.1449

Total 0.3582 4.0409 2.5726 4.9900e-
003

0.5246 0.1750 0.6996 0.2708 0.1610 0.4318 0.0000 438.5986 438.5986 0.1419 0.0000 442.1449

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 9.4800e-
003

6.8500e-
003

0.0681 2.0000e-
004

0.0200 1.4000e-
004

0.0202 5.3200e-
003

1.3000e-
004

5.4400e-
003

0.0000 17.7956 17.7956 4.9000e-
004

0.0000 17.8079

Total 9.4800e-
003

6.8500e-
003

0.0681 2.0000e-
004

0.0200 1.4000e-
004

0.0202 5.3200e-
003

1.3000e-
004

5.4400e-
003

0.0000 17.7956 17.7956 4.9000e-
004

0.0000 17.8079

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 8 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

223



4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

3.3 Grading - 2020

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.5246 0.0000 0.5246 0.2708 0.0000 0.2708 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.3582 4.0409 2.5726 4.9900e-
003

0.1750 0.1750 0.1610 0.1610 0.0000 438.5980 438.5980 0.1419 0.0000 442.1443

Total 0.3582 4.0409 2.5726 4.9900e-
003

0.5246 0.1750 0.6996 0.2708 0.1610 0.4318 0.0000 438.5980 438.5980 0.1419 0.0000 442.1443

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 9.4800e-
003

6.8500e-
003

0.0681 2.0000e-
004

0.0200 1.4000e-
004

0.0202 5.3200e-
003

1.3000e-
004

5.4400e-
003

0.0000 17.7956 17.7956 4.9000e-
004

0.0000 17.8079

Total 9.4800e-
003

6.8500e-
003

0.0681 2.0000e-
004

0.0200 1.4000e-
004

0.0202 5.3200e-
003

1.3000e-
004

5.4400e-
003

0.0000 17.7956 17.7956 4.9000e-
004

0.0000 17.8079

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 9 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

224



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.2 Trip Summary Information

4.3 Trip Type Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated

Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces 14.70 6.60 6.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY SBUS MH

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces 0.506092 0.032602 0.169295 0.124521 0.019914 0.005374 0.021664 0.110051 0.001797 0.001623 0.005307 0.000969 0.000792

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 10 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

225



5.0 Energy Detail

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Electricity 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

Historical Energy Use: N

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 11 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

226



5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 12 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

227



6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

6.0 Area Detail

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 13 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

228



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Unmitigated 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0155 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.0479 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Total 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 14 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

229



7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

7.0 Water Detail

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0155 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.0479 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Total 0.0633 0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 3.0000e-
004

3.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 3.2000e-
004

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 15 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

230



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category MT/yr

Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 / 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 16 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

231



8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 / 0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

8.0 Waste Detail

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

MT/yr

 Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

 Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category/Year

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 17 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

232



8.2 Waste by Land Use

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

Other Non-
Asphalt Surfaces

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 18 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

233



11.0 Vegetation

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Hours/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

Boilers

Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year Boiler Rating Fuel Type

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type Number

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 3/25/2020 3:02 PMPage 19 of 19

Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project - San Joaquin Valley Unified APCD Air District, Annual

234



 
Road Construction Emissions Model, Version 9.0.0

Daily Emission Estimates for -> Total Exhaust Fugitive Dust Total Exhaust Fugitive Dust
Project Phases (Pounds) ROG (lbs/day) CO (lbs/day) NOx (lbs/day) PM10 (lbs/day) PM10 (lbs/day) PM10 (lbs/day) PM2.5 (lbs/day) PM2.5 (lbs/day) PM2.5 (lbs/day) SOx (lbs/day) CO2 (lbs/day) CH4 (lbs/day) N2O (lbs/day) CO2e (lbs/day)

Grubbing/Land Clearing 1.31 10.95 13.75 5.60 0.60 5.00 1.57 0.53 1.04 0.02 2,317.66 0.59 0.05 2,347.26
Grading/Excavation 6.23 49.12 69.48 8.04 3.04 5.00 3.79 2.75 1.04 0.10 9,822.75 2.88 0.13 9,932.71
Drainage/Utilities/Sub-Grade 3.72 31.53 37.21 6.81 1.81 5.00 2.72 1.68 1.04 0.06 5,840.05 1.22 0.08 5,895.78
Paving 1.79 18.57 16.96 1.01 1.01 0.00 0.90 0.90 0.00 0.03 2,973.65 0.76 0.06 3,010.14
Maximum (pounds/day) 6.23 49.12 69.48 8.04 3.04 5.00 3.79 2.75 1.04 0.10 9,822.75 2.88 0.13 9,932.71
Total (tons/construction project) 0.29 2.34 3.06 0.42 0.14 0.28 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.00 452.10 0.12 0.01 457.03

    Notes:                     Project Start Year -> 2020
Project Length (months) -> 6

Total Project Area (acres) -> 1
Maximum Area Disturbed/Day (acres) -> 1

Water Truck Used? -> Yes

Phase Soil Asphalt Soil Hauling Asphalt Hauling Worker Commute Water Truck
Grubbing/Land Clearing 0 0 0 0 320 40

Grading/Excavation 0 0 0 0 920 40
Drainage/Utilities/Sub-Grade 0 0 0 0 680 40

Paving 0 0 0 0 520 40

CO2e emissions are estimated by multiplying mass emissions for each GHG by its global warming potential (GWP), 1 , 25 and 298 for CO2, CH4 and N2O, respectively. Total CO2e is then estimated by summing CO2e estimates over all GHGs.
 

Total Emission Estimates by Phase for -> Total Exhaust Fugitive Dust Total Exhaust Fugitive Dust
Project Phases 
(Tons for all except CO2e. Metric tonnes for CO2e) ROG (tons/phase) CO (tons/phase) NOx (tons/phase) PM10 (tons/phase) PM10 (tons/phase) PM10 (tons/phase) PM2.5 (tons/phase) PM2.5 (tons/phase) PM2.5 (tons/phase) SOx (tons/phase) CO2 (tons/phase) CH4 (tons/phase) N2O (tons/phase) CO2e (MT/phase)

Grubbing/Land Clearing 0.01 0.07 0.09 0.04 0.00 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00 15.30 0.00 0.00 14.05
Grading/Excavation 0.19 1.46 2.06 0.24 0.09 0.15 0.11 0.08 0.03 0.00 291.74 0.09 0.00 267.62
Drainage/Utilities/Sub-Grade 0.07 0.62 0.74 0.13 0.04 0.10 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.00 115.63 0.02 0.00 105.90
Paving 0.02 0.18 0.17 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.00 29.44 0.01 0.00 27.03
Maximum (tons/phase) 0.19 1.46 2.06 0.24 0.09 0.15 0.11 0.08 0.03 0.00 291.74 0.09 0.00 267.62
Total (tons/construction project) 0.29 2.34 3.06 0.42 0.14 0.28 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.00 452.10 0.12 0.01 414.62

CO2e emissions are estimated by multiplying mass emissions for each GHG by its global warming potential (GWP), 1 , 25 and 298 for CO2, CH4 and N2O, respectively. Total CO2e is then estimated by summing CO2e estimates over all GHGs.
The CO2e emissions are reported as metric tons per phase.

Daily VMT (miles/day)

Total PM10 emissions shown in column F are the sum of exhaust and fugitive dust emissions shown in columns G and H. Total PM2.5 emissions shown in Column I are the sum of exhaust and fugitive dust emissions shown in columns J and K.

Woodlake Stormwater Pipeline

PM10 and PM2.5 estimates assume 50% control of fugitive dust from watering and associated dust control measures if a minimum number of water trucks are specified.

Woodlake Stormwater Pipeline

PM10 and PM2.5 estimates assume 50% control of fugitive dust from watering and associated dust control measures if a minimum number of water trucks are specified.
Total PM10 emissions shown in column F are the sum of exhaust and fugitive dust emissions shown in columns G and H. Total PM2.5 emissions shown in Column I are the sum of exhaust and fugitive dust emissions shown in columns J and K.

Total Material Imported/Exported 
Volume (yd3/day)

235



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 
Biological Resource 

Assessment  

236



Biological	Resource	Assessment		
	
	

Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	
Tulare	County,	California	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	PREPARED	FOR:	
	
The	City	of	Woodlake	
350	N	Valencia	Ave	
Woodlake,	CA	93286	
	

						PREPARED	BY:	
	
						Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
					9493	N	Fort	Washington	Road,	Suite	108	
					Fresno,	CA	93730	

	
	
	
	
	
	
		March	2020

237



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 i	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Contents	
	

Executive	Summary	...........................................................................................................................	iv	

Abbreviations	......................................................................................................................................	v	

1.0	 	Introduction	............................................................................................................................	1	

1.1	 Background	..........................................................................................................................	1	

1.2	 Project	Description	..............................................................................................................	1	

1.3	 Project	Location	...................................................................................................................	2	

1.4	 Purpose	and	Need	...............................................................................................................	5	

1.5		 Consultation	History	............................................................................................................	5	

1.6	 Regulatory	Framework	........................................................................................................	5	

1.6.1		 Federal	Requirements	..................................................................................................	5	

1.6.2	 State	Requirements	......................................................................................................	7	

2.0	 Methods	................................................................................................................................	10	

2.1	 Desktop	Review	.................................................................................................................	10	

2.2	 Reconnaissance	Survey	.....................................................................................................	10	

2.3	 Effects	Analysis	and	Significance	Criteria	..........................................................................	10	

2.3.1	Effects	Analysis	.................................................................................................................	10	

2.3.2	Significance	Criteria	.........................................................................................................	11	

3.0	 	Results	...................................................................................................................................	14	

3.1		 Desktop	Review	.................................................................................................................	14	

3.2		 Reconnaissance	Survey	.....................................................................................................	22	

3.2.1	 Land	Use	and	Habitats	...............................................................................................	22	

3.2.2	 Plant	and	Animal	Species	Observed	..........................................................................	28	

3.2.3	 Special-Status	Species	................................................................................................	31	

3.2.4		 Nesting	Birds	and	the	Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	......................................................	32	

3.2.5		 Regulated	Habitats	.....................................................................................................	32	

4.0	 	Environmental	Effects	..........................................................................................................	34	

4.1	 Effects	Determinations	......................................................................................................	34	

4.1.1		 Critical	Habitat	............................................................................................................	34	

238



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 ii	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

4.1.2	 Special-Status	Species	................................................................................................	34	

4.1.3		 Migratory	Birds	...........................................................................................................	34	

4.1.4		 Regulated	Habitats	.....................................................................................................	34	

4.2	 Significance	Determinations	..............................................................................................	34	

4.2.2	 Cumulative	Effects	.....................................................................................................	38	

4.2.3	 Unavoidable	Significant	Adverse	Effects	...................................................................	38	

5.0	 	Literature	Cited	.....................................................................................................................	39	

	

Figures	
Figure	1.	Project	Site	vicinity	map.	.....................................................................................................	3	

Figure	2.	Project	site	map.	..................................................................................................................	4	

Figure	3.	Reconnaissance	survey	area	map.	....................................................................................	13	

Figure	4.	CNDDB	occurrence	map.	...................................................................................................	15	

Figure	5.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	west,	showing	a	citrus	orchard	where	the	new	

stormwater	basin	will	be	constructed.	.............................................................................................	23	

Figure	6.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	 looking	north,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	northern	

section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	paved	surface	streets.	...................................	24	

Figure	7.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	southwest,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	northern	

section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	a	dirt	road.	.....................................................	24	

Figure	 8.	 Photograph	 of	 the	 Project	 site,	 looking	 east,	 showing	 the	 alignment	 of	 the	 northern	

section	 of	 new	 pipeline	 that	 will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 paved	 walking	 trail	 that	 leads	 to	 the	

Manzanillo	Pump	Station.	................................................................................................................	25	

Figure	9.	Panoramic	photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	west,	showing	Bravo	Lake	(left),	the	

alignment	of	the	northern	section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	a	paved	walking	trail	

(right	of	levee),	and	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	(right).	....................................................................	25	

Figure	10.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	 looking	east,	showing	the	alignment	of	 the	southern	

section	 of	 new	 pipeline	 that	 will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 dirt	 road	 immediately	 east	 of	 the	 new	

stormwater	basin.	.............................................................................................................................	26	

239



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 iii	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Figure	11.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	 looking	west,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	southern	

section	 of	 the	 new	 pipeline	 that	will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 paved	 road,	 surrounding	 residential	

development	(right),	and	an	existing	detention	basin	(left).	...........................................................	26	

Figure	12.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	northeast,	showing	Industrial	Ditch	and	a	citrus	

orchard	where	the	new	stormwater	basin	will	be	constructed.	.....................................................	27	

Figure	13.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	north,	showing	a	small	semi-permanent	wetland	

and	surrounding	citrus	orchard	at	the	southern	Project	site	boundary	where	the	new	stormwater	

basin	will	be	constructed.	.................................................................................................................	27	

	

Tables	
Table	1.	Special-status	species,	their	listing	status,	habitat	requirements,	and	potential	to	occur	on	

or	near	the	Project	site.	....................................................................................................................	16	

Table	2.	Plant	and	animal	species	observed	during	the	reconnaissance	survey.	...........................	28	

	
Appendices	
Appendix	A.	USFWS	list	of	threatened	and	endangered	species	and	critical	habitats……..…….……41		

Appendix	B.	CNDDB	occurrence	records……………………………………………………………………………………..50	

Appendix	C.	CNPS	plant	list………………….……………………………………………………………………………………..56	

 

240



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 iv	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Executive	Summary	
	
The	City	of	Woodlake	(City)	proposes	to	(1)	construct	a	17-acre	stormwater	basin	on	a	38-acre	
site	southeast	of	the	intersection	of	Ropes	Avenue	and	Mulberry	Street;	(2)	install	4611	linear	
feet	of	48-inch	pipeline	 from	the	new	basin	north	to	the	Bravo	Avenue	alignment,	east	along	
Bravo	Avenue	to	Magnolia	Street,	north	on	Magnolia	Street	to	just	south	of	Avenue	344,	then	
east	along	the	north	edge	of	Bravo	Lake	to	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station;	and	(3)	install	about	
930	linear	feet	of	pipeline	from	the	new	basin	along	the	Deltha	Avenue	alignment	to	Palm	Street.		
The	purpose	of	this	project	(Project)	is	to	improve	capacity	for	stormwater	collection	in	the	City.	
Because	the	Project	is	expected	to	receive	state	and	federal	funding,	it	must	meet	environmental	
documentation	and	review	requirements	under	the	California	Environmental	Quality	Act	(CEQA)	
and	the	National	Environmental	Policy	Act	(NEPA).	
	
To	evaluate	whether	the	Project	may	affect	biological	resources	under	CEQA	and	NEPA	purview,	
we	(1)	obtained	lists	from	the	California	Department	of	Fish	and	Wildlife	and	the	United	States	
Fish	and	Wildlife	Service	of	special-status	species	and	designated	and	proposed	critical	habitat,	
(2)	reviewed	other	relevant	background	information	such	as	aerial	images	and	topographic	maps,	
and	(3)	conducted	a	field	reconnaissance	survey	of	the	Project	site.	
	
This	biological	resource	assessment	summarizes	existing	biological	conditions	on	the	Project	site,	
the	potential	 for	special-status	species	and	regulated	habitats	to	occur	on	or	near	the	Project	
site,	 the	 potential	 effects	 of	 the	 Project	 on	 biological	 resources	 and	 regulated	 habitats,	 and	
measures	to	reduce	those	potential	effects	to	a	less-than-significant	level	under	CEQA	and	NEPA.	
	
We	 concluded	 the	 Project	 could	 impact	 two	 non-listed,	 special-status	 species	 and	 nesting	
migratory	birds,	but	effects	can	be	reduced	to	less-than-significant	levels	with	mitigation.		We	
also	 conculded	 the	 Project	 could	 impact	 Industrial	 Ditch	 and	 its	 associated	 semi-permanent	
wetland,	 a	 habitat	 regulated	 by	 the	 United	 States	 Army	 Corps	 of	 Engineers,	 the	 California	
Department	of	Fish	and	Wildlife,	and	the	State	Water	Resources	Control	Board.			
	

241



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 v	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Abbreviations	
	

Abbreviation	 Definition	
CDFW	 California	Department	of	Fish	and	Wildlife	
CEQA	 California	Environmental	Quality	Act	
CESA	 California	Endangered	Species	Act	
CFGC	 California	Fish	and	Game	Code	
CFR	 Code	of	Federal	Regulations	
CNDDB	 California	Natural	Diversity	Data	Base	
CNPS	 California	Native	Plant	Society	
EFH	 Essential	Fish	Habitat	
EPA	 Environmental	Protection	Agency	
FE	 Federally	listed	as	Endangered	
FEMA	 Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency	
FESA	 Federal	Endangered	Species	Act	
FP	 Fully	Protected	
FT	 Federally	listed	as	Threatened	
MBTA	 Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	
NEPA	 National	Environmental	Policy	Act	
NMFS	 National	Marine	Fisheries	Service	
NOAA	 National	Oceanographic	and	Atmospheric	Administration	
SE	 State-listed	as	Endangered	
SSSC	 State	Species	of	Special	Concern	
ST	 State-listed	as	Threatened	
SWRCB	 State	Water	Resources	Control	Board	
USACE	 United	States	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	
USC	 United	States	Code	
USFWS	 United	States	Fish	and	Wildlife	Service	
USGS	 United	States	Geological	Survey	
	
	
	

242



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 1	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

1.0		 Introduction	
1.1	 Background	

The	City	of	Woodlake	(City)	proposes	to	(1)	construct	a	17-acre	stormwater	basin	on	a	38-acre	
site	southeast	of	the	intersection	of	Ropes	Avenue	and	Mulberry	Street;	(2)	install	4611	linear	
feet	of	48-inch	pipeline	 from	the	new	basin	north	to	the	Bravo	Avenue	alignment,	east	along	
Bravo	Avenue	to	Magnolia	Street,	north	on	Magnolia	Street	to	just	south	of	Avenue	344,	then	
east	along	the	north	edge	of	Bravo	Lake	to	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station;	and	(3)	install	about	
930	linear	feet	of	pipeline	from	the	new	basin	along	the	Deltha	Avenue	alignment	to	Palm	Street.		
The	Project	site	currently	supports	a	citrus	orchard.		The	City	will	fund	this	Project	through	the	
Community	Development	Block	Grant	Program.		This	Project	will	help	the	City	improve	capacity	
for	stormwater	collection	in	accordance	with	the	phased	improvements	plan	as	described	in	the	
City	of	Woodlake	Stormwater	Master	Plan.			

Because	the	Project	is	expected	to	receive	state	and	federal	funding,	it	must	meet	environmental	
documentation	and	review	requirements	under	the	California	Environmental	Quality	Act	(CEQA)	
and	the	National	Environmental	Policy	Act	(NEPA).	
	
The	purpose	of	this	biological	resource	assessment	is	to	determine	whether	the	Project	will	affect	
state-	or	federally	protected	resources	pursuant	to	CEQA	and	NEPA	guidelines.		Such	resources	
include	species	of	plants	or	animals	listed	or	proposed	for	listing	under	the	Federal	Endangered	
Species	Act	 (FESA)	or	 the	California	Endangered	Species	Act	 (CESA),	 as	well	 as	 those	 covered	
under	the	federal	Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	(MBTA),	the	California	Native	Plant	Protection	Act,	
and	various	other	sections	of	the	California	Fish	and	Game	Code.		Biological	resources	considered	
here	 also	 include	 designated	 or	 proposed	 critical	 habitat	 recognized	 under	 the	 FESA.	 	 This	
biological	 resource	 assessment	 also	 addresses	 Project-related	 impacts	 to	 regulated	 habitats,	
which	are	those	under	the	jurisdiction	of	the	United	States	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	(USACE),	
State	Water	Resources	Control	Board	 (SWRCB),	or	California	Department	of	 Fish	and	Wildlife	
(CDFW),	as	well	as	 those	addressed	under	the	Wild	and	Scenic	Rivers	Act,	Magnuson-Stevens	
Fishery	Conservation	and	Management	Act	(Magnuson-Stevens	Act),	and	Executive	Order	11988	
pertaining	to	floodplain	management.	

1.2	 Project	Description	

The	Project	will	involve	constructing	a	17-acre	stormwater	basin	(roughly	800	feet	by	1000	feet)	
on	 a	 38-acre	 site	 southeast	 of	 the	 intersection	 of	 Ropes	 Avenue	 and	 Mulberry	 Street;	 the	
installation	of	4611	linear	feet	of	48-inch	pipeline	from	the	new	basin	north	to	the	Bravo	Avenue	
alignment,	east	along	Bravo	Avenue	to	Magnolia	Street,	north	on	Magnolia	Street	to	just	south	
of	Avenue	344,	then	east	along	the	north	edge	of	Bravo	Lake	to	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station;		
and	 the	 installation	of	about	930	 linear	 feet	of	pipeline	 from	the	new	basin	along	 the	Deltha	

243



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 2	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Avenue	alignment	to	Palm	Street.	 	The	new	stormwater	basin	will	retain	stormwater	pumped	
from	 the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	 through	 the	new	pipeline	and	 from	 runoff	 from	 Industrial	
Ditch	and	the	new	Deltha	Avenue	pipeline.				

The	new	stormwater	basin	is	designed	to	accommodate	a	rainfall	intensity	that	corresponds	to	
the	10-day	storm	event	with	25-year	occurrence	frequency.		In	the	case	that	a	higher	intensity	
storm	 is	 encountered,	 the	 excess	 stormwater	 will	 be	 allowed	 to	 overflow	 into	 the	 existing	
Industrial	Ditch	that	flows	to	the	south	and	feeds	Little	Bravo	Lake.	 	The	basin	bottom	will	be	
designed	to	allow	for	water	percolation	into	the	ground.			

1.3	 Project	Location	
	
The	new	stormwater	basin	site	is	a	38-acre	parcel	bounded	by	Ropes	Avenue	to	the	north,	Acacia	
Avenue	 to	 the	east,	Deltha	Avenue	 to	 the	south,	and	Rice	Avenue	 to	 the	west,	 in	 the	City	of	
Woodlake,	Tulare	County,	California	(Figure	1).		The	new	48-inch	pipelines	will	connect	the	new	
stormwater	basin	to	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	on	the	north	edge	of	Bravo	Lake	and	to	existing	
infrastructure	at	Deltha	Avenue	at	 its	 intersection	with	Palm	Avenue	 (Figure	2).	 	 The	38-acre	
parcel	currently	supports	a	citrus	orchard.	 	 It	also	supports	Industrial	Ditch,	a	highly	disturbed	
intermittent	ditch	that	flows	north	to	south	through	the	middle-western	portion	of	the	parcel.		
The	ditch	 forms	a	 small	 semi-permanent	wetland	at	 the	 southern	end	of	 the	 site	of	 the	new	
stormwater	basin	before	eventually	draining	to	Little	Bravo	Lake	to	the	south	(Figure	2).		The	new	
stormwater	basin	site	is	bordered	by	orchards	and	industrial	development	to	the	north	and	west,	
industrial	development	and	a	fallow	disked	field	to	the	east,	and	a	disturbed	field	that	supports	
nonnative	annual	grassland	and	Little	Bravo	Lake	to	the	south.		The	new	pipeline	will	be	installed	
largely	 in	existing	paved	roadways	except	for	a	280-foot	section	that	will	be	 installed	 in	a	dirt	
road	that	runs	through	a	fallow	field	with	nonnative	ruderal	vegetation	at	the	western	terminus	
of	Bravo	Avenue.		The	two	new	pipeline	segments	are	surrounded	by	agricultural,	industrial,	and	
residential	development	(Figure	2).		The	Project	site	is	at	an	elevation	of	430	feet	above	mean	
sea	level	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	at	the	western	foot	of	the	Sierra	Nevada.	
	

244



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 3	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	

Figure	1.	Project	Site	vicinity	map.	

245



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 4	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

 
Figure	2.	Project	site	map.	

246



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 5	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

1.4	 Purpose	and	Need	
	
The	purpose	of	the	Project	is	to	increase	stormwater	collection	capacity	in	the	City	as	part	of	the	
phased	 improvements	plan	described	 in	 the	City	of	Woodlake	Stormwater	Master	Plan.	 	 The	
Project	is	needed	because	the	current	stormwater	collection	capacity	is	inadequate.	
	
1.5		 Consultation	History	
	
Lists	of	all	species	listed	or	proposed	for	listing	as	threatened	or	endangered	and	all	designated	
or	proposed	critical	habitat	under	the	FESA	that	could	occur	near	the	Project	site	were	obtained	
by	Colibri	Associate	Scientist	Joe	Medley	from	the	United	States	Fish	and	Wildlife	Service	(USFWS)	
website	(https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/)	on	25	February	2020	(Appendix	A).	
	

1.6	 Regulatory	Framework	
	
The	 relevant	 federal	 and	 state	 regulatory	 requirements	 and	 policies	 that	 guide	 the	 effects	
analysis	of	the	Project	are	summarized	below.		
	
1.6.1		 Federal	Requirements		
	
Federal	Endangered	Species	Act.		The	USFWS	and	the	National	Oceanographic	and	Atmospheric	
Administration’s	 (NOAA)	 National	 Marine	 Fisheries	 Service	 (NMFS)	 enforce	 the	 provisions	
stipulated	in	the	Federal	Endangered	Species	Act	of	1973	(FESA,	16	United	States	Code	[U.S.C.]	§	
1531	 et	 seq.).	 	 Threatened	 and	 endangered	 species	 on	 the	 federal	 list	 (50	 Code	 of	 Federal	
Regulations	 [C.F.R.]	 17.11	 and	 17.12)	 are	 protected	 from	 take	 unless	 a	 Section	 10	 permit	 is	
granted	 to	 an	entity	other	 than	a	 federal	 agency	or	 a	Biological	Opinion	with	 incidental	 take	
provisions	is	rendered	to	a	federal	lead	agency	via	a	Section	7	consultation.		Take	is	defined	as	
harass,	harm,	pursue,	hunt,	shoot,	wound,	kill,	trap,	capture,	or	collect	or	attempt	to	engage	in	
any	such	conduct.		Pursuant	to	the	requirements	of	the	FESA,	an	agency	reviewing	a	proposed	
action	within	its	jurisdiction	must	determine	whether	any	federally	listed	species	may	be	present	
in	the	proposed	action	area	and	determine	whether	the	proposed	action	may	affect	such	species.		
Under	 the	 FESA,	 habitat	 loss	 is	 considered	 an	 effect	 to	 a	 species.	 	 In	 addition,	 the	 agency	 is	
required	 to	 determine	 whether	 the	 proposed	 action	 is	 likely	 to	 jeopardize	 the	 continued	
existence	of	 any	 species	 that	 is	 listed	or	 proposed	 for	 listing	under	 the	 FESA	or	 result	 in	 the	
destruction	or	adverse	modification	of	critical	habitat	proposed	or	designated	for	such	species	
(16	U.S.C.	§	1536[3],	[4]).	 	Therefore,	proposed	action-related	effects	to	these	species	or	their	
habitats	would	be	considered	significant	and	would	require	mitigation. 
	
National	 Environmental	 Policy	 Act.	 	 The	 purposes	 of	 the	 National	 Environmental	 Policy	 Act	
(NEPA)	 of	 1969,	 as	 amended	 (42	 U.S.C.	 §§	 4321–4347),	 including	 all	 relevant	 subsequent	
guidelines	 and	 regulations,	 include	 encouraging	 "harmony	 between	 [humans]	 and	 their	

247



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 6	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

environment	and	promoting	efforts	which	will	prevent	or	eliminate	damage	to	the	environment…	
and	stimulate	the	health	and	welfare	of	[humanity]".		The	purposes	of	NEPA	are	accomplished	
by	evaluating	the	effects	of	federal	actions.		The	results	of	these	evaluations	are	presented	to	the	
public,	 federal	 agencies,	 and	 public	 officials	 in	 document	 format	 (e.g.,	 Environmental	
Assessments	 and	 Environmental	 Impact	 Statements)	 for	 consideration	 prior	 to	 taking	 official	
action	or	making	official	decisions.		Environmental	documents	prepared	pursuant	to	NEPA	must	
be	completed	before	federal	actions	can	be	implemented.		The	NEPA	process	requires	careful	
evaluation	of	the	need	for	action,	and	that	federal	actions	be	considered	alongside	all	reasonable	
alternatives,	including	the	No	Action	alternative.		NEPA	also	requires	that	the	potential	impacts	
on	 the	 human	 environment	 be	 considered	 for	 each	 alternative.	 	 Detailed	 implementing	
regulations	for	NEPA	are	contained	in	40	C.F.R.	1500	et	seq.	
	
Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act.		The	federal	Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	(MBTA)	(16	U.S.C.	§	703,	Supp.	
I,	1989)	prohibits	killing,	possessing,	trading,	or	other	forms	of	take	of	migratory	birds	except	in	
accordance	with	regulations	prescribed	by	the	Secretary	of	the	Interior.		“Take”	is	defined	as	the	
pursuing,	hunting,	shooting,	capturing,	collecting,	or	killing	of	birds,	their	nests,	eggs,	or	young	
(16	U.S.C.	§	703	and	§ 715n).		This	act	encompasses	whole	birds,	parts	of	birds,	and	bird	nests	
and	eggs.		The	MBTA	specifically	protects	migratory	bird	nests	from	possession,	sale,	purchase,	
barter	transport,	 import,	and	export,	and	take.	 	For	nests,	 the	definition	of	take	per	50	C.F.R.	
10.12	is	to	collect.		The	MBTA	does	not	include	a	definition	of	an	“active	nest.”		However,	the	
“Migratory	Bird	Permit	Memorandum”	issued	by	the	USFWS	in	2003	clarifies	the	MBTA	in	that	
regard	 and	 states	 that	 the	 removal	 of	 nests,	without	 eggs	or	birds,	 is	 legal	 under	 the	MBTA,	
provided	no	possession	(which	is	interpreted	as	holding	the	nest	with	the	intent	of	retaining	it)	
occurs	during	the	destruction	(USFWS	2003).	
	
United	States	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	Jurisdiction.		Areas	meeting	the	regulatory	definition	of	
“waters	of	the	United	States”	(jurisdictional	waters)	are	subject	to	the	jurisdiction	of	the	United	
States	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	(USACE)	under	provisions	of	Section	404	of	the	Clean	Water	Act	
(1972)	and	Section	10	of	the	Rivers	and	Harbors	Act	(1899).		These	waters	may	include	all	waters	
used,	or	potentially	used,	for	interstate	commerce,	including	all	waters	subject	to	the	ebb	and	
flow	of	the	tide,	all	interstate	waters,	all	other	waters	(intrastate	lakes,	rivers,	streams,	mudflats,	
sandflats,	playa	 lakes,	natural	ponds,	etc.),	 all	 impoundments	of	waters	otherwise	defined	as	
waters	 of	 the	United	 States,	 tributaries	 of	waters	 otherwise	defined	 as	waters	 of	 the	United	
States,	the	territorial	seas,	and	wetlands	adjacent	to	waters	of	the	United	States	(33	C.F.R.	part	
328.3).		Wetlands	on	non-agricultural	lands	are	identified	using	the	Corps	of	Engineers	Wetlands	
Delineation	Manual	and	 related	 Regional	 Supplement	 (USACE	 1987	 and	 2008).	 	 Construction	
activities,	including	direct	removal,	filling,	hydrologic	disruption,	or	other	means	in	jurisdictional	
waters	are	regulated	by	the	USACE.		The	placement	of	dredged	or	fill	material	into	such	waters	
must	comply	with	permit	requirements	of	the	USACE.		No	USACE	permit	will	be	effective	in	the	
absence	of	state	water	quality	certification	pursuant	to	Section	401	of	the	Clean	Water	Act.		The	
State	Water	 Resources	 Control	 Board	 is	 the	 state	 agency	 (together	with	 the	 Regional	Water	
Quality	Control	Boards)	charged	with	implementing	water	quality	certification	in	California.	
	

248



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 7	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Wild	and	Scenic	Rivers	Act.		The	National	Wild	and	Scenic	Rivers	System	was	created	by	Congress	
in	1968	(Public	Law	90-542;	16	U.S.C.	§	1271	et	seq.)	to	preserve	certain	rivers	with	significant	
natural,	 cultural,	 and	 recreational	 values	 in	 a	 free-flowing	 condition.	 	 The	Act	 safeguards	 the	
special	character	of	these	rivers,	while	also	recognizing	the	potential	for	their	appropriate	use	
and	development.	
	
Magnuson-Stevens	Fishery	Conservation	and	Management	Act.		The	Magnuson-Stevens	Fishery	
Conservation	and	Management	Act	(Magnuson-Stevens	Act)	(Public	law	94-265;	Statutes	at	Large	
90	 Stat.	 331;	 16	U.S.C.	 ch.	 38	§	 1801	et	 seq.)	 establishes	 a	management	 system	 for	 national	
marine	and	estuarine	fishery	resources.		This	legislation	requires	that	all	federal	agencies	consult	
the	NMFS	regarding	all	actions	or	proposed	actions	permitted,	funded,	or	undertaken	that	may	
adversely	affect	“essential	fish	habitat	(EFH).”		EFH	is	defined	as	“waters	and	substrate	necessary	
to	 fish	 for	 spawning,	 breeding,	 feeding,	 or	 growth	 to	maturity.”	 	 The	Magnuson-Stevens	 Act	
states	that	migratory	routes	to	and	from	anadromous	fish	spawning	grounds	are	considered	EFH.		
The	phrase	“adversely	affect”	refers	to	any	effect	that	reduces	the	quality	or	quantity	of	EFH.		
Federal	activities	that	occur	outside	of	EFH,	but	which	may	affect	EFH	must	also	be	considered.		
The	Act	applies	to	salmon	species,	groundfish	species,	highly	migratory	species	such	as	tuna,	and	
coastal	pelagic	species	such	as	anchovies.	
	
Executive	Order	11988:	Floodplain	Management.		Executive	Order	11988	(42	Federal	Register	
26951,	3	C.F.R.,	1977	Comp.,	p.	117)	requires	federal	agencies	to	avoid	to	the	extent	possible	the	
long-term	and	short-term	adverse	effects	associated	with	occupying	and	modifying	flood	plains	
and	to	avoid	direct	and	indirect	support	of	developing	floodplains	wherever	there	is	a	practicable	
alternative.	
	
1.6.2	 State	Requirements	
	
California	Endangered	Species	Act.		The	California	Endangered	Species	Act	(CESA)	of	1970	(Fish	
and	Game	Code	§	2050	et	seq.	and	California	Code	of	Regulations	(C.C.R.)	Title	14,	Subsection	
670.2,	670.51)	prohibits	the	take	of	species	listed	under	CESA	(14	C.C.R.	Subsection	670.2,	670.5).		
Take	is	defined	as	hunt,	pursue,	catch,	capture,	or	kill	or	attempt	to	hunt,	pursue,	catch,	capture,	
or	kill.		Under	CESA,	state	agencies	are	required	to	consult	with	the	California	Department	of	Fish	
and	Wildlife	when	preparing	CEQA	documents.		Consultation	ensures	that	proposed	projects	or	
actions	 do	 not	 have	 a	 negative	 effect	 on	 state-listed	 species.	 	 During	 consultation,	 CDFW	
determines	whether	take	would	occur	and	identifies	“reasonable	and	prudent	alternatives”	for	
the	project	and	conservation	of	special-status	species.		CDFW	can	authorize	take	of	state-listed	
species	under	Sections	2080.1	and	2081(b)	of	Fish	and	Game	Code	 in	 those	cases	where	 it	 is	
demonstrated	 that	 the	 impacts	are	minimized	and	mitigated.	 	 Take	authorized	under	 section	
2081(b)	must	be	minimized	and	fully	mitigated.		A	CESA	permit	must	be	obtained	if	a	project	will	
result	in	take	of	listed	species,	either	during	construction	or	over	the	life	of	the	project.		Under	
CESA,	 CDFW	 is	 responsible	 for	 maintaining	 a	 list	 of	 threatened	 and	 endangered	 species	
designated	under	state	law	(Fish	and	Game	Code	§ 2070).		CDFW	also	maintains	lists	of	species	

249



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 8	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

of	special	concern,	which	serve	as	“watch	lists.”		Pursuant	to	the	requirements	of	CESA,	a	state	
or	local	agency	reviewing	a	proposed	project	within	its	jurisdiction	must	determine	whether	the	
proposed	project	will	have	a	potentially	significant	 impact	upon	such	species.	 	Project-related	
impacts	to	species	on	the	CESA	list	would	be	considered	significant	and	would	require	mitigation.		
Impacts	to	species	of	concern	or	fully	protected	species	would	be	considered	significant	under	
certain	circumstances.	
	
California	Environmental	Quality	Act.		The	California	Environmental	Quality	Act	(CEQA)	of	1970	
(Subsections	21000–21178)	requires	that	CDFW	be	consulted	during	the	CEQA	review	process	
regarding	 impacts	 of	 proposed	 projects	 on	 special-status	 species.	 	 Special-status	 species	 are	
defined	under	CEQA	Guidelines	subsection	15380(b)	and	(d)	as	those	listed	under	FESA	and	CESA	
and	species	that	are	not	currently	protected	by	statute	or	regulation	but	would	be	considered	
rare,	threatened,	or	endangered	under	these	criteria	or	by	the	scientific	community.		Therefore,	
species	 considered	 rare	 or	 endangered	 are	 addressed	 in	 this	 biological	 resource	 evaluation	
regardless	of	whether	they	are	afforded	protection	through	any	other	statute	or	regulation.		The	
California	Native	Plant	Society	(CNPS)	inventories	the	native	flora	of	California	and	ranks	species	
according	to	rarity	(CNPS	2017).		Plants	with	Rare	Plant	Ranks	1A,	1B,	2A,	or	2B	are	considered	
special-status	species	under	CEQA.		
	
Although	 threatened	 and	 endangered	 species	 are	 protected	 by	 specific	 federal	 and	 state	
statutes,	CEQA	Guidelines	Section	15380(d)	provides	that	a	species	not	listed	on	the	federal	or	
state	list	of	protected	species	may	be	considered	rare	or	endangered	if	it	can	be	shown	to	meet	
certain	specified	criteria.		These	criteria	have	been	modeled	after	the	definition	in	the	FESA	and	
the	section	of	the	California	Fish	and	Game	Code	dealing	with	rare	and	endangered	plants	and	
animals.	 	 Section	 15380(d)	 allows	 a	 public	 agency	 to	 undertake	 a	 review	 to	 determine	 if	 a	
significant	effect	on	species	that	have	not	yet	been	 listed	by	either	the	USFWS	or	CDFW	(i.e.,	
candidate	species)	would	occur.	 	Thus,	CEQA	provides	an	agency	with	 the	ability	 to	protect	a	
species	from	the	potential	impacts	of	a	project	until	the	respective	government	agency	has	an	
opportunity	to	designate	the	species	as	protected,	if	warranted.		
	
California	 Native	 Plant	 Protection	 Act.	 	 The	 California	 Native	 Plant	 Protection	 Act	 of	 1977	
(California	Fish	and	Game	Code	§§	1900–1913)	requires	all	state	agencies	to	use	their	authority	
to	 carry	 out	 programs	 to	 conserve	 endangered	 and	 otherwise	 rare	 species	 of	 native	 plants.		
Provisions	of	the	act	prohibit	the	taking	of	 listed	plants	from	the	wild	and	require	the	project	
proponent	to	notify	CDFW	at	least	10	days	in	advance	of	any	change	in	land	use,	which	allows	
CDFW	to	salvage	listed	plants	that	would	otherwise	be	destroyed.		
	
Nesting	birds.		California	Fish	and	Game	Code	Subsections	3503,	3503.5,	and	3800	prohibit	the	
possession,	incidental	take,	or	needless	destruction	of	birds,	their	nests,	and	eggs.		California	Fish	
and	Game	Code	Section	3511	lists	birds	that	are	“Fully	Protected”	as	those	that	may	not	be	taken	
or	possessed	except	under	specific	permit.		
	

250



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 9	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

California	Department	of	Fish	and	Wildlife	Jurisdiction.		The	CDFW	has	regulatory	jurisdiction	
over	lakes	and	streams	in	California.		Activities	that	divert	or	obstruct	the	natural	flow	of	a	stream;	
substantially	change	its	bed,	channel,	or	bank;	or	use	any	materials	(including	vegetation)	from	
the	 streambed,	 may	 require	 that	 the	 project	 applicant	 enter	 into	 a	 Streambed	 Alteration	
Agreement	with	the	CDFW	in	accordance	with	California	Fish	and	Game	Code	Section	1602.	

	 	

251



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 10	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

2.0 Methods		
	

2.1	 Desktop	Review	
	
As	a	framework	for	the	evaluation	and	reconnaissance	survey,	we	obtained	a	USFWS	species	list	
for	the	Project	site	(USFWS	2020,	Appendix	A).		In	addition,	we	searched	the	California	Natural	
Diversity	Data	Base	(CNDDB,	CNDDB	2020)	and	the	California	Native	Plant	Society’s	Inventory	of	
Rare	and	Endangered	Plants	(CNPS	2020)	for	records	of	special-status	plant	and	animal	species	
near	the	Project	site.		Regional	lists	of	special-status	species	were	compiled	using	USFWS,	CNDDB,	
and	 CNPS	 database	 searches	 confined	 to	 the	Woodlake	 7.5-minute	 United	 States	 Geological	
Survey	(USGS)	topographic	quad,	which	encompasses	the	Project	site,	and	the	eight	surrounding	
quads	(Auckland,	Chickencoop	Canyon,	Exeter,	Ivanhoe,	Kaweah,	Rocky	Hill,	Shadequarter	Mtn.,	
and	Stokes	Mtn.).		Local	lists	of	special-status	species	were	compiled	using	CNDDB	records	from	
within	5	miles	of	the	Project	site.		Species	that	lack	a	special-status	designation	by	state	or	federal	
regulatory	agencies	were	omitted	from	the	final	list.		Species	for	which	the	Project	site	does	not	
provide	habitat	were	eliminated	from	further	consideration.		We	also	reviewed	aerial	imagery	
from	 Google	 Earth	 (Google	 2020)	 and	 other	 sources,	 USGS	 topographic	maps,	 the	Web	 Soil	
Survey	(NRCS	2020),	and	relevant	literature.	
	

2.2	 Reconnaissance	Survey	
	
Associate	Scientist	Joe	Medley	and	Field	Scientists	Jacob	Smith	and	Wendy	Murillo	conducted	a	
field	reconnaissance	survey	of	the	Project	site	on	27	February	2020.		The	Project	site	and	a	50-
foot	 buffer	 surrounding	 the	 Project	 site	 (Figure	 3)	were	walked	 and	 thoroughly	 inspected	 to	
evaluate	 and	 document	 the	 potential	 for	 the	 area	 to	 support	 federally	 or	 state-protected	
resources.		All	plants	except	those	under	cultivation	or	planted	in	residential	areas	and	all	animals	
(vertebrate	wildlife	species)	observed	within	the	survey	area	were	identified	and	documented.		
The	survey	area	was	evaluated	for	the	presence	of	regulated	habitats,	including	lakes,	streams,	
and	other	waters	using	methods	described	 in	 the	Wetlands	Delineation	Manual	and	 regional	
supplement	 (USACE	 1987,	 2008)	 and	 as	 defined	 by	 the	 CDFW	
(https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/conservation/lsa).		The	survey	area	also	included	a	0.5-mile	buffer	
around	the	Project	site	to	evaluate	the	presence	of	potential	nest	trees	for	special-status	raptors	
(Figure	3).	
	

2.3	 Effects	Analysis	and	Significance	Criteria	
	
2.3.1	Effects	Analysis	
	
Factors	considered	in	evaluating	the	effects	of	the	Project	on	special-status	species	included	the	
(1)	presence	of	designated	or	proposed	critical	habitat	in	the	survey	area,	(2)	potential	for	the	

252



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 11	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

survey	area	 to	 support	 special-status	 species,	 (3)	dependence	of	any	 such	 species	on	 specific	
habitat	components	that	would	be	removed	or	modified,	(4)	the	degree	of	impact	to	habitat,	(5)	
abundance	and	distribution	of	the	habitat	in	the	region,	(6)	distribution	and	population	levels	of	
the	species,	(7)	cumulative	effects	of	the	Project	and	any	future	activities	in	the	area,	and	(8)	the	
potential	to	mitigate	any	adverse	effects.	
	
Factors	 considered	 in	 evaluating	 the	 effects	 of	 the	 Project	 on	 migratory	 birds	 included	 the	
potential	for	the	Project	to	result	in	(1)	mortality	of	migratory	birds	or	(2)	loss	of	migratory	bird	
nests	containing	viable	eggs	or	nestlings.	
	
Factors	considered	in	evaluating	the	effects	of	the	Project	on	regulated	habitats	included	the	(1)	
presence	of	features	comprising	or	potentially	comprising	waters	of	the	United	States,	Wild	and	
Scenic	Rivers,	essential	 fish	habitat	 (EFH),	 floodplains,	and	 lakes	or	 streams	within	 the	survey	
area,	and	(2)	potential	for	the	Project	to	affect	such	habitats.	
	
2.3.2	Significance	Criteria	
	
CEQA	defines	“significant	effect	on	the	environment”	as	“a	substantial,	or	potentially	substantial,	
adverse	change	in	the	environment.”	(Pub.	Res.	Code,	§	21068).		Under	CEQA	Guidelines	Section	
15065,	a	project's	effects	on	biological	resources	are	deemed	significant	where	the	project	would	
do	the	following:	
	

a) Substantially	reduce	the	habitat	of	a	fish	or	wildlife	species	
b) Cause	a	fish	or	wildlife	population	to	drop	below	self-sustaining	levels	
c) Threaten	to	eliminate	a	plant	or	animal	community,	or	
d) Substantially	reduce	the	number	or	restrict	the	range	of	a	rare	or	endangered	plant	or	

animal	
	
In	addition	 to	 the	Section	15065	criteria,	Appendix	G	within	 the	CEQA	Guidelines	 includes	six	
additional	impacts	to	consider	when	analyzing	the	effects	of	a	project.		Under	Appendix	G,	which	
also	satisfy	significance	criteria	identified	under	NEPA,	a	project's	effects	on	biological	resources	
are	deemed	significant	where	the	project	would	do	the	following:	

	
e) Have	a	substantial	adverse	effect,	either	directly	or	through	habitat	modifications,	on	any	

species	identified	as	a	candidate,	sensitive,	or	special-status	species	in	local	or	regional	
plans,	policies,	or	regulations,	or	by	the	CDFW	or	the	USFWS.	
	

f) Have	 a	 substantial	 adverse	 effect	 on	 any	 riparian	 habitat	 or	 other	 sensitive	 natural	
community	identified	in	local	or	regional	plans,	policies,	regulations,	or	by	the	CDFW	or	
USFWS.	

253



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 12	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
g) Have	a	substantial	adverse	effect	on	state	and	federally	protected	wetlands	(including,	

but	 not	 limited	 to,	 marsh,	 vernal	 pool,	 coastal,	 etc.)	 through	 direct	 removal,	 filling,	
hydrological	interruption,	or	other	means.	

	
h) Interfere	 substantially	with	 the	movement	 of	 any	 native	 resident	 or	migratory	 fish	 or	

wildlife	 species	 or	 with	 established	 native	 resident	 or	migratory	 wildlife	 corridors,	 or	
impede	the	use	of	native	wildlife	nursery	sites.	

	
i) Conflict	with	any	 local	policies	or	ordinances	protecting	biological	resources,	such	as	a	

tree	preservation	policy	or	ordinance.	
	

j) Conflict	with	the	provisions	of	an	adopted	Habitat	Conservation	Plan,	Natural	Community	
Conservation	Plan,	or	other	approved	local,	regional,	or	state	habitat	conservation	plan.	

	
These	criteria	were	used	to	determine	whether	the	potential	effects	of	the	Project	on	biological	
resources	qualify	as	significant.	

254



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 13	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	3.	Reconnaissance	survey	area	map.	

255



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 14	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

3.0		 Results	
	

3.1		 Desktop	Review	
 
The	USFWS	species	list	for	the	Project	(USFWS	2020a,	Table	1,	Appendix	A)	included	11	species	
listed	 as	 threatened	 or	 endangered	 under	 the	 FESA.	 	 Those	 species	 include	 the	 endangered	
Greene’s	tuctoria	(Tuctoria	greenei),	the	threatened	San	Joaquin	adobe	sunburst	(Psuedobahia	
peirsonii),	 the	 threatened	 San	 Joaquin	 orcutt	 grass	 (Orcuttia	 inaequalis),	 the	 endangered	
Conservancy	 fairy	 shrimp	 (Branchinecta	conservatio),	 the	 threatened	Delta	 smelt	 (Hypomesus	
transpacificus),	 the	 endangered	 blunt-nosed	 leopard	 lizard	 (Gambelia	 silus),	 the	 threatened	
California	 red-legged	 frog	 (Rana	 draytonii),	 the	 threatened	 California	 tiger	 salamander	
(Ambystoma	 californiense),	 the	 threatened	 giant	 garter	 snake	 (Thamnophis	 gigas),	 the	
endangered	California	condor	(Gymnogyps	californianus),	and	the	endangered	San	Joaquin	kit	
fox	 (Vulpes	macrotis	mutica).	 	None	of	 these	 species	 could	occur	 on	or	 near	 the	 Project	 site	
because	the	area	lacks	habitat	for	these	species	or	is	outside	their	current	known	range	(Table	
1).		As	identified	in	the	USFWS	species	list	(USFWS	2020a,	Appendix	A),	the	Project	site	does	not	
occur	in	USFWS-designated	Critical	Habitat	for	any	species.	
	
Searching	 the	 CNDDB	 (CNDDB	 2020)	 for	 records	 of	 special-status	 species	 from	 within	 the	
Woodlake	7.5-minute	USGS	topographic	quad	and	the	eight	surrounding	quads	produced	196	
records	of	44	species	(Table	1,	Appendix	B).	 	Of	those	species,	five	are	not	considered	further	
because	state	or	federal	regulatory	agencies	do	not	recognize	them	through	special	designation	
(Appendix	A).		Of	the	remaining	39	special-status	species,	17	are	known	from	within	5	miles	of	
the	property	(Table	1,	Figure	3).		Of	those	17	species,	one	could	occur	on	or	near	the	property.		
One	additional	species	known	from	outside	the	5-mile	radius	from	the	property	could	occur	on	
or	near	the	property	based	on	the	presence	of	habitat	that	could	support	the	species	(Table	1).		
All	 other	 special-status	 species	 are	 considered	 absent	 because	 the	 property	 is	 outside	 their	
current	known	range,	the	property	 lacks	habitat	for	them,	they	were	not	detected	during	the	
reconnaissance	survey,	or	a	combination	thereof.			
	
Searching	the	CNPS	inventory	of	rare	and	endangered	plants	of	California	yielded	19	species	with	
a	CRPR	(CNPS	2020,	Appendix	C),	16	of	which	have	of	a	rank	of	1B	(Table	1).		Of	those	19	species,	
one	could	occur	on	or	near	the	Project	site.		The	remaining	species	are	not	expected	to	occur	on	
or	near	the	Project	site	due	to	a	lack	of	habitat	or	a	lack	of	records	from	within	5	miles	(Table	1).	
	
The	property	is	underlain	by	San	Joaquin	loam	0-9%	slopes	and	Porterville	clay	0-2%	slopes	(NRCS	
2020).	

256



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 15	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	4.	CNDDB	occurrence	map.	

257



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 16	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Table	1.	Special-status	species,	their	listing	status,	habitat	requirements,	and	potential	to	occur	
on	or	near	the	Project	site.	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

Federally	and	State-Listed	Endangered	or	Threatened	Species	
Green’s	tuctoria3	
(Tuctoria	greenei)	

FE,	 SR,	
1B.1	

Vernal	pools	below	
3445	feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
vernal	pools	on	or	near	
the	Project	site.	

Hoover’s	spurge	
(Euphorbia	hooveri)	

FT,	1B.2	 Vernal	pools	from	sea	
level	to	820	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
vernal	pools	on	or	near	
the	Project	site.	

Kaweah	brodiaea3	
(Brodiaea	insignis)	

SE,	1B.2	 Granitic	soil	or	clay	in	
foothill	woodland	at	
656–1640	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	the	
Project	site	is	below	
known	elevation	range.	

San	 Joaquin	 Valley	 Orcutt	
grass3	

(Orcuttia	inaequalis)	

FT,	 SE,	
1B.1	

Vernal	pools	at	or	
below	2625	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
vernal	pools	on	or	near	
the	Project	site.	

San	Joaquin	adobe	sunburst3	

(Pseudobahia	peirsonii)	
FT,	 SE,	
1B.1	

Grassland	with	bare,	
dark	clay	soils	at	
328-2953	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
grassland	on	the	Project	
site.	

Striped	adobe-lily	
(Fritillaria	striata)	

ST,	1B.1	 Adobe	clay	soils	in	the	
southern	Sierra	
Nevada	foothills	below	
3280	feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	outside	
current	known	range	and	
lacks	adobe	clay	soils.	

Crotch	bumble	bee3	
(Bombus	crotchii)	

SCT	 Open	grassland	and	
scrub	where	it	forages	
on	a	wide	range	of	
floral	resources,	
especially	those	with	
open	flowers	and	
short	corollas;	like	
most	bumble	bees,	it	
likely	nests	
underground.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
grassland	on	the	Project	
site.	Although	this	species	
was	historically	common	
in	the	Central	Valley,	it	is	
now	apparently	mostly	
absent.	

Vernal	pool	fairy	shrimp3	

(Branchinecta	lynchi)	
FT	 Vernal	pools;	some	

artificial	depressions,	
stock	ponds,	vernal	
swales,	ephemeral	
drainages,	and	
seasonal	wetlands.		

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
vernal	pools	or	seasonal	
wetlands	on	the	Project	
site;	Project	site	is	highly	
disturbed.	

258



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 17	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

Vernal	 pool	 tadpole	 shrimp	
(Lepidurus	packardi)	
	

FE	 Vernal	pools,	clay	flats,	
alkaline	pools,	and	
ephemeral	stock	
tanks.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
vernal	pools	on	the	
Project	site.			

Valley	 elderberry	 longhorn	
beetle3	

(Desmocerus	 californicus	
dimorphus)	

FT	 Elderberry	(Sambucus	
sp.)	plants	having	
basal	stem	diameter	
greater	than	1”	at	
ground	level.	

None.	The	Project	site	is	
outside	the	current	known	
range	of	this	species.	

California	tiger	salamander	
(Ambystoma	californiense)	

FT,	ST	 Vernal	pools	or	
seasonal	ponds	for	
breeding;	small	
mammal	burrows	for	
upland	refugia.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
records	from	within	5	
miles;	the	Project	site	
lacks	vernal	pools	and	is	
highly	disturbed.		

Foothill	yellow-legged	frog3	

(Rana	boylii)	
SCT,	
SSSC	

Perennial	rocky	
streams	and	rivers	
with	rocky	substrates;	
open,	sunny	banks	in	
forests,	chaparral,	and	
woodlands.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
perennial	streams	on	the	
Project	site.	

California	condor	
(Gymnogyps	californianus)	

FE,	 SE,	
FP	

Mountain	and	foothill	
rangeland	with	cliffs	
for	nesting	and	
grassland	and	open	
woodland	for	foraging.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	the	
Project	site	is	about	2	
miles	west	of	potential	
foothill	habitat.	

Bald	eagle	

(Haliaeetus	leucocephalus)	
SE,	FP	 Large	trees	for	nesting	

near	permanent	
water.	

None.	While	large	trees	
near	the	Project	site	could	
support	nesting,	and	a	
permanent	water	body	
(Bravo	Lake)	is	
immediately	south	of	the	
Manzanillo	Pump	Station,	
disturbance	associated	
with	nearby	residential	
and	agricultural	
development	likely	
precludes	this	species.	

Tricolored	blackbird3	

(Agelaius	tricolor)	
ST	 Freshwater	emergent	

wetlands,	agricultural	
fields,	irrigated	
pastures,	grassland,	

None.	The	Project	site	
supports	a	small	semi-
permanent	freshwater	
wetland	at	the	southern	

259



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 18	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

and	silage	fields	near	
dairies.	

boundary;	however,	this	
wetland	lacks	dense	cattail	
and	bulrush	thickets	
required	by	this	species	
for	nesting.		

Willow	flycatcher	
(Empidonax	traillii)	

SE	 Riparian	forest	and	
wet	meadow	habitats	
in	the	Sierra	Nevada	
mountains	at	2000–
8000	feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	below	
known	elevation	range.	

San	Joaquin	kit	fox3	
(Vulpes	macrotis	mutica)	

FE,	ST	 Grassland	and	upland	
scrub.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	highly	
disturbed	and	outside	
current	known	range.	

State	Species	of	Special	Concern	
Northern	 California	 legless	
lizard	
(Anniella	pulchra)	

SSSC	 Moist,	warm	loose	
sand	with	vegetative	
cover.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
sandy	soils	on	the	Project	
site.	

Northern	leopard	frog	
(Lithobates	pipiens)	

SSSC	 Wet	meadows,	canals,	
bogs,	marshes,	and	
reservoirs	in	grassland,	
forest,	and	woodland.	

None.	The	Project	site	is	
outside	the	current	known	
native	range	for	this	
species;	an	introduced	
population	is	known	from	
far	northwestern	Tulare	
County.	

Northwestern	pond	turtle		
(Actinemys	marmorata)	

SSSC	
	
	

Ponds,	rivers,	marshes,	
streams,	and	irrigation	
ditches,	usually	with	
aquatic	vegetation.		
Need	basking	sites	and	
suitable	upland	habitat	
for	egg	laying.	

Low.	Bravo	Lake,	
immediately	south	of	the	
Manzanillo	Pump	Station,	
and	a	small	semi-
permanent	wetland	at	the	
southern	boundary	of	the	
Project	site	could	support	
this	species.	

Western	spadefoot3	

(Spea	hammondii)	
SSSC	 Open	areas	with	sandy	

or	gravelly	soil	that	
allow	rain	pools	to	
gather	for	breeding.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	heavily	
disturbed	and	lacks	soils	
that	support	seasonal	rain	
pools.	

Burrowing	owl	

(Athene	cunicularia)	
SSSC	 Grassland	and	upland	

scrub	with	friable	soil;	
some	agricultural	or	

None.	While	several	
ground	squirrel	burrows	
were	present	on	the	

260



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 19	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

other	developed	and	
disturbed	areas	with	
ground	squirrel	
burrows.		

margins	of	the	Project	
site,	habitat	is	lacking	on	
the	Project	site	due	to	
agricultural	and	residential	
development.		Nonnative	
annual	grassland	
immediately	south	of	the	
Project	site	is	unlikely	to	
support	this	species	due	
to	highly	disturbed	site	
conditions.			

American	badger	

(Taxidea	taxus)	
SSSC	 Variable.	Open,	dry	

areas	with	friable	soils	
and	small	mammal	
populations	in	
grassland,	conifer	
forest,	and	desert.	

None.	Surrounding	
residential	and	agricultural	
development	likely	
precludes	this	species	
from	occurring	on	the	
Project	site.	

Pallid	bat	

(Antrozous	pallidus)	
SSSC	 Arid	or	semi-arid	

locations	in	rocky	
areas	and	sparsely	
vegetated	grassland	
near	water.	Rock	
crevices,	caves,	mine	
shafts,	bridges,	
buildings,	and	tree	
hollows	for	roosting.	

None.	Although	marginal	
foraging	habitat	is	present	
immediately	south	of	
Project	site,	the	Project	
site	lacks	roosting	habitat	
required	by	this	species.	

Western	mastiff	bat3	

(Eumops	perotis	californicus)	
SSSC	 Rock	crevices	in	cliff	

faces,	large	boulders,	
granite	slabs,	or	
columnar	basalt.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
rock	outcrops	or	crevice	
habitat	present	on	the	
Project	site.	

California	Rare	Plants	
American	manna	grass	
(Glyceria	grandis)	

2B.3	 Wet	places,	meadows,	
lake	and	stream	
margins	below	6890	
feet	elevation.	

None.	Project	site	is	
outside	current	known	
range;	not	detected	
during	reconnaissance	
survey.	

Calico	monkeyflower3	
(Diplaucus	pictus)	

1B.2	 Bare,	sunny,	shrubby	
areas	around	granite	
outcrops	in	the	
southern	Sierra	
Nevada	mountains	at	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	below	
elevation	range;	no	
granite	outcrops.		

261



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 20	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

442–4101	feet	
elevation.	

Coulter’s	goldfields	

(Lasthenia	 glabrata	 ssp.	
coulteri)	

1B.1	 Saline	areas	and	vernal	
pools	below	3280	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	no	
saline	areas	or	vernal	
pools	on	the	Project	site.		
Not	known	from	within	5	
miles.	

Earlimart	orache	
(Atriplex	 cordulata	 var.	
erecticaulis)	

1B.2	 Saline	or	alkaline	soils	
in	the	Central	Valley	
below	230	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Project	site	lacks	
the	saline	or	alkaline	soils	
this	species	requires,	is	
above	known	elevation	
range,	and	is	more	than	5	
miles	from	the	nearest	
known	occurrence.	

Kaweah	monkeyflower	
(Erythranthe	norrisii)	

1B.3	 Marble	crevices	in	the	
Kaweah	River	and	
Kings	River	drainages	
at	1969–4265	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	the	
Project	site	is	outside	the	
known	elevation	range	for	
this	species.	

Lesser	saltscale	
(Atriplex	minuscula)	

1B.1	 Saline	or	alkaline	soils	
in	the	San	Joaquin	
Valley	below	328	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Project	site	lacks	
the	saline	or	alkaline	soils	
this	species	requires	and	is	
more	than	5	miles	from	
the	nearest	known	
occurrence.	

Madera	leptosiphon	
(Leptosiphon	serrulatus)	

1B.2	 Woodland	and	
chaparral	openings	at	
984–4265	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Property	is	below	known	
elevation	range.	

Mouse	buckwheat	
(Eriogonum	 nudum	 var.	
murinum)	

1B.2	 Sandy	soils	in	the	
Kaweah	River	drainage	
at	1312–2297	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	is	below	
known	elevation	range	for	
this	species.	

Recurved	larkspur3	

(Delphinium	recurvatum)	
1B.2	 Poorly	drained,	fine,	

alkaline	soils	in	
grassland	and	saltbush	
scrub	at	98-1969	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	lacks	alkaline	
soils,	grassland,	and	
saltbush	scrub.	

Sanford’s	arrowhead3	

(Sagittaria	sanfordii)	
1B.2	 Ponds	and	ditches	at	

sea	level	to	650	feet	
elevation.	

Low.	Industrial	Ditch	and	
the	small	semi-permanent	
wetland	at	the	southern	

262



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 21	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Species	 Status1	 Habitat	 Potential	Occur2	

border	of	the	Project	site	
could	support	this	species.	

Sierra	Nevada	monkeyflower	
(Erythranthe	sierrae)	

4.2	 Granitic	soils	in	
vernally	wet	
depressions	and	edges	
of	creeks	at	656–6889	
feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	the	
Project	site	is	below	the	
known	elevation	range	for	
this	species.	

Spiny-sepaled	button-celery3	

(Eryngium	spinosepalum)	
1B.2	 Vernal	pools,	swales,	

and	roadside	ditches	in	
valley	and	foothill	
grassland	at	328–4166	
feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	lacks	vernal	
pools	and	grassland.	

Vernal	barley	
(Hordeum	intercedens)	

3.2	 Vernal	pools	and	dry,	
saline	streambeds	and	
alkaline	flats	below	
1640	feet	elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	lacks	vernal	
pools,	saline	streambeds,	
and	alkaline	flats.	

Vernal	pool	smallscale	
(Atriplex	persistens)	

1B.2	 Alkaline	vernal	pools	in	
the	Central	Valley	
below	377	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	
Project	site	lacks	vernal	
pools	and	is	more	than	5	
miles	from	the	nearest	
known	occurrence.	

Winter’s	sunflower3	
(Helianthus	winteri)	

1B.2	 Steep,	south-facing	
grassy	slopes,	rock	
outcrops,	and	road	
cuts	at	590–1509	feet	
elevation.	

None.	Habitat	lacking;	the	
Project	site	is	flat	and	
below	the	known	
elevation	range	for	this	
species.	

CNDDB	(2020),	CNPS	(2020).	
	

263



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 22	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Status1	 Potential	to	Occur2	

CNDDB	 =	 Recognized	 by	 the	 CNDDB,	 other	 state	 or	
federal	 agencies,	 or	 conservation	 groups	 as	 rare	 or	
imperiled.	

None:	 Species	or	sign	not	observed;	conditions	
unsuitable	for	occurrence.	

FE	=	Federally	listed	Endangered	 Low:	 Species	or	sign	not	observed;	conditions	
marginal	for	occurrence.	

FT	=	Federally	listed	Threatened	 	 	

FP	=	State	Fully	Protected	 	 	

SCT	=	State	Candidate	for	listing	as	Threatened	 	

SE	=	State-listed	Endangered	 	

SR	=	State-designated	as	Rare	 	

ST	=	State-listed	Threatened	 	

SSSC	=	State	Species	of	Special	Concern	 	

	
CNPS	California	Rare	Plant	Rank:	 Threat	Ranks:	

	
1B	–	plants	rare,	threatened,	or	endangered	in	
California	and	elsewhere.	

0.1	–	seriously	threatened	in	California	(>	80%	of	occurrences).	

2B	–	plants	rare,	threatened,	or	endangered	in	California	
but	more	common	elsewhere.	 0.2	–	moderately	threatened	in	California	(20-80%	of	

occurrences).	3	–	plants	about	which	more	information	is	needed.	
4	–	plants	of	limited	distribution.	 0.3	–	not	very	threatened	in	California	(<20%	of	occurrences).	

	

3.2		 Reconnaissance	Survey	
	
3.2.1	 Land	Use	and	Habitats	
	
The	Project	site	consists	of	a	citrus	orchard	that	 is	routinely	sprayed	with	herbicides,	dirt	and	
paved	surface	streets,	and	a	paved	walking	trail	(Figures	5	through	13)	surrounded	by	agricultural,	
industrial,	and	residential	development.		The	new	stormwater	basin	will	be	constructed	in	the	
citrus	orchard,	which	is	bordered	to	the	north	by	citrus	orchards	and	residential	development,	to	
the	 east	 by	 industrial	 development	 and	 a	 recently	 disked	 fallow	 field	 that	 supported	 ruderal	
vegetation,	 to	 the	 south	 by	 a	 previously	 disturbed	 field	 that	 supported	 nonnative	 annual	
grassland,	and	to	the	west	by	citrus	orchards	and	industrial	development.		The	northern	section	
of	new	pipeline	will	run	under	paved	surface	streets	(Figure	6),	under	a	previously	disturbed	dirt	
road	at	the	western	terminus	of	Bravo	Avenue	(Figure	7),	and	eventually	under	a	paved	walking	
path	leading	east	to	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	(Figures	8	and	9).		Bravo	Lake,	a	permanent,	
leveed	waterbody	is	immediately	south	of	the	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	and	about	0.3	miles	east	
of	the	new	stormwater	basin	site	(Figure	9).		The	southern	section	of	new	pipeline	will	be	installed	
under	dirt	(Figure	10)	and	paved	roads	(Figure	11).		It	is	bordered	to	the	north	by	a	recently	disked	
fallow	 field	 that	 supports	 ruderal	 vegetation	 and	 residential	 development,	 to	 the	 east	 by	
residential	development	and	Bravo	Lake,	to	the	south	by	a	large	detention	basin,	and	to	the	west	

264



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 23	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

by	a	previously	disturbed	field	that	supported	nonnative	annual	grassland.	 	 Industrial	Ditch,	a	
highly	disturbed,	dirt-lined	intermittent	drainage	largely	devoid	of	vegetation,	carries	water	from	
north	 to	 south	 through	 the	 middle-western	 portion	 of	 the	 Project	 site,	 where	 the	 new	
stormwater	basin	will	be	installed,	and	forms	a	small	semi-permanent	wetland	at	the	southern	
boundary	of	the	Project	site	(Figures	12	and	13).			
	

	
	

Figure	5.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	west,	showing	a	citrus	orchard	where	the	new	
stormwater	basin	will	be	constructed.		
	

265



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 24	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	6.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	 looking	north,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	northern	
section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	paved	surface	streets.	
 

	
Figure	7.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	southwest,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	northern	
section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	a	dirt	road.	

266



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 25	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	8.	Photograph	of	 the	Project	 site,	 looking	 east,	 showing	 the	 alignment	of	 the	northern	
section	 of	 new	 pipeline	 that	 will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 paved	 walking	 trail	 that	 leads	 to	 the	
Manzanillo	Pump	Station.	
 

	
Figure	9.	Panoramic	photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	west,	showing	Bravo	Lake	(left),	the	
alignment	of	the	northern	section	of	new	pipeline	that	will	be	installed	under	a	paved	walking	trail	
(right	of	levee),	and	Manzanillo	Pump	Station	(right).	
 

267



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 26	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	10.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	 looking	east,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	southern	
section	 of	 new	 pipeline	 that	 will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 dirt	 road	 immediately	 east	 of	 the	 new	
stormwater	basin.	
 

	
Figure	11.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	west,	showing	the	alignment	of	the	southern	
section	 of	 the	 new	 pipeline	 that	will	 be	 installed	 under	 a	 paved	 road,	 surrounding	 residential	
development	(right),	and	an	existing	detention	basin	(left).	

268



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 27	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
Figure	12.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	northeast,	showing	Industrial	Ditch	and	a	citrus	
orchard	where	the	new	stormwater	basin	will	be	constructed.	
 

	
Figure	13.	Photograph	of	the	Project	site,	looking	north,	showing	a	small	semi-permanent	wetland	
and	surrounding	citrus	orchard	at	the	southern	Project	site	boundary	where	the	new	stormwater	
basin	will	be	constructed.	

269



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 28	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

3.2.2	 Plant	and	Animal	Species	Observed	
	
The	 margins	 of	 the	 Project	 site	 supported	 native	 and	 nonnative	 ruderal	 herbaceous	 plants	
including	 field	 hedge	 parsley	 (Torilis	 arvensis),	 tumbleweed	 (Amaranthus	 albus),	 bull	 thistle	
(Cirsium	vulgare),	Canada	horseweed	(Erigeron	canadensis),	prickly	lettuce	(Lactuca	serriola),	and	
common	fiddleneck	(Amsinckia	intermedia).		The	small	semi-permanent	wetland	at	the	southern	
Project	 site	 boundary	 supported	 hydrophytic	 plants	 including	 tule	 (Schoenoplectus	 acutus),	
Common	bog	rush	(Juncus	effusus	ssp.	effusus),	and	seep	monkeyflower	(Erythranthe	guttata).		
In	all,	47	plant	species	(13	native,	34	nonnative)	were	found	during	the	survey	(Table	2).		A	total	
of	two	reptile	species,	25	bird	species,	and	four	mammal	species	were	also	detected	(Table	2).			
	
Table	2.	Plant	and	animal	species	observed	during	the	reconnaissance	survey.	
	

Common	Name	 Scientific	Name	 Status	
Plants	
Family	Amanaranthaceae	
Tumbleweed	 Amaranthus	albus	 Nonnative	
Family	Apiaceae	
Field	hedge	parsley	 Torilis	arvensis	 Nonnative	
Family	Arecaceae	
Date	palm	 Phoenix	dactylifera	 Nonnative	
Family	Asteraceae	
Bull	thistle	 Cirsium	vulgare	 Nonnative	
Canada	horseweed	 Erigeron	canadensis	 Native	
Common	dandelion	 Taraxacum	officinale	 Nonnative	
Common	groundsel	 Senecio	vulgaris	 Nonnative	
Common	sow	thistle	 Sonchus	oleraceus	 Nonnative	
Milk	thistle	 Silybum	marianum	 Nonnative	
Prickly	lettuce	 Lactuca	serriola	 Nonnative	
Rough	cocklebur	 Xanthium	strumarium	 Native	
Sow	thistle	 Sonchus	asper	 Nonnative	
Yarrow	 Achillea	millefolium	 Native	
Family	Boraginaceae	
Common	fiddleneck	 Amsinckia	intermedia	 Native	
Family	Brassicaceae	
Black	mustard	 Brassica	nigra	 Nonnative		
Charlock	 Sinapsis	arvensis	 Nonnative	
Wild	raddish	 Raphanus	sativus	 Nonnative		
Shepherd’s	purse		 Capsella	bursa-pastoris	 Nonnative	
Family	Crassulaceae	
Sand	pygmy	weed	 Crassula	connata	 Native	
Family	Cyperaceae	

270



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 29	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Common	Name	 Scientific	Name	 Status	
Tall	cyperus	 Cyperus	eragrostis	 Native	
Tule	 Schoenoplectus	acutus	 Native	
Family	Euphorbiaceae	
Dove	weed	 Croton	setiger	 Native	
Family	Fabaceae	
Annual	yellow	sweetclover	 Melilotus	indicus	 Nonnative	
Burclover	 Medicago	polymorpha	 Nonnative		
Narrow-leaved	vetch	 Vicia	sativa	ssp.	nigra	 Nonnative	
White	clover	 Trifolium	repens	 Nonnative	
Family	Geraniaceae	
Broadleaf	filaree	 Erodium	botrys	 Nonnative	
Carolina	geranium	 Geranium	carolinianum	 Nonnative	
Cutleaf	geranium	 Geranium	dissectum	 Nonnative	
Redstem	stork’s	bill	 Erodium	cicutarium	 Nonnative	
Family	Juncaceae	
Common	bog	rush	 Juncus	effusus	ssp.	effusus	 Native	
Family	Lamiaceae	
Cheeseweed	 Malva	parviflora	 Nonnative	
Henbit	deadnettle	 Lamium	amplexicaule	 Nonnative	
White	horehound	 Marrubium	vulgare	 Nonnative	
Family	Onagraceae	
Fringed	willowherb	 Epilobium	ciliatum	 Native	
Family	Phrymaceae	
Seep	monkeyflower	 Erythranthe	guttata	 Native	
Family	Poaceae	
Annual	beardgrass	 Polypogon	monspeliensis	 Nonnative		
Annual	bluegrass	 Poa	annua	 Nonnative	
Bermuda	grass	 Cynodon	dactylon	 Nonnative		
Dallis	grass	 Paspalum	dilatatum	 Nonnative	
Italian	ryegrass	 Festuca	perennis	 Nonnative		
Johnsongrass	 Sorghum	halepense	 Nonnative	
Ripgut	brome	 Bromus	diandrus	 Nonnative		
Saltgrass	 Distichlis	spicata	 Native	
Family	Polygonaceae	
Curly	dock	 Rumex	crispus	 Nonnative	
Family	Solanaceae	
Jimson	weed	 Datura	wrightii	 Native	
White	horse-nettle	 Solanum	elaeagnifolium	 Nonnative	
Reptiles		
Family	Phrynosomatidae	

271



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 30	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Common	Name	 Scientific	Name	 Status	
Common	side-blotched	lizard	 Uta	stansburiana	 None	
Western	fence	lizard	 Sceloporus	occidentalis	 None	
Birds	
Family	Accipitridae	
Red-shouldered	hawk	 Buteo	lineatus	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Red-tailed	hawk	 Buteo	jamaicensis	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Sharp-shinned	hawk	 Accipiter	striatus	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Aegithalidae	
Bushtit	 Psaltriparus	minimus	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Anatidae	
Ruddy	duck	 Oxyura	jamaicensis	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Ardeidae	
Great	egret	 Ardea	alba	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Bombycillidae	
Cedar	waxwing	 Bombycilla	cedrorum	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Cathartidae	
Turkey	vulture	 Cathartes	aura	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Columbidae	
Mourning	dove	 Zenaida	macroura	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Rock	pigeon	 Columba	livia	 None	
Family	Corvidae	
American	crow	 Corvus	brachyrhynchos	 MBTA,	CFGC	
California	scrub-jay	 Aphelocoma	californica	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Fringillidae	
House	finch	 Haemorhous	mexicanus	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Icteridae	
Brewer’s	blackbird	 Euphagus	cyanocephalus	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Mimidae	
Northern	mockingbird	 Mimus	polyglottos	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Podicipedidae	
Eared	grebe	 Podiceps	nigricollis	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Western	grebe	 Aechmophorus	occidentalis	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Parulidae	
Yellow-rumped	warbler	 Setophaga	coronata	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Passerellidae	
California	towhee	 Melozone	crissalis	 MBTA,	CFGC	
White-crowned	sparrow	 Zonatrichia	leucophrys	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Passeridae	
House	sparrow	 Passer	domesticus	 None	
Family	Picidae	

272



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 31	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Common	Name	 Scientific	Name	 Status	
Nuttall’s	woodpecker	 Dryobates	nuttallii	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Trochilidae	
Anna’s	hummingbird	 Calypte	anna	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Turdidae	
Western	bluebird	 Sialia	mexicana	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Family	Tyrannidae	
Black	phoebe	 Sayornis	nigricans	 MBTA,	CFGC	
Mammals	
Family	Didelphidae	
Virginia	opossum	 Didelphis	virginiana	 None	
Family	Leporidae	
Desert	cottontail	 Sylvilagus	audubonii	 None	
Family	Mephitidae	
Striped	skunk	 Mephitis	mephitis	 None	
Family	Sciuridae	
California	ground	squirrel	 Otospermophilus	beecheyi	 None	

MBTA	=	Protected	under	the	Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	(16	U.S.C.	§	703	et	seq.);	CFGC	=	Protected	under	the	California	Fish	and	
Game	Code	(FGC	§	3503	and	3513).	
	
3.2.3	 Special-Status	Species	
 
Two	 special-status	 species	 could	 occur	 on	 or	 near	 the	 Project	 site	 based	 on	 the	 presence	 of	
habitat	and/or	CNDDB	occurrence	records	from	within	5	miles	(Table	1).		These	two	species	are	
described	below.	
	
Sanford’s	 arrowhead	 (Sagittaria	 sanfordii)	 (CRPR	 1B.2).	 	 Sanford’s	 arrowhead	 is	 an	 aquatic,	
rhizomatous	perennial	herb	in	the	family	Alismataceae	with	a	CRPR	of	1B.2.		It	is	endemic	to	the	
Central	 Valley	 of	 California	where	 it	 occupies	 ponds	 and	ditches	 below	984	 feet	 elevation;	 it	
flowers	May–October	(Turner	et	al.	2012).	
	
One	CNDDB	record,	from	2018,	is	known	from	within	5	miles	of	the	Project	site	(CNDDB	2020).	
Although	this	species	was	not	detected	during	the	reconnaissance	survey,	which	was	conducted	
outside	of	the	blooming	period,	aquatic	habitat	on	the	property	could	support	this	species.		Due	
low	habitat	quality,	however,	its	probability	of	occurrence	is	low.	
	
Northwestern	pond	turtle	 (Actinemys	marmorata)	 (SSSC).	 	Northwestern	pond	turtle	 (family	
Emydidae)	 is	California’s	only	native	freshwater	turtle.	 	 It	 is	recognized	as	a	Species	of	Special	
Concern	by	the	CDFW	(CDFW	2019).		This	species	is	long-lived,	diurnal,	and	aquatic	(Nafis	2020).		
It	occurs	 in	ponds,	 lakes,	 rivers,	 creeks,	marshes,	 and	 irrigation	ditches	and	 requires	exposed	
banks,	logs,	rocks,	or	cattail	mats	for	basking	(Nafis	2020).		Commercial	harvesting	beginning	in	
the	19th	century,	wetland	destruction	and	degradation	in	the	early	20th	century,	and	introduction	

273



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 32	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

of	nonnative	species	including	other	turtle	species	and	bullfrogs	are	the	primary	contributors	to	
population	declines	(Nafis	2020).		Mating	occurs	in	April	and	May,	after	which	females	travel	onto	
land	to	dig	a	nest,	usually	along	stream	or	pond	banks	(Nafis	2020).	
	
Although	there	are	no	CNDDB	records	known	from	within	5	miles	of	 the	Project	site	 (CNDDB	
2020),	Bravo	Lake	and	the	small	semi-permanent	wetland	along	Industrial	Ditch	on	the	Project	
site	provide	potential	aquatic	habitat,	and	the	nonnative	grassland	south	of	the	Project	site	could	
represent	 potential	 nesting	 habitat.	 	 Due	 low	 habitat	 quality,	 however,	 its	 probability	 of	
occurrence	is	low.	
	
3.2.4		Nesting	Birds	and	the	Migratory	Bird	Treaty	Act	
	
Migratory	birds	could	nest	on	or	near	 the	Project	site.	 	Species	 that	may	nest	on	or	near	 the	
Project	site	 include	but	are	not	 limited	to	California	scrub-jay	(Aphelocoma	californica),	house	
finch	(Haemorhous	mexicanus),	and	northern	mockingbird	(Mimus	polyglottos).		
	
3.2.5		Regulated	Habitats	
	
Two	potentially	regulated	habitats	(Industrial	Ditch	and	an	unnamed	irrigation	canal)	were	found	
on	or	within	50	feet	of	the	Project	site.		Industrial	Ditch	is	a	cnstructed	intermittent	drainage	that	
flows	 north	 to	 south	 through	 the	middle-western	 portion	 of	 the	 Project	 site	where	 the	 new	
stormwater	 basin	will	 be	 constructed	 (Figures	 12	 and	 13).	 	 It	 forms	 a	 small	 semi-permanent	
wetland	 at	 the	 southern	Project	 site	boundary,	 then	drains	 to	 Little	Bravo	 Lake,	Wutchumna	
Ditch,	and	eventually	the	St.	Johns	River.		Industrial	Ditch	is	likely	under	the	jurisdiction	of	the	
USACE,	SWRCB,	and	CDFW.		Industrial	Ditch	and	its	associated	semi-permanent	wetland	will	be	
impacted	 by	 the	 Project.	 	 An	 unnamed,	 excavated	 irrigation	 canal	 associated	 with	 a	 large	
detention	basin	was	10	feet	south	of	the	southern	segment	of	new	pipeline	alignment	that	will	
connect	the	new	stormwater	basin	to	existing	infrastructure	along	the	Deltha	Avenue	alignment.		
However,	 construction	of	 the	new	pipeline	will	 be	 confined	 to	existing	dirt	 and	paved	 roads.		
Therefore,	no	impacts	to	this	feature	are	anticipated.			
	
According	to	the	Wild	and	Scenic	Rivers	Act,	no	waterways	on	or	near	the	Project	site	retain	a	
wild	and	scenic	classification	(USFWS	2020b).	
	
No	marine	 or	 estuarine	 fishery	 resources	 or	 migratory	 routes	 to	 and	 from	 anadromous	 fish	
spawning	 grounds	 were	 present	 in	 the	 survey	 area.	 	 In	 addition,	 no	 EFH,	 defined	 by	 the	
Magnuson-Stevens	 Act	 as	 those	 resources	 necessary	 for	 fish	 spawning,	 breeding,	 feeding,	 or	
growth	to	maturity,	were	present	in	the	survey	area.	
	
The	Project	site	is	within	a	FEMA-designated	flood	zone	classified	as	Zone	X,	otherwise	described	
as	“Other	Flood	Areas”.	 	Parcels	within	Zone	X	have	either	 (1)	a	0.2%	annual	chance	of	 flood	
during	a	100-year	flood	event,	(2)	a	1%	annual	chance	of	flood	(during	a	100-year	flood	event)	

274



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 33	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

with	 average	depths	of	 <	 1	 foot	 or	with	drainage	 areas	 less	 than	1	 square	mile,	 or	 (3)	 areas	
protected	by	levees	from	a	1%	annual	chance	of	flooding	during	a	100-year	flood	event	(FEMA	
2020).		The	semi-permanent	wetland	along	Industrial	Ditch	is	classified	as	Zone	A.		Parcels	within	
Zone	A	 are	without	 base	 flood	 elevation	 and	 subject	 to	 inundation	 by	 the	 1-percent-annual-
chance	flood	(FEMA	2020).	

 	

275



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 34	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

4.0		 Environmental	Effects	
	

4.1	 Effects	Determinations		
	
4.1.1		Critical	Habitat	
	
We	conclude	the	Project	will	have	no	effect	on	critical	habitat	as	no	critical	habitat	has	been	
designated	or	proposed	in	the	survey	area.		
	
4.1.2	 Special-Status	Species	
	
We	 conclude	 the	 Project	may	 affect	 but	 is	 not	 likely	 to	 adversely	 affect	 two	 special-status	
species:	Sanford’s	arrowhead	and	northwestern	pond	turtle.		The	Project	is	not	expected	to	affect	
any	other	special-status	species	due	to	the	lack	of	habitat	or	known	occurrence	records	for	those	
species	near	the	Project	site. 

4.1.3		Migratory	Birds	
	
We	conclude	the	Project	may	affect	but	is	not	likely	to	adversely	affect	nesting	migratory	birds.			
	
4.1.4		Regulated	Habitats	
	
We	conclude	the	Project	may	affect	and	is	likely	to	adversely	affect	one	regulated	habitat.		This	
habitat	consists	of	Industrial	Ditch	and	its	associated	semi-permanent	wetland	at	the	southern	
boundary	of	the	Project	site.			

4.2	 Significance	Determinations	
	
This	Project,	which	will	result	in	permanent	and	temporary	impacts	to	developed	and	disturbed	
land	cover,	a	channelized	ditch	and	a	small	semi-permanent	wetland	will	not:	(1)	substantially	
reduce	the	habitat	of	a	fish	or	wildlife	species	(criterion	a)	as	disturbed	land	cover	is	regionally	
abundant	and	ubiquitous;	 (2)	cause	a	 fish	or	wildlife	population	to	drop	below	self-sustaining	
levels	 (criterion	 b)	 as	 no	 such	 potentially	 vulnerable	 population	 is	 known	 from	 the	 area;	 (3)	
threaten	to	eliminate	a	plant	or	animal	community	(criterion	c)	as	no	such	potentially	vulnerable	
communities	are	known	from	the	area;	(4)	substantially	reduce	the	number	or	restrict	the	range	
of	a	rare	or	endangered	plant	or	animal	(criterion	d)	as	no	such	potentially	vulnerable	species	are	
known	 from	 the	 area;	 (5)	 have	 a	 substantial	 adverse	 effect	 on	 any	 riparian	 habitat	 or	 other	
sensitive	natural	community	identified	in	local	or	regional	plans,	policies,	regulations,	or	by	the	
CDFW	or	USFWS	(criterion	 f)	as	no	riparian	habitat	or	other	sensitive	natural	community	was	

276



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 35	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

present	in	the	survey	area;	(6)	conflict	with	any	local	policies	or	ordinances	protecting	biological	
resources,	such	as	a	tree	preservation	policy	or	ordinance	(criterion	i)	as	no	native	or	heritage	
trees	or	biologically	 sensitive	areas	will	be	 impacted;	or	 (7)	 conflict	with	 the	provisions	of	an	
adopted	Habitat	Conservation	Plan,	Natural	Communities	Conservation	Plan,	or	other	approved	
local,	regional,	or	state	habitat	conservation	plan	(criterion	j)	as	no	such	plan	has	been	adopted.		
Thus,	these	significance	criteria	are	not	analyzed	further.	
	
The	remaining	statutorily	defined	criteria	provided	the	framework	for	criteria	BIO1	through	BIO3	
below.		These	criteria	are	used	to	assess	the	impacts	to	biological	resources	stemming	from	the	
Project	and	provide	the	basis	for	determinations	of	significance:	
	

§ Criterion	 BIO1:	 Have	 a	 substantial	 adverse	 effect,	 either	 directly	 or	 through	 habitat	
modifications,	on	any	species	identified	as	a	candidate,	sensitive,	or	special-status	species	
in	local	or	regional	plans,	policies,	or	regulations,	or	by	the	CDFW	or	USFWS	(significance	
criterion	e).	
	

§ Criterion	 BIO2:	 Interfere	 substantially	 with	 the	 movement	 of	 any	 native	 resident	 or	
migratory	fish	or	wildlife	species	or	with	established	native	resident	or	migratory	wildlife	
corridors,	or	impede	the	use	of	native	wildlife	nursery	sites	(significance	criterion	h).	
	

§ Criterion	BIO3:		Have	a	substantial	adverse	effect	on	state	or	federally	protected	wetlands	
(including,	but	not	 limited	to	marsh,	vernal	pool,	coastal,	etc.)	through	direct	removal,	
filling,	hydrological	interruption,	or	other	means	(significance	criterion	g).	

	
4.2.1	Direct	and	Indirect	Impacts	

	
4.2.1.1			Potential	 Impact	 #1:	Have	a	 Substantial	 Effect	on	any	Special-Status	 Species	
(Criterion	BIO1)	

	
The	Project	could	substantially	 impact	two	special-status	species:	Sanford’s	arrowhead	
(CNPS	 CRPR	 1B.2)	 northwestern	 pond	 turtle,	 a	 California	 Species	 of	 Special	 Concern.		
Construction	disturbance	 could	 result	 in	 the	 incidental	 loss	of	 Sanford’s	 arrowhead	or	
northwestern	 pond	 turtle.	 	 Such	 loss	 could	 constitute	 a	 significant	 impact.	 	 We	
recommend	 that	Mitigation	Measures	B1–B2	 (below)	be	 included	 in	 the	 conditions	of	
approval	to	reduce	the	potential	impact	to	a	less-than-significant	level.	
	
Mitigation	Measure	B1.		Protect	northwestern	pond	turtle.		
	
1. A	pre-construction	clearance	survey	shall	be	conducted	by	a	qualified	biologist	to	

ensure	 that	 northwestern	 pond	 turtle	 will	 not	 be	 impacted	 during	 Project	

277



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 36	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

construction.		The	pre-construction	clearance	survey	shall	be	conducted	no	more	
than	14	days	prior	to	the	start	of	construction	activities.		During	this	survey,	the	
qualified	biologist	shall	search	all	aquatic	habitat	and	all	potential	nesting	habitat	
on	the	Project	site	for	active	turtle	nests.		If	a	turtle	is	found,	it	will	be	allowed	to	
the	 leave	 the	 area	 on	 its	 own.	 	 If	 an	 active	 turtle	 nest	 is	 found,	 the	 qualified	
biologist	shall	determine	the	extent	of	a	construction-free	buffer	to	be	established	
and	 maintained	 around	 the	 nest	 for	 the	 duration	 of	 the	 nesting	 cycle.	 	 The	
biologist	shall	then	work	with	construction	personnel	to	install	wildlife	exclusion	
fencing	along	the	buffer.		This	fencing	should	be	a	minimum	of	36	inches	tall	and	
towed-in	6	inches	below	ground	prior	to	construction	activities.		If	fencing	cannot	
be	toed-in,	the	bottom	of	the	fence	will	be	weighted	down	with	a	continuous	line	
of	long,	narrow	sand	bags	or	similar,	to	ensure	there	are	no	gaps	under	the	fencing	
where	wildlife	could	enter.		One-way	exit	funnels	directed	away	from	construction	
activities	will	be	installed	to	allow	turtles	and	other	small	wildlife	to	exit	the	fenced	
enclosure.	

	
Mitigation	Measure	B2.		Protect	Sanford’s	arrowhead.		
	
2. A	 rare	 plant	 survey	 for	 Sanford’s	 arrowhead	 shall	 be	 conducted	 by	 a	 qualified	

biologist	 during	 the	 appropriate	 season	 (May	 to	 October).	 	 If	 this	 species	 is	
detected,	implement	a	minimum	50-foot	avoidance	buffer	and	avoid	impacts	to	
the	extent	practicable.		If	impacts	are	unavoidable,	salvage	and	relocate	the	plants	
in	consultation	with	CDFW.	

	
4.2.1.2		Potential	 Impact	#2:	 Interfere	Substantially	with	Native	Wildlife	Movements,	
Corridors,	or	Nursery	Sites	(Criterion	BIO2)	
	
The	Project	has	the	potential	to	impede	the	use	of	nursery	sites	for	native	birds	protected	
under	the	MBTA	and	CFGC.		Migratory	birds	are	expected	to	nest	on	and	near	the	Project	
site.		Construction	disturbance	during	the	breeding	season	could	result	in	the	incidental	
loss	of	fertile	eggs	or	nestlings	or	otherwise	lead	to	nest	abandonment.		Disturbance	that	
causes	nest	abandonment	or	loss	of	reproductive	effort	can	be	considered	take	under	the	
MBTA	and	CFGC.		Loss	of	fertile	eggs	or	nesting	birds,	or	any	activities	resulting	in	nest	
abandonment,	could	constitute	a	significant	effect	if	the	species	is	particularly	rare	in	the	
region.		Construction	activities	such	as	excavating,	trenching,	and	grading	that	disturb	a	
nesting	bird	on	the	Project	site	or	immediately	adjacent	to	the	construction	zone	could	
constitute	a	significant	effect.		We	recommend	that	the	mitigation	measure	B3	(below)	
be	included	in	the	conditions	of	approval	to	reduce	the	potential	effect	to	a	 less-than-
significant	level.	
	
	
	

278



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 37	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

Mitigation	Measure	B3.		Protect	nesting	birds.		
	
3. To	 the	extent	practicable,	 construction	 shall	be	 scheduled	 to	avoid	 the	nesting	

season,	which	extends	from	February	through	August.	
	

4. If	it	is	not	possible	to	schedule	construction	between	September	and	January,	a	
pre-construction	 clearance	 survey	 for	 nesting	 birds	 shall	 be	 conducted	 by	 a	
qualified	 biologist	 to	 ensure	 that	 no	 active	 nests	 will	 be	 disturbed	 during	 the	
implementation	 of	 the	 Project.	 	 A	 pre-construction	 clearance	 survey	 shall	 be	
conducted	 no	 more	 than	 14	 days	 prior	 to	 the	 start	 of	 construction	 activities.		
During	this	survey,	the	qualified	biologist	shall	inspect	all	potential	nest	substrates	
in	and	immediately	adjacent	to	the	impact	areas,	including	within	250	feet	in	the	
case	of	raptor	nests.		If	an	active	nest	is	found	close	enough	to	the	construction	
area	to	be	disturbed	by	these	activities,	the	qualified	biologist	shall	determine	the	
extent	of	a	construction-free	buffer	to	be	established	around	the	nest.	 	 If	work	
cannot	proceed	without	disturbing	the	nesting	birds,	work	may	need	to	be	halted	
or	redirected	to	other	areas	until	nesting	and	fledging	are	completed	or	the	nest	
has	failed	for	non-construction	related	reasons.			

	
4.2.1.3		Potential	 Impact	 #3:	 Have	 a	 substantial	 adverse	 effect	 on	 state	 or	 federally	
protected	 wetlands	 (including,	 but	 not	 limited	 to	 marsh,	 vernal	 pool,	 coastal,	 etc.)	
through	 direct	 removal,	 filling,	 hydrological	 interruption,	 or	 other	 means	 (Criterion	
BIO3)	
	
The	Project	will	permanently	impact	Industrial	Ditch	and	its	associated	semi-permanent	
wetland	 at	 the	 southern	 Project	 site	 boundary.	 	 As	 Industrial	 Ditch	 is	 hydrologically	
connected	to	the	St.	 Johns	River,	a	navigable	water,	 Industrial	Ditch	and	 its	associated	
semi-permanent	wetland	are	under	the	jurisdiction	of	the	USACE	and	therefore	subject	
to	provisions	of	the	Clean	Water	Act	(CWA).		Construction	of	the	new	stormwater	basin	
will	permanently	impact	roughly	1000	linear	feet	of	Industrial	Ditch,	including	roughly	120	
linear	 feet	of	 semi-permanent	 state	and	 federally	protected	wetland.	 	 Such	 loss	 could	
constitute	a	significant	impact.		We	recommend	that	the	mitigation	measure	B4	(below)	
be	included	in	the	conditions	of	approval	to	reduce	the	potential	impact	to	a	less-than-
significant	level.	
	
Mitigation	Measure	B4.		Obtain	permits	from	the	USACE	and	the	SWRCB	for	impacts	to	
jurisdictional	waters.		
	
5. Obtain	a	CWA	Section	404	Nationwide	Permit	in	consultation	with	the	USACE	for	

work	impacting	Industrial	Ditch	and	its	associated	semi-permanent	wetland.		
	

279



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 38	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

6. Obtain	a	CWA	Section	401	water	quality	certification	from	the	SWRCB	for	work	
impacting	Industrial	Ditch	and	its	associated	semi-permanent	wetland.			

	
4.2.2	 Cumulative	Effects	
	
The	Project	 involves	constructing	a	new	stormwater	basin	and	pipeline	infrastructure	to	meet	
the	growing	needs	of	the	community.		Implementing	the	Project	will	likely	facilitate	development	
in	similar	areas	of	the	City.		However,	as	such	development	will	likely	occur	in	areas	previously	
developed	for	agriculture	or	industry,	the	cumulative	effects	on	biological	resources	are	expected	
to	be	negligible.	
	
4.2.3	 Unavoidable	Significant	Adverse	Effects	
	
No	 unavoidable	 significant	 adverse	 effects	 on	 biological	 resources	 would	 occur	 from	
implementing	the	Project.	
	

 	

280



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 39	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

5.0		 Literature	Cited	
	
California	 Department	 of	 Fish	 and	Wildlife	 (CDFW)	 Natural	 Diversity	 Database.	 2019.	 Special	

Animals	List.	Periodic	publication.	67	pp.	
	
California	Natural	Diversity	Database	(CNDDB).	2020.	RareFind	[Internet].	California	Department	

of	 Fish	 and	 Wildlife	 [Commercial	 Version	 Dated	 February	 1,	 2020].	
https://map.dfg.ca.gov/rarefind/view/RareFind.aspx.	

	
California	Native	Plant	Society	(CNPS).	2020.	 Inventory	of	Rare	and	Endangered	Plants	 (online	

edition,	 v8-02).	 California	 Native	 Plant	 Society,	 Sacramento,	 CA.	
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org.	Accessed	23	February	2020.		

	
Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency	(FEMA).	2020.	Map	Number	FM06107C0686E,	Tulare	

County,	 California.	 National	 Flood	 Insurance	 Program.	 Map	 revised	 June	 16,	 2009.	
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/.	Accessed	03	March	2020.	

	
Nafis,	 G.	 2020.	 California	 Herps	 -	 A	 Guide	 to	 the	 Amphibians	 and	 Reptiles	 of	 California.	

http://www.californiaherps.com/.	Accessed	23	February	2020.	
	
Natural	Resources	Conservation	Service	(NRCS).	2020.	United	States	Department	of	Agriculture.	

Web	Soil	Survey.	https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/.	Accessed	26	February	2020.	
	
Turner,	C.	E.,	R.	R.	Haynes,	and	C.	B.	Hellquist.	2012.	Sagittaria	sanfordii,	in	Jepson	Flora	Project	

(eds.),	Jepson	Flora,	http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/eflora/eflora_display.php?tid=42633.	
Accessed	23	February	2020.	
	

United	States	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	(USACE).	1987.	Corps	of	Engineers	Wetlands	Delineation	
Manual.	Wetland	Research	Program	Technical	Report	Y-87-1.		

United	 Sates	 Army	 Corps	 of	 Engineers	 (USACE).	 2008.	 Regional	 Supplement	 to	 the	 Corps	 of	
Engineers	Wetland	Delineation	Manual:	Arid	West	Region	(Version	2.0).	ERDC/EL	TR-08-
28.	 http://www.usace.army.mil/Portals/2/docs/civilworks/regulatory/reg_supp/trel08-
28.pdf.	Accessed	10	October	2017.	

	
United	 States	 Fish	 and	Wildlife	 Service	 (USFWS).	 2003.	Migratory	 Bird	 Permit	Memorandum.	

United	Stated	Department	of	the	Interior,	Washington,	DC.	April	15,	2003.	
	
United	 States	 Fish	 and	 Wildlife	 Service	 (USFWS).	 2020a.	 IPaC	 Information	 for	 Planning	 and	

Conservation.	https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/.	Accessed	24	February	2020.	
	

281



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 40	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

United	States	Fish	and	Wildlife	Service	(USFWS).	2020b.	National	Wild	and	Scenic	Rivers	System.	 
 https://www.rivers.gov/california.php.	Accessed	24	February	2020.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
 
 
  

282



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 41	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix	A.	USFWS	list	of	threatened	and	endangered	species	and	critical	
habitats.		
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

283



February 24, 2020

United States Department of the Interior
FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

Sacramento Fish And Wildlife Office
Federal Building

2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605
Sacramento, CA 95825-1846

Phone: (916) 414-6600 Fax: (916) 414-6713

In Reply Refer To: 
Consultation Code: 08ESMF00-2020-SLI-1137 
Event Code: 08ESMF00-2020-E-03632  
Project Name: Woodlake stormwater basin
 
Subject: List of threatened and endangered species that may occur in your proposed project 

location, and/or may be affected by your proposed project

To Whom It May Concern:

The enclosed species list identifies threatened, endangered, proposed and candidate species, as 
well as proposed and final designated critical habitat, under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (Service) that may occur within the boundary of your proposed project and/or 
may be affected by your proposed project. The species list fulfills the requirements of the Service 
under section 7(c) of the Endangered Species Act (Act) of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. 1531 et 
seq.).

Please follow the link below to see if your proposed project has the potential to affect other 
species or their habitats under the jurisdiction of the National Marine Fisheries Service:

http://www.nwr.noaa.gov/protected_species/species_list/species_lists.html

New information based on updated surveys, changes in the abundance and distribution of 
species, changed habitat conditions, or other factors could change this list. Please feel free to 
contact us if you need more current information or assistance regarding the potential impacts to 
federally proposed, listed, and candidate species and federally designated and proposed critical 
habitat. Please note that under 50 CFR 402.12(e) of the regulations implementing section 7 of the 
Act, the accuracy of this species list should be verified after 90 days. This verification can be 
completed formally or informally as desired. The Service recommends that verification be 
completed by visiting the ECOS-IPaC website at regular intervals during project planning and 
implementation for updates to species lists and information. An updated list may be requested 
through the ECOS-IPaC system by completing the same process used to receive the enclosed list.

284



The purpose of the Act is to provide a means whereby threatened and endangered species and the 
ecosystems upon which they depend may be conserved. Under sections 7(a)(1) and 7(a)(2) of the 
Act and its implementing regulations (50 CFR 402 et seq.), Federal agencies are required to 
utilize their authorities to carry out programs for the conservation of threatened and endangered 
species and to determine whether projects may affect threatened and endangered species and/or 
designated critical habitat.

A Biological Assessment is required for construction projects (or other undertakings having 
similar physical impacts) that are major Federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the 
human environment as defined in the National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 4332(2) 
(c)). For projects other than major construction activities, the Service suggests that a biological 
evaluation similar to a Biological Assessment be prepared to determine whether the project may 
affect listed or proposed species and/or designated or proposed critical habitat. Recommended 
contents of a Biological Assessment are described at 50 CFR 402.12.

If a Federal agency determines, based on the Biological Assessment or biological evaluation, that 
listed species and/or designated critical habitat may be affected by the proposed project, the 
agency is required to consult with the Service pursuant to 50 CFR 402. In addition, the Service 
recommends that candidate species, proposed species and proposed critical habitat be addressed 
within the consultation. More information on the regulations and procedures for section 7 
consultation, including the role of permit or license applicants, can be found in the "Endangered 
Species Consultation Handbook" at:

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/esa-library/pdf/TOC-GLOS.PDF

Please be aware that bald and golden eagles are protected under the Bald and Golden Eagle 
Protection Act (16 U.S.C. 668 et seq.), and projects affecting these species may require 
development of an eagle conservation plan (http://www.fws.gov/windenergy/ 
eagle_guidance.html). Additionally, wind energy projects should follow the wind energy 
guidelines (http://www.fws.gov/windenergy/) for minimizing impacts to migratory birds and 
bats.

Guidance for minimizing impacts to migratory birds for projects including communications 
towers (e.g., cellular, digital television, radio, and emergency broadcast) can be found at: http:// 
www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Hazards/towers/towers.htm; http:// 
www.towerkill.com; and http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/CurrentBirdIssues/Hazards/towers/ 
comtow.html.

We appreciate your concern for threatened and endangered species. The Service encourages 
Federal agencies to include conservation of threatened and endangered species into their project 
planning to further the purposes of the Act. Please include the Consultation Tracking Number in 
the header of this letter with any request for consultation or correspondence about your project 
that you submit to our office.

285



▪

Attachment(s):

Official Species List

286



Official Species List
This list is provided pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act, and fulfills the 
requirement for Federal agencies to "request of the Secretary of the Interior information whether 
any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be present in the area of a proposed 
action".

This species list is provided by:

Sacramento Fish And Wildlife Office
Federal Building
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605
Sacramento, CA 95825-1846
(916) 414-6600

287



Project Summary
Consultation Code: 08ESMF00-2020-SLI-1137

Event Code: 08ESMF00-2020-E-03632

Project Name: Woodlake stormwater basin

Project Type: WATER SUPPLY / DELIVERY

Project Description: The City of Woodlake proposes to (1) construct a 17-acre stormwater 
basin on a 38-acre site southeast of the intersection of Ropes Avenue and 
Mulberry Street; (2) install 4611 linear feet of 48-inch pipeline from the 
new basin north to the Bravo Avenue alignment, east along Bravo Avenue 
to Magnolia Street, north on Magnolia Street to just south of Avenue 344, 
then east along the north edge of Bravo Lake to the Manzanillo Pump 
Station; and (3) install about 930 linear feet of pipeline from the new 
basin along the Deltha Avenue alignment to Palm Street.

Project Location:
Approximate location of the project can be viewed in Google Maps: https:// 
www.google.com/maps/place/36.40984283833346N119.10301307337312W

Counties: Tulare, CA

288

https://www.google.com/maps/place/36.40984283833346N119.10301307337312W
https://www.google.com/maps/place/36.40984283833346N119.10301307337312W


1.

Endangered Species Act Species
There is a total of 11 threatened, endangered, or candidate species on this species list.

Species on this list should be considered in an effects analysis for your project and could include 
species that exist in another geographic area. For example, certain fish may appear on the species 
list because a project could affect downstream species.

IPaC does not display listed species or critical habitats under the sole jurisdiction of NOAA 
Fisheries , as USFWS does not have the authority to speak on behalf of NOAA and the 
Department of Commerce.

See the "Critical habitats" section below for those critical habitats that lie wholly or partially 
within your project area under this office's jurisdiction. Please contact the designated FWS office 
if you have questions.

NOAA Fisheries, also known as the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), is an 
office of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration within the Department of 
Commerce.

Mammals
NAME STATUS

San Joaquin Kit Fox Vulpes macrotis mutica
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2873

Endangered

Birds
NAME STATUS

California Condor Gymnogyps californianus
Population: U.S.A. only, except where listed as an experimental population
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/8193

Endangered

1

289

https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2873
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/8193


Reptiles
NAME STATUS

Blunt-nosed Leopard Lizard Gambelia silus
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/625

Endangered

Giant Garter Snake Thamnophis gigas
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/4482

Threatened

Amphibians
NAME STATUS

California Red-legged Frog Rana draytonii
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2891
Species survey guidelines:  

https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/guideline/survey/population/205/office/11420.pdf

Threatened

California Tiger Salamander Ambystoma californiense
Population: U.S.A. (Central CA DPS)
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2076

Threatened

Fishes
NAME STATUS

Delta Smelt Hypomesus transpacificus
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/321

Threatened

Crustaceans
NAME STATUS

Conservancy Fairy Shrimp Branchinecta conservatio
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/8246

Endangered

290

https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/625
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/4482
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2891
https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/guideline/survey/population/205/office/11420.pdf
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2076
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/321
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/8246


Flowering Plants
NAME STATUS

Greene's Tuctoria Tuctoria greenei
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/1573

Endangered

San Joaquin Adobe Sunburst Pseudobahia peirsonii
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2931

Threatened

San Joaquin Orcutt Grass Orcuttia inaequalis
There is final critical habitat for this species. Your location is outside the critical habitat.
Species profile: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/5506

Threatened

Critical habitats
THERE ARE NO CRITICAL HABITATS WITHIN YOUR PROJECT AREA UNDER THIS OFFICE'S 
JURISDICTION.

291

https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/1573
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/2931
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/5506


 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 50	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Appendix	B.	CNDDB	occurrence	records.		
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

292



Elev. Element Occ. Ranks Population Status Presence

Name (Scientific/Common)
CNDDB 
Ranks

Listing Status 
(Fed/State) Other Lists

Range
(ft.)

Total 
EO's A B C D X U

Historic 
> 20 yr

Recent 
<= 20 yr Extant

Poss. 
Extirp. Extirp.

Agelaius tricolor

tricolored blackbird

G2G3

S1S2

None

Threatened

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_EN-Endangered
NABCI_RWL-Red 
Watch List
USFWS_BCC-Birds of 
Conservation Concern

505

540

955
S:2

0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 2 0 0

Ambystoma californiense

California tiger salamander

G2G3

S2S3

Threatened

Threatened

CDFW_WL-Watch List
IUCN_VU-Vulnerable

345

347

1231
S:2

0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 0

Anniella pulchra

northern California legless lizard

G3

S3

None

None

CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
USFS_S-Sensitive

377

1,000

375
S:2

1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 2 0 0

Antrozous pallidus

pallid bat

G5

S3

None

None

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern
USFS_S-Sensitive
WBWG_H-High 
Priority

368

368

420
S:1

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Ardea herodias

great blue heron

G5

S4

None

None

CDF_S-Sensitive
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern

500

500

155
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Athene cunicularia

burrowing owl

G4

S3

None

None

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern
USFWS_BCC-Birds of 
Conservation Concern

343

343

1989
S:1

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Atriplex cordulata var. erecticaulis

Earlimart orache

G3T1

S1

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive

335

335

21
S:1

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Query Criteria: Quad<span style='color:Red'> IS </span>(Woodlake (3611941)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Auckland (3611951)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Chickencoop Canyon 
(3611838)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Exeter (3611932)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Ivanhoe (3611942)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Kaweah (3611848)<span 
style='color:Red'> OR </span>Rocky Hill (3611931)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Shadequarter Mtn. (3611858)<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Stokes Mtn. (3611952))<br 
/><span style='color:Red'> AND </span>Taxonomic Group<span style='color:Red'> IS </span>(Fish<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Amphibians<span style='color:Red'> OR 
</span>Reptiles<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Birds<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Mammals<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Mollusks<span style='color:Red'> OR 
</span>Arachnids<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Crustaceans<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Insects<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Ferns<span style='color:Red'> OR 
</span>Gymnosperms<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Monocots<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Dicots<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Lichens<span style='color:Red'> OR 
</span>Bryophytes<span style='color:Red'> OR </span>Fungi)

Report Printed on Wednesday, February 26, 2020

Page 1 of 5Commercial Version -- Dated February, 1 2020 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 8/1/2020

Summary Table Report
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database

293



Elev. Element Occ. Ranks Population Status Presence

Name (Scientific/Common)
CNDDB 
Ranks

Listing Status 
(Fed/State) Other Lists

Range
(ft.)

Total 
EO's A B C D X U

Historic 
> 20 yr

Recent 
<= 20 yr Extant

Poss. 
Extirp. Extirp.

Atriplex minuscula

lesser saltscale

G2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1 335

335

52
S:1

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Atriplex persistens

vernal pool smallscale

G2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2 345

355

41
S:2

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0

Batrachoseps regius

Kings River slender salamander

G2

S2S3

None

None

IUCN_VU-Vulnerable
USFS_S-Sensitive

2,000

5,500

14
S:2

0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 0 0

Bombus crotchii

Crotch bumble bee

G3G4

S1S2

None

Candidate 
Endangered

450

1,000

234
S:5

0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 5 0 0

Branchinecta lynchi

vernal pool fairy shrimp

G3

S3

Threatened

None

IUCN_VU-Vulnerable 335

950

770
S:19

2 3 0 0 0 14 6 13 19 0 0

Brodiaea insignis

Kaweah brodiaea

G1

S1

None

Endangered

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive
USFS_S-Sensitive

560

3,300

27
S:11

2 4 2 0 0 3 10 1 11 0 0

Chrysis tularensis

Tulare cuckoo wasp

G1G2

S1S2

None

None

450

450

5
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Delphinium recurvatum

recurved larkspur

G2?

S2?

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive
SB_SBBG-Santa 
Barbara Botanic 
Garden

340

440

120
S:4

0 0 0 0 1 3 2 2 3 0 1

Desmocerus californicus dimorphus

valley elderberry longhorn beetle

G3T2

S2

Threatened

None

405

960

271
S:2

0 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 2 0 0

Diplacus pictus

calico monkeyflower

G2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive
SB_RSABG-Rancho 
Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden

600

600

73
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Empidonax traillii

willow flycatcher

G5

S1S2

None

Endangered

IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern
USFS_S-Sensitive
USFWS_BCC-Birds of 
Conservation Concern

570

570

90
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Emys marmorata

western pond turtle

G3G4

S3

None

None

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_VU-Vulnerable
USFS_S-Sensitive

70

1,000

1385
S:3

0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 3 0 0

Report Printed on Wednesday, February 26, 2020

Page 2 of 5Commercial Version -- Dated February, 1 2020 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 8/1/2020

Summary Table Report
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database

294



Elev. Element Occ. Ranks Population Status Presence

Name (Scientific/Common)
CNDDB 
Ranks

Listing Status 
(Fed/State) Other Lists

Range
(ft.)

Total 
EO's A B C D X U

Historic 
> 20 yr

Recent 
<= 20 yr Extant

Poss. 
Extirp. Extirp.

Eriogonum nudum var. murinum

mouse buckwheat

G5T2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive

1,280

3,400

11
S:4

0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 0 0

Eryngium spinosepalum

spiny-sepaled button-celery

G2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2 335

2,000

108
S:20

3 9 2 0 1 5 11 9 19 1 0

Erythranthe norrisii

Kaweah monkeyflower

G2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.3
BLM_S-Sensitive
SB_RSABG-Rancho 
Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden
USFS_S-Sensitive

1,200

2,700

8
S:2

0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 0 0

Eumops perotis californicus

western mastiff bat

G5T4

S3S4

None

None

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
WBWG_H-High 
Priority

450

940

296
S:5

0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 5 0 0

Euphorbia hooveri

Hoover's spurge

G1

S1

Threatened

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2 335

345

29
S:2

0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0

Fritillaria striata

striped adobe-lily

G1

S1

None

Threatened

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1
BLM_S-Sensitive
SB_RSABG-Rancho 
Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden
SB_USDA-US Dept of 
Agriculture
USFS_S-Sensitive

23
S:1

0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Glyceria grandis

American manna grass

G5

S3

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 2B.3 10
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Gymnogyps californianus

California condor

G1

S1

Endangered

Endangered

CDF_S-Sensitive
CDFW_FP-Fully 
Protected
IUCN_CR-Critically 
Endangered
NABCI_RWL-Red 
Watch List

1,000

1,000

13
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Report Printed on Wednesday, February 26, 2020

Page 3 of 5Commercial Version -- Dated February, 1 2020 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 8/1/2020

Summary Table Report
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database

295



Elev. Element Occ. Ranks Population Status Presence

Name (Scientific/Common)
CNDDB 
Ranks

Listing Status 
(Fed/State) Other Lists

Range
(ft.)

Total 
EO's A B C D X U

Historic 
> 20 yr

Recent 
<= 20 yr Extant

Poss. 
Extirp. Extirp.

Haliaeetus leucocephalus

bald eagle

G5

S3

Delisted

Endangered

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDF_S-Sensitive
CDFW_FP-Fully 
Protected
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern
USFS_S-Sensitive
USFWS_BCC-Birds of 
Conservation Concern

912

912

327
S:1

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Helianthus winteri

Winter's sunflower

G2?

S2?

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2 460

2,500

55
S:32

6 20 4 1 0 1 0 32 32 0 0

Lasthenia glabrata ssp. coulteri

Coulter's goldfields

G4T2

S2

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1
BLM_S-Sensitive
SB_RSABG-Rancho 
Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden
SB_SBBG-Santa 
Barbara Botanic 
Garden

350

350

111
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0

Lepidurus packardi

vernal pool tadpole shrimp

G4

S3S4

Endangered

None

IUCN_EN-Endangered 340

345

325
S:2

0 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 2 0 0

Leptosiphon serrulatus

Madera leptosiphon

G3

S3

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
USFS_S-Sensitive

1,000

3,500

27
S:2

0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 0 0

Lithobates pipiens

northern leopard frog

G5

S2

None

None

CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern

19
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0

Lytta moesta

moestan blister beetle

G2

S2

None

None

1,000

1,000

12
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0

Lytta morrisoni

Morrison's blister beetle

G1G2

S1S2

None

None

960

960

10
S:1

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0

Orcuttia inaequalis

San Joaquin Valley Orcutt grass

G1

S1

Threatened

Endangered

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1 515

515

47
S:1

0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Pseudobahia peirsonii

San Joaquin adobe sunburst

G1

S1

Threatened

Endangered

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1
SB_RSABG-Rancho 
Santa Ana Botanic 
Garden

600

1,420

51
S:3

0 0 0 1 0 2 3 0 3 0 0

Report Printed on Wednesday, February 26, 2020

Page 4 of 5Commercial Version -- Dated February, 1 2020 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 8/1/2020

Summary Table Report
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database

296



Elev. Element Occ. Ranks Population Status Presence

Name (Scientific/Common)
CNDDB 
Ranks

Listing Status 
(Fed/State) Other Lists

Range
(ft.)

Total 
EO's A B C D X U

Historic 
> 20 yr

Recent 
<= 20 yr Extant

Poss. 
Extirp. Extirp.

Rana boylii

foothill yellow-legged frog

G3

S3

None

Candidate 
Threatened

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_NT-Near 
Threatened
USFS_S-Sensitive

520

2,211

2468
S:10

0 0 0 0 10 0 10 0 0 0 10

Sagittaria sanfordii

Sanford's arrowhead

G3

S3

None

None

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.2
BLM_S-Sensitive

400

400

126
S:1

0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0

Spea hammondii

western spadefoot

G3

S3

None

None

BLM_S-Sensitive
CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_NT-Near 
Threatened

0

743

1247
S:29

0 26 1 0 0 2 2 27 29 0 0

Talanites moodyae

Moody's gnaphosid spider

G1G2

S1S2

None

None

400

1,200

6
S:4

0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 0 0

Taxidea taxus

American badger

G5

S3

None

None

CDFW_SSC-Species 
of Special Concern
IUCN_LC-Least 
Concern

370

370

592
S:1

0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0

Tuctoria greenei

Greene's tuctoria

G1

S1

Endangered

Rare

Rare Plant Rank - 1B.1 450

450

50
S:1

0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Vulpes macrotis mutica

San Joaquin kit fox

G4T2

S2

Endangered

Threatened

345

720

1018
S:7

0 0 0 0 0 7 7 0 7 0 0

Report Printed on Wednesday, February 26, 2020

Page 5 of 5Commercial Version -- Dated February, 1 2020 -- Biogeographic Data Branch

Information Expires 8/1/2020

Summary Table Report
California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Natural Diversity Database

297



 

	
Biological	Resource	Assessment	 56	 Colibri	Ecological	Consulting,	LLC	
Woodlake	Stormwater	Basin	Project	 	 March	2020	
 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Appendix	C.	CNPS	plant	list.																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																								
	

	

298



2/26/2020 CNPS Inventory Results

www.rareplants.cnps.org/result.html?adv=t&quad=3611952:3611951:3611858:3611942:3611941:3611848:3611932:3611931:3611838 1/2

Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants*The database used to provide updates to the Online Inventory is under
construction. View updates and changes made since May 2019 here.

Plant List
19 matches found.   Click on scientific name for details

Search Criteria

Found in Quads 3611952, 3611951, 3611858, 3611942, 3611941, 3611848, 3611932 3611931 and 3611838;

Modify Search Criteria Export to Excel Modify Columns Modify Sort Display Photos

Scientific Name Common Name Family Lifeform Blooming Period
CA Rare
Plant
Rank

State
Rank

Global
Rank

Atriplex cordulata var.
erecticaulis Earlimart orache Chenopodiaceae annual herb Aug-Sep(Nov) 1B.2 S1 G3T1

Atriplex minuscula lesser saltscale Chenopodiaceae annual herb May-Oct 1B.1 S2 G2

Atriplex persistens vernal pool
smallscale Chenopodiaceae annual herb Jun,Aug,Sep,Oct 1B.2 S2 G2

Brodiaea insignis Kaweah brodiaea Themidaceae perennial bulbiferous
herb Apr-Jun 1B.2 S1 G1

Delphinium
recurvatum recurved larkspur Ranunculaceae perennial herb Mar-Jun 1B.2 S2? G2?

Diplacus pictus calico monkeyflower Phrymaceae annual herb Mar-May 1B.2 S2 G2

Eriogonum nudum
var. murinum mouse buckwheat Polygonaceae perennial herb Jun-Nov 1B.2 S2 G5T2

Eryngium
spinosepalum

spiny-sepaled button-
celery Apiaceae annual / perennial herb Apr-Jun 1B.2 S2 G2

Erythranthe norrisii Kaweah
monkeyflower Phrymaceae annual herb Mar-May 1B.3 S2 G2

Erythranthe sierrae Sierra Nevada
monkeyflower Phrymaceae annual herb Mar-Jul 4.2 S2 G2

Euphorbia hooveri Hoover's spurge Euphorbiaceae annual herb Jul-Sep(Oct) 1B.2 S1 G1

Glyceria grandis American manna
grass Poaceae perennial rhizomatous

herb Jun-Aug 2B.3 S3 G5

Helianthus winteri Winter’s sunflower Asteraceae perennial shrub Jan-Dec 1B.2 S2? G2?

Hordeum intercedens vernal barley Poaceae annual herb Mar-Jun 3.2 S3S4 G3G4

Leptosiphon
serrulatus Madera leptosiphon Polemoniaceae annual herb Apr-May 1B.2 S3 G3

Orcuttia inaequalis San Joaquin Valley
Orcutt grass Poaceae annual herb Apr-Sep 1B.1 S1 G1

Pseudobahia peirsonii San Joaquin adobe
sunburst

Asteraceae annual herb Feb-Apr 1B.1 S1 G1
299

http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1_YOCUbeH_JAA5XrL93rvzrUO0hZTpOUgwIevfUFp7MU/edit?pli=1#gid=1057731682
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1830.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1133.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1832.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/364.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/222.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/247.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/761.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/788.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1096.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/3780.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/457.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/872.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/3860.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1696.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/993.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1190.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1402.html


2/26/2020 CNPS Inventory Results

www.rareplants.cnps.org/result.html?adv=t&quad=3611952:3611951:3611858:3611942:3611941:3611848:3611932:3611931:3611838 2/2

Search the Inventory
Simple Search
Advanced Search
Glossary

Information
About the Inventory
About the Rare Plant Program
CNPS Home Page
About CNPS
Join CNPS

Contributors
The Calflora Database
The California Lichen Society
California Natural Diversity Database
The Jepson Flora Project
The Consortium of California Herbaria
CalPhotos

Questions and Comments
rareplants@cnps.org

Sagittaria sanfordii Sanford's arrowhead Alismataceae perennial rhizomatous
herb (emergent) May-Oct(Nov) 1B.2 S3 G3

Tuctoria greenei Greene's tuctoria Poaceae annual herb May-Jul(Sep) 1B.1 S1 G1

Suggested Citation

California Native Plant Society, Rare Plant Program. 2020. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California
(online edition, v8-03 0.39). Website http://www.rareplants.cnps.org [accessed 26 February 2020].

© Copyright 2010-2018 California Native Plant Society. All rights reserved.

300

http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/simple.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/advanced.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html
https://www.cnps.org/rare-plants/cnps-inventory-of-rare-plants
https://www.cnps.org/rare-plants
https://www.cnps.org/
https://www.cnps.org/about
https://secure2.convio.net/cnps/site/Donation2?df_id=1500&mfc_pref=T&1500.donation=form1
http://www.calflora.org/
http://californialichens.org/
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB
http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/jepsonflora/index.html
http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/consortium/
https://calphotos.berkeley.edu/
mailto:rareplants@cnps.org
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/710.html
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/detail/1256.html


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 
Cultural Resource 

Assessment  

301



 
 

 
CLASS III INVENTORY/PHASE I SURVEY, 

WOODLAKE STORMWATER BASIN PROJECT, CITY 
OF WOODLAKE, TULARE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

 
 

Ms. Emily Bowen 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 
113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 

Visalia, CA 93291 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

David S. Whitley, Ph.D., RPA 
 

and 
 

Robert Azpitarte, B.A. 
 
 
 
 
 

ASM Affiliates, Inc. 
20424 West Valley Blvd., Suite A 

Tehachapi, California 93561 
 
 

March 2020 
 

PN 34550.00 
 

302



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

303



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Chapter Page 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY ........................................................................................ iii 

1. INTRODUCTION AND REGULATORY CONTEXT ...................................... 1 
1.1 PROJECT LOCATION ................................................................................................ 1 
1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND APE ........................................................................ 2 
1.3 REGULATORY CONTEXT ........................................................................................ 2 
1.3.1 CEQA ......................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3.2 NHPA Section 106 ..................................................................................................... 3 

2. ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL BACKGROUND .............................. 7 
2.1 GEOARCHAEOLOGICAL SENSITIVITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL                
      BACKGROUND .......................................................................................................... 7 
2.2 ETHNOGRAPHIC BACKGROUND .......................................................................... 7 
2.3 PRE-CONTACT ARCHAEOLOGICAL BACKGROUND ........................................ 9 
2.4 HISTORICAL BACKGROUND................................................................................ 12 
2.5 RESEARCH DESIGN ................................................................................................ 14 

2.5.1 Pre-Contact Archaeology .................................................................................... 14 
2.5.2 Historical Archaeology: Native American .......................................................... 15 
2.5.3 Historical Archaeology: Euro-American ............................................................. 16 

3. ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH AND TRIBAL COORDINATION ........ 19 
3.1 ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH ............................................................................ 19 

4. METHODS AND RESULTS ............................................................................... 21 
4.1 FIELD METHODS ..................................................................................................... 21 
4.2 SURVEY RESULTS .................................................................................................. 21 

4.2.1 Previously Recorded Resources .......................................................................... 21 

5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................. 25 
5.1 SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ 25 
5.2 RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................ 25 

REFERENCES ................................................................................................................ 27 

CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES ................................................................................. 31 

  

 
 
 
 
 

304



 
 

LIST OF FIGURES 
 
 Page 
Figure 1. Location of the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project, Tulare County, 

California. ............................................................................................................... 5 
Figure 2. Approximate center of the proposed stormwater basin, looking west. ................. 22 
Figure 3. Pipeline corridor at corner of Bravo Avenue and Oak Street, looking south.

............................................................................................................................... 23 
Figure 4. Eastern terminus of the pipeline route at the Manzanillo Pump Station. APE 

runs through center-left of photo; historic Bravo Lake berm and Bravo 
Lake, both outside of APE, to right. ..................................................................... 23 

 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
 
 Page 
Table 1. Survey reports within the Study Area ................................................................... 19 
Table 2. Survey reports within 0.5 miles of the Study Area. .............................................. 20 
 
 
 

305



MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

An intensive Class III cultural resources inventory/Phase I survey was conducted for the Woodlake 
Stormwater Basin Project (Project), which involves the removal of an existing orchard, the 
excavation of a new stormwater basin and the construction of an associated 48-inch diameter 
pipeline. The Project area of potential effect (APE) is located in Woodlake, west of Bravo Lake, 
Tulare County, California. ASM Affiliates, Inc., conducted this study, with David S. Whitley, 
Ph.D., RPA, serving as principal investigator. The study was undertaken to assist with compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, and the California 
Environmental Quality Act.  
 
The APE for the Project consists of the area of potential ground surface disturbance resulting from 
the excavation of the stormwater basin and trenching for 4,611-feet (ft) of 48” pipeline, including 
lay-down and staging areas. The horizontal APE for the stormwater basin is 38-acres (ac) in size; 
the APE for the pipeline trench, using a 15-meter (m) buffer on both sides of the route, is 9.5-ac, 
yielding a total horizontal APE of 47.5-ac. The vertical APE is the maximum limit of ground 
surface excavation, estimated at 10-feet.  
 
A record search of site files and maps was conducted at the Southern San Joaquin Valley 
Archaeological Information Center (IC), California State University, Bakersfield. A Sacred Lands 
File Request was also submitted to the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). These 
investigations determined that small portions of the Project APE had been previously surveyed, 
and that segments of two historic structures, both rail grades, are known to exist within it. 
 
The Class III inventory/Phase I survey fieldwork was conducted on 16 March 2020 with parallel 
transects spaced at 15-meter intervals walked across the approximately 47.5-acre APE. Because 
the APE involves a pipeline along existing paved roads, both sides of the roads were surveyed. 
Orchard rows were walked within the proposed stormwater basin portion of the APE. The two 
previously identified cultural resources, segments of the Visalia Electric and Atchison Topeka and 
Santa Fe Railroad grades, were relocated. Both linear resources segments had been destroyed 
within the Project APE. They thus lack integrity of design, setting, materials, workmanship and 
feeling and are recommended as not National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or California 
Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) eligible or significant. 
  
No additional cultural resources were identified within the Project APE. Based on these findings, 
the proposed Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project does not have the potential to result in adverse 
impacts or effects to historical resources or historic properties, and a determination of no 
significant impact under CEQA and no adverse effect under Section 106 is recommended. In the 
unlikely event that cultural resources are identified during the project, work should be halted within 
a 100-foot radius of the find. It is recommended that a qualified archaeologist be contacted to 
evaluate the newly discovered resource. 
 
 
 

306



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

307



1. INTRODUCTION AND REGULATORY CONTEXT 

ASM Affiliates, Inc., was retained by Crawford & Bowen Planning to conduct an intensive Class 
III inventory/Phase I cultural resources survey for the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project. This 
Project is located in the City of Woodlake, Tulare County, California (Figure 1). The study was 
undertaken to assist with compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act 
(NHPA) of 1966, as amended, and the California Environmental Protection Act (CEQA). The 
investigation was conducted, specifically, to ensure that significant impacts or adverse effects to 
historical resources or historic properties do not occur as a result of project construction. 
 
This current study included: 
 

• A background records search and literature review to determine if any known cultural 
resources were present in the project zone and/or whether the area had been previously and 
systematically studied by archaeologists; 

• An on-foot, intensive inventory of the study area to identify and record previously 
undiscovered cultural resources and to examine known sites; and 

• A preliminary assessment of any such resources found within the subject property. 
 
David S. Whitley, Ph.D., RPA, served as principal investigator and Robert Azpitarte, B.A., ASM 
Associate Archaeologist, conducted the fieldwork.  
 
This document constitutes a report on the Class III inventory/Phase I survey. Subsequent chapters 
provide background to the investigation, including historic context studies; the findings of the 
archival records search; Native American outreach; a summary of the field surveying techniques 
employed; and the results of the fieldwork. We conclude with management recommendations for 
the study area. 
 

1.1 PROJECT LOCATION 

The Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project is located within the city limits of Woodlake, California. 
This places the Project on the open flats of the San Joaquin Valley, a short distance west of the 
foothills of the Sierra Nevada foothills. Elevation within the Project area, which is flat, is 
approximately 430-ft above mean sea level for the stormwater basin, which lies immediately west 
of Mulberry Street and is in an active orchard, west of Bravo Lake. The pipeline route runs from 
the proposed basin north along South Oak Street to West Bravo Avenue. It turns east heading to 
South Magnolia Street where it again turns and continues north to Avenue 344 (Hwy. 216). The 
pipeline then extends along the south side of this road to the Manzanillo Pump Station, 
immediately north of Bravo Lake. 
 

308



1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND APE 

The Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project will comprise the excavation of a new stormwater basin 
and the construction of an associated 48-inch diameter pipeline connecting to an existing pump 
station adjacent to Bravo Lake. The Project APE consists of the area of potential ground surface 
disturbance resulting from the excavation of the stormwater basin and trenching for 4,611-feet (ft) 
of 48” pipeline, including lay-down and staging areas. The horizontal APE for the stormwater 
basin is 38-acres (ac) in size; the APE for the pipeline trench, using a 15-meter (m) buffer on both 
sides of the route, is 9.5-ac, yielding a total horizontal APE of 47.5-ac. The vertical APE is the 
maximum limit of ground surface excavation, estimated at 10-feet.  
 

1.3 REGULATORY CONTEXT 

1.3.1 CEQA 
 
CEQA is applicable to discretionary actions by state or local lead agencies. Under CEQA, lead 
agencies must analyze impacts to cultural resources. Significant impacts under CEQA occur when 
“historically significant” or “unique” cultural resources are adversely affected, which occurs when 
such resources could be altered or destroyed through project implementation. Historically 
significant cultural resources are defined by eligibility for or by listing in the California Register 
of Historical Resources (CRHR). In practice, the federal NRHP criteria (below) for significance 
applied under Section 106 are generally (although not entirely) consistent with CRHR criteria (see 
PRC § 5024.1, Title 14 CCR, Section 4852 and § 15064.5(a)(3)). 
 
Significant cultural resources are those archaeological resources and historical properties that: 
 

(A)  Are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of California’s history and cultural heritage; 

(B)  Are associated with the lives of persons important in our past; 
(C)  Embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 

construction, or represent the work of an important creative individual, or possess high 
artistic values; or 

(D)  Have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 
  

Unique resources under CEQA, in slight contrast, are those that represent: 
 

An archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, 
without merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it 
meets any of the following criteria: 

 
(1) Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that 

there is a demonstrable public interest in that information. 
(2) Has a special and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best 

available example of its type. 

309



(3) Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic 
event or person (PRC § 21083.2(g)). 

 
Preservation in place is the preferred approach under CEQA to mitigating adverse impacts to 
significant or unique cultural resources. 
 
 
1.3.2 NHPA Section 106 
 
NHPA Section 106 is applicable to federal undertakings, including projects financed or permitted 
by federal agencies regardless of whether the activities occur on federally managed or privately-
owned land. Its purpose is to determine whether adverse effects will occur to significant cultural 
resources, defined as “historical properties” that are listed in or determined eligible for listing in 
the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). The criteria for NRHP eligibility are defined at 
36 CFR § 60.4 as follows:  

The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, 
and culture is present in districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess 
integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association, and 
that: 

(A) are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of our history; or 

(B) are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 
(C) embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, 

or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that 
represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction; or 

(D) have yielded or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or 
history. 

 
There are, however, restrictions on the kinds of historical properties that can be NRHP listed. 
These have been identified by the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP), as follows: 
 

Ordinarily cemeteries, birthplaces, or graves of historical figures, properties owned by 
religious institutions or used for religious purposes, structures that have been moved from 
their original locations, reconstructed historic buildings, properties primarily 
commemorative in nature, and properties that have achieved significance within the past 
50 years shall not be considered eligible for the National Register. However, such 
properties will qualify if they are integral parts of districts that do meet the criteria or if 
they fall within the following categories:  

 
(a) A religious property deriving primary significance from architectural or artistic distinction 

or historical importance; or  

310



(b) A building or structure removed from its original location but which is significant primarily 
for architectural value, or which is the surviving structure most importantly associated with 
a historic person or event; or  

(c) A birthplace or grave of a historical figure of outstanding importance if there is no 
appropriate site or building directly associated with his productive life.  

(d) A cemetery which derives its primary significance from graves of persons of transcendent 
importance, from age, from distinctive design features, or from association with historic 
events; or  

(e) A reconstructed building when accurately executed in a suitable environment and presented 
in a dignified manner as part of a restoration master plan, and when no other building or 
structure with the same association has survived; or  

(f) A property primarily commemorative in intent if design, age, tradition, or symbolic value 
has invested it with its own exceptional significance; or  

(g) A property achieving significance within the past 50 years if it is of exceptional importance. 
(http://www.achp.gov/nrcriteria.html). 

 
Federal guidelines provide additional directions for evaluating resources. Following National 
Register Bulletin 15, How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation (National Park 
Service 1995), significant cultural resources must maintain integrity:  
 

“Integrity is the ability of a property to convey its significance. To be listed in the National 
Register of Historic Places, a property must not only be shown to be significant under the 
National Register criteria, but it also must have integrity” (ibid:44). 

 
Seven aspects or qualities of cultural resources, in various combinations, define integrity. 
Significant cultural resources possess several, usually most, of these seven qualities. The seven 
qualities of integrity are location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and/or 
association (ibid). Which aspects of integrity are pertinent to the significance-determination of a 
specific resource depends on the criterion under which it may be eligible. For example, location 
would not be an important quality of integrity for a historic ship, nor would workmanship be 
critical for an archaeological site.  
 
The National Park Service then further specifies that: 
 

“Archeological sites eligible under Criteria A and B must be in overall good condition with 
excellent preservation of features, artifacts, and spatial relationships to the extent that these 
remains are able to convey important associations with events or persons…Archeological 
sites eligible under Criterion C …[must have] remains [that] are able to illustrate a site 
type, time period, method of construction, or work of a master…under Criterion D, 
integrity is based upon the property’s potential to yield specific data that addresses 
important research questions” (ibid:46). 

 
Note that, for archaeological sites, under Criterion D “only the potential to yield information 

is required,” whereas for Criteria A, B and C, “the site must have demonstrated its ability 
to convey its significance” (ibid:48; emphasis in original). 

311



 
 

Figure 1. Location of the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project, Tulare County, 
California. 

 

312



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

313



2. ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL 
BACKGROUND 

2.1 GEOARCHAEOLOGICAL SENSITIVITY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL BACKGROUND  
 
As noted above, the 47.5-ac APE is located on the open flats of the San Joaquin Valley, west of 
the Sierra Nevada foothills. The so-called Antelope Valley is immediately to the north. Bravo 
Lake, a natural pond, is located east of the proposed stormwater basin. The dry St. John’s riverbed 
is located roughly a half-mile south of the basin. This drainage is an offshoot tributary of the 
Kaweah River, located further to the south. 
 
According to the geoarchaeological model developed by Meyer et al. (2010), the Project APE, 
located north of the St. John’s River, has a Very Low potential for buried archaeological deposits. 
Meyer et al.’s study involved first determining the location and ages of late Pleistocene (>25,000 
years old) landforms in the southern San Joaquin Valley. These were identified by combining a 
synthesis of 2,400 published paleontological, soils and archaeological chronometric dates with 
geoarchaeological field testing. The ages of surface landforms were then mapped to provide an 
assessment for the potential for buried archaeological deposits. These ages were derived primarily 
from the Soil Survey Geographic Database (SSURGO) and the State Soils Geographic 
(STATSGO) database. A series of maps were created from this information that ranked locations 
in 7 ordinal classes for sensitivity for buried soils, from Very Low to Very High. Buried sites and 
cultural resources are therefore considered to be unlikely within the Project APE. 
 
Prior to the appearance of agriculture, starting in the nineteenth century, this location would have 
been prairie grasslands, grading into tree savannas as one continued into the foothills to the east 
(Preston 1981; Schoenherr 1992). Historically, and likely prehistorically, riparian environments 
would have been present along the Kaweah River and around Bravo Lake. St. John’s River, in 
contrast, appears to have been seasonal. The study area and immediate surroundings have been 
farmed and grazed for many years and little to no native vegetation is present. Perennial 
bunchgrasses such as purple needlegrass and nodding needlegrass most likely would have been 
the dominant plant cover in the study area prior to cultivation.  

2.2 ETHNOGRAPHIC BACKGROUND 

Penutian-speaking Yokuts tribal groups occupied the southern San Joaquin Valley region and 
much of the nearby Sierra Nevada. Ethnographic information about the Yokuts was collected 
primarily by Powers (1971, 1976 [originally 1877]), Kroeber (1925), Gayton (1930, 1948), Driver 
(1937), Latta (1977) and Harrington (n.d.). For a variety of historical reasons, existing research 
information emphasizes the central Yokuts tribes who occupied both the valley and particularly 
the foothills of the Sierra. The northernmost tribes suffered from the influx of Euro-Americans 
during the Gold Rush and their populations were in substantial decline by the time ethnographic 
studies began in the early twentieth century. In contrast, the southernmost tribes were partially 
removed by the Spanish to missions and eventually absorbed into multi-tribal communities on the 

314



Sebastian Indian Reservation (on Tejon Ranch), and later the Tule River Reservation and Santa 
Rosa Rancheria to the north. The result is an unfortunate scarcity of ethnographic detail on 
southern Valley tribes, especially in relation to the rich information collected from the central 
foothills tribes where native speakers of the Yokuts dialects are still found. Regardless, the general 
details of indigenous life-ways were similar across the broad expanse of Yokuts territory, 
particularly in terms of environmentally influenced subsistence and adaptation and with regard to 
religion and belief, which were similar everywhere. 
 
Following Kroeber (1925: Plate 47), the project location most likely lies in Wukchamni Yokuts 
territory. A series of historical named sites are located in the Project vicinity:  

• Pachakish, a bedrock mortar station, is located north of Lemon Cove along the toe slopes 
of the Sierra Nevada foothills (Latta 1977: 184-5). 

• The village of Hoganu (also called Hawcunu or Diapnushu; see Gayton 1930:378, 1948: 
56, 58-59, 129; Latta 1977:185) is located at the bridge across the Kaweah River, roughly 
0.5-mi north of the Project area. 

• Two pictograph sites at Steve Barton Point, on the north site of the Kaweah River, were 
known as Moiyak, which translates as “whirlwind place” (Whitley 2006). 

 
The Yokuts settlement pattern was largely consistent, regardless of specific tribe involved. Winter 
villages were typically located along lakeshores and major stream courses (as these existed circa 
AD 1800), with dispersal phase family camps located at elevated spots on the valley floor and near 
gathering areas in the foothills. 
 
The Yokuts settlement pattern was largely consistent, regardless of specific tribe involved. Winter 
villages were typically located along lakeshores and major stream courses (as these existed circa 
AD 1800), with dispersal phase family camps located at elevated spots on the valley floor and near 
gathering areas in the foothills.  
 
Most Yokuts groups, again regardless of specific tribal affiliation, were organized as a recognized 
and distinct tribelet; a circumstance that almost certainly pertained to the tribal groups noted above. 
Tribelets were land-owning groups organized around a central village and linked by shared 
territory and descent from a common ancestor. The population of most tribelets ranged from about 
150 to 500 peoples (Kroeber 1925).  
 
Each tribelet was headed by a chief who was assisted by a variety of assistants, the most important 
of whom was the winatum, a herald or messenger and assistant chief. A shaman also served as 
religious officer. While shamans did not have any direct political authority, as Gayton (1930) has 
illustrated, they maintained substantial influence within their tribelet.  
 
Shamanism is a religious system common to most Native American tribes. It involves a direct and 
personal relationship between the individual and the supernatural world enacted by entering a 
trance or hallucinatory state (usually based on the ingestion of psychotropic plants, such as 
jimsonweed or more typically native tobacco). Shamans were considered individuals with an 
unusual degree of supernatural power, serving as healers or curers, diviners, and controllers of 
natural phenomena (such as rain or thunder). Shamans also produced the rock art of this region, 

315



depicting the visions they experienced in vision quests believed to represent their spirit helpers 
and events in the supernatural realm (Whitley 1992, 2000). 
 
The centrality of shamanism to the religious and spiritual life of the Yokuts was demonstrated by 
the role of shamans in the yearly ceremonial round. The ritual round, performed the same each 
year, started in the spring with the jimsonweed ceremony, followed by rattlesnake dance and 
(where appropriate) first salmon ceremony. After returning from seed camps, fall rituals began in 
the late summer with the mourning ceremony, followed by first seed and acorn rites and then bear 
dance (Gayton 1930:379). In each case, shamans served as ceremonial officials responsible for 
specific dances involving a display of their supernatural powers (Kroeber 1925). 
 
Subsistence practices varied from tribelet to tribelet based on the environment of residence. 
Throughout Native California, and Yokuts territory in general, the acorn was a primary dietary 
component, along with a variety of gathered seeds. Valley tribes augmented this resource with 
lacustrine and riverine foods, especially fish and wildfowl. As with many Native California tribes, 
the settlement and subsistence rounds included the winter aggregation into a few large villages, 
where stored resources (like acorns) served as staples, followed by dispersal into smaller camps, 
often occupied by extended families, where seasonally available resources would be gathered and 
consumed. 
 
Although population estimates vary and population size was greatly affected by the introduction 
of Euro-American diseases and social disruption, the Yokuts were one of the largest, most 
successful groups in Native California. Cook (1978) estimates that the Yokuts region contained 27 
percent of the aboriginal population in the state at the time of contact; other estimates are even 
higher. Many Yokuts people continue to reside in the southern San Joaquin Valley today. 

2.3 PRE-CONTACT ARCHAEOLOGICAL BACKGROUND 

The San Joaquin Valley region has received minimal archaeological attention compared to other 
areas of the state. In part this is because the majority of California archaeological work has 
concentrated in the Sacramento Delta, Santa Barbara Channel, and central Mojave Desert areas 
(see Moratto 1984). Although knowledge of the region’s pre is limited, enough is known to 
determine that the archaeological record is broadly similar to south-central California as a whole 
(see Gifford and Schenk 1926; Hewes 1941; Wedel 1941; Fenenga 1952; Elsasser 1962; 
Fredrickson and Grossman 1977; Schiffman and Garfinkel 1981). Based on these sources, the 
general prehistory of the region can be outlined as follows. 
 
Initial occupation of the region occurred at least as early as the Paleoindian Period, or prior to 
about 10,000 years before present (YBP). Evidence of early use of the region is indicated by 
characteristic fluted and stemmed points found around the margin of Tulare Lake, in the foothills 
of the Sierra, and in the Mojave Desert proper. 
 
Both fluted and stemmed points are particularly common around lake margins, suggesting a 
terminal Pleistocene/early Holocene lakeshore adaptation similar to that found throughout the far 
west at the same time; little else is known about these earliest peoples. Over 250 fluted points have 
been recovered from the Witt Site (CA-KIN-32), located along the western shoreline of ancient 

316



Tulare Lake west of the study area, demonstrating the importance of this early occupation in the 
San Joaquin Valley specifically (see Fenenga 1993). Additional finds consist of a Clovis-like 
projectile point discovered in a flash-flood cut-bank near White Oak Lodge in 1953 on Tejon 
Ranch (Glennan 1987a, 1987b). More recently, a similar fluted point was found near Bakersfield 
(Zimmerman et al. 1989). Although human occupation of the state is well-established during the 
Late Pleistocene, relatively little can be inferred about the nature and distribution of this occupation 
with a few exceptions. First, little evidence exists to support the idea that people at that time were 
big-game hunters, similar to those found on the Great Plains. Second, the western Mojave Desert 
evidence suggests small, very mobile populations that left a minimal archaeological signature. The 
evidence from the ancient Tulare Lake shore, in contrast, suggests much more substantial 
population and settlements which, instead of relying on big game hunting, were tied to the 
lacustrine lake edge. Variability in subsistence and settlement patterns is thus apparent in 
California, in contrast to the Great Plains. 
 
Substantial evidence for human occupation across California, however, first occurs during the 
middle Holocene, roughly 7,500 to 4,000 YBP. This period is known as the Early Horizon, or 
alternatively as the Early Millingstone along the Santa Barbara Channel. In the south, populations 
concentrated along the coast with minimal visible use of inland areas. Adaptation emphasized hard 
seeds and nuts with tool-kits dominated by mullers and grindstones (manos and metates). 
Additionally, little evidence for Early Horizon occupation exists in most inland portions of the 
state, partly due to a severe cold and dry paleoclimatic period occurring at this time, although a 
site deposit dating to this age has been identified along the ancient Buena Vista shoreline in Kern 
County to the south (Rosenthal et al. 2007).  Regardless of specifics, Early Horizon population 
density was low with a subsistence adaptation more likely tied to plant food gathering than hunting. 
 
Environmental conditions improved dramatically after about 4,000 YBP during the Middle 
Horizon (or Intermediate Period). This period is known climatically as the Holocene Maximum 
(circa 3,800 YBP) and was characterized by significantly warmer and wetter conditions than 
previously experienced. It was marked archaeologically by large population increase and radiation 
into new environments along coastal and interior south-central California and the Mojave Desert 
(Whitley 2000). In the Delta region to the north, this same period of favorable environmental 
conditions was characterized by the appearance of the Windmiller culture which exhibited a high 
degree of ritual elaboration (especially in burial practices) and perhaps even a rudimentary mound-
building tradition (Meighan, personal communication, 1985). Along with ritual elaboration, 
Middle Horizon times experienced increasing subsistence specialization, perhaps correlating with 
the appearance of acorn processing technology. Penutian speaking peoples (including the Yokuts) 
are also posited to have entered the state roughly at the beginning of this period and, perhaps to 
have brought this technology with them (cf. Moratto 1984). Likewise, it appears the so-called 
"Shoshonean Wedge" in southern California, the Takic speaking groups that include the 
Gabrielino/Fernandeño, Tataviam and Kitanemuk, may have moved into the region at that time 
(Sutton 2009, rather than at about 1500 YBP as first suggested by Kroeber (1925). 
 
Evidence for Middle Horizon occupation of interior south-central California is substantial. For 
example, in northern Los Angeles County along the upper Santa Clara River, to the south of the 
San Joaquin Valley, the Agua Dulce village complex indicates occupation extending back to the 
Intermediate Period, when the population of the village may have been 50 or more people (King 

317



et al n.d.). Similarly, inhabitation of the Hathaway Ranch region near Lake Piru, and the Newhall 
Ranch near Valencia, appears to date to the Intermediate Period (W & S Consultants 1994). To the 
west, little or no evidence exists for pre-Middle Horizon occupation in the upper Sisquoc and 
Cuyama River drainages; populations first appear there at roughly 3,500 YBP (Horne 1981). The 
Carrizo Plain, the valley immediately west of the San Joaquin, experienced a major population 
expansion during the Middle Horizon (W & S Consultants 2004; Whitley et al. 2007), and recently 
collected data indicates the Tehachapi Mountains region was first significantly occupied during 
the Middle Horizon (W & S Consultants 2006). A parallel can be drawn to the inland Ventura 
County region where a similar pattern has been identified (Whitley and Beaudry 1991), as well as 
the western Mojave Desert (Sutton 1988a, 1988b), the southern Sierra Nevada (W & S Consultants 
1999), and the Coso Range region (Whitley et al. 1988). In all of these areas a major expansion in 
settlement, the establishment of large site complexes and an increase in the range of environments 
exploited appear to have occurred sometime roughly around 4,000 years ago. Although most 
efforts to explain this expansion have focused on local circumstances and events, it is increasingly 
apparent this was a major southern California-wide occurrence and any explanation must be sought 
at a larger level of analysis (Whitley 2000). Additionally, evidence from the Carrizo Plain suggests 
the origins of the tribelet level of political organization developed during this period (W & S 
Consultants 2004; Whitley et al. 2007). Whether this same demographic process holds for the 
southern San Joaquin Valley, including the study area, is yet to be determined. 
 
The beginning of the Late Horizon is set variously at 1,500 and 800 YBP, with a growing 
archaeological consensus for the shorter chronology. Increasing evidence suggests the importance 
of the Middle-Late Horizons transition (AD 800 to 1200) in the understanding of south-central 
California prehistory. This corresponds to the so-called Medieval Climatic Anomaly, followed by 
the Little Ice Age, and this general period of climatic instability extended to about A.D. 1860. It 
included major droughts matched by intermittent “mega-floods,” and resulted in demographic 
disturbances across much of the west (Jones et al. 1999). It is believed to have resulted in major 
population decline and abandonments across south-central California, involving as much as 90% 
of the interior populations in some regions, including the Carrizo Plain (Whitley et al. 2007). It is 
not clear whether site abandonment was accompanied by a true reduction in population or an 
agglomeration of the same numbers of peoples into fewer but larger villages in more favorable 
locations. Population along the Santa Barbara coast appears to have spiked at about the same time 
that it collapsed on the Carrizo Plain (ibid). Along Buena Vista Lake, in Kern County, population 
appears to have been increasingly concentrated towards the later end of the Medieval Climatic 
Anomaly (Culleton 2006), and population intensification also appears to have occurred in the well-
watered Tehachapi Mountains during this same period (W & S Consultants 2006). 
 
What is then clear is that Middle Period villages and settlements were widely dispersed across the 
south-central California landscape, including in the Sierras and the Mojave Desert. Many of these 
sites are found at locations that lack existing or known historical fresh water sources. Late Horizon 
sites, in contrast, are typically concentrated in areas where fresh water was available during the 
historical period, if not currently. 
 
One extensively studied site that shows evidence of intensive occupation during the Middle-Late 
Horizons transition (~1,500 – 500 YBP) is the Redtfeldt Mound (CA-KIN-66/H), located 
northwest of the current study area, near the north shore of ancient Tulare Lake. There, Siefkin 

318



(1999) reported on human burials and a host of artifacts and ecofacts excavated from a modest-
sized mound. He found that both Middle Horizon and Middle-Late Horizons transition occupations 
were more intensive than Late Horizon occupations, which were sporadic and less intensive 
(Siefkin 1999:110-111).  
 
The Late Horizon can then be understood as a period of recovery from a major demographic 
collapse. One result is the development of regional archaeological cultures as the precursors to 
ethnographic Native California; suggesting that ethnographic life-ways recorded by 
anthropologists extend roughly 800 years into the past. 
 
The position of southern San Joaquin Valley prehistory relative to patterns seen in surrounding 
areas is still somewhat unknown. The presence of large lake systems in the valley bottoms appears 
to have mediated some of the desiccation seen elsewhere. But, as the reconstruction of Soda Lake 
in the nearby Carrizo Plain demonstrates (see Whitley et al. 2007) environmental perturbations 
had serious impacts on lake systems too. Identifying certain of the prehistoric demographic trends 
for the southern San Joaquin Valley, and determining how these trends (if present) correlate with 
those seen elsewhere, is a current important research objective. 

2.4 HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

Spanish explorers first visited the San Joaquin Valley in 1772, but its lengthy distance from the 
missions and presidios along the Pacific Coast delayed permanent settlement for many years, 
including during the Mexican period of control over the Californian region. In the 1840s, Mexican 
rancho owners along the Pacific Coast allowed their cattle to wander and graze in the San Joaquin 
Valley (JRP Historical Consulting 2009). The Mexican government granted the first ranchos in 
the southern part of the San Joaquin Valley in the early 1840s, but these did not result in permanent 
settlement. It was not until the annexation of California in 1848 that the exploitation of the southern 
San Joaquin Valley began (Pacific Legacy 2006).  
 
The discovery of gold in northern California in 1848 resulted in a dramatic increase of population, 
consisting in good part of fortune seekers and gold miners, who began to scour other parts of the 
state. After 1851, when gold was discovered in the Sierra Nevada Mountains in eastern Kern 
County, the population of the area grew rapidly.  Some new immigrants began ranching in the San 
Joaquin Valley to supply the miners and mining towns.  Ranchers grazed cattle and sheep, and 
farmers dry-farmed or used limited irrigation to grow grain crops, leading to the creation of small 
agricultural communities throughout the valley (JRP Historical Consulting 2009).  
 
After the American annexation of California, the southern San Joaquin Valley became significant 
as a center of food production for this new influx of people in California. The expansive unfenced 
and principally public foothill spaces were well suited for grazing both sheep and cattle (Boyd 
1997). As the Sierra Nevada gold rush presented extensive financial opportunities, ranchers 
introduced new breeds of livestock, consisting of cattle, sheep and pig (Boyd 1997).  
 
With the increase of ranching in the southern San Joaquin came the dramatic change in the 
landscape, as non-native grasses more beneficial for grazing and pasture replaced native flora 
(Preston 1981). After the passing of the Arkansas Act in 1850, efforts were made to reclaim small 

319



tracts of land in order to create more usable spaces for ranching. Eventually, as farming supplanted 
ranching as a more profitable enterprise, large tracts of land began to be reclaimed for agricultural 
use, aided in part by the extension of the railroad in the 1870s (Pacific Legacy 2006).  
 
Following the passage of state wide ‘No-Fence’ laws in 1874, ranching practices began to decline, 
while farming expanded in the San Joaquin Valley in both large land holdings and smaller, 
subdivided properties. As the farming population grew, so did the demand for irrigation. Settlers 
began reclamation of swampland in 1866. Grants were given subsequently to individuals who had 
both the resources and the finances to undertake land reclamation.  Three competing partnerships 
developed during this period which had a great impact on control of water, land reclamation and 
ultimately agricultural development in the San Joaquin Valley: Livermore and Chester, Haggin 
and Carr, and Miller and Lux, perhaps the most famous of the enterprises. Livermore and Chester 
were responsible, among other things, for developing the large Hollister plow (three feet wide by 
two feet deep), pulled by a 40-mule team, which was used for ditch digging. Haggin and Carr were 
largely responsible for reclaiming the beds of the Buena Vista and Kern lakes, and for creating the 
Calloway Canal, which drained through Bakersfield to Goose Lake (Morgan 1914). Miller and 
Lux ultimately became one of the biggest private property holders in the country, controlling the 
rights to over 22,000 square miles. They recognized early-on that control of water would have 
important economic implications, and they played a major role in the water development of the 
state. They controlled, for example, over 100 miles of the San Joaquin River with the San Joaquin 
and Kings River Canal and Irrigation System. They were also embroiled for many years in 
litigation against Haggin and Carr over control of the water rights to the Kern River. Descendants 
of Henry Miller continue to play a major role in California water rights, with his great grandson, 
George Nickel, Jr., the first to develop the concept of water banking, thus creating a system to buy 
and sell water (http://exiledonline.com/california-class-war-history-meet-the-oligarch-family-
thats-been-scamming-taxpayers-for-150-years-and-counting/). 
 
The nearby town of Visalia, originally called Four Creeks, was founded in 1852 and is believed to 
be the earliest settlement in the San Joaquin Valley between Los Angeles and the Stockton area. It 
was made the county seat of Tulare County in 1853 and became a stop on the Butterfield Overland 
Mail stage route, which ran from Los Angeles to Stockton, in 1858. The Kaweah Delta area was 
the initial emphasis of settlement in the San Joaquin but, as irrigation and intensive agricultural 
developed, the focus of settlement shifted to the Kings Delta, especially the Mussel Sloughs area. 
By 1879, there were 61,200-ac irrigated by the Kings River, 22,000-ac by the Kaweah and only 
4,500-ac by the Tule. 
 
Woodlake was established by Gilbert F. Stevenson, a southern California developer, in 1912, 
through his “Woodlake Townsite Company.” He had optioned 13,000-acres in the immediate area, 
hoping to establish citrus orchards and, through active marketing, a town. He also donated three 
miles of right-of-way to the Visalia Electric Railway, connecting the townsite to Visalia to the 
west. Stevenson built levees around the Bravo Lake (also sometimes called Wood Lake) along 
with recreational facilities to help attract new residents. Stevenson lost his fortune during the 
Depression but Woodlake continued to grow. It was incorporated in 1940 and continues to be 
primarily an agricultural community (http://www.cityofwoodlake.com/our-mission/; accessed 
3/18/2020). 
 

320



 
With increasing farming demand in the twentieth century, the Central Valley Project (CVP) was 
developed to supply water to Fresno, Tulare, and Kern counties. Terminus Dam, which created 
Lake Kaweah, was completed as part of the CVP in 1962 and is a short distance east of Woodlake. 
It supplies water for the Friant-Kern Canal. The Friant-Kern Canal was constructed between 1945 
and 1951 and is approximately 152 miles in length (Preston 1981). 
 

2.5 RESEARCH DESIGN 

2.5.1 Pre-Contact Archaeology 
Previous research and the nature of the pre-contact archaeological record suggest two significant 
NRHP themes, both of which fall under the general Pre-Contact Archaeology area of significance. 
These are the Expansion of Pre-Contact Populations and Their Adaptation to New Environments; 
and Adaptation to Changing Environmental Conditions. 
 
The Expansion of Pre-Contact Populations and Their Adaptation to New Environments theme 
primarily concerns the Middle Horizon/Holocene Maximum. Its period of significance runs from 
about 4,000 to 1,500 YBP. It involves a period during which the prehistoric population appears to 
have expanded into a variety of new regions, developing new adaptive strategies in the process. 
 
The Adaptation to Changing Environmental Conditions theme is partly related to the Holocene 
Maximum, but especially to the Medieval Climatic Anomaly. The period of significance for this 
theme, accordingly, extends from about 4,000 to 800 YBP. This theme involves the apparent 
collapse of many inland populations, presumably with population movements to better 
environments such as the coast. It is not yet known whether the southern San Joaquin Valley, with 
its system of lakes, sloughs and swamps, experienced population decline or, more likely, 
population increase due to the relatively favorable conditions of this region during this period of 
environmental stress. 
 
The range of site types that are present in this region include:  
 

• Villages, primarily located on or near permanent water sources, occupied by large groups 
during the winter aggregation season; 

• Seasonal camps, again typically located at water sources, occupied during other parts of 
the year tied to locally and seasonally available food sources; 

• Special activity areas, especially plant processing locations containing bedrock mortars 
(BRMs), commonly (though not exclusively) near existing oak woodlands, and invariably 
at bedrock outcrops or exposed boulders; 

• Stone quarries and tool workshops, occurring in three general contexts: at or below 
naturally occurring chert exposures on the eastern front of the Temblor Range; at quartzite 
cobble exposures, often on hills or ridges; and, for soapstone in the western Sierra Nevada 
foothills, at exposures of steatite-grade talc-schist; 

• Ritual sites, most commonly pictographs (rock art) found at rockshelters or large exposed 
boulders, and cemeteries, both commonly associated with villages; and 

321



• A variety of small lithic scatters (low density surface scatters of stone tools). 
 

The first requisites in any research design are the definition of site age/chronology and site 
function. The ability to determine either of these basic kinds of information may vary between 
survey and test excavation projects, and due to the nature of the sites themselves. BRM sites 
without associated artifacts, for example, may not be datable beyond the assumption that they post-
date the Early Horizon and are thus less than roughly 4,000 years old. 
 
A second fundamental issue involves the place of site in the settlement system, especially with 
respect to water sources. Because the locations of the water sources have sometimes changed over 
time, villages and camps are not exclusively associated with existing (or known historical) water 
sources (W&S Consultants 2006). The size and locations of the region’s lakes, sloughs and delta 
channels, to cite the most obvious example, changed significantly during the last 12,000 years due 
to major paleoclimatic shifts. This altered the area’s hydrology and thus prehistoric settlement 
patterns. The western shoreline of Tulare Lake was relatively stable, because it abutted the 
Kettleman Hills. But the northern, southern and eastern shorelines comprised the near-flat valley 
floor. Relatively minor fluctuations up or down in the lake level resulted in very significant 
changes in the areal expression of the lake on these three sides, and therefore the locations of 
villages and camps. Although perhaps not as systematic, similar changes occurred with respect to 
stream channels and sloughs, and potential site locations associated with them. This circumstance 
has implications for predicting site locations and archaeological sensitivity. Site sensitivity is then 
hardest to predict in the open valley floor, where changes in stream courses and lake levels 
occurred on numerous occasions.  
 
Nonetheless, the position of San Joaquin Valley prehistory relative to the changing settlement and 
demographic patterns seen in surrounding areas is still somewhat unknown (cf. Siefkin 1999), 
including to the two NRHP themes identified above. The presence of large lake systems in the 
valley bottoms can be expected to have mediated some of the effects of desiccation seen elsewhere. 
But, as the reconstruction of Soda Lake in the nearby Carrizo Plain demonstrates (see Whitley et 
al. 2007), environmental perturbations had serious impacts on lake systems too. Identifying certain 
of the prehistoric demographic trends for the southern San Joaquin Valley, and determining how 
these trends (if present) correlate with those seen elsewhere, is another primary regional research 
objective.  
 
Archaeological sites would primarily be evaluated for NRHP eligibility under Criterion D, 
research potential. 
 

2.5.2 Historical Archaeology: Native American 

Less research has been conducted on the regional historical archaeological record, both Native 
American and Euro-American. For Native American historical sites, the ethnographic and 
ethnohistoric periods in the southern San Joaquin Valley extended from first Euro-American 
contact, in AD 1772, to circa 1900, when tribal populations were first consolidated on reservations. 
The major significant historic NRHP themes during this period of significance involve the related 
topics of Historic-Aboriginal Archaeology, and Native American Ethnic Heritage. More 

322



specifically, these concern the Adaptation of the Indigenous Population to Euro-American 
Encroachment and Settlement, and their Acculturation to Western Society. These processes 
included the impact of missionization on the San Joaquin Valley (circa 1800 to about 1845); the 
introduction of the horse and the development of a San Joaquin Valley “horse culture,” including 
raiding onto the coast and Los Angeles Basin (after about 1810); the use of the region as a refuge 
for mission neophyte escapees (after 1820); responses to epidemics from introduced diseases 
(especially in the 1830s); armed resistance to Euro-American encroachment (in the 1840s and early 
1850s); the origins of the reservation system and the development of new tribal organizations and 
ethnic identities; and, ultimately, the adoption of the Euro-American society’s economic system 
and subsistence practices, and acculturation into that society.  
 
Site types that have been identified in the region dating to the ethnographic/ethnohistoric period 
of significance primarily include villages and habitations, some of which contain cemeteries and 
rock art (including pictographs and cupules). Dispersed farmsteads, dating specifically from the 
reservation period or post-1853, would also be expected. The different social processes associated 
with this historical theme may be manifest in the material cultural record in terms of changing 
settlement patterns and village organization (from traditional nucleated villages to single family 
dispersed farmsteads); the breakdown of traditional trading networks with their replacement by 
new economic relationships; changing subsistence practices, especially the introduction of 
agriculture initially via escaped mission neophytes; the use of Euro-American artifacts and 
materials rather than traditional tools and materials; and, possibly, changing mortuary practices. 
 
Inasmuch as culture change is a primary intellectual interest in archaeology, ethnographic villages 
and habitations may be NRHP eligible under Criterion D, research potential. Rock art sites, 
especially pictographs, may be eligible under Criterion C as examples of artistic mastery. They 
may also be eligible under Criterion A, association with events contributing to broad patterns of 
history. Ethnographic sites, further, may be NRHP eligible as Traditional Cultural Properties due 
to potential continued connections to tribal descendants, and their resulting importance in 
traditional practices and beliefs, including their significance for historical memory, tribal- and self-
identity formation, and tribal education.  
 
For Criteria A, C and D, eligibility requires site integrity (including the ability to convey historical 
association for Criterion A). These may include intact archaeological deposits for Criterion D, as 
well as setting and feel for Criteria C and A. Historical properties may lack physical integrity, as 
normally understood in heritage management, but still retain their significance to Native American 
tribes as Traditional Cultural Properties if they retain their tribal associations and uses. 
 

2.5.3 Historical Archaeology: Euro-American 

Approaches to historical Euro-American archaeological research relevant to the region have been 
summarized by Caltrans (1999, 2000, 2007, 2008). These concern the general topics of historical 
landscapes, agriculture and farming, irrigation (water conveyance systems), and mining. Caltrans 
has also identified an evaluation matrix aiding determinations of eligibility. The identified research 
issues include site structure and land-use (lay-out, land use, feature function); economics (self-
sufficiency, consumer behavior, wealth indicators); technology and science (innovations, 
methods); ethnicity and cultural diversity (religion, race); household composition and lifeways 

323



(gender, children); and labor relations. Principles useful for determining the research potential of 
an individual site or feature are conceptualized in terms of the mnemonic AIMS-R, as follows: 
 

1. Association refers to the ability to link an assemblage of artifacts, ecofacts, and other 
cultural remains with an individual household, an ethnic or socioeconomic group, or a 
specific activity or property use. 
 
2. Integrity addresses the physical condition of the deposit, referring to the intact nature of 
the archaeological remains. In order for a feature to be most useful, it should be in much 
the same state as when it was deposited. However, even disturbed deposits can yield 
important information (e.g., a tightly dated deposit with an unequivocal association). 
 
3. Materials refers to the number and variety of artifacts present. Large assemblages 
provide more secure interpretations as there are more datable items to determine when the 
deposit was made, and the collection will be more representative of the household, or 
activity. Likewise, the interpretive potential of a deposit is generally increased with the 
diversity of its contents, although the lack of diversity in certain assemblages also may 
signal important behavioral or consumer patterns. 
 
4. Stratigraphy refers to the vertically or horizontally discrete depositional units that are 
distinguishable. Remains from an archaeological feature with a complex stratigraphic 
sequence representative of several events over time can have the added advantage of 
providing an independent chronological check on artifact diagnosis and the interpretation 
of the sequence of environmental or sociocultural events. 
 
5. Rarity refers to remains linked to household types or activities that are uncommon. 
Because they are scarce, they may have importance even in cases where they otherwise fail 
to meet other thresholds of importance (Caltrans 2007:209). 

 
For agricultural sites, Caltrans (2007) has identified six themes to guide research: Site Structure 
and Land Use Pattern; Economic Strategies; Ethnicity and Cultural Adaptation; Agricultural 
Technology and Science; Household Composition and Lifeways; and Labor History. Expected site 
types would include farm and ranch homesteads and facilities, line camps, and refuse dumps. In 
general terms, historical Euro-American archaeological sites would be evaluated for NRHP 
eligibility under Criterion D, research potential. However, they also potentially could be eligible 
under Criteria A and B for their associate values with major historical trends or individuals. 
Historical landscapes might also be considered. 
 
Historical structures, which are most likely to be pertinent to the current study area, are typically 
evaluated for NRHP eligibility under Criteria A and/or B, for their associate values with major 
historical trends or individuals, and C for potential design or engineering importance. Water 
conveyance systems comprise a particular sub-set of historical structures that warrant discussion 
in light of the known presence of one such resource within the Project APE. 

324



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

325



3. ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH  

3.1 ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH 

In order to determine whether the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project APE had been previously 
surveyed for cultural resources, and/or whether any such resources were known to exist on any of 
them, an archival records search was conducted by the staff of the Southern San Joaquin Valley 
Information Center (IC) on 2 March 2020 (Confidential Appendix A). The records search was 
completed to determine: (i) if prehistoric or historical archaeological sites had previously been 
recorded within the study areas; (ii) if the project area had been systematically surveyed by 
archaeologists prior to the initiation of this field study; and/or (iii) whether the region of the field 
project was known to contain archaeological sites and to thereby be archaeologically sensitive. 
Records examined included archaeological site files and maps, the NRHP, Historic Property Data 
File, California Inventory of Historic Resources, and the California Points of Historic Interest. 
 
According to the IC record search, four previous archaeological surveys had been completed that 
covered portions of the pipeline route (Table 1); the stormwater basin had not been previously 
surveyed. As a result of these studies, two historic structures had been identified within the pipeline 
APE: segments of the Visalia Electric (P-54-004034) and the Atchison Topeka and Santa Fe 
Railroad (P-54-004632) grades. A third resource, the Bravo Lake berm (P-54-004033), built by 
Gilbert F. Stevenson, is immediately outside of the pipeline route APE. An additional nine 
previous archaeological surveys had been conducted within 0.5 mi of the APE as a whole (Table 
2). These studies resulted in the recording of one additional cultural resource, the historical 
Wutchumna Ditch (P-54-004875), south of Bravo Lake.  
 
Table 1. Survey Reports within the Study Area 
 
Report 
No. Year 

Author 
(s)/Affiliation Title 

TU-00423 1994 J Miller/Peak & 
Associates, Inc.   

Cultural Resources Assessment of the Proposed 
Woodlake Valley Apartments I and II, Woodlake, 
Tulare County, California 

TU-01013 1999 K Hovey and W 
Tackett/ Caltrans  

Negative Archaeological Survey Report to Construct 
an Asphalt Concrete Overlay and Shoulder Backing on 
State Route 245 from State Route 198 to State Route 
201 In Tulare County, California 

TU-01445 2010 
S Hudlow/ Hudlow 
Cultural Resource 
Associates 

A Phase I Cultural Resource Survey for Woodlake 
Village II, City of Woodlake, California 

TU-01813 2017 KD Thomas / Helix 
Environmental 

Cultural Resources Records Search and Site 
Visit Results for AT&T Mobility, LLC 
Candidate CVL03488 (Acacia Street), 353 
South Acacia Street, Woodlake, Tulare 
County, California (/ebI Project # 6117002307 

 

326



 
Table 2. Survey Reports within 0.5-miles of the Study Area 
 

Report No. Year 
Author 
(s)/Affiliation Title 

TU-00008 1997 
JS Kus /California 
State University, 
Fresno   

Negative Archaeological Survey Report for the 
Woodlake Self-Help Project 

TU-00014 1996 

JS Kus and CA 
Mader /California 
State University, 
Fresno   

Negative Archaeological Survey Report for the 
Woodlake HOME-95 Project 

TU-00015 1995 

JS Kus and CA 
Mader /California 
State University, 
Fresno   

Negative Archaeological Survey Report for the 
Proposed Development of a Parcel of Land at 248 
Valencia Blvd. (State Highway 65) in the City of 
Woodlake, Tulare County, California 

TU-00016 1996 

JS Kus and CA 
Mader /California 
State University, 
Fresno   

Negative Archaeological Survey Report for the 
Woodlake BEGIN Project 

TU-00409 1981 D O’Connor / 
Caltrans 

Archaeological Survey Report for Grade Raising 
Project Between Road 204 and Cypress Street, Near 
Woodlake, Tulare County, California 

TU-01196 2004 JS Kus / James S. 
Kus & Associates 

Negative Archaeological Survey Report for the 
Woodlake Wastewater Treatment Facility Expansion 

TU-01389 2009 RE Parr / Cal 
Heritage 

Cultural Resource Assessment for the Replacement of 
Seven Deteriorated Power Poles on the Southern 
California Edison Company Aurora, Elk, Merryman, 
Milk, Redbanks, and Sargent 12kV Circuits, Tulare 
County, California 

TU-01392 2009 
AM Greenwald and 
K Goetter / LSA 
Associates, Inc. 

Cultural and Paleontological Resources Study for the 
Woodlake Wastewater Treatment Facility Project, 
Woodlake, Tulare County, California 

TU-01394 2009 RE Parr / Cal 
Heritage 

Cultural Resource Assessment for the Replacement of 
Eleven Deteriorated Power Poles on the Southern 
California Edison Company Bravo, Cairns, Campbell, 
Homer, Merryman, and Redbanks 12 kV Circuits 
Tulare County, California 

 
A records search was also conducted at the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) 
Sacred Lands File (Confidential Appendix A). No sacred sites or tribal cultural resources were 
known in or in the vicinity of the APE. Outreach letters were then sent to the tribal contact list 
provided by the NAHC by the City of Woodlake.  
 
Based on the record search results, the Project APE was considered to have low archaeological 
sensitivity.  

327



4. METHODS AND RESULTS 

4.1 FIELD METHODS 

An intensive Class III inventor/Phase I survey of the APE was conducted by Robert Azpitarte, 
B.A., ASM Associate Archaeologist on 16 March 2020. The field methods employed included 
intensive pedestrian examination of the ground surface for evidence of archaeological sites in the 
form of artifacts, surface features (such as bedrock mortars, historical mining equipment), and 
archaeological indicators (e.g., organically enriched midden soil, burnt animal bone); the 
identification and location of any discovered sites, should they be present; tabulation and recording 
of surface diagnostic artifacts; site sketch mapping; preliminary evaluation of site integrity; and 
site recording, following the California Office of Historic Preservation Instructions for Recording 
Historic Resources, using DPR 523 forms. Parallel survey transects spaced at 15-m apart were 
employed for the inventory. These covered the entirety of the approximately 38-ac stormwater 
basin APE. Because the pipeline route APE will follow existing paved roads, both sides of these 
roads were surveyed. Where grass lawns or other alterations were present, open/exposed areas in 
the immediate vicinity were purposely examined to ensure ground surface visibility, with transect 
spacing reduced in these locations. Visibility overall was moderate to good, and adequate for Phase 
I survey/Class III inventory standards.  
 

4.2 SURVEY RESULTS 

The Project APE includes both existing citrus orchards, in the stormwater basin area (Figure 2), 
and developed city streets for most of the pipeline route (Figure 3). The eastern terminus of the 
pipeline is the existing Manzanillo Pumping Station, itself within a park bordering the north shore 
of Bravo Lake (Figure 4). The locations of the segments of two previously recorded cultural 
resources were identified within the APE and their existing site records were updated 
(Confidential; Appendix B). No other cultural resources of any kind are present within the project 
APE.  
 
The two previously recorded historical structures are described below. 
 

4.2.1 Previously Recorded Resources 

 
P-54-004034 (Visalia Electric Railroad) 
 
P-54-004034 consists of the early 20th century Visalia Electric Railroad grade. The resource was 
originally recorded by Caltrans in 1999, with other portions of the rail grade subsequently recorded 
in the last 21 years. According to Preston (1981), the railroad operated from 1905 to 1924, when 
the rise of automobile ownership made it obsolete. 
 

328



According to the IC records, a short segment of the rail grade, measuring approximately 1,400-ft 
(east-west) in length, was located within the APE. This mapping was likely based on the plotted 
location of the grade on the 1952 USGS Woodlake 1: 24,000 topographical quadrangle. No 
evidence of this historical structure was in fact present within the APE. All elements of the rail 
grade had been removed (i.e. ballast base, rail ties, cross beams) within the APE.  The mapped 
location of this rail grade has been turned into a botanical garden and park walkways for the 
community, alongside Bravo Lake.  The segment of the resource within the APE no longer exists 
and will not be affected by proposed construction.  
 
P-54-004632 (Atchison Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad) 
 
P-54-004632 consists of the Atchison Topeka and Santa Fe (ATSF) Railroad grade, an early 20th 
century structure. The resource was originally recorded by William Self Associates in 1995, with 
other portions of the rail grade subsequently recorded in the last 25 years. According to JRP 
Consulting (2009), construction of the rail grade began around 1915 specifically for orange grower 
transportation. The ATSF began abandoning the line in 1969 and it is now out of service. 
 
During the current study a short segment of the rail grade, measuring approximately 100-ft (east-
west) in length at the north end of S. Oaks Street, had been mapped by the IC within the APE, 
again likely following earlier plotted map locations. No evidence of the rail grade was however 
observed at this location. All elements of the rail grade have been removed (i.e., ballast base, rail 
ties, cross beams) and the location within the APE now consists of an asphalt road and orange 
grove. The segment of the resource no longer exists and will not be affected by proposed 
construction. 
 
 

 
 
Figure 2. Approximate center of the proposed stormwater basin, looking west. 

329



 

 
 
Figure 3.  Pipeline corridor at corner of Bravo Avenue and Oak Street, looking south. 
 

 
 

Figure 4. Eastern terminus of the pipeline route at the Manzanillo Pump Station. APE 
runs through center-left of photo; historic Bravo Lake berm and Bravo Lake, both outside 
of APE, to right. 

330



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

331



5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

5.1 SUMMARY 
 
An intensive Class III inventory/Phase I cultural resources survey was conducted for the Woodlake 
Stormwater Basin Project, City of Woodlake, Tulare County, California. which involves the 
removal of an existing orchard, the excavation of a new stormwater basin and the construction of 
an associated 48-inch diameter pipeline that extends approximately 4,611-ft to an existing pump 
station.  
 
A Class III inventory/Phase I was completed using 15-m transects covering the stormwater basin 
APE, with 15-m transects walked on both sides of the roads following the pipeline route APE. 
Two historical structures, both rail grades, had been recorded within the pipeline portion of the 
APE. Both linear resources segments had been destroyed within the Project APE. They thus lack 
integrity of design, setting, materials, workmanship and feeling and are recommended as not 
National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or California Register of Historical Resources 
(CRHR) eligible or significant. 
 
No additional cultural resources were identified within the Project APE. 
 
5.2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The proposed Project, accordingly, does not have the potential to result in adverse impacts or 
effects to significant or unique historical resources or historic properties. No additional cultural 
resources studies are recommended for this Project. In the unlikely event that cultural resources 
are uncovered during the construction of this Project, however, it is recommended that an 
archaeologist be contacted to assess the discovery. 
 
 
 

332



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

333



REFERENCES 

Boyd, W.H. 
1997 Lower Kern River Country 1850-1950: Wilderness to Empire. Kings River Press, 

Lemoore. 
 
Caltrans 

1999 General Guidelines for Identifying and Evaluating Historic Landscapes. Sacramento: 
Caltrans. 

2000 Water Conveyance Systems in California: Historic Context Development and 
Evaluation Procedures. Sacramento: Caltrans. 

2007 A Historical Context and Archaeological Research Design for Agricultural Properties 
in California. Sacramento: Caltrans. 

2008 A Historical Context and Archaeological Research Design for Mining Properties in 
California. Sacramento: Caltrans. 

2014 Historical Significance for State and Local Agency Bridges. 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/structur/strmaint/historic.htm. Accessed on 12 June 2019. 

 
Cook, S. F. 

1978 Historical Demography. In Handbook of North American Indians, Volume 8, 
California, R. F. Heizer, editor, pp. 91-98. Washington, D.C., Smithsonian Institute. 

 
CRM Tech 
       2001   Historical Resources Compliance Report: Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway  

      Company San Joaquin Corridor Capacity Improvements Project. Report on file,  
SSJVIC, CSUB. 

 
Driver, H.E. 

1937 Cultural Element Distributions: VI, Southern Sierra Nevada.  University of California 
Anthropological Records 1(2):53-154.  Berkeley 

 
Elsasser, A. 

1962 Indians of Sequoia and Kings Canyon National Parks. Three Rivers: Sequoia Natural 
History Association. 

 
Fenenga, F. 

1952 The Archaeology of the Slick Rock Village, Tulare County, California. American 
Antiquity 17:339-347. 

 
Fredrickson, D.A. and J. Grossman 

1977 A San Dieguito component at Buena Vista Lake, California. Journal of California and 
Great Basin Anthropology 4:173-190. 

 

334



Gayton, A.H. 
1930 Yokuts-Mono Chiefs and Shamans.  University of California Publications in American 

Archaeology and Ethnology 24. Berkeley, 361-420.  
1948 Yokuts and Western Mono Ethnography. University of California Anthropological 

Records 10:1–290. Berkeley. 
 
Gifford, E.W. and W.E. Schenck 

1926 Archaeology of the Southern San Joaquin Valley.  University of California 
Publications in American Archaeology and Ethnology 23(1):1-122. 

 
Harrington, John Peabody 

n.d. Yokuts ethnographic notes.  National Anthropological Archives. 
 
Hewes, G. 

1941 Archaeological reconnaissance of the central San Joaquin Valley. American Antiquity 
7:123-133.  

 
Horne, S.P. 

1981 The Inland Chumash: Ethnography, Ethnohistory and Archaeology. Ph.D. dissertation, 
UCSB. University Microfilms, Ann Arbor. 

 
Jones. T.L., G.M. Brown, L.M. Raab, J.L. McVickar, W.G. Spaulding. D.J. Kennett, A. York and 
P.L. Walker 

1999 Demographic Crisis in Western North America during the Medieval Climatic 
Anomaly.  Current Anthropology 40:137-170. 

 
King, C., C. Smith and T. King 

n.d. Archaeological Report Related to the Interpretation of Archaeological Resources 
Present at the Vasquez Rocks County Park. Report on file, UCLA AIC. 

 
Kroeber, A.L. 

1925  Handbook of the Indians of California. Bureau of American Ethnology, Bulletin 78. 
Washington, D.C. 

 
Latta, F. F. 

1977 Handbook of the Yokuts Indians. Bear State Books, Santa Cruz. 
 
LSID (Lindsay-Strathmore Irrigation District) 
2009 Lindsay-Strathmore Irrigation District Water Management Plan. Document on file, LSID. 
 
Meyer, J, D. Craig Young, and Jeffrey S. Rosenthal  

2010 Volume I: A Geoarchaeological Overview and Assessment of Caltrans Districts 6 and 
9. Submitted to California Department of Transportation 

 
Moratto, M. 

1984 California Archaeology. New York: Academic Press. 

335



 
Morgan, W.A. 

1914 History of Kern County, California with Biographical Sketches. Los Angeles: Historic 
Record Company. 

 
Pacific Legacy, Inc. 

2006 Southern San Joaquin Valley Oil Fields Comprehensive Study. Manuscript on file, 
BLM Bakersfield office. 

 
Powers, Stephen 

1971 The Yokuts Dance for the Dead. In R.F. Heizer and M.A. Whipple, editors, pp. 513-
519, The California Indians: A Source Book (second edition). Berkeley, University of 
California Press (original 1877). 

1976 Tribes of California. Berkeley, University of California Press (original 1877). 
 
 
Preston, William L. 

1981 Vanishing Landscapes: Land and Life in the Tulare Lake Basin. Berkeley, University 
of California Press. 

 
Ruud, N., T. Harter and V. Naugle 
2002  A Conjunctive Use Model for the Tule Groundwater Sub-Basin Area in the Southern-
Eastern San Joaquin Valley, California. Report prepared for Bureau of Reclamation. Accessed 
6/5/2019 at http://groundwater.ucdavis.edu/files/136421.pdf 
 
Schiffman, R.A. and A.P. Garfinkel 

1981 Prehistory of Kern County: An Overview. Bakersfield College Publications in 
Archaeology, Number 1. 

 
Schoenherr, A.A. 

1992 A Natural History of California. Berkeley: University of California Press. 
 
Siefkin, Nelson 

1999 Archaeology of the Redfeldt Mound (CA-KIN-66), Tulare Basin, California. M.A. 
Thesis, Department of Sociology and Anthropology, California State University, 
Bakersfield. 

 
Sutton, M.Q. 

1988a  An Introduction to the Archaeology of the Western Mojave Desert, California. Archives 
of California Prehistory, No. 14. Salinas: Coyote Press. 

1988b On the Late Prehistory of the Western Mojave Desert. Pacific Coast Archaeological 
Society Quarterly 24(1):22-29. 

2009 People and Language: Defining the Takic Expansion into the Southern California. 
Pacific Coast Archaeological Society Quarterly 40(2, 3): 31-73. 

 

336



W&S Consultants 
2006 Phase II Test Excavations and Determinations of Significance for the Tejon Mountain 

Village Project, Kern County, California. Report on file, Tejon Ranch Company. 
 
Wedel, W. 

1941 Archaeological Investigations at Buena Vista Lake, Kern County, California. Bureau 
of American Ethnology Bulletin 130. 

 
Whitley, D.S. 

1992 Shamanism and Rock Art in Far Western North America. Cambridge Archaeological 
Journal 2(1):89-113. 

2000 The Art of the Shaman: Rock Art of California. Salt Lake City: University of Utah 
Press. 

2006 Ethnohistory and Rock Art in South-Central California. In American Indian Rock Art 
21:241-259. American Rock Art Research Association. 

 
Whitley, D.S. and M.P. Beaudry 

1991 Chiefs on the Coast: The Development of Complex Society in the Tiquisate Region in 
Ethnographic Perspective. The Development of Complex Civilizations in Southeastern 
Mesoamerica, W. Fowler, ed., pp. 101-120. Orlando: CRC Press. 

 
Whitley, D.S., G. Gumerman IV, J. Simon and E. Rose 

1988 The Late Prehistoric Period in the Coso Range and Environs. Pacific Coast 
Archaeological Society Quarterly 24(1):2-10. 

 
Whitley, D.S., J. Simon and J.H.N. Loubser 

2007 The Carrizo Collapse: Art and Politics in the Past. In A Festschrift Honoring the 
Contributions of California Archaeologist Jay von Werlhof, ed RL Kaldenberg, pp. 
199-208. Ridgecrest: Maturango Museum Publication 20. 

 
Zack, Richard  
2017 Quest for Water: Quest for Water: Tulare Irrigation District, Its History, People, and 

Progression. Tulare: Tulare Irrigation District. 
 
 

337



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES: 
 
 
 

 

338



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

339



    

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF MITIGATED NEGATIVE  ) 

DECLARATION FOR THE WOODLAKE   )  Resolution No. 

STORMWATER BASIN PROJECT   ) 

 

Councilmember ____, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approval of 

Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project. 

 
WHEREAS, the project consists of the following: 

 

1. Constructing and operating a 17-acre stormwater retention basin, which will 

receive runoff from the Bravo Lake/ Wutchumna Ditch via the Manzanillo 

Stormwater Pump 

2. Installing 4,611 linear feet of 48-inch pipeline from the new basin north to the 

Bravo Avenue alignment, east along Bravo Avenue to Magnolia Street, north on 

Magnolia Street to just south of Avenue 344, then east along the north edge of 

Bravo Lake to the Manzanillo Pump Station 

3. Installing approximately 930 linear feet of pipeline from the new basin along 

Deltha Avenue alignment to Palm Street. 

 

WHEREAS, the site of proposed project is located in Woodlake, 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Foothill Sun Gazette prior to the 

Woodlake City Council meeting; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the project necessitated a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration and it has been prepared on the project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing  on this matter, reviewed the staff report 

prepared on this proposed project and considered public input regarding the design of the project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake City Council hereby approves a 

Mitigated Negative declaration for the Woodlake Stormwater Basin Project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

340



    

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _____, and seconded by 

Councilmember _____, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held on 

May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:  

       _____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

341



    

City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-D  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by City Staff  

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution: 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of the 

Concord Center Industrial Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project   

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The subject site is a 17.8 acre site located at on Naranjo Blvd. and South Blair Rd. The subject 

property consists of a parcel that is used as an orchard. 

 

The zoning is ML, Light Manufacturing.  

 

The subject is industrial land with an orchard. Surrounding land uses are as follows:  

 

  North: Agriculture 

  South: Agriculture, Some Rural Residential 

  East: Agriculture 

  West: Industrial Sites 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The applicant is proposing to subdivide an industrial property into smaller industrial lots. Attached 

with this item is the Final EIR which includes a site plan that shows the location of the 

improvements and the lots.  

 

The Draft EIR was properly noticed and circulated for public review and comment for 45 days, from 

January 1, 2020 through February 14, 2020. The Notice of Availability was published in the Sun 

Gazette on January 1, 2020. The Draft EIR and Appendices were sent to the State Clearinghouse for 

distribution and notices were mailed to local agencies and other interested individuals. The City 

received comments on the Draft EIR from Caltrans and CDFA (CalCannabis). As part of the Final 

EIR process, the City was required to address comments made related to the EIR.  These comments 

and responses that make up the Final EIR, in combination with the Draft EIR constitute the EIR that 

will be considered for certification by the City Council. 

 

The Final EIR has been prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act and 

the City is recommending the certification of the Final EIR and the adoption of a Mitigation 

Monitoring Reporting Program, which outlines the mitigations requirements associated with the 

project. 

 

 

 

342



    

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project 

of the Woodlake Concord (Project) 

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR 

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution:  

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project 

of the Concord Center Industrial Project (Project) 

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR 

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 

2. Attachment No.1: Final EIR and MMRP 

 

343



  

FINAL FOCUSED 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

REPORT 

Concord Center Industrial 
Project 

 

 

 

May 2020 

PREPARED BY: 

 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 
113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 
Visalia, CA 93291 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

 
 
 
City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 
Woodlake, California 93286 
 

344



Final Focused Environmental Impact Report 

Concord Center Industrial Project 

 

Prepared for: 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 

Woodlake, California 93286 
 (559) 564-8055 

Contact: Jason Waters, Community Services Director 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 

113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 
Visalia, CA 93291 

(559) 840-4414 

Contact: Emily Bowen, LEED AP 

 

 

May 2020 

State Clearinghouse Number: 2019090505 

  

345



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER ONE - Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 1 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Background ..................................................................................................................................................... 1 

CEQA Requirements ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

Use of the Final EIR ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses .............................................................................................. 4 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Comment Letters ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR ......................................................................................... 30 

Other Public Agencies Involved ................................................................................................................ 30 

CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ....................................................... 37 

 

346



CHAPTER ONE - Introduction  
 
Introduction 

This Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) contains the public and agency comments received 
during the public review period for the City of Woodlake’s Concord Center Industrial Complex 
Project (proposed Project), and responses to each of those comments.  

This EIR is an informational document intended to disclose to the decision makers of the City of 
Woodlake (City) and the public the environmental consequences of approving and implementing 
the Concord Center Industrial Complex Project or one of the alternatives to the proposed Project, 
which are described in the Draft EIR. All written comments received during the public review 
period (January 1, 2022 through February 14, 2020) of the Draft EIR are addressed in this Final 
EIR.  

The responses in the Final EIR clarify, correct, and/or amplify text in the Draft EIR. Also included 
in the Final EIR are minor text changes made at the initiative of the City (the Lead Agency) and 
in response to comments. The Final EIR was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Public Resources Code Sections 21000-21177).  

 

Background 

Notice of Preparation 

In accordance with CEQA, the City released a Notice of Preparation (NOP) on September 20, 
2019, for a review period that closed on October 21, 2019. The purpose of the NOP was to provide 
notification that an EIR for the proposed Project was being prepared and to solicit guidance on 
the scope and content of the document. The City received four comment letters during the NOP 
review period. NOP letters were received from: 

• California Department of Food and Agriculture CalCannabis Division – providing 
general comments and recommendations, and specific edits/revisions for the Initial 
Study/NOP.  

• Native American Heritage Commission – providing information regarding cultural 
resources discovery. 

347



• Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board – providing information regarding 
various permit requirements.  

• California Department of Transportation – Requesting a Transportation Impact Study be 
completed. 

Draft EIR 

The Draft EIR was properly noticed and circulated for public review and comment for 45 days, 
from January 1, 2020 through February 14, 2020. The Notice of Availability was published in the 
Sun Gazette on January 1, 2020. The Draft EIR and Appendices were sent to the State 
Clearinghouse for distribution and notices were mailed to local agencies and other interested 
individuals. The City received two comment letters on the Draft EIR. These letters are reproduced 
in their entirety in Chapter Two of this Final EIR and responses are shown after each letter. 

These comments and responses that make up the Final EIR, in combination with the Draft EIR 
constitute the EIR that will be considered for certification by the decision makers of the City of 
Woodlake.  

 

CEQA Requirements 

Under CEQA, the Lead Agency must prepare and certify a Final EIR prior to a proposed project 
being approved. The contents of a Final EIR are specified in Section 15132 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which states that a Final EIR must consist of the following: 

a) The Draft EIR or a revision of the Draft EIR.  
b) Comments and recommendations received on the Draft EIR either verbatim or in 

summary.  
c) A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft EIR. 
d) The responses of the Lead Agency to significant environmental points raised in the review 

and consultation process. 
e) Any other information added by the Lead Agency.  

The Lead Agency must provide each agency that commented on the Draft EIR with a copy of the 
Lead Agency’s response to such comments a minimum of 10 days before certifying the Final EIR. 

 

348



Use of the Final EIR 

The Final EIR allows the public and the City an opportunity to review revisions to the Draft EIR 
and the responses to comments received during the Draft EIRs public review period. The Final 
EIR serves as the environmental document to inform the City of the environmental consequences 
of the proposed project, either in whole or in part, or one of the alternatives to the project 
discussed in the Draft EIR. 

As required by Section 15090(a)(1)-(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, a Lead Agency, in certifying a 
Final EIR, must make the following three determinations: 

1) The Final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA. 
2) The Final EIR was presented to the decision-making body of the Lead Agency, and the 

decision-making body reviewed and considered the information in the Final EIR prior to 
approving the project. 

3) The Final EIR reflects the Lead Agency’s independent judgement and analysis. 

As required by Section 15091 of the CEQA Guidelines, a public agency cannot approve or carry 
out a project for which an EIR has been certified that identifies one or more significant 
environmental effects of the project unless the public agency makes one or more written findings 
(Findings of Fact) for each of those significant effects, accompanied by a brief explanation of the 
rationale to reach findings supported by substantial evidence in the record. The possible findings 
are as follows: 

1) Changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project that avoid 
or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the Final EIR. 

2) Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public 
agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been adopted by such 
other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.  

3) Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision 
of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation 
measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.  

Additionally, pursuant to Section 15093(b) of the CEQA Guidelines, when a Lead Agency 
approves a project that would result in significant unavoidable impacts that are disclosed in the 
Final EIR, the agency must state in writing the reasons supporting the approval. The Statement 
of Overriding Considerations must be supported by substantial evidence in the Lead Agency’s 
administrative record.  

349



If the City approves the project, and as part of that action adopts mitigation measures, the City 
will also adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (see Public Resources Code 
Section 21081.6).  

CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses 
 
Introduction 

This chapter of the Final EIR contains a copy of each of the written comments received from the 
public and other agencies with jurisdiction over the proposed Project, followed by responses to 
each comment. A total of two comment letters were received from the following groups and 
agencies: 

Comment Letter 1 
David Deel, Associate Transportation 
Planner 
Department of Transportation – District 6 
Office 
1352 West Olive Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93778 
February 14, 2020 
 

Comment Letter 2 
Lindsay Rains, Licensing Program Manager 
Kevin Ponce, Senior Environmental Scientist 
Supervisor 
CalCannabis Cultivation Licensing Division 
1220 N Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
February 18, 2020 
 

350



Comment Letters 
 

Comment Letter 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

351



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

352



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

353



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

354



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

355



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

356



Responses to Comment Letter 1:  

• In response to Comment 1:  The Draft Focused EIR has been revised to reflect the correct 
location description. Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 
 

• In response to Comment 2: The Draft Focused EIR has been revised to include a site plan 
that illustrates road dimensions. Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 
 

• In response to Comment 3: The City appreciates Caltrans’ concurrence with the trip 
generation rates. 
 

• In response to Comment 4: The Draft Focused EIR has been revised to include a site plan 
that includes a turning template at the SR 216/ Blair Road intersection for the largest 
vehicle anticipated. Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 
 

• In response to Comments 10 - 12: The City recognizes the need for the Applicant to 
conduct an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) to determine the type of intersection 
control solution is warranted and to obtain an encroachment permit for all proposed 
activities within the State highway right-of-way. It is noted that Caltrans anticipates a 
roundabout would potentially be the type of intersection control improvement at SR 216 
and Road 204 (Blair Road).  
 

• In response to Comments 13 – 18, 20: The site plan in the Draft Focused EIR has been 
revised to include the 17-foot IOD of ROW to Caltrans, a cross section which depicts the 
proposed improvements to State Route 216, and dimensions as requested. 
 

• In response to Comment 19: The City recognizes that the sidewalk and site landscaping 
will be maintained per a Caltrans District 6 approved maintenance agreement. 
 

• In response to Comment 21 – 24: The City understands that the IOD may be reduced. Dust 
control measures will be implemented as part of the Dust Control Plan required by the 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District and implementing BMP measures, as 
described on page 49 of the Initial Study (Appendix A of the Draft Focused EIR) will 
ensure that no runoff will flow into the State right-of-way.  
 

357



• In response to Comment 25: The Draft Focused EIR has been revised to include analysis 
of the SR 216 frontage improvements. Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 
 

• In response to Comment 26 - 27: The City recognizes the need for the applicant to schedule 
a “Pre-Submittal” meeting with District 6 Encroachment Permit Office before obtaining 
an encroachment permit for all project-related activities that will take place within the 
State right-of-way.  
 

• In response to Comment 28: The Draft Focused EIR has been revised to clarify the presence 
of bike paths within the City. Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR.  
 

• In response to Comment 29: The City appreciates Caltrans’ concurrence with the VMT 
analysis contained in the Draft Focused EIR.  
 

• In response to Comment 30:  The City recognizes the benefit for alternative transportation 
policies for all development projects within the City and will likely include alternative 
transportation policies in its next General Plan Update document. For this specific Project, 
the County provides out of town bus service, with multiple pickup and dropoff locations 
around the City. The nearest transit stop is approximately 0.3 miles to the east, at the 
corner of N. Cypress St and SR 216. A pedestrian walkway linking 13 parcels is included 
in the site design, as provided in Figure 3 (Page 2-7) of the DEIR. 
 
 

 

 

358



Comment Letter 2 

Lindsay Rains, Licensing Program Manager 
Kevin Ponce, Senior Environmental Scientist Supervisor 
CalCannabis Cultivation Licensing Division 
1220 N Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
February 18, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

359



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

360



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

361



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

362



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

363



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

364



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

365



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

366



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

367



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

368



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

369



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

370



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

371



Response to Comment Letter 2:  

• Response to GC 1: Page 2-5 of the Draft EIR and page 7 of the Initial Study describes the 
project at full build out as housing 13 industrial businesses either allowable within the 
Light Industrial Zone District or cannabis businesses allowable with the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit and more specifically, those same pages describe the project as 
including the following Project component. 

o Constructing and operating an industrial park with buildings ranging from 10,000 
to 22,000 square feet each, for a total of up to 210,000 square feet of industrial space.  

As such, the City feels that the scope of the Draft Focused EIR and the IS clearly specifies 
that full buildout of operations on the 13 subdivided parcels, including the issuance of 
CUPs or other regulatory permits, have been analyzed in the Draft Focused EIR and no 
further clarification is necessary.  

• Response to GC 2: As it is unknown at this time, whether the parcels will be developed 
with cannabis related facilities or with other industrial uses allowable within the zone 
district, the analysis presented in the document assumes full buildout of 210,000 square 
feet of industrial space (see Page 2-5 of the Draft Focused EIR). All operations, cannabis 
or other, would take place within the 210,000 square feet of space. Page 2-5 of the Draft 
Focused EIR further discusses that operations will take place from 8am to 5pm up to 7 
days per week. Potential water impacts are discussed in Section X of the Initial Study, 
hazardous materials are discussed in Section IX of the Initial Study and energy impacts 
are discussed in Section VI of the Initial Study. Mitigation measures have been included 
in the Initial Study and the Draft Focused EIR which will be certified in the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program and will be applicable to all development that will 
occur at the Project site. The City has determined that no further analysis is necessary.  
 

• Response to GC 3: As discussed in the response to CG 1 and 2, the Draft Focused EIR 
covers all development that will occur within the 210,000 square feet of available 
industrial space. All 20 CEQA-required environmental topics were discussed and 
analyzed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR. Footnotes were included throughout 
the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR to guide the reader to the source of information. 
Assumptions utilized for estimating criteria pollutant, energy usage and greenhouse gas 
emissions are clearly stated on page 22 of the Initial Study and the Traffic Impact Analysis 
provided in Appendix C of the Draft Focused EIR provides the assumptions utilized for 
traffic modeling. The City has determined that no further analysis is necessary. 
 

• Response to GC 4: This comment is not relevant as the City will not require subsequent 
site-specific environmental assessments. This document covers CEQA compliance for the 

372



entire 210,000 square foot development. The City has determined that no further analysis 
is necessary. 
 

• Response to GC 5: As stated in the response to CG3, all 20 CEQA-required environmental 
topics were discussed and analyzed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR, including 
aesthetics, land use and planning, mineral resources, noise, odor, recreation, public 
services and utilities and traffic and transportation. The City has determined that no 
further analysis is necessary. 
 

• Response to GC 6: As discussed on page 4-1 of the Draft Focused EIR,  

“The CEQA Guidelines allow for the use of two alternative methods to determine 
the scope of projects for the cumulative impact analysis: 

• List Method – a list of past, present and probable future projects 
producing related or cumulative impacts, including, if necessary those 
projects outside the control of the agency. 

• General Plan Projection Method – A summary of projections contained in 
an adopted General Plan, or related planning document, which described 
or evaluated regional or area wide conditions contributing to the 
cumulative impact. 

The cumulative impacts analyses in this document are based on the General Plan 
Projection Method from the 2007 Woodlake General Plan (and its EIR) (CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15130(1)(B)).” 

Additionally, Section 15130(d) of the CEQA Guidelines states: 
 

“Previously approved land use documents, including, but not limited to, general 
plans… may be used in cumulative impact analysis. A pertinent discussion of 
cumulative impacts contained in one or more previously certified EIRs may be 
incorporated by reference pursuant to the provisions for tiering and program EIRs. 
No further cumulative comparable programmatic plan where the lead agency 
determines that the regional or areawide cumulative impacts of the proposed 
project have already been adequately addressed, as defined in section 15152(f), in 
a certified EIR for that plan.” 

As the City’s General Plan EIR (SCH# 2008101159) covered cumulative impacts for the 
General Plan buildout area and the proposed Project does not include a change in land 

373



use or zoning, the City has determined that the cumulative impact analysis contained in 
the Draft Focused EIR is appropriate and is in compliance with the intent of CEQA.  

 
• Response to GC 7: The City is happy to provide a copy of the final Focused EIR to CDFA. 

The City will include CDFA in the Reviewing Agencies Checklist and will provide future 
tenants a copy of the signed Notice of Determination and Final EIR so cannabis 
applications can include them with their application package submitted to CDFA.  
 

• Response to GC 8: As discussed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR, the projects 
potential environmental impacts to aesthetics, air quality and greenhouse gas emissions, 
biological resources, cultural resources, hazardous and hazardous materials, hydrology 
and water quality, noise, utilities and service systems, energy and cumulative 
improvements were determined to be none, less than significant, or less than significant 
with mitigation incorporation. As such, the City did not feel that additional analysis was 
necessary to further reduce potential impacts. The City does appreciate the CDFA 
regulations and should note that projects obtaining permits from CDFA will be in 
compliance with the stated regulations that will further reduce potential environmental 
impacts.  
 

• Response to Initial Study (IS) Additional Comments: 
 

o Comment 2: Page 3-3 of the Draft Focused EIR states,  
“The trip generation and design hour volumes shown in Table 3.1 were 
calculated using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation, 10th Edition. The ADT, AM and PM peak hour rates, and peak 
hour directional splits for ITE Land Use Code 110 (General Light 
Industrial) were used to estimate the project traffic for peak hour of 
adjacent street traffic.” 

The ITE Trip Generation model is the widely accepted method to generate trip 
generation information. As such, the City has determined that no further 
discussion is required.  

o Comment 5: Pages 44 and 45 of the Initial Study discuss the use of hazardous 
materials during both the construction and operational phases of the proposed 
Project.  
 
 

374



o The Initial Study has been revised to include suggested edits in comments 1, 3, 4, 
6, 7 and 8 in the table provided on pages 10 through 18 of the CDFA letter. Please 
see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 

 

375



CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR 
1. Based on the table on pages 10 through 18 of the letter from the California Department of Food 
& Agriculture (CDFA), the following text supersedes the text of the DEIR: 

Comment 1 – Section 2.6 Other Required Approvals (page 2-6 of the DEIR) has been changed as 
follows: 

“The proposed Project would include, but not be limited to, the following regulatory 
requirements:  

• The certification of an Environmental Impact Report by the City of Woodlake 
• Approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
• Issuance of a license to cultivate, propagate and process commercial cannabis from the 

California Department of Food and Agriculture 
• Coverage under General Waste Discharge Requirements and Waiver of Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Discharges of Waste Associated with Cannabis Cultivation Activities 
Order No. WQ 2019-0001-DWQ (the Cannabis General Order), issued by the State Water 
Resources Control Board. 

• A license for commercial cannabis manufacturing from the California Department of 
Health 

• Approval of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan by the Central Valley Regional Water 
Quality Control Board 

• Dust Control Plan Approval letter from the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control 
District 

• Compliance with Rule 9510 of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 
• Compliance with other federal, state and local requirements” 

 
Comment 1 – Page 10 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows:  

“Other Public Agencies Involved 

• State of California Native American Heritage Commission 
• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 
• Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 

376



• Bureau of Cannabis Control 
• California Department of Health” 

 

Comment 3 – Page 27 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“No Impact. The City of Woodlake’s General Plan includes policies for the protection of biological 
resources, including minimizing the impact of new development on biotic resources. The 
proposed Project would not conflict with any of the adopted policies. There is no impact. “ 
 

Comment 4 – Page 30 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“CUL – 1 Should evidence of prehistoric archeological resources be discovered during 
construction, the contractor shall halt all work within 25 feet of the find and the 
resource shall be evaluated by a qualified archaeologist. If evidence of any 
archaeological, cultural, and/or historical deposits is found, hand excavation 
and/or mechanical excavation shall proceed to evaluate the deposits for 
determination of significance as defined by the CEQA guidelines. The 
archaeologist shall submit reports, to the satisfaction of the City of Fresno 
Woodlake, describing the testing program and subsequent results. These reports 
shall identify any program mitigation that the project proponent shall complete in 
order to mitigate archaeological impacts (including resource recovery and/or 
avoidance testing and analysis, removal, reburial, and curation of archaeological 
resources). 

CUL – 2 In order to ensure that the proposed project does not impact buried human 
remains during project construction, the project proponent shall be responsible for 
on-going monitoring of project construction. Prior to the issuance of any grading 
permit, the project proponent shall provide the City of Fresno Woodlake with 
documentation identifying construction personnel that will be responsible for on-
site monitoring. If buried human remains are encountered during construction, 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably 
suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall be halted until the Fresno Tulare 
County Coroner is contacted and the coroner has made the determinations and 
notifications required pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5. If the 

377



coroner determines that Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c) require that he 
give notice to the Native American Heritage Commission, then such notice shall 
be given within 24 hours, as required by Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c). 
In that event, the NAHC will conduct the notifications required by Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. Until the consultations described below have 
been completed, the landowner shall further ensure that the immediate vicinity, 
according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards or practices 
where Native American human remains are located, is not disturbed by further 
development activity until the landowner has discussed and conferred with the 
Most Likely Descendants on all reasonable options regarding the descendants' 
preferences and treatments, as prescribed by Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b). The NAHC will mediate any disputes regarding treatment of remains 
in accordance with Public Resources Code Section 5097.94(k). The landowner shall 
be entitled to exercise rights established by Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(e) if any of the circumstances established by that provision become 
applicable.” 

Comment 6 – Page 49 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“The Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board adopted a General Waste Discharge 
Requirements Order for Discharges of Waste Associated with Medical Cannabis Cultivation 
Activities (Order No. R5-2015-0113).  The State Water Resources Control Board has established 
General Order WQ 2019-0001-DWQ for cannabis cultivation. Any proposed cannabis tenants will 
be in compliance with the rules and requirements set forth in the Discharge Requirements 
General Order.  

Therefore, any impacts are less than significant.” 
 

Comment 7 – Page 50 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“According to the Woodlake General Plan 2008-2028, the aquifer underlying the City is a good 
supply of water although the relative shallowness of the water table can make the supply 
susceptible to surface contaminants. The water table is recharged primarily by water moving 
downhill from the watersheds of Sierra Nevada streams. The St. Johns River, which forms the 
southern boundary of the City of Woodlake, charges the aquifer from which Woodlake pumps 
its domestic water.  

378



Project demands for groundwater resources in connection with the proposed Project would not 
substantially deplete groundwater supplies and/or otherwise interfere with groundwater 
recharge efforts being implemented by the City of Woodlake. The proposed Project is not 
anticipated to result in additional demands for groundwater resources beyond those considered 
in the adopted City of Woodlake General Plan as the proposed Project is an allowable use within 
the land designation. The proposed Project would use a combination of City water for sanitary 
facilities and an existing on-site water well for any cultivation. Any impacts would be less than 
significant.” 
 

Comment 8 – Page 61 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“Less than Significant Impact. The proposed Project site will continue to be served by the City 
of Woodlake Fire Department, which is less than one mile east of the proposed Project site. The 
City of Woodlake Fire Department has reviewed the proposed Project and determined that no 
additional fire personnel or equipment is anticipated. , as the site is already served by the Fire 
Station. The impact is less than significant.” 

 

2.  Based on the comments received from the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
the following text supersedes the text of the DEIR: 

Comment 1 – Section 2.3 Location (page 2-1 of the DEIR) has been changed as follows: 

“The City of Woodlake is located in Tulare County in the southern part of the San Joaquin 
Valley. The proposed Project is located on the southwest corner of Road 204 and Avenue 
344 (State Route 216) on APN 060-170-071 and -098. West Ropes Avenue and Mulberry 
Street on APN 060-270-010. Woodlake is bisected by SR 216 and SR 245 and the City is 
situated five miles north of SR 198. “ 

Comments 2 and 4 – Section 2.5 Project Description (page 2-5 of the DEIR) has been changed as 
follows and a more detailed site plan has been included as Figure 4 – Tentative Map on page 2-8:  

“Project Components 

o A Tentative Parcel Map to allow for the division of the existing parcels 060-170-
071 and -098060-27-010 into 13 parcels, ranging in size of between 42,000 and 
62,000 square feet each. 

o Constructing and operating one building on each lot, ranging from 10,000 to 22,000 
square feet each, for a total of up to 210,000 square feet of industrial space. 

379



o Constructing internal access roads, parking spaces and associated landscaping, as 
detailed on Figure 3 – Site Plan and Figure 4 – Tentative Map. 

o Including an irrevocable offer of dedication to Caltrans for 17 feet of right-of-way, 
new curb, gutter and sidewalk along the SR 216, as detailed in Figure 4 – Tentative 
Map. 

o Connecting the Project to the existing City water, wastewater, and stormdrain 
systems. 

o Installation of perimeter security, including lighting and an alarm system, in 
accordance with Chapter 5.48 of the Woodlake Municipal Code.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

380



 Figure 4 – Tentative Map 

 

 

381



Comment 25 –  In addition to response to Comment 2 and 4, above, that amends the Draft EIR 
text to include a Tentative Plan figure that details improvements to the building frontage along 
SR 216, page 14 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as follows: 

“The proposed Project is consistent with the existing character and uses of the surrounding area, 
as other built-up land, including industrial/commercial businesses, are in the neighboring 
vicinities. Similar to other developments located along the southside of SR 216, the proposed 
Project will be required to install curb, gutter and a minimum six-foot sidewalk, per Caltrans 
standards. As such, Project operations will not degrade the existing visual character of the site. 
Construction activities may be visible from the adjacent roadside; however, the construction 
activities will be temporary in nature and will not affect a scenic vista.” 

Comment 28 – Section 3.1 – Transportation (page 3-2 of the Draft EIR) has been changed as 
follows: 

“Woodlake has a Class I bike paths that extends 6,000 feet from Magnolia Street to St. Johns Street 
through the Bravo Lake Botanical Garden, which was established in the abandoned Visalia 
Electric Railroad right-of-way. In addition, there is a Class I bike path on top of the bank that 
surrounds Bravo Lake. The two bike paths are linked at the Bravo Lake Botanical Garden, which 
fronts onto SR 216. These bike paths also serve as a pedestrian pathway, especially for persons 
walking through the Bravo Lake Botanical Garden. There are no established pedestrian or bicycle 
paths in the City.” 

 

 

 

382



CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program 
State law requires that a public agency adopt a monitoring program for mitigation 
measures that have been incorporated into the approved project to reduce or avoid 
significant effects on the environment. The purpose of the monitoring program is to 
ensure compliance with environmental mitigation during project implementation and 
operation. Since there are potentially significant impacts requiring mitigation associated 
with the project, a Mitigation Monitoring Program is included herein on the following 
pages.  

383



Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measure 
Monitoring 

Timing/ 

Frequency 

Action Indicating 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Agency 

Verification of Compliance 

Initials Date Remarks 

Biological Resources 

BIO-1   To the extent practicable, 
construction shall be scheduled 
to avoid the nesting season, 
which extends from February 
through August. If it is not possible 
to schedule construction 
between September and 
January, a pre-construction 
clearance survey for nesting birds 
shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist to ensure that no active 
nests will be disturbed during the 
implementation of the Project. A 
pre-construction clearance 
survey shall be conducted no 
more than 14 days prior to the 
start of construction activities. 
During this survey, the qualified 
biologist shall inspect all potential 
nest substrates in and 
immediately adjacent to the 
impact areas, including within 250 
feet in the case of raptor nests. If 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

384



an active nest is found close 
enough to the construction area 
to be disturbed by these activities, 
the qualified biologist shall 
determine the extent of a 
construction-free buffer to be 
established around the nest. If 
work cannot proceed without 
disturbing the nesting birds, work 
may need to be halted or 
redirected to other areas until 
nesting and fledging are 
completed or the nest has failed 
for non-construction related 
reasons.  

 
Cultural Resources 

CUL-1 Should evidence of prehistoric 
archeological resources be 
discovered during construction, 
the contractor shall halt all work 
within 25 feet of the find and the 
resource shall be evaluated by a 
qualified archaeologist. If 
evidence of any archaeological, 
cultural, and/or historical deposits 
is found, hand excavation and/or 
mechanical excavation shall 
proceed to evaluate the deposits 
for determination of significance 

During 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

385



as defined by the CEQA 
guidelines. The archaeologist shall 
submit reports, to the satisfaction 
of the City of Woodlake, 
describing the testing program 
and subsequent results. These 
reports shall identify any program 
mitigation that the project 
proponent shall complete in order 
to mitigate archaeological 
impacts (including resource 
recovery and/or avoidance 
testing and analysis, removal, 
reburial, and curation of 
archaeological resources). 

CUL-2 In order to ensure that the 
proposed project does not 
impact buried human remains 
during project construction, the 
project proponent shall be 
responsible for on-going 
monitoring of project 
construction. Prior to the issuance 
of any grading permit, the project 
proponent shall provide the City 
of Woodlake with documentation 
identifying construction personnel 
that will be responsible for on-site 
monitoring. If buried human 
remains are encountered during 
construction, further excavation 

During 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

386



or disturbance of the site or any 
nearby area reasonably 
suspected to overlie adjacent 
remains shall be halted until the 
Tulare County Coroner is 
contacted and the coroner has 
made the determinations and 
notifications required pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code Section 
7050.5. If the coroner determines 
that Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5(c) require that he 
give notice to the Native 
American Heritage Commission, 
then such notice shall be given 
within 24 hours, as required by 
Health and Safety Code Section 
7050.5(c). In that event, the NAHC 
will conduct the notifications 
required by Public Resources 
Code Section 5097.98. Until the 
consultations described below 
have been completed, the 
landowner shall further ensure 
that the immediate vicinity, 
according to generally accepted 
cultural or archaeological 
standards or practices where 
Native American human remains 
are located, is not disturbed by 

387



further development activity until 
the landowner has discussed and 
conferred with the Most Likely 
Descendants on all reasonable 
options regarding the 
descendants' preferences and 
treatments, as prescribed by 
Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b). The NAHC will 
mediate any disputes regarding 
treatment of remains in 
accordance with Public 
Resources Code Section 
5097.94(k). The landowner shall be 
entitled to exercise rights 
established by Public Resources 
Code Section 5097.98(e) if any of 
the circumstances established by 
that provision become 
applicable. 

Transportation/Traffic 

TRA-1 The Project Developer shall be 
responsible for paying its fair share 
cost percentages and/or 
constructing improvements as 
detailed in Table 3.11, subject to 
reimbursement for the costs that 
are in excess of the Project’s 
equitable responsibility as 
determined by the City of 

Prior to issuance 
of grading 
permit. 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

388



 

Woodlake. This shall be itemized 
and enforced through conditions 
of approval or a development 
agreement, at the discretion of 
the City of Woodlake.  

 

389



    

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

1.CERTIFYING THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL)  Resolution No.  

IMPACT REPORT (EIR) FOR THE   ) 

RECOMMENDED PROJECT OF THE  )  

CONCORD CENTER INDUSTRIAL PROJECT )  

(PROJECT)      )  

2.APPROVING THE PROJECT IN THE FINAL )  

EIR       )  

3.APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE  ) 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING)  

PLAN (MMRP) FOR THE PROJECT  )   

 

Councilmember _____, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of 

the Concord Center Industrial Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to subdivide and develop an industrial park, and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposed zone for the site is ML, Light Manufacturing, and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed request has been processed consistent with Chapter 54, Site Plan 

Review, of the Woodlake Zoning Ordinance, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan Committee has reviewed the site plan for the proposed industrial 

buildings and has determined that it is consistent with requirements of the ML zone, and 

 

WHEREAS, the final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA, including 

circulation of a draft EIR for public comment, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council shall adopt the overall mitigation monitoring plan 

attached hereto, and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake City Council: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of the 

Concord Center Industrial Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project   

 

 

 

 

390



    

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember_____, second by 

Councilmember ______, at a regular meeting of the Woodlake City Council on the 26th day of 

May 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      

 

  _____________________ 

        Mayor, Rudy Mendoza 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

 

391



    

City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-E  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by City Staff  

 

SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution: 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of the 7 

Points Industrial Complex Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project   

 

BACKGROUND 

 
The subject site is and 18.24 acre site located at on West Ropes and Mulberry Street. The subject 

property consists of a parcel that is used as an orchard. 

 

The proposed zoning is ML, Light Manufacturing.  

 

The subject is industrial land with an orchard. Surrounding land uses are as follows:  

 

  North: Agriculture 

  South: Vacant Land 

  East: Agriculture 

  West: Industrial Site 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The applicant is proposing to subdivide an industrial property into smaller industrial lots. Attached 

with this item is the Final EIR which includes a site plan that shows the location of the 

improvements and the lots.  

 

The Draft EIR was properly noticed and circulated for public review and comment for 45 days, from 

January 1, 2020 through February 14, 2020. The Notice of Availability was published in the Sun 

Gazette on January 1, 2020. The Draft EIR and Appendices were sent to the State Clearinghouse for 

distribution and notices were mailed to local agencies and other interested individuals. The City 

received comments on the Draft EIR from Caltrans and CDFA (CalCannabis). As part of the Final 

EIR process, the City was required to address comments made related to the EIR.  These comments 

and responses that make up the Final EIR, in combination with the Draft EIR constitute the EIR that 

will be considered for certification by the City Council. 

 

The Final EIR has been prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act and 

the City is recommending the certification of the Final EIR and the adoption of a Mitigation 

Monitoring Reporting Program, which outlines the mitigations requirements associated with the 

project. 

 

 

 

392



    

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project 

of the 7 Points Industrial Complex Project (Project) 

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR 

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1. Resolution:  

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project 

of the 7 Points Industrial Project Complex (Project) 

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR 

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 

2. Attachment No. 1: Final EIR and MMRP 

 

393



  

FINAL FOCUSED 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

REPORT 

7Points Industrial Complex 
Project 

 

 

 

May 2020 

PREPARED BY: 

 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 
113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 
Visalia, CA 93291 

PREPARED FOR: 
 

 
 
 
City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 
Woodlake, California 93286 
 

394



Final Focused Environmental Impact Report 

7Points Industrial Complex Project 

 

Prepared for: 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Woodlake 
350 N. Valencia Avenue 

Woodlake, California 93286 
 (559) 564-8055 

Contact: Jason Waters, Community Services Director 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 

113 N. Church Street, Suite 302 
Visalia, CA 93291 

(559) 840-4414 

Contact: Emily Bowen, LEED AP 

 

 

May 2020 

State Clearinghouse Number: 2019090507 

  

395



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER ONE - Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 1 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Background ..................................................................................................................................................... 1 

CEQA Requirements ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

Use of the Final EIR ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses .............................................................................................. 4 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Comment Letters ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR ......................................................................................... 25 

CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ....................................................... 29 

  

396



CHAPTER ONE - Introduction  
 
Introduction 

This Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) contains the public and agency comments received 
during the public review period for the City of Woodlake’s 7Points Industrial Complex Project 
(proposed Project), and responses to each of those comments.  

This EIR is an informational document intended to disclose to the decision makers of the City of 
Woodlake (City) and the public the environmental consequences of approving and implementing 
the 7Points Industrial Complex Project or one of the alternatives to the proposed Project, which 
are described in the Draft EIR. All written comments received during the public review period 
(January 1, 2022 through February 14, 2020) of the Draft EIR are addressed in this Final EIR.  

The responses in the Final EIR clarify, correct, and/or amplify text in the Draft EIR. Also included 
in the Final EIR are minor text changes made at the initiative of the City (the Lead Agency) and 
in response to comments. The Final EIR was prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Public Resources Code Sections 21000-21177).  

 

Background 

Notice of Preparation 

In accordance with CEQA, the City released a Notice of Preparation (NOP) on September 20, 
2019, for a review period that closed on October 21, 2019. The purpose of the NOP was to provide 
notification that an EIR for the proposed Project was being prepared and to solicit guidance on 
the scope and content of the document. The City received four comment letters during the NOP 
review period. NOP letters were received from: 

• California Department of Food and Agriculture CalCannabis Division – providing 
general comments and recommendations, and specific edits/revisions for the Initial 
Study/NOP.  

• California Department of Fish and Wildlife – provided recommendations regarding water 
use, light pollution, water pollution, bird protection, fully protected species (specifically, 
San Joaquin Kit Fox and Crotch Bumble Bee), and unlisted species for the Draft EIR.  

397



• Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board – providing information regarding 
various permit requirements.  

• California Department of Transportation – Requesting a Transportation Impact Study be 
completed. 

Draft EIR 

The Draft EIR was properly noticed and circulated for public review and comment for 45 days, 
from January 1, 2020 through February 14, 2020. The Notice of Availability was published in the 
Sun Gazette on January 1, 2020. The Draft EIR and Appendices were sent to the State 
Clearinghouse for distribution and notices were mailed to local agencies and other interested 
individuals. The City received two comment letters on the Draft EIR. These letters are reproduced 
in their entirety in Chapter Two of this Final EIR and responses are shown after each letter. 

These comments and responses that make up the Final EIR, in combination with the Draft EIR 
constitute the EIR that will be considered for certification by the decision makers of the City of 
Woodlake.  

 

CEQA Requirements 

Under CEQA, the Lead Agency must prepare and certify a Final EIR prior to a proposed project 
being approved. The contents of a Final EIR are specified in Section 15132 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which states that a Final EIR must consist of the following: 

a) The Draft EIR or a revision of the Draft EIR.  
b) Comments and recommendations received on the Draft EIR either verbatim or in 

summary.  
c) A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft EIR. 
d) The responses of the Lead Agency to significant environmental points raised in the review 

and consultation process. 
e) Any other information added by the Lead Agency.  

The Lead Agency must provide each agency that commented on the Draft EIR with a copy of the 
Lead Agency’s response to such comments a minimum of 10 days before certifying the Final EIR. 

 

398



Use of the Final EIR 

The Final EIR allows the public and the City an opportunity to review revisions to the Draft EIR 
and the responses to comments received during the Draft EIRs public review period. The Final 
EIR serves as the environmental document to inform the City of the environmental consequences 
of the proposed project, either in whole or in part, or one of the alternatives to the project 
discussed in the Draft EIR. 

As required by Section 15090(a)(1)-(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, a Lead Agency, in certifying a 
Final EIR, must make the following three determinations: 

1) The Final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA. 
2) The Final EIR was presented to the decision-making body of the Lead Agency, and the 

decision-making body reviewed and considered the information in the Final EIR prior to 
approving the project. 

3) The Final EIR reflects the Lead Agency’s independent judgement and analysis. 

As required by Section 15091 of the CEQA Guidelines, a public agency cannot approve or carry 
out a project for which an EIR has been certified that identifies one or more significant 
environmental effects of the project unless the public agency makes one or more written findings 
(Findings of Fact) for each of those significant effects, accompanied by a brief explanation of the 
rationale to reach findings supported by substantial evidence in the record. The possible findings 
are as follows: 

1) Changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project that avoid 
or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the Final EIR. 

2) Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public 
agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been adopted by such 
other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.  

3) Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision 
of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation 
measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.  

Additionally, pursuant to Section 15093(b) of the CEQA Guidelines, when a Lead Agency 
approves a project that would result in significant unavoidable impacts that are disclosed in the 
Final EIR, the agency must state in writing the reasons supporting the approval. The Statement 
of Overriding Considerations must be supported by substantial evidence in the Lead Agency’s 
administrative record.  

399



If the City approves the project, and as part of that action adopts mitigation measures, the City 
will also adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (see Public Resources Code 
Section 21081.6).  

CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses 
 

Introduction 

This chapter of the Final EIR contains a copy of each of the written comments received from the 
public and other agencies with jurisdiction over the proposed Project, followed by responses to 
each comment. A total of four comment letters were received from the following groups and 
agencies: 

Comment Letter 1 
David Deel, Associate Transportation 
Planner 
Department of Transportation – District 6 
Office 
1352 West Olive Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93778 
February 14, 2020 
 

Comment Letter 2 
Lindsay Rains, Licensing Program Manager 
Kevin Ponce, Senior Environmental Scientist 
Supervisor 
CalCannabis Cultivation Licensing Division 
1220 N Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
February 18, 2020 
 

400



Comment Letters 

 

Comment Letter 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

401



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

402



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

403



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

404



Responses to Comment Letter 1:  

• In response to Comments 1-5: The City appreciates the concurrence with the calculated 
Projects Pro-Rata Fair Share Percentage.  
 

• In response to Comments 5-11: The City recognizes the need for the Applicant to conduct 
an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) to determine the type of intersection control 
solution is warranted and to obtain an encroachment permit for all proposed activities 
within the State highway right-of-way.  
 

• In response to Comment 12:  The City recognizes the benefit for alternative transportation 
policies for all development projects within the City and will likely include alternative 
transportation policies in its next General Plan Update document. For this specific Project, 
the County provides out of town bus service, with multiple pickup and dropoff locations 
around the City. The nearest transit stop is approximately 0.7 miles to the northeast, at the 
corner of N. Cypress St and SR 216. A pedestrian walkway linking 15 parcels is included 
in the site design, as provided in Figure 3 (Page 2-6) of the DEIR. 

 

 

405



Comment Letter 2 

Lindsay Rains, Licensing Program Manager 
Kevin Ponce, Senior Environmental Scientist Supervisor 
CalCannabis Cultivation Licensing Division 
1220 N Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
February 18, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

406



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

407



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

408



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

409



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

410



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

411



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

412



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

413



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

414



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

415



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

416



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Response to Comment Letter 2:  

• Response to GC 1: Page 2-2 of the Draft EIR and page 7 of the Initial Study describes the 
project at full build out as housing 15 industrial businesses either allowable within the 
Light Industrial Zone District or cannabis businesses allowable with the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit and more specifically, those same pages describe the project as 
including the following Project component. 

o Constructing and operating an industrial park with buildings ranging from 5,100 
to 27,500 square feet each, for a total of up to 335,000 square feet of industrial space.  

As such, the City feels that the scope of the Draft Focused EIR and the IS clearly specifies 
that full buildout of operations on the 15 subdivided parcels, including the issuance of 
CUPs or other regulatory permits, have been analyzed in the Draft Focused EIR and no 
further clarification is necessary.  

• Response to CG 2: As it is unknown at this time, whether the parcels will be developed 
with cannabis related facilities or with other industrial uses allowable within the zone 
district, the analysis presented in the document assumes full buildout of 335,000 square 
feet of industrial space (see Page 2-2 of the Draft Focused EIR). All operations, cannabis 
or other, would take place within the 335,000 square feet of space. Page 2-2 of the Draft 
Focused EIR further discusses that operations will take place from 8am to 5pm up to 7 
days per week. Potential water impacts are discussed in Section X of the Initial Study, 
hazardous materials are discussed in Section IX of the Initial Study and energy impacts 
are discussed in Section VI of the Initial Study. Mitigation measures have been included 
in the Initial Study and the Draft Focused EIR which will be certified in the Mitigation 

417



Monitoring and Reporting Program and will be applicable to all development that will 
occur at the Project site. The City has determined that no further analysis is necessary.  
 

• Response to CG 3: As discussed in the response to CG 1 and 2, the Draft Focused EIR 
covers all development that will occur within the 335,000 square feet of available 
industrial space. All 20 CEQA-required environmental topics were discussed and 
analyzed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR. Footnotes were included throughout 
the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR to guide the reader to the source of information. 
Assumptions utilized for estimating criteria pollutant, energy usage and greenhouse gas 
emissions are clearly stated on page 22 of the Initial Study and the Traffic Impact Analysis 
provided in Appendix C of the Draft Focused EIR provides the assumptions utilized for 
traffic modeling. The City has determined that no further analysis is necessary. 
 

• Response to CG 4: This comment is not relevant as the City will not require subsequent 
site-specific environmental assessments. This document covers CEQA compliance for the 
entire 335,000 square foot development. The City has determined that no further analysis 
is necessary. 
 

• Response to CG 5: As stated in the response to CG3, all 20 CEQA-required environmental 
topics were discussed and analyzed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR, including 
aesthetics, land use and planning, mineral resources, noise, odor, recreation, public 
services and utilities and traffic and transportation. The City has determined that no 
further analysis is necessary. 
 

• Response to CG 6: As discussed on page 4-1 of the Draft Focused EIR,  

“The CEQA Guidelines allow for the use of two alternative methods to determine 
the scope of projects for the cumulative impact analysis: 

• List Method – a list of past, present and probable future projects 
producing related or cumulative impacts, including, if necessary, those 
projects outside the control of the agency. 

• General Plan Projection Method – A summary of projections contained in 
an adopted General Plan, or related planning document, which described 
or evaluated regional or area wide conditions contributing to the 
cumulative impact. 

418



The cumulative impacts analyses in this document are based on the General Plan 
Projection Method from the 2007 Woodlake General Plan (and its EIR) (CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15130(1)(B)).” 

The Cumulative impact analysis in Chapter 4 of the Draft Focused EIR has been 
expanded to include less than significant impacts identified in the Initial Study. 
Please see Chapter Three of this Final EIR.” 

 
Additionally, Section 15130(d) of the CEQA Guidelines states: 
 

“Previously approved land use documents, including, but not limited to, general 
plans… may be used in cumulative impact analysis. A pertinent discussion of 
cumulative impacts contained in one or more previously certified EIRs may be 
incorporated by reference pursuant to the provisions for tiering and program EIRs. 
No further cumulative comparable programmatic plan where the lead agency 
determines that the regional or areawide cumulative impacts of the proposed 
project have already been adequately addressed, as defined in section 15152(f), in 
a certified EIR for that plan.” 

As the City’s General Plan EIR (SCH# 2008101159) covered cumulative impacts for the 
General Plan buildout area and the proposed Project does not include a change in land 
use or zoning, the City has determined that the cumulative impact analysis contained in 
the Draft Focused EIR is appropriate and is in compliance with the intent of CEQA.  

 
• Response to CG 7: The City is happy to provide a copy of the final Focused EIR to CDFA. 

The City will include CDFA in the Reviewing Agencies Checklist and will provide future 
tenants a copy of the signed Notice of Determination and Final EIR so cannabis 
applications can include them with their application package submitted to CDFA.  
 

• Response to CG 8: As discussed in the Initial Study and Draft Focused EIR, the projects 
potential environmental impacts to aesthetics, air quality and greenhouse gas emissions, 
biological resources, cultural resources, hazardous and hazardous materials, hydrology 
and water quality, noise, utilities and service systems, energy and cumulative 
improvements were determined to be none, less than significant, or less than significant 
with mitigation incorporation. As such, the City did not feel that additional analysis was 
necessary to further reduce potential impacts. The City does appreciate the CDFA 
regulations and should note that projects obtaining permits from CDFA will be in 

419



compliance with the stated regulations that will further reduce potential environmental 
impacts.  
 

• Response to Initial Study (IS) Additional Comments: 
 

o Comment 4: Pages 43 and 44 of the Initial Study discuss the use of hazardous 
materials during both the construction and operational phases of the proposed 
Project.  

o Comment 8: Page 3-11 of the Draft Focused EIR states,  
“The trip generation and design hour volumes shown in Table 3.1 were 
calculated using the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation, 10th Edition. The ADT, AM and PM peak hour rates, and peak 
hour directional splits for ITE Land Use Code 110 (General Light 
Industrial) were used to estimate the project traffic for peak hour of 
adjacent street traffic.” 

The ITE Trip Generation model is the widely accepted method to generate trip 
generation information. As such, the City has determined that no further 
discussion is required.  

o Comment 9: Estimated water and waste disposal amounts are unknown at this 
time, as the future tenants of the industrial facility are unknown. The Project will 
allow industrial uses, including cannabis cultivation and distribution (with an 
approved Conditional Use Permit), as permitted by the General Plan’s land use 
designation. The City has planned for industrial development in this area and this 
Project has been reviewed by the Public Works Department. As such, the City has 
determined that no further discussion is required. 
 

o The Initial Study has been revised to include suggested edits in comments 1, 2, 3, 
5, 6, and 7 in the table provided on pages 9 through 14 of the CDFA letter. Please 
see Chapter Three of this Final EIR. 

 

420



CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR 
1. Based on the table on pages 9 through 14 of the letter from the California Department of Food 
& Agriculture (CDFA), the following text supersedes the text of the DEIR: 

Comment 1 – Section 2.6 Other Required Approvals (page 2-6 of the DEIR) has been changed as 
follows: 

“The proposed Project would include, but not be limited to, the following regulatory 
requirements:  

• The certification of an Environmental Impact Report by the City of Woodlake 
• Approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
• Issuance of a license to cultivate, propagate and process commercial cannabis from the 

California Department of Food and Agriculture 
• Coverage under General Waste Discharge Requirements and Waiver of Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Discharges of Waste Associated with Cannabis Cultivation Activities 
Order No. WQ 2019-0001-DWQ (the Cannabis General Order), issued by the State Water 
Resources Control Board. 

• A license for commercial cannabis distribution from the Bureau of Cannabis Control 
• A license for commercial cannabis manufacturing from the California Department of 

Health” 
• Approval of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan by the Central Valley Regional Water 

Quality Control Board 
• Dust Control Plan Approval letter from the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control 

District 
• Compliance with Rule 9510 of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 
• Compliance with other federal, state and local requirements 

 
Comment 1 – Page 10 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows:  

“Other Public Agencies Involved 
• State of California Native American Heritage Commission 
• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 

421



• Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
• Bureau of Cannabis Control 
• California Department of Health” 

 

Comment 2 – Page 27 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“No Impact. The City of Woodlake’s General Plan includes policies for the protection of biological 
resources, including minimizing the impact of new development on biotic resources. The 
proposed Project would not conflict with any of the adopted policies. There is no impact. “ 
 

Comment 3 – Page 30 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“CUL – 1 Should evidence of prehistoric archeological resources be discovered during 
construction, the contractor shall halt all work within 25 feet of the find and the 
resource shall be evaluated by a qualified archaeologist. If evidence of any 
archaeological, cultural, and/or historical deposits is found, hand excavation 
and/or mechanical excavation shall proceed to evaluate the deposits for 
determination of significance as defined by the CEQA guidelines. The 
archaeologist shall submit reports, to the satisfaction of the City of Fresno 
Woodlake, describing the testing program and subsequent results. These reports 
shall identify any program mitigation that the project proponent shall complete in 
order to mitigate archaeological impacts (including resource recovery and/or 
avoidance testing and analysis, removal, reburial, and curation of archaeological 
resources). 

CUL – 2 In order to ensure that the proposed project does not impact buried human 
remains during project construction, the project proponent shall be responsible for 
on-going monitoring of project construction. Prior to the issuance of any grading 
permit, the project proponent shall provide the City of Fresno Woodlake with 
documentation identifying construction personnel that will be responsible for on-
site monitoring. If buried human remains are encountered during construction, 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably 
suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall be halted until the Fresno Tulare 
County Coroner is contacted and the coroner has made the determinations and 

422



notifications required pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5. If the 
coroner determines that Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c) require that he 
give notice to the Native American Heritage Commission, then such notice shall 
be given within 24 hours, as required by Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c). 
In that event, the NAHC will conduct the notifications required by Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98. Until the consultations described below have 
been completed, the landowner shall further ensure that the immediate vicinity, 
according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards or practices 
where Native American human remains are located, is not disturbed by further 
development activity until the landowner has discussed and conferred with the 
Most Likely Descendants on all reasonable options regarding the descendants' 
preferences and treatments, as prescribed by Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b). The NAHC will mediate any disputes regarding treatment of remains 
in accordance with Public Resources Code Section 5097.94(k). The landowner shall 
be entitled to exercise rights established by Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(e) if any of the circumstances established by that provision become 
applicable.” 

Comment 5 – Page 48 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“The Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board adopted a General Waste Discharge 
Requirements Order for Discharges of Waste Associated with Medical Cannabis Cultivation 
Activities (Order No. R5-2015-0113).  The State Water Resources Control Board has established 
General Order WQ 2019-0001-DWQ for cannabis cultivation. Any proposed cannabis tenants will 
be in compliance with the rules and requirements set forth in the Discharge Requirements 
General Order.  

Therefore, any impacts are less than significant.” 
 

Comment 6 – Page 49 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“According to the Woodlake General Plan 2008-2028, the aquifer underlying the City is a good 
supply of water although the relative shallowness of the water table can make the supply 
susceptible to surface contaminants. The water table is recharged primarily by water moving 
downhill from the watersheds of Sierra Nevada streams. The St. Johns River, which forms the 
southern boundary of the City of Woodlake, charges the aquifer from which Woodlake pumps 
its domestic water.  

423



Project demands for groundwater resources in connection with the proposed Project would not 
substantially deplete groundwater supplies and/or otherwise interfere with groundwater 
recharge efforts being implemented by the City of Woodlake. The proposed Project is not 
anticipated to result in additional demands for groundwater resources beyond those considered 
in the adopted City of Woodlake General Plan as the proposed Project is an allowable use within 
the land designation. The proposed Project would use a combination of City water for sanitary 
facilities and an existing on-site water well for any cultivation. Any impacts would be less than 
significant.” 
 

Comment 7 – Page 60 of Appendix A, Initial Study/Notice of Preparation has been changed as 
follows: 

“Less than Significant Impact. The proposed Project site will continue to be served by the City 
of Woodlake Fire Department, which is less than one mile east of the proposed Project site. The 
City of Woodlake Fire Department has reviewed the proposed Project and determined that no 
additional fire personnel or equipment is anticipated. , as the site is already served by the Fire 
Station. The impact is less than significant.” 

 
 

424



CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program 
State law requires that a public agency adopt a monitoring program for mitigation 
measures that have been incorporated into the approved project to reduce or avoid 
significant effects on the environment. The purpose of the monitoring program is to 
ensure compliance with environmental mitigation during project implementation and 
operation. Since there are potentially significant impacts requiring mitigation associated 
with the project, a Mitigation Monitoring Program is included herein on the following 
pages.  

425



Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measure 
Monitoring 

Timing/ 

Frequency 

Action Indicating 
Compliance 

Monitoring 
Agency 

Verification of Compliance 

Initials Date Remarks 

Biological Resources 

BIO-1   To the extent practicable, 
construction shall be scheduled 
to avoid the nesting season, 
which extends from February 
through August. If it is not possible 
to schedule construction 
between September and 
January, a pre-construction 
clearance survey for nesting birds 
shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist to ensure that no active 
nests will be disturbed during the 
implementation of the Project. A 
pre-construction clearance 
survey shall be conducted no 
more than 14 days prior to the 
start of construction activities. 
During this survey, the qualified 
biologist shall inspect all potential 
nest substrates in and 
immediately adjacent to the 
impact areas, including within 250 
feet in the case of raptor nests. If 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

426



an active nest is found close 
enough to the construction area 
to be disturbed by these activities, 
the qualified biologist shall 
determine the extent of a 
construction-free buffer to be 
established around the nest. If 
work cannot proceed without 
disturbing the nesting birds, work 
may need to be halted or 
redirected to other areas until 
nesting and fledging are 
completed or the nest has failed 
for non-construction related 
reasons.  

 
BIO-2 Migratory Bird surveys: Prior to 

initiation of construction activities, 
a qualified biologist should 
conduct a survey to establish a 
behavioral baseline of all nests 
identified in the surveys outlined in 
BIO-1 (see Appendix A). Once 
construction begins, a qualified 
biologist should monitor nests to 
detect behavioral changes 
resulting from construction 
activities. If behavioral changes 
occur, CDFW recommends the 
work causing that change cease 
and CDFW be consulted for 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

427



additional avoidance and 
minimization measures. If 
continuous monitoring of 
identified nests by a qualified 
wildlife biologist is not feasible, 
CDFW recommends a minimum 
no-disturbance buffer of 250-feet 
around active nests of non-listed 
bird species and a 500-foot no-
disturbance buffer around active 
nests of non-listed raptors. These 
buffers are advised to remain in 
place until the breeding season 
has ended or until a qualified 
biologist has determined the birds 
have fledged and are no longer 
reliant upon the next or parental 
care for survival.  

 

BIO-3 SJKF Surveys: Surveys shall be 
performed to assess presence 
and absence of SJKF and/or their 
dens both on and within 200 feet 
of the Project site. Pre-
construction surveys (in 
accordance with the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Standardized 
Recommendations for Protection 
of the San Joaquin Kit Fox Prior to 
or During Ground Disturbance, 
January 2011) shall be performed 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

428



no less than 14 days and no more 
than 30 days prior to the 
beginning of ground-disturbing 
activities.  

BIO-4 SJKF Avoidance: If dens are 
found during surveys, no-
disturbance buffers shall be 
implemented, in accordance 
with the USFWS’ “Standardized 
recommendations for protection 
of the San Joaquin kit fox prior to 
our during ground disturbance.” 
Specifically, if SJKF are found 
occupying atypical (i.e. 
manmade structure) den sites, a 
50-foot no-disturbance area is 
recommended around the 
occupied den structure. If 
potential dens are found during 
surveys, a 50-foot no-disturbance 
buffer shall be implemented 
around these dens. A 100-foot 
no-disturbance buffer shall be 
implemented if occupied dens 
are discovered. If a natal or 
pupping den is found during 
surveys, consultation with CDFW 
shall occur.  

 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

429



BIO-5 SJKF Take Avoidance: If SJKF are 
detected, CDFW consultation 
shall occur, to discuss how to 
implement the Project and avoid 
take, or if avoidance is not 
feasible, to acquire a State 
Incidental Take Permit, pursuant 
to Fish and Game Code section 
2081(b).  

 

      

BIO-6 CBB Take Avoidance: All small 
mammal burrows and 
thatched/bunch grasses shall be 
avoided by a minimum of 50 feet 
to avoid take. If the Project area 
includes brush piles, 
unmowed/overgrown areas, 
dead trees or hollow logs, those 
areas shall be avoided by a 
minimum of 50 feet to avoid take. 
If ground-disturbing activities 
occur during the overwintering 
period (October through 
February), consultation with 
CDFW shall occur to discuss how 
to implement Project activities 
and avoid take. If CBB are 
detected prior to or during Project 
implementation, CDFW shall be 

Prior to 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

430



consulted to discuss how to avoid 
take.  

 

Cultural Resources 

CUL-1 Should evidence of prehistoric 
archeological resources be 
discovered during construction, 
the contractor shall halt all work 
within 25 feet of the find and the 
resource shall be evaluated by a 
qualified archaeologist. If 
evidence of any archaeological, 
cultural, and/or historical deposits 
is found, hand excavation and/or 
mechanical excavation shall 
proceed to evaluate the deposits 
for determination of significance 
as defined by the CEQA 
guidelines. The archaeologist shall 
submit reports, to the satisfaction 
of the City of Woodlake, 
describing the testing program 
and subsequent results. These 
reports shall identify any program 
mitigation that the project 
proponent shall complete in order 
to mitigate archaeological 
impacts (including resource 
recovery and/or avoidance 
testing and analysis, removal, 

During 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

431



reburial, and curation of 
archaeological resources). 

CUL-2 In order to ensure that the 
proposed project does not 
impact buried human remains 
during project construction, the 
project proponent shall be 
responsible for on-going 
monitoring of project 
construction. Prior to the issuance 
of any grading permit, the project 
proponent shall provide the City 
of Woodlake with documentation 
identifying construction personnel 
that will be responsible for on-site 
monitoring. If buried human 
remains are encountered during 
construction, further excavation 
or disturbance of the site or any 
nearby area reasonably 
suspected to overlie adjacent 
remains shall be halted until the 
Tulare County Coroner is 
contacted and the coroner has 
made the determinations and 
notifications required pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code Section 
7050.5. If the coroner determines 
that Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5(c) require that he 

During 
construction 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

432



give notice to the Native 
American Heritage Commission, 
then such notice shall be given 
within 24 hours, as required by 
Health and Safety Code Section 
7050.5(c). In that event, the NAHC 
will conduct the notifications 
required by Public Resources 
Code Section 5097.98. Until the 
consultations described below 
have been completed, the 
landowner shall further ensure 
that the immediate vicinity, 
according to generally accepted 
cultural or archaeological 
standards or practices where 
Native American human remains 
are located, is not disturbed by 
further development activity until 
the landowner has discussed and 
conferred with the Most Likely 
Descendants on all reasonable 
options regarding the 
descendants' preferences and 
treatments, as prescribed by 
Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b). The NAHC will 
mediate any disputes regarding 
treatment of remains in 
accordance with Public 

433



 

Resources Code Section 
5097.94(k). The landowner shall be 
entitled to exercise rights 
established by Public Resources 
Code Section 5097.98(e) if any of 
the circumstances established by 
that provision become 
applicable. 

Transportation/Traffic 

TRA-1 The Project Developer shall be 
responsible for paying its fair share 
cost percentages and/or 
constructing improvements as 
detailed in Table 3.11, subject to 
reimbursement for the costs that 
are in excess of the Project’s 
equitable responsibility as 
determined by the City of 
Woodlake. This shall be itemized 
and enforced through conditions 
of approval or a development 
agreement, at the discretion of 
the City of Woodlake.  

 

Prior to issuance 
of grading 
permit. 

Verification by 
City and 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

City of 
Woodlake 
and 
Construction 
Contractor 

   

434



    

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

1.CERTIFYING THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL)  Resolution No. 

IMPACT REPORT (EIR) FOR THE   ) 

RECOMMENDED PROJECT OF THE  )  

7 POINTS INDUSTRIAL COMPLEX PROJECT )  

(PROJECT)      )  

2.APPROVING THE PROJECT IN THE FINAL )  

EIR       )  

3.APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE  ) 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING)  

PLAN (MMRP) FOR THE PROJECT  )   

 

Councilmember _____, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of 

the 7 Points Industrial Complex Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the 

Project   

 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to subdivide and develop an industrial park, and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposed zone for the site is ML, Light Manufacturing, and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed request has been processed consistent with Chapter 54, Site Plan 

Review, of the Woodlake Zoning Ordinance, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan Committee has reviewed the site plan for the proposed industrial 

buildings and has determined that it is consistent with requirements of the ML zone, and 

 

WHEREAS, the final EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA, including 

circulation of a draft EIR for public comment, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council shall adopt the overall mitigation monitoring plan 

attached hereto, and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake City Council: 

 

1. Certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Recommended Project of the 7 

Points Industrial Complex Project (Project)  

2. Approve the Project in the Final EIR  

3. Approve and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Project   

 

 

 

 

435



    

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember_____, second by 

Councilmember ______, at a regular meeting of the Woodlake City Council on the 26th day of 

May 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      

 

  _____________________ 

        Mayor, Rudy Mendoza 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 

 

436



 

    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-F  
May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Approval of Vehicle Circulation Restrictions Within City 

Limits Related to the City of Woodlake North Valencia Extension ADA Project 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City of Woodlake is currently undergoing an enhancement of its downtown commercial 

district and adjacent residential areas.  As part of the enhancements of the North Valencia 

Extension ADA Project, curb, gutters and sidewalks will be added from Sierra Ave. to Sequoia 

Ave. The purpose of these improvements is to provide for a walkable downtown with safe and 

enticing residential areas that promote pedestrian traffic. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The improvements will result in the narrowing of the turning radius for traffic turning on some 

streets.  In order to protect the health and safety of the City of Woodlake and its citizens, it is 

being recommended that the following travel restrictions be approved, and that proper signage is 

posted. 

 

1. The City prohibits vehicles over forty feet long, from traveling either north or south 

bound on Valencia Boulevard from turning either left or right onto Sierra Avenue.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends approval of the recommended vehicle circulation restrictions.  The restrictions 

will allow for the long-term health, safety and quiet enjoyment of the City of Woodlake by its 

citizens.    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

1. Resolution: Approval of Vehicle Circulation Restrictions Within City Limits Related to 

the City of Woodlake North Valencia Extension ADA Project 
 

437



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

In the matter of: 

 

APPROVAL OF VEHICLE CIRCULATION  )  Resolution No.  

RESTRICTIONS WITHIN CITY LIMITS         )                           

RELATED TO THE CITY OF WOODLAKE  ) 

NORTH VALENCIA BOULEVARD EXTENSION ) 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT     ) 

 

Councilmember ________, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve 

vehicle circulation restrictions within the city limits related to the City of Woodlake North Valencia 

Boulevard Extension Improvements Project.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodlake is empowered to protect the health and safety of its Citizens; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that certain activities are detrimental to the health, safety and 

quiet enjoyment of the residents of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that specific streets are inappropriate for use by larger 

vehicles. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WOODLAKE DOES RESOLVE as follows:  

 

SECTION 1:  

 

The City prohibits vehicles over forty feet long, from traveling either north or south bound 

on Valencia Boulevard from turning either left or right onto Sequoia Avenue.  

 

SECTION 2:  

 

The city engineer will prepare and erect signs at those intersections as appropriate.   

 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Councilmember _________, and seconded 

by Councilmember ________, and carried by the following vote at the City Council meeting held 

on May 26, 2020. 

 

 AYES:  

 

 NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 ABSENT:  

       ____________________ 

       Rudy Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________ 

Irene Zacarias, City Clerk 438



 

    

City of Woodlake 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM V-G  

May 26, 2020 

Prepared by Ramon Lara, City Staff  

 

SUBJECT: 

 

Information: Presentation and Planning Session for the City of Woodlake’s Fiscal Year 

2020/2021 Budget 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Annually, City staff submits to the City Council a draft budget. The draft budget is submitted at 

scheduled Council meetings, which are open to the public. The purpose of the budgeting process 

is to propose necessary expenditures and the means of funding them for the upcoming fiscal 

year.  Time is also dedicated to looking at the future needs of the City and preparing for projects 

that may be needed down the road.  The current budget will be in place from July 1, 2020 to June 

30, 2020. 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Woodlake, like many other governmental agencies, has needed to adapt to current 

economic conditions and revenue streams.  The City has taken a conservative approach during its 

budget process, while keeping in mind the wellbeing of its citizens and its employees.    

 

For Fiscal Year 2020/2021 City staff is presenting a DRAFT balanced budget that allows for 

adequate services to be provided for its citizens.  Some of the major highlights will be the 

continued expansion of Parks and Recreation, the construction of the North Valencia Extension 

project and the continued development of the Industrial Park.     

 

As part of the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget, no new positions will be added.  The City will 

have thirty-two full time employees and the departments will be staffed as follows: 

 

1. City Administration and Clerical – 7 

(City Administrator, City Clerk, Community Services Director, Accountant, Planner 

1, Clerk(2)) 

2. Police Department – 14 

(Chief, Lieutenant, Sergeant(2), Officers(9), Clerk) 

3. Public Works – 11 

(Supervisor, Chief Waste Water, Chief Water, Waste Water II(1), Building Inspector, 

Mechanic, Maintenance Worker(4), Bus Driver) 

 

 

 

 

439



 

    

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The DRAFT budget as presented for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 is a balanced budget for all City 

funds.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

  

1. DRAFT City of Woodlake Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget (in a separate cover) 

 

2. Power Point Budget Presentation (to be presented at the meeting) 
 

440


	Item V.E Attachment No. 1 7 Points Industrial Final EIR.pdf
	Final Focused Environmental Impact Report
	7Points Industrial Complex Project

	CHAPTER ONE - Introduction
	Introduction
	Background
	CEQA Requirements
	Use of the Final EIR

	CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses
	Introduction
	Comment Letters

	CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR
	“Other Public Agencies Involved

	CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

	Item V.D Attachment No. 1 Concord Industrial Final EIR.pdf
	Final Focused Environmental Impact Report
	Concord Center Industrial Project

	CHAPTER ONE - Introduction
	Introduction
	Background
	CEQA Requirements
	Use of the Final EIR

	CHAPTER TWO – Comments and Responses
	Introduction
	Comment Letters

	CHAPTER THREE – Text Changes to the DEIR
	CHAPTER FOUR – Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

	Item V.C Basin IS.pdf
	PROJECT INFORMATION
	Project title
	Lead agency name and address
	Contact person and phone number
	Project location
	Project sponsor’s name/address
	General plan designation
	Zoning
	Project Description
	Surrounding Land Uses/Existing Conditions
	Other Public Agencies Involved
	Tribal Consultation

	ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED
	DETERMINATION
	ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST
	Would the project:
	a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 
	i. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or
	ii. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of the Public Resources Code section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe. 
	LIST OF PREPARERS
	Persons and Agencies Consulted

	App A - CalEEMod.pdf
	Pipeline Emissions.pdf
	Emission Estimates


	App B - Bio Memo.pdf
	Appendix A - USFWS Species List.pdf
	United States Department of the Interior
	FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

	Official Species List
	Project summary
	Endangered Species Act species
	Mammals
	Birds
	Reptiles
	Amphibians
	Fishes
	Crustaceans
	Flowering Plants
	Critical habitats




	App C - Cultural.pdf
	MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
	1. INTRODUCTION AND REGULATORY CONTEXT
	1.1 PROJECT LOCATION
	1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND APE
	1.3 regulatory context

	2. ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL BACKGROUND
	2.1 GEOARCHAEOLOGICAL SENSITIVITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL BACKGROUND
	2.2 ETHNOGRAPHIC BACKGROUND
	2.3 PRE-CONTACT ARCHAEOLOGICAL BACKGROUND
	2.4 HISTORICAL BACKGROUND
	2.5 RESEARCH DESIGN
	2.5.1 Pre-Contact Archaeology
	2.5.2 Historical Archaeology: Native American
	2.5.3 Historical Archaeology: Euro-American

	3. ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH
	3.1 ARCHIVAL RECORDS SEARCH

	4. METHODS AND results
	4.1 Field methods
	4.2 SURVEY RESULTS
	4.2.1 Previously Recorded Resources

	5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	REFERENCES





